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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K for Annual and Transition Reports
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Mark One)
| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended March 31, 200
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
For the transition period from to
Commission Registrant, State of Incorporation I.R.S. Employer
File Number Address and Telephone Number Identification No.
1-11255 AMERCO 88-0106815
(A Nevada Corporation)
1325 Airmotive Way, Suite 100
Reno, Nevada 89502-3239
Telephone (775) 66300
2-38498 U-Haul International, Inc. 86-0663060
(A Nevada Corporation)
2727 N. Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004
Telephone (602) 2¢-6645
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:
Name of Each Exchange
Registrant Title of Class on Which Registered
AMERCO Series A 8 1/2% New York Stock Exchange
Preferred Stoc
U-Haul International, Inc None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act:

Name of Each Exchange
Registrant Title of Class on Which Registered
AMERCO Common NASDAQ
U-Haul International, Inc None

Indicate by check mark whether the registréjthas filed all reports required to be filed®gction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiech shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastia@s. Yes No ™

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delieqt filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation $WKot contained herein, and will not be

contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowdgdig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Il of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registiaiain accelerated filer (as defined in ExchangeRude 12I-2 of the Act). YesO



No ™

20,621,499 shares of AMERCO common stock,%0& value, were outstanding at August 15, 200@. dggregate market value of
AMERCO common stock held by naffiliates (i.e., stock held by persons other thfiters, directors and 5% shareholders of AMER©G
September 30, 2002 was $66,678,706. The aggregatetivalue was computed using the closing pricéhfe common stock trading on
NASDAQ on such date

5,385 shares of U-Haul International, Inc. coon stock, $0.01 par value, were outstanding atuat5, 2003. None of these shares were
held by non-affiliates.
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PART |
ltem 1. Business:

A. AMERCO and Consolidated Subsidiaries, SAC Holdig Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries and SAGolding
Corporation Il and Consolidated Subsidiaries

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation (“AMERCOQ"), ieetholding company for U-Haul International, IntJ{Haul”), Amerco Real Estate
Company (“Real Estate”), Republic Western Insurabompany (“RepWest”) and Oxford Life Insurance Camyp (“Oxford”). Throughout
this Form 10-K, unless the context otherwise rexgjithe term “Company” refers to AMERCO and aliteiegal subsidiaries. AMERCO's
executive offices are located at 1325 Airmotive Wayite 100, Reno, Nevada 89502-3239, and thehtetepnumber is (775) 688-6300. As
used in this Form 10-K, all references to a figear refer to AMERCO's fiscal year ended March 81hat year. RepWest and Oxford are
consolidated on the basis of calendar years endedrbber 31. Accordingly, all references to the y@&02, 2001 and 2000 for RepWest and
Oxford correspond to AMERCO's fiscal years 200302@nd 2001, respectively. The Company has fowrsing segments represented by
Moving and Storage Operations (U-Haul), Real Estteperty and Casualty Insurance (RepWest) arellhgurance (Oxford). See Note 22
of Notes to Consolidated Financial StatementsamI8 for financial information regarding the indystegments and geographic areas.

SAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Caorqtton [, Nevada corporations (collectively, “SA®Idings”), are the holding
companies for several individual corporations than self-storage properties managed by AMERCO slidrges in the ordinary course of
business. The Company has made significant loa8&@ Holdings and is entitled to participate in SNGIdings’ excess cash flow (after
senior debt service). Mark V. Shoen, a significgtrareholder of AMERCO and executive officer of UdH@awns substantially all of the
equity interest of SAC Holdings. The Company doeistrave an equity ownership interest in SAC Holdingkcept for minority investments
made by RepWest and Oxford in a SAC Holdings-cdletidimited partnership, which holds Canadian-sétfrage properties. SAC Holdings
is not a legal subsidiary of AMERCO. The Compangas liable for the debts of SAC Holdings and thare no default provisions in the
Company’s indebtedness that cross-default to SA[dikigs’ obligations nor are there provisions in SAGIdings indebtedness that cross-
default to the Company’s obligations. U-Haul cutlemanages the properties owned by SAC Holdingteumanagement agreements and
receives a management fee. SAC Holdings operat@sdibusiness segment — moving and storage opesattor financial reporting
purposes, SAC Holdings is treated as a specialggerpntity, with no independent equity at risk, Hretefore the Company includes the
amounts of SAC Holdings in the consolidated finahstatements.

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterfyorés on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K ameétndments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13 (a) or 15 (dhef$ecurities Exchange Act are available free afgd on our website at www.uhaul.com as
soon as reasonably practicable after electronidiithg such reports with the SEC. Information cained on our website is not part of this
report.

Recent Developmen

Chapter 11 Filing

On June 20, 2003 (the “Petition Date”), AMER(@led a voluntary petition for relief under Chaptl1 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United StatesmBuptcy Court, District of Nevada (the “Bankruptcourt”) (Case No. 0352103).
Amerco Real Estate Company filed a voluntary pamtifior relief under Chapter 11 on August 13, 208l JERCO’s other subsidiaries were
not included in either of the filings. AMERCO ané& Estate will continue to manage their properdied operate their businesses as “debtor-
in-possession” under the jurisdiction of the Bamkey Court and in accordance with the applicabtevigions of the Bankruptcy Code. The
Bankruptcy Court approved the joint
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administration of the Chapter 11 proceedings. Hweaeferences to AMERCO’s Chapter 11 also inelédanerco Real Estate Company as
applicable. In general, as debtor-in-possessionERKIO is authorized under Chapter 11 to continumptirate as an ongoing business, but
may not engage in transactions outside the ordioaumyse of business without the prior approvahefBankruptcy Court. Specific
information pertaining to the bankruptcy filing mbg obtained from our websitevw.amerco.com . The information on this website is not
considered part of this report.

The Chapter 11 filing was undertaken to fetié a restructuring of AMERCOQO's debt in respottséquidity issues, which developed
during the second half of 2002. In February, 2@82,Company’s prior independent auditor adviseddbmpany that its financial statements
would have to be consolidated for reporting purposgith those of SAC Holdings. This consolidationdahe resulting lack of clarity
regarding AMERCO'’s operating results and financi@idition, contributed substantially and directiyatseries of significant developments
adversely impacting the Company’s access to cafite consolidation of SAC Holdings resulted in atenial decrease in the Company’s
reported net earnings and net worth and a correpgincrease in its consolidated leverage rattmnsolidating SAC Holdings also requit
a costly and time&onsuming restatement of prior period results lgthto the untimely filing of quarterly and annweports with the Securiti
and Exchange Commission.

As the situation was occurring, AMERCO wasmpting to negotiate the replacement of its $4@0om credit facility with JP Morgan
Chase. On June 28, 2002, AMERCO entered into acneslit facility with JP Morgan Chase, which redu#ddERCO’s line of credit to
$205 million. The terms of the new JP Morgan CHas#ity required that AMERCO raise $150 millionrttugh a capital markets transaction
prior to October 15, 2002. Additionally, AMERCO hpdyments for principal and related SWAP arrangdésiender AMERCO'’s
Series 1997-C Bond Backed Asset Trust (“BBAT") nmatg October 15, 2002. In response to these reapgings, AMERCO undertook a
$275 million bond offering. The bond offering wadtmately unsuccessful, exemplifying AMERCO's sificantly reduced access to the
capital markets to meet its financial needs duartmyng other things, the confusion and adversespéon resulting from the SAC Holdings
consolidation. On October 15, 2002, AMERCO defaltia the repayment of the BBATS, which led to crdsfaults and an acceleration of
substantially all of the other outstanding instrmtsen the Company’s debt structure.

Since that time, AMERCO has continuously riieged with its creditor groups to attempt to reaatonsensual restructuring arrangement
that would provide for the repayment of all cretitand the maintenance of AMERCO's existing equitywever, while substantial progress
has been made in negotiations with certain keyittedonstituencies, the complexity of AMERCOQO's itapstructure and the diversity of
interests of the creditor groups has made an dgjeitand consensual restructuring, outside of fom@alganization proceedings, exceedingly
difficult. Accordingly, AMERCO filed its Chapter lroceeding to provide the structure and framewofinalize and implement a
restructuring of all of its debt.

We have secured from Wells Fargo FoothilB&@®million debtor-in-possession financing faciltiie “DIP Facility”), and a commitment
for a $650 million bankruptcy emergence facilitheBe financing arrangements provide the basic fatiordupon which AMERCO plans to
build its reorganization plan. On August 13, 20R8al Estate was filed into Chapter 11 proceedingsder to facilitate granting security to
the lending group in the real estate assets. Raatd&cadministers all of the Company’s real propand owns approximately 90% of the
Company'’s real estate assets.

The exit or emergence financing facility Wil used to fund cash payments to AMERCO'’s cregliteith the balance of the creditor
claims being paid through the issuance of newruesitred debt securities at market interest radeswithstanding AMERCO's default on the
BBATSs in October 2002, and the resulting cross-dié$aunder AMERCO's other debt facilities, untietRetition Date AMERCO has
remained current in interest payments on all ofl@bt obligations, in many cases at default inteass.

In order to exit Chapter 11 successfully, ARIEO will need to propose, and obtain confirmatigrtiee Bankruptcy Court of, a plan of
reorganization that satisfies the requirementf@Bankruptcy Code. A plan of reorganization walsolve, among other things,
AMERCO'’s pre-petition obligations and set forth tegised capital structure. The timing of filingpkn of reorganization by AMERCO wiill
depend on the timing




Table of Contents

and outcome of numerous other ongoing mattersarCtiapter 11 case. Although AMERCO expects toefittull-value” plan of
reorganization that provides creditors with a camkion of cash and new debt securities equal téulhamount of their allowed claims as
well as AMERCO'’s emergence from bankruptcy as ageoncern, there can be no assurance at thighime plan of reorganization will be
confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court or that any spln will be implemented successfully.

Under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code filiveg of a bankruptcy petition automatically stkagnost actions against a debtor, including
most actions to collect pre-petition indebtednas® @xercise control over the property of the debtestate. Absent an order of the
Bankruptcy Court, substantially all pre-petitioatilities are subject to settlement under the pfareorganization.

Under Section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code, AMERCQ mssume, assume and assign, or reject certaintexgcontracts and unexpir
leases, subject to the approval of the BankruptmyrCand certain other conditions. In general,atéj@ of an unexpired lease or executory
contract is treated as a ppetition breach of the lease or contract in quast®ubject to certain exceptions, this rejectidieves AMERCO o
performing its future obligations under that leaseontract but entitles the lessor or contracinterparty to a pre-petition general unsecured
claim for damages caused by the deemed breach.

Counterparties to these rejected contracksases may file proofs of claim against AMERCOstaée for such damages. Generally, the
assumption of an executory contract or unexpiraddeequires a debtor to cure most existing defauiler such executory contract or
unexpired lease.

The United States Trustee for the DistricNefvada (the “U.S. Trustee”) has appointed an iaffcommittee of unsecured creditors (the
“Creditors’ Committee”) and an Equity Committee.eT@reditors’ Committee and Equity Committee andrtfespective legal representatives
have a right to be heard on certain matters thakecoefore the Bankruptcy Court. There can be narasse that the Creditors’ Committee
and Equity Committee will support AMERCO's positoar AMERCOQO'’s ultimate plan of reorganization, omeeposed, and disagreements
between AMERCO and the Creditors’ Committee anditgdCommittee could protract the Chapter 11 caealctnegatively impact
AMERCO'’s ability to operate during the Chapter Bke, and could prevent AMERCO'’s emergence from @nhdgd.

At this time, it is not possible to prediccarately the effect of the Chapter 11 reorgamzagirocess on the Company’s business or when
AMERCO may emerge from Chapter 11. The Companytisréuresults depend on the timely and successhflramation and implementation
of a plan of reorganization. The rights and claghsarious creditors and security holders will testmined by the plan as well. Although
AMERCO expects to file and consummate a “full valpkan of reorganization that provides creditorshaa combination of cash and new
debt securities equal to the full amount of théoveed claims and also preserves the value of AMBR:ommon and preferred stock, no
assurance can be given as to what values, if aifjpevascribed in the bankruptcy proceedings thea these constituencies. Accordingly,
the Company urges that appropriate caution be esegtevith respect to existing and future investraémtany of such securities and claims.
The Company'’s financial settlements included is #drm 10-K do not reflect the effects of the baipkey filing. Also, the auditor’s opinion
contains a going concern opinion that raises sobataloubt about our ability to continue as a go@oncern. See Note 1 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

Financial Satement Re-audit and Resulting Restatement of 2002 and 2001 Financial Satements

BDO Seidman, LLP (“BDQ”) has completed thearalit of the financial statements of AMERCO arsdsitibsidiaries and SAC Holdings
and its subsidiaries for the fiscal years endedch&, 2002 and 2001. In connection with this rdiait was determined that there was a
need for the Company to record adjustments relatingsurance reserves for prior periods at AMER&Z@ its subsidiary, RepWest; to adj
for recognizing losses of Private Mini pursuanttte equity method; as well as other significanuatents. These adjustments have resulted
in the restatement of the Company’s financial statets for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2002264

3
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2002 2001

As Previously As Previously
Reported Restated Reported Restated

(In thousands)
Revenue: 2,058,501 2,193,57! 1,882,44 2,029,481
Net earnings (loss 2,721 (47,440 1,012 (42,110

This report contains restated consolidatedrftial statements for the years ended March 312 26d 2001, and for the quarters ended in
the periods ended March 31, 2002 and December(®P,. 2

The major components for the restatement wereegtkat 1) insurance and 2) the equity loss recagmidf Private Mini by AMERCO. F¢
2002 the insurance related after tax adjustment84&amillion and for 2001 it was $38 million. The\Rte Mini related adjustment for 2002
was $7 million and for 2001 it was $5.7 million.

As a result of the restatement, total assetsf March 31, 2002 decreased from $3,773,458,i638,317 and total stockholders’ equity as
of March 31, 2002 decreased from $499,106 to $38!1,5

For more information about the reinstatemes#s Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Staté&snen

SEC Investigation

The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SB@% issued a formal order of investigation tedeatne whether the Company has
violated the Federal securities laws. On Janua®p@3, the Company received the first of four sudnas issued by the SEC. SAC Holdings,
the Company’s current and former auditors, andrethave also received one or more subpoenas hatithis matter. The Company is
cooperating fully with the SEC and is facilitatitige expeditious review of its financial statemeanid any other issues that may arise. The
Company has produced a large volume of documenitetdner materials in response to the subpoenashandompany is continuing to
assemble and produce additional documents andiadatiar the SEC. Although the Company has fullpperated with the SEC in this
matter and intends to continue to fully coopertite, SEC may determine that the Company has vioktderal securities laws. We cannot
predict when this investigation will be completedte outcome. If the SEC makes a determinatiohweahave violated Federal securities
laws, we may face sanctions, including, but nottéohto, significant monetary penalties and injiretelief.

Department of Labor Investigation

The United States Department of Labor (“DOis"presently investigating whether there wereatiohs of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISAThvolving the AMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Shariand Employee Stock Ownership Plan
“Plan™). The DOL has interviewed a number of Compegpresentatives as well as the Plan fiduciameshas issued a subpoena to the
Company and a subpoena to SAC Holdings. At thegpiteigme, the Company is unable to determine whatteeDOL will assert any claims
against the Company, SAC Holdings, or the Planci@hies. The DOL has asked AMERCO and its curr@ettbrs as well as the Plan
Trustees to sign an agreement tolling the statuliendations until December 31, 2003 with resptcainy claims arising out of certain
transactions between AMERCO or any affiliate of ARIEO and SAC Holdings or any of its affiliates angls persons have done so. The
DOL recently asked such parties to extend thenplligreement. The DOL has not advised the Comeatyttbelieves that any violations of
ERISA have in fact occurred. Instead, the DOL is@y investigating potential violations. The Compantends to take any corrective action
that may be needed in light of the DOL’s ultimatedings. Although the Company has fully cooperatgtth the DOL in this matter and
intends to continue to fully cooperate, the DOL rdajermine that the Company has violated ERISAh#n event, the Company may face
sanctions, including, but not limited to, signifittanonetary penalties and injunctive relief.

4
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Nasdaq Listing Satus

On June 24, 2003, the Company received er lstim Nasdaq indicating that, in light of AMERCecent Chapter 11 filing, a Nasdaq
Listing Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) wouldnsider such filing and associated concerns in némgle@ determination regarding
AMERCO'’s continued listing status. Nasdaq has retpte and AMERCO has provided, information regagdMMERCOQ’s Chapter 11 filing
and the anticipated effect of the reorganizatiatess on the shareholders of AMERCO. On Augus2@33, AMERCO received a letter
from Nasdag indicating that the Panel has detemnineontinue the listing of AMERCO’s common stazkNasdaq provided that: (1) on or
before August 22, 2003, AMERCO files this reportl #s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2@@8the SEC and Nasdaq (Nasdaq
has been advised that this deadline was not mefuatter discussions with Nasdaq are anticipatét))pn or before deadlines determined by
the Panel, AMERCO submits to Nasdaq a copy of thve@any’s plan of reorganization as filed with ttekruptcy court, a copy of any
amendments to the plan of reorganization as subdnitt the bankruptcy court; documentation evideptimt AMERCO has commenced the
solicitation of votes regarding the plan of reorigation, as well as documentation evidencing thatglan of reorganization has been
confirmed by the bankruptcy court; and (3) on diobe January 9, 2004, AMERCO submits documentatiddasdaq evidencing its
emergence from bankruptcy. In addition to the foreg, AMERCO must comply with all other requirem&fr continued listing on Nasdag.
Although AMERCO intends to seek a modification ke deadlines to file its Form 10-K and Form 10sQiscussed above and to take all
actions available to maintain its Nasdagq listitngré can be no assurance that AMERCO will be abtiotso. In addition, as a result of the
Chapter 11 filing and the late filing of this repdkMERCOQO’s trading symbol was changed by NasdatitdAEQ".

New York Sock Exchange Listing Status

The New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE") lcasnpleted a review of the continued listing of 8eries A 8 1/2% preferred stock of
AMERCO following the Company'’s filing for protecticunder Chapter 11. According to NYSE, this assess$itnas shown that the Company
is currently in compliance with all of the NY SEquantitative continued listing standards. The E¥Y8Il continue to closely monitor events
the Company in connection with assessing the apiatepess of continued listing of the Company’demed stock. The NYSE has indicated
that it will give consideration to immediate suspien of the Company’s preferred stock if authomeaadvice is received that the Company’s
securities, including the common stock, are witha@ltie, or if the Company subsequently falls betow of the NYSE'’s quantitative
continued listing standards. In addition, the NYi&fed that it may, at any time, suspend a secifiiitpelieves that continued dealings in the
security on the NYSE are not advisable.

AMERCO Chief Financial Officer

On April 14, 2003, Gary B. Horton, TreasuseAMERCO, announced his retirement from the Conypamd its subsidiaries effective
August 1, 2003. On April 21, 2003, Andrew A. Stesgmined AMERCO as its Chief Financial Officer. Matevens left on August 7, 2003 to
pursue other opportunities. The search for a neigf@inancial Officer is in progress. Mr. Hortonshagreed to postpone his retirement to
facilitate the transition to the new Chief Finah€Mficer.

Arizona Department of |nsurance Supervision of Republic Western

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@odé&upervision issued by the Arizona Departnadritsurance (“DOI”). The DOI
determined that RepWest's level of risk based eafiRBC”) allowed for regulatory control. Pursudntthis order and Arizona law, during
the period of supervision, RepWest may not engagay of the following activities without the priapproval of the DOI:

a. dispose of, convey or encumber any of ggtgsor its business in force;
b. withdraw any of its bank accounts;

c. lend any of its funds;
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d. invest any of its funds;

e. transfer any of its property;

-

incur any debt, obligation or liability inding the issuance of all new and renewal business;
g. merge or consolidate with another company;

h. enter into any new reinsurance contracteaty; or

i. enter into any affiliate transactions

In order to abate the DOI's order, RepWesstnastablish that it possesses surplus in comgiaith Arizona law and as the Arizona
Director of Insurance may require based on typkjnae or nature of its business pursuant to Arizeamaand establish that it has eliminated
the specific credit risk associated with the expesio AMERCO and its affiliates.

If RepWest fails to satisfy the requirementabate DOI's concerns, the DOl may take furtietioa, including, but not limited to,
commencing a conservatorship.

In April 2003, RepWest announced that in @ion with the Company’s overall restructuringoef$, it is redirecting its operating focus.
In particular, RepWest is exiting non-U-Haul rethtimes of business. This exit may result in neamtlosses as these lines are eliminated.

Moving and Storage Operatior

Moving and self-storage operations consighefrental of equipment such as trucks and tsitbe sale of moving and storage supplies
such as boxes and the rental of self-storage spadxth moving and storage customers. Operatimsa@nducted using the registered
tradename U-Haul® throughout the United StatesGauthda.

Real Estate Operation

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the @amy’s real estate assets, including U-Haul CeartdrStorage locations. Various U-Haul
and Insurance companies own the remainder of Hieestate assets. Real Estate is responsible &ms@®ing property acquisitions,
dispositions and managing environmental risks efgtoperties.

Property and Casualty Insuranc

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty-type insurance products for various ntgsketicipants, including independent
third parties, U-Haul's customers, independentatsadnd the Company. In April 2003, RepWest annediticat in connection with
AMERCO'’s overall restructuring efforts, in orderreduce costs and to build upon its core strengBpWest is exiting non-U-Haul related
lines of business. This exit may result in neamté&ysses as these lines are eliminated.

Life Insurance

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditdife and disability, single premium whole lifgroup life and disability coverage, and
Medicare supplement insurance. Oxford also adn@riéghe self-insured employee health and dentabglar AMERCO.

On November 13, 2000, Oxford acquired alhefissued and outstanding shares of Christianifidéfe Insurance Company (“CFLIC")
in an exchange of cash for stock. CFLIC is a Tebased insurance company specializing in providimpkemental health insurance and is
licensed in 31 states. The acquisition was accaluioteusing the purchase method of accounting aochrdingly, CFLIC’s results of
operations have been included in the consolidatech€ial statements since the date of acquisitibdord funded the acquisition from
available cash and short-term funds.
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B. History

U-Haul was founded in 1945 under the nameH&id Trailer Rental Company”. From 1945 to 1974Hal rented trailers and, starting in
1959, trucks on a one-way and In-Town® basis exedlys through independent dealers. Since 1974, UlHas developed a network of
Company managed rental centers (U-Haul Centersigitr which U-Haul also rents its trucks and trail@nd provides related products and

services (e.g., the sale and installation of hiclas well as the sale of boxes and other movidgstorage supplies). At March 31, 2003, U-
Haul’s distribution network included 1,350 Compamperated centers and 14,274 independent dealers.

C. Moving and Storage Operations
Business Strategie

The U-Haul business strategy remains focasedo-it-yourself moving and self-storage customeréiaul believes that customer access,
in terms of truck or trailer availability and praoxity of rental locations, is critical to its suceet)nder the U-Haul name, our strategy is to
offer, in an integrated manner over an extensivkegeographically diverse network of 15,624 Compapgrated Centers and independent
dealers, a wide range of products and services-it-yburself moving and self-storage customers.

Moving Operations

U-Haul has a variety of product offerings nie trucks are designed with do-it-yourself custosnin mind. U-Haul trailers are suited to
the low profile of many newly manufactured autontedi As of March 31, 2003, the Haul rental equipment fleet consisted of approxetye
92,000 trucks, 73,000 trailers and 19,000 tow dsllAdditionally, U-Haul provides support itemssas furniture pads, utility dollies and
handtrucks.

Approximately 90% of U-Haul’s gross rentaleaue is generated from do-it-yourself residemtialers. Moving rentals include:

() In-Town® rentals, where the equipment is rearo the originating U-Haul location and
(i) One-way rentals, where the equipment is regdrto a U-Haul location in another city.

U-Haul’s truck and trailer rental businessd® to be seasonal, with proportionally more tratisas and revenues generated in the spring
and summer months than during the balance of the ye

U-Haul sells a wide selection of moving sugpkhat include boxes, tape and packaging masetieHaul Centers also sell and install
hitches and towing systems, and sell propane.

U-Haul offers protection packages such as:
(i) Safemove® — which currently provides moving tmusers with a damage waiver, cargo protection aadical and life coverage;
(if) Safestor® — which currently provides ssliorage rental customers with various types ofgmtadn for their goods in storage; ¢
(iii) Safetow® — which currently provides towing stomers with a damage waiver, cargo protectionmaedical and life coverage.

Independent dealers receive U-Haul equipraerg consignment basis and are paid a commissigmoss revenues generated from their
rentals. U-Haul maintains contracts with its indegent dealers that may typically be terminated Wg®days written notice by either party.

Historically U-Haul has designed and manufeed its truck van boxes, trailers and various iostupport rental equipment items. Truck
chassis are manufactured by both foreign and daéentestk manufacturers. These chassis receiveingrtst-delivery modifications and are
joined with van boxes at strategically located Cam-owned manufacturing and assembly facilities inWimited States. From time to time,
U-Haul buys its truck bodies from a third party yidcer of such items.
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U-Haul services and maintains its trucks @aiflers through an extensive preventive-mainteagrogram, generally performed at
Company-owned facilities located at or near U-Haghters. Major repairs are performed either byctiessis manufacturers’ dealers or by
Company-owned repair shops.

Competition

A highly competitive industry exists withing moving truck and trailer rental market. Therm taro distinct users of rental trucks:
commercial users and do-it-yourself users. U-Haal§es on the do-it-yourself residential user. Withis group, U-Haul believes that the
principal competitive factors are convenience otaélocations, availability of quality rental eguient and price. U-Hawd’'major competitol
in the rental market are Budget Car and Truck R&xanpany and Penske Truck Leasing.

Self-storage Busines

U-Haul entered the self-storage busines®itdland has increased its presence in the indistiygh the acquisition and conversion of
existing facilities and new construction. In adutiti U-Haul has entered into management agreementanage self-storage properties owned
by others, including SAC Holdings. U-Haul has astered into a strategic and financial partnership Private Mini Storage Realty, L.P., a
Texas-based operator of self-storage properties.

Through 1,023 owned, managed or equity pgpetiig self-storage locations in the United Stated Canada, U-Haul offers for rent more
than 32.5 million square feet of self-storage atd¥ié81, 2003. This is an increase of 1.4 millionag feet over the prior year. U-Haul's self-
storage facility locations range in sizes up to,&8@ square feet of storage space, with individt@iage units in sizes from 15 to 400 square
feet.

The primary market for storage rooms is tioeagie of household goods. With the addition 0B38,storage rooms during fiscal year
2003, the average occupancy rate of same stoleiéscoperating over one year was 82.9%, with nsbdeasonal variations.

Competition

The primary competition for a U-Haul self1stge location is other self storage facilities with geographic area offering a comparable
level of convenience to the customer.

Employees
As of March 31, 2003, U-Haul's non-seasonatknforce consisted of 16,145 full and part-timepéoyees.

D. Real Estate Operations

Real Estate Operation

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the gamy’s real estate assets, including U-Haul CeantdrStorage locations. Various U-Haul
and Insurance companies own the remainder of Hleestate assets. Real Estate is responsible &ms@®ing property acquisitions,
dispositions and managing environmental risks efgioperties.

Environmental Matters

Compliance with environmental requirementéeoleral, state and local governments significaatfgcts Real Estate’business operatiol
Among other things, these requirements regulateigeharge of materials into the water, air andlland govern the use and disposal of
hazardous substances. Real Estate is aware of issg@rding the presence of hazardous substancsmnof its properties. Real Estate
regularly makes capital and operating expendittoessay in compliance with environmental laws aad put in place a remedial plan at each
site where it believes such a plan is necessangeSi988, Real Estate has managed a
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testing and removal program for underground stotagks. Under this program, we have spent $43.lfomithrough March 31, 2003. See
also Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

E. Insurance Operations

Business Strategie

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty type insurance products for various nigrketicipants, including independent
third parties, U-Haul’s customers, independentatsadnd the Company. In April 2003, RepWest anneditiicat in connection with
AMERCO'’s overall restructuring efforts, and in orde reduce costs and to build upon its core sttendRepWest has ceased writing and is
exiting non-U-Haul related lines of business.

Oxford’s business strategy is long-term cajtowth through direct writing and reinsuringaofnuity, credit life and disability and
Medicare supplement products. In the past Oxfordghaisued a growth strategy of increased diredingrivia acquisitions of insurance
companies, expanded distribution channels and ptathvelopment. The acquisitions of North Amerit@surance Company and Safe Mate
Life Insurance Company in 1997 and Christian Figldlife Insurance Company in 2000 represent a S@amt movement toward this long-
term goal. Oxford has significantly expanded pradifferings, distribution channels and administrattapabilities through these acquisitic

Investments

RepWest and Oxford investments must compti tie insurance laws of the state of domicile.sehaws prescribe the type, quality and
concentration of investments that may be made. Mame in order to be considered an acceptableusndy cedents and intermediaries, a
reinsurer must offer financial security. The quadind liquidity of invested assets are importamtsigerations in determining such security.

The investment strategies of RepWest and @dmphasize protection of principal through thechase of investment grade fixed-
income securities. Approximately 88.0% of RepWeatid 88.6% of Oxford'’s fixed-income securities dehsf investment grade securities
(NAIC-2 or greater). The maturity distributions atesigned to provide sufficient liquidity to meatdre cash needs.

Reinsurance

RepWest and Oxford assume and cede insufesroeand to other insurers and members of varieirsurance pools and associations.
Reinsurance arrangements are utilized to providatgr diversification of risk and to minimize expusto large risks. However, the original
insurer retains primary liability to the policyheldshould the assuming insurer not be able to iteebligations under the reinsurance
agreements.

Regulation

RepWest and Oxford are subject to regulatipstate insurance regulatory agencies. The ragnlaktends to such matters as licensing
companies and agents, restricting the types, gualiuantity of investments, regulating capitall @arplus and actuarial reserve maintenz
setting solvency standards, filing of annual arftepteports on financial condition, and regulatiragle practices. State laws also regulate
transactions and dividends between an insuranc@aoymand its parent or affiliates, and generaltyunee prior approval or notification for
any change in control of the insurance subsidiary.

The insurance and reinsurance regulatorydveonk has been subjected to increased scrutinfjidoiational Association of Insurance
Commissioners (“NAIC"), federal and state legistagiand insurance regulators. These regulatorsoagdering increased regulations, with
an emphasis on insurance company investment anereyl issues. It is not possible to predict thefeimpact of changing state and federal
regulations on the operations of RepWest and Oxford

In 1998, the NAIC adopted the CodificationStétutory Accounting Principles guidance, whicplaeed the prior Accounting Practices
and Procedures manual as the NAIC's primary guiddocstatutory
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accounting as of January 1, 2001. The codificapimvides guidance for areas where statutory acemyhts been silent and changes current
statutory accounting practices in some areas. TheHas adopted the Codification guidance, effecliaeuary 1, 2001. Oxford and RepWest
have implemented the new Codification effectiveudap 1, 2001.

In order to enhance the regulation of inssmdvency, the NAIC has adopted a formula and miadelto implement risk-based capital
(“RBC”) requirements for insurance companies desibto assess minimum capital requirements andde tlae level of protection that
statutory surplus provides for policyholder obligas. The RBC formula measures areas of risk faicisgrers. Pursuant to the model law,
insurers having less statutory surplus than thguired by the RBC calculation will be subject towiag degrees of regulatory action,
depending on the level of capital inadequacy.

The RBC model law provides for four levelsrefulatory action. The extent of regulatory inriton and action increases as the level of
surplus to RBC decreases. The first level, the Gomction Level (as defined by the NAIC), requisgsinsurer to submit a plan of
corrective actions to the regulator if surplussddelow 200% of the RBC amount. The Regulatorydkctievel requires an insurer to subm
plan containing corrective actions and requireg¢hevant insurance commissioner to perform an éxation or other analysis and issue a
corrective order if surplus falls below 150% of RBC amount. The Authorized Control Level gives thievant insurance commissioner the
option either to take the aforementioned action® eehabilitate or liquidate the insurer if surplalls below 100% of the RBC amount. The
fourth action level is the Mandatory Control Leteht requires the relevant insurance commissianeghabilitate or liquidate the insurer if
surplus falls below 70% of the RBC amount.

Oxford is in compliance with the NAIC minimuRBC requirements. On May 20, 2003, the DOI deteeaiithat RepWest's level of RBC
allowed for regulatory control and accordingly mddrepWest under supervision. See “Recent Develotghabove.

Competition

The highly competitive insurance industrylinies a large number of property and casualty arste companies and life insurance
companies. In addition, the marketplace now incduifeancial service firms offering both insurancel dinancial products. Stockholders own
some insurance companies and policyholders ownsothMany competitors have been in business fongdoperiod of time or possess
substantially greater financial resources and padduct portfolios than RepWest and Oxford. Rept¥and Oxford compete in the
insurance business based upon price, product dasijservices rendered to producers and policyhmlde

Employees

RepWest’s non-seasonal work force consis818ffull and part-time employees.

Oxford’s non-seasonal work force consisté48 full and part-time employees.

Life Insurance

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditrlife and disability, single premium whole lifgroup life and disability coverage, and
Medicare supplement insurance. Oxford also adn@riéghe self-insured group health and dental glamthe Company. Reinsurance
arrangements are entered into with unaffiliatedseiers.

Property and Casualt

RepWest's historical business activities ¢t of three basic areas: U-Haul, direct andrassureinsurance. U-Haul underwritings
include coverage for U-Haul customers, independeaters, fleet owners and employees of the CompaegWest's direct underwriting was
done through Company-employed underwriters andtaeyeneral agents. The products provided indiabdity coverage for rental
vehicles, coverage for commercial multiple perdramercial auto, mobile homes and excess workermpemsation.
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RepWest has determined that these lines will beietited. RepWest's assumed reinsurance underwritacgydone via broker markets and
RepWest has exited this line. In an effort to daseerisk, RepWest has entered into various capdetroover policies to limit its exposure.

The liability for reported and unreporteddes is based on both RepWest'’s historical and indaeserages. Unpaid loss adjustment
expenses are based on historical ratios of lossadgnt expenses paid to losses paid. The lialiditynpaid losses and loss adjustment
expenses is based on estimates of the amount aecéssettle all claims as of the statement dad¢h reported and unreported losses are
included in the liability. RepWest updates theiligbestimate as additional facts regarding claiosts become available. These estimates are
subject to uncertainty and variation due to numeffactors. In estimating reserves, no attempt idania isolate inflation from the combined
effect of other factors including inflation. Unpdasses and loss adjustment expense are not digtbun

Activity in the liability for unpaid lossesid loss adjustment expenses is summarized as fallow

2002 2001 2000

(In thousands)

Balance at January $448,98° 382,65 334,85
Less reinsurance recoveral 128,04 80,86¢ 58,40:
Net balance at January 320,94: 301,78 276,45:
Incurred related tc
Current yea 112,28« 232,98 162,26
Prior years 16,39¢ 23,04: 41,28t
Total incurrec 128,68( 256,02¢ 203,55(
Paid related tc
Current yea 66,72¢ 106,39! 61,19¢
Prior years 130,07( 130,47: 117,02
Total paid 196,79¢ 236,86¢ 178,22:
Net balance at December 252,82! 320,94 301,78
Plus reinsurance recoveral 146,62: 128,04 80,86¢
Balance at December . $399,44° 448,98’ 382,65:
| | |

As a result of changes in estimates of irb@reents in prior years, the provision for unpaisskes and loss adjustment expenses (net of
reinsurance recoveries of $90.1 million) increasg®&16.4 million in 2002.

The following table illustrates the changeiipaid loss and loss adjustment expenses. Fiestdi reserves as originally reported at the
end of the stated year. Second section, readingidevcumulative amounts paid as of the end of succegsiges with respect to that reser
Third section, reading down, — revised estimatetheforiginal recorded reserve as of the end afessgive years. Last section — compares
the latest revised estimated reserve amount teeerve amount as originally established. Thisdastion is cumulative and should not be
summed.
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Unpaid Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

December 31

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 002 2

(In thousands)
Unpaid Loss and Loss Adjustment

Expenses $238,76: 314,48: 329,74: 341,98: 332,67« 384,81t 344,74¢ 334,85¢ 382,65: 448,98 399,44
Paid (Cumulative)
as of:
One year later 83,92: 70,38 86,79¢ 89,041 89,33¢ 103,75: 82,93¢ 117,02! 130,47 130,07(
Two years late 123,31( 115,46° 139,24° 150,00: 161,61: 174,86° 164,31¢ 186,19: 203,60
Three years later 153,03( 146,64( 173,78 195,85! 208,16¢ 216,96t 218,81¢ 232,88:
Four years later 173,84: 166,06¢ 198,43¢ 226,81! 232,72t 246,81¢ 255,13:
Five years late 181,67" 181,17 219,42¢ 243,85! 250,31: 269,42!
Six years later 191,93¢ 194,65: 231,44° 254,20: 263,64!
Seven years later 200,28: 203,53 237,11¢ 264,12(
Eight years late 207,71¢ 207,83« 242,45(
Nine years late 211,07¢ 211,49:
Ten years later 213,85:
Reserve Reestimated as of:
One year late 251,45( 321,05¢ 338,03: 353,50¢ 354,77t 357,73: 339,60: 377,09t 433,22 454,51(
Two years later 254,53: 323,36¢ 340,73: 369,85: 342,16« 361,30¢ 371,43: 432,71« 454,92¢
Three years later 253,84 309,93¢ 349,45¢ 328,44! 346,57¢ 369,59¢ 429,16( 437,71:
Four years late 231,53t 317,68" 302,80¢ 331,89 349,81( 398,89¢ 413,47¢
Five years later 239,88 267,00! 300,18( 339,66! 376,14. 398,18
Six years later 263,84: 262,51° 307,30¢ 347,66: 369,32(
Seven years lat¢ 259,79¢ 267,94¢ 332,76: 344,45:
Eight years later 265,28! 303,45’ 311,68:
Nine years late 265,53¢ 270,30(
Ten years late 267,02¢
Cumulative Redundancy
(Deficiency) $(28,267) 44,18: 18,05¢ (2,470 (36,64¢) (13,369 (68,729 (102,859 (72,27Y) (5,529
Retro Premium Recoverable 2,20¢ 4,23¢ 8,231 11,294 13,90¢ 18,35( 25,56¢ 29,85: 39,731 41,20¢
Reestimated Reserv
Amount (Cumulative) $(26,059) 48,421 26,29( 8,82¢ (22,74)) 4,982 (43,159 (73,009 (32,545 35,68

Item 2. Properties

AMERCO'’s subsidiaries own property, plant @egiipment that are utilized in the manufacturpaireand rental of UHaul equipment ar
that provide office space for the Company. Suchifi@s exist throughout the United States and Glan&J-Haul also manages storage
facilities owned by others. In addition, the Compamwns certain real estate not currently usedsijiterations. U-Haul operates 1,35@Hgul
Centers (including Company-owned storage locatiars) operates 11 manufacturing and assemblytfesiliU-Haul also operates 105 fixed
site repair facilities located at or near a U-H@ehter.

SAC Holdings own property, plant and equiptrteat are utilized in the rental of self-storagems and UHaul equipment. Such facilitir
exist throughout the United States and Canada. fadlties also secure various promissory notdd bg unrelated third parties. There is no
debt held by the Company that is secured by SAGIiHQ$’ real estate. U-Haul manages the storagétf@siunder management agreements
whereby the management fees are consistent witlageament fees received by U-Haul for other propedigned by unrelated parties and
managed by U-Haul.

ltem 3. Legal Proceeding:

In the normal course of business, the Comjmaydefendant in a number of suits and claime. Cbmpany is also a party to several
administrative proceedings arising from state awall provisions that

12




Table of Contents

regulate the removal and/or cleanup of undergrduabstorage tanks. It is the opinion of managentiesit none of such suits, claims or
proceedings involving the Company, individuallyiothe aggregate, are expected to result in a mhtess. See “Item 1. Business —
Environmental Matters”.

In the normal course of business, SAC Holdliisga defendant in a number of suits and claihis.the opinion of management that none
of the suits, claims or proceedings involving SAGIdings, individually or in the aggregate, are eotpd to result in a material loss.

As previously discussed, on June 20, 2003ER@O filed a voluntary petition for relief under &iter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As
debtor-in-possession, AMERCO is authorized undexp@¥r 11 to continue to operate as an ongoing bssjrbut may not engage in
transactions outside the ordinary course of busimgéthout the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Gois of the Petition Date, all pending
litigation against AMERCO is stayed, and absenttierorder of the Bankruptcy Court, no party, sabfe certain exceptions, may take any
action, again subject to certain exceptions, tovecon pre-petition claims against AMERCO. Theoadtic stay, however, does not apply to
AMERCO'’s subsidiaries, other than Amerco Real Es@mpany, which filed for protection under Chagdteron August 13, 2003.

On July 20, 2000, Charles Kocher (“Kocheit8d suit in Wetzel County, West Virginia, Civil Aion No. 00-C-51-K, entitled Charles
Kocher v. Oxford Life Insurance Co. (“Oxford”) séeg compensatory and punitive damages for breadomtract, bad faith and unfair
claims settlement practices arising from an allefgddre of Oxford to properly and timely pay aiataunder a disability and dismemberment
policy. On March 22, 2002, the jury returned a vetrdf $5 million in compensatory damages and $34an in punitive damages. On
November 5, 2002, the trial court entered an O¢‘Order”) affirming the $39 million jury verdict andenying Oxfords motion for New Tri¢
Or, in The Alternative, Remittitur. Oxford has pegfed its appeal to the West Virginia Supreme Cdndl argument on the appeal petition is
set for September 9, 2003. Management does needinat the Order is sustainable and expects ttier@ be overturned by the West
Virginia Supreme Court, in part because the juram@has no reasonable nexus to the actual harersdfby Kocher.

On September 24, 2002, Paul F. Shoen filderaative action in the Second Judicial Districtu® of the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Paul F. Shoen vs. SAC Holdingp@ration et al, CV02-05602, seeking damages anifiaddgl relief on behalf of
AMERCO from SAC Holdings and certain current andifer members of the AMERCO Board of Directors, udithg Edward J. Shoen,
Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shoen as defendantsR&NDES named a nominal defendant for purposeseofiémivative action. The
complaint alleges breach of fiduciary duty, sel&lifeg, usurpation of corporate opportunities, wifohgnterference with prospective
economic advantage and unjust enrichment and skeekswinding of sales of self-storage propertigsibsidiaries of AMERCO to SAC
Holdings over the last several years. The compkeeks a declaration that such transfers are woigel as unspecified damages. On
October 28, 2002, AMERCO, the Shoen directorsptreShoen directors and SAC Holdings filed Motitm®ismiss the complaint. In
addition, on October 28, 2002, Ron Belec filed avdive action in the Second Judicial District Coof the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Ron Belec vs. William E. Cartyale CV 02-06331 and on January 16, 2003, M.S.adament Company, Inc. filed a
derivative action in the Second Judicial Districiutt of the State of Nevada, Washoe County, captidi.S. Management Company, Inc. vs.
William E. Carty, et. al, CV 03-00386. Two additamerivative suits were also filed against thesdi@s. These additional suits are
substantially similar to the Paul F. Shoen denxatiction. The five suits assert virtually identticiaims. In fact, three of the five plaintiffs are
parties who are working closely together and chiodée the same claims multiple times. The counsolidated all five complaints before
dismissing them on May 8, 2003. Plaintiffs havedik notice of appeal. These lawsuits falsely atlegfat the AMERCO Board lacked
independence. In reaching its decision to disnhisse claims, the court determined that the AMER®@r8 of Directors had the requisite
level of independence required in order to havedlaaims resolved by the Board.

The United States Department of Labor (“DOIis’presently investigating whether there wereatiohs of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) involving tie®MERCO Employee Savings, Profit Sharing and Eme®$tock Ownership Plan (the
“Plan”). The DOL has
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interviewed a number of Company representativesedisas the Plan fiduciaries and has issued a sri@pto the Company and a subpoena to
SAC Holdings. At the present time the Company iaghl@ to determine whether the DOL will assert dajnts against the Company, SAC
Holdings, or the Plan fiduciaries. The DOL has asttee Company and its current directors as wethad?lan Trustees to sign an agreement
tolling the statute of limitations with respectany claims arising out of certain transactions leetwthe Company or any affiliate of the
Company and SAC Holdings, or any of its affiliatewl such parties have done so. The DOL recentlydasitch parties to extend the tolling
agreement. The DOL has not advised the Companytthelieves that any violations of ERISA have actfoccurred. Instead, the DOL is
simply investigating potential violations. The Coangy intends to vigorously defend its position. TG@mpany also intends to take any
corrective action that may be needed in light ef (HOL’s ultimate findings.

The Company has received notice of a formah-public investigation by the Securities and Erae Commission (“SEC”). On
January 7, 2003, the Company received the firft@four subpoenas issued by the SEC to the Com@&® Holdings, the Company’s
current and former auditors, and others have a&seived one or more subpoenas relating to thissmathe SEC has advised the Company
that this is a fact-finding investigation and thidtas not reached any conclusions related tontlaiger. The Company has been cooperating
fully with the SEC and is facilitating the expedits review of its financial statements and any oif®ies that may arise. The Company does
not believe that the SEC investigation will hawaaterial adverse impact on its financial conditiorresults of operations. The SEC began its
investigation by issuing a subpoena to PricewateséGoopers (“PwC") two months before requestingrmftion from the Company. The
Company is cooperating fully with the SEC’s invgation.

A subsidiary of U-Haul, INW Company (“INW"hwns one property located within two different sthhizardous substance sites in the
State of Washington. The sites are referred th@$Yakima Valley Spray Site” and the “Yakima Ra#dd Area.” INW has been named as a
“potentially liable party’under state law with respect to this property aslétes to both sites. As a result of the cleasugts of approximate
$5.0 million required by the State of WashingtdwW filed for reorganization under the federal bankcy laws in May of 2001. A success
mediation with other liable parties has occurred future liability to INW will be in the range 0f7$0,000 to $1.25 million.

AMERCO is a defendant in four putative clasSon lawsuitsArticle Four Trust v. AMERCO, et al., District of Nevada, United Sates
District Court, Case No. CV-N-03-0050-DWH-VPC . Article Four Trust, a purported AMERCO shareheold®mmenced this action on
January 28, 2003 on behalf of all persons andiestitho purchased or acquired AMERCO securitiewden February 12, 1998 and
September 26, 200Zhe Article Four Trust action alleges one claim for violation of Sectid{l) of the Securities Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereundekates v. AMERCO, et al., United States District Court, District of Nevada, Case No. CV-N-03-0107 . Maxine Mates,
an AMERCO shareholder, commenced this putatives@dation on behalf of all persons and entities ptnehased or acquired AMERCO
securities between February 12, 1998 and Septe2@h@002. Thévates action asserts claims under section 10(b) and Rule5, and
section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Kttig v. AMERCO, et al., United Sates District Court of Nevada, Case No. CV-S-03-0380 .

Edward Klug, an AMERCO shareholder, commencedghtative class action on behalf of all personsamtities who purchased or acquired
AMERCO securities between February 12, 1998 andefaper 26, 2002. Thi€lug action asserts claims under section 10(b) and Rale5
and section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange i&Holdings v. AMERCO, et al., United States District Court, District of Nevada, Case

No. CV-N-03-0199 .. IG Holdings, an AMERCO bondholder, commenced phitative class action on behalf of all personseamtities who
purchased, acquired, or traded AMERCO bonds betWwebruary 12, 1998 and September 26, 2002, allegi@igns under section 11 and
section 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and sectid(b) and Rule 10b-5, and section 20(a) of thmuftiies Exchange Act. Each of these four
securities class actions allege that AMERCO engagédnsactions with SAC entities that falsely noyeed AMERCOS financial statement
and that AMERCO failed to disclose the transactiormperly. The actions are at a very early stapeKlug action has not been served. In
other three actions, AMERCO does not currently readeadline by which it must respond to the comgaiManagement has stated that it
intends to defend these cases vigorously. We likaged notice of AMERCO'’s bankruptcy petition ame tautomatic stay in each of the
Courts where these cases are pending.
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Reference is made to Note 16 of Notes to Glateted Financial Statements in Item 8 for a déséan of the final payments made in
connection with stockholder litigation and Calif@mvertime litigation.

ltem 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

No matter was submitted to a vote of the sgcholders of AMERCO or U-Haul during the fourgfuarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report, through the solicitation of proxiesodherwise.

PART Il
ltem 5.  Market for the Registrar's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
As of July 10, 2003, there were approximag&B00 holders of record of AMERCO’s common stock.

AMERCO’s common stock has been traded on NAQBince November 1994 under the symbol “UHAL”. &sesult of AMERCOQO'’s
Chapter 11 filing and the late filing of this repdhe trading symbol was changed by Nasdaq to “BRA The following table sets forth the
high and low sales prices of the common stock of RO trading on Nasdaq for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended

March 31,
2003 2002
High Low High Low
First quartel 18.5( 13.9C 19.9¢ 16.6¢
Second quarte 14.9¢ 6.1¢ 20.2C 17.8C
Third quartel 10.4( 1.3¢ 18.8C 16.7¢
Fourth quarte 6.0C 277 18.0¢ 14.2i

AMERCO has not declared any cash dividena®tomon stockholders for the two most recent figealrs.

AMERCO does not have a formal dividend pali®iMERCO’s Board of Directors periodically consideéhe advisability of declaring and
paying dividends in light of existing circumstancAERCO does not intend to pay dividends in thee¢eeable future. See Note 21 of N¢
to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item &fdiscussion of certain statutory restrictionstanability of the insurance subsidiaries to
pay dividends to AMERCO.

See Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated FindiStetements in Item 8 for a discussion of AMERC@&-cash dividends. See Note 7 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Beior a discussion of changes to common sharesaoulisg.

The common stock of U-Haul is wholly ownedAy ERCO. As a result, no active trading market exfer the purchase and sale of such
common stock. U-Haul has not declared cash dividéendMERCO during the two most recent fiscal years

Due to the Chapter 11 filing, AMERCO does expect to make any dividend payments on the SArjg®ferred stock for the duration of
such proceedings. No assurance can be given asaio @ whether the payment of cumulative prefestedk dividends will resume.

The rights and claims of AMERCO's variousditers and security holders will be determined iy plan of reorganization to be filed by
AMERCO. Although AMERCO expects to file and consuatena “full value” plan of reorganization that pidas creditors with a
combination of cash and new debt securities equle full amount of their allowed claims and giseserves the value of AMERCO's
common and preferred stock, no assurance can ba gi/to what values, if any, will be ascribechia bankruptcy proceedings to each of
these constituencies. Accordingly, the Company suthat appropriate caution be exercised with reagpeexisting and future investments in
any of such securities.
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Iltem 6.

Holdings and Consolidated Subsidiari

Summary of Operations:

Rental revenu

Net sales

Premiums

Net investment and interest incol

Total revenue

Operating expenst

Commission expensit

Cost of sale:

Benefits and losse

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition
costs

Lease expens

Depreciation, net(1

Total costs and expens

Earnings from operatior
Interest expens

Pretax earnings (los
Income tax benefit (expens

Net earnings (loss

Less: preferred stock dividen
Earnings (loss) available to common
shareholder

Net earnings (loss) per common share (dilt

Selected Financial Data as Restated AMERCO and Gaditkited Subsidiaries and SA

For the Years Ended March 31,

Restated

Restated

Restated

Restated

Weighted average common shares outstanding

basic and (diluted

Cash dividends declared and accrued Preferred

stock
Balance Sheet Data:
Property, plant and equipment, |
Total asset
AMERCQO's notes and loans payal
SAC Holding’ notes and loans payat
Stockholder equity

@)

)

®)

Reflects the change in salvage value and agtignuseful lives during the fiscal year ended M&t, 2002. The net effect of these

2003 2002(3) 2001(3) 2000(3) 1999(3)

(In thousands except share and per share data)
$ 1,560,00! 1,512,25I 1,436,83. 1,334,92: 1,204,38!
222,88 222,81t 212,24: 201,35! 220,99
307,92! 411,17( 328,10¢ 262,05 226,84
41,56¢ 47,34 52,291 61,021 64,96
2,132,38 2,193,57! 2,029,48I 1,859,35I 1,717,18!
1,134,46 1,146,30! 1,076,30 951,19¢ 892,35!
136,82 140,44 132,86! 134,13! 130,16(
115,11! 122,69 126,50¢ 115,39( 112,30(
281,86¢ 423,70¢ 331,07¢ 244 57¢ 208,28:
37,81¢ 40,67« 36,23: 34,98 31,72
179,64 174,66 175,46( 130,95: 118,74
137,444 102,95 103,80° 96,09( 77,42¢
2,023,17 2,151,44! 1,982,25! 1,707,32! 1,570,98:
109,21( 42,13¢ 47,22¢ 152,02¢ 146,19¢
148,13: 109,46! 111,87¢ 97,18 85,61
(38,92)) (67,33)) (64,65/) 54,841 60,58’
13,93t 19,89: 22,541 (19,367) (22,74%)
$ (24,980 (47,440 (42,110 35,47¢ 37,84
— IS EE— — —
12,96: 12,96: 12,96: 13,641 17,41«
$ (37,949 (60,407 (55,079 21,83¢ 20,42¢
— IS EE— — —
$ (1.89) (2.87) (2.56) .9¢ 92
20,743,07 21,022,71  21,486,37 21,934,93 21,937,68
$ 12,96: 12,96: 12,96: 13,641 17,41
$ 1,946,31 1,936,071 1,882,01 1,704,48: 1,532,23!
3,805,661 3,732,31 3,599,65! 3,280,88: 3,127,73!
954,85t 1,045,80: 1,156,84 1,137,841 1,114,74
589,01 561,88 376,14t 230,77t 115,60¢
327,44t 381,52- 446,35 504,74¢ 543,73¢

changes was to reduce net loss for the fiscal 3@@2 by $3.1 million or $0.15 per sha

Earnings and net earnings per common share egnputed after giving effect to the dividendgtos Company’s Series B floating rate

stock for all years presente

Gives effect to the restatements identified in Ndteand 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statgsin Item 8
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Iltem 6.  Selected Financial Data, FHaul International, Inc. — (Continued)

For the Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)
Summary of Operations:

Rental revenu $1,433,44. 1,425,68! 1,364,50. 1,304,70! 1,216,81.
Net sales 174,06! 198,31: 194,27( 191,08 183,91(
Net investment and interest incol 29,35¢ 22,68t 24,34¢ 19,47« 12,91¢
Total revenue 1,636,86! 1,646,68. 1,583,12 1,515,261 1,413,641
Operating expense 992,21. 1,041,35. 1,021,571 961,79¢ 918,50¢
Commission expenst 164,50¢ 153,46! 143,58t 143,91¢ 137,04«
Cost of sale: 93,73t 110,44 116,60: 112,87: 107,69(
Benefits and losses( 37,56( 47,03¢ 40,52 — —
Lease expens 165,02( 171,65t 167,29( 132,39! 118,42¢
Depreciation, net(z 112,81! 92,35! 87,53¢ 78,74( 61,00:
Total costs and expens 1,565,85. 1,616,31 1,577,11! 1,429,721 1,342,67.
Earnings from operatior 71,01 30,37: 6,00t 85,54¢ 70,96¢
Interest expens 9,991 11,67¢ 17,09 49¢ 437
Pretax earnings (los 61,02: 18,691 (11,089 85,05( 70,53:
Income tax benefit (expens (21,21) (6,117 4,921 (31,709 (27,167
Net earnings (loss $ 39,81 12,58( (6,16¢) 53,34¢ 43,36¢

| ] | | ]

Balance Sheet Data :

Property, plant and equipment, | $ 736,49 750,77¢ 731,07 757,02¢ 684,16!
Total asset 1,208,79. 1,099,19! 935,25¢ 970,96¢ 892,83t
Notes and loans payat 31,69:¢ 14,79: — — —
Stockholder equity 499,38 458,63 449,58t 455,71« 402,36¢

(1) Reflects non cash adjustments primarily relateidgarance

(2) Reflects the change in salvage value and astithuseful lives during the fiscal year ended M&t, 2002. The net effect of these
changes was to increase net earnings for the fygeal2002 by $3.1 millior

ltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operation

The following discussion should be read injoaction with the Company’s consolidated finanatgtements and the related notes. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements baea prepared on a going concern basis, whiclengiates the continuity of operatio
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liiés in the normal course of business. Howeveia aesult of AMERCO'’s Chapter 11 filing,
such realization of assets and satisfaction ofliies, without substantial adjustments, are saobje uncertainty. Further, a plan of
reorganization could materially change the amoantsclassifications in the financial statementsaddition, as discussed in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements, AMERCO is iradéifunder the terms of most of its financing agements. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments thattrbigihequired if AMERCO is unable to continue agag concern.

Cautionary Statements Regarding Forward-looking Steements

This report contains forward-looking stateitseas that term is defined in Section 27A of theuBiies Act and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act. All statements, other gtatements of historical fact,
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included in this report are forwatdeking statements, including, but not limited tojections of revenues, income or loss, estimatesyital
expenditures, plans and intentions regarding tbegitalization of the balance sheet and the paywfeditvidends arrearages, plans for future
operations, products or services and financing sieeglans, or perceptions of AMERCO'’s legal posisi and anticipated outcomes of
pending litigation against us, liquidity, expectagcomes of the Chapter 11 proceeding as wellamgstions relating to the foregoing. The
words “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “estimatg™roject”, “may”, “will", “intends”, “plans” andsimilar expressions identify forward-
looking statements, which speak only as of the ttaestatement was made. Forward-looking statenagatsmherently subject to risks and
uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicteguantified. Factors that could significantly affeesults include, without limitation, the
risk factors enumerated at the end of this sectierwell as the following: the Company’s abilitydperate pursuant to the terms of its DIP
facility; the Company’s ability to obtain court appal with respect to motions in the Chapter 11cpesling prosecuted by it from time to
time; the Company’s ability to develop, prosecetmfirm and consummate a plan of reorganizatioh waspect to the Chapter 11 case; risks
associated with third parties seeking and obtainmgt approval to terminate or shorten the exeltysperiod for the Company to propose
and confirm a plan of reorganization, for the appmient of a Chapter 11 trustee or to convert tise ta a Chapter 7 case; the Company’s
ability to obtain and maintain normal terms witmders and service providers; the Company’s abiditgnaintain contracts that are critical to
its operations; the potential adverse impact ofGhapter 11 case on the Companljquidity or results of operations; the costs amdilability
of financing; the Company’s ability to executebtssiness plan; the Company’s ability to attractfimade and retain key employees; general
economic conditions; weather conditions; fluctuasiin our costs to maintain and update our fledtfaailities; our ability to refinance our
debt; our ability to successfully recapitalize bafance sheet and cure existing defaults of our algleements; our ability to continue as a
going concern; changes in government regulaticasiqolarly environmental regulations; our creditings; the availability of credit; changes
in demand for our products; changes in the gemknalestic economy; degree and nature of our congretihe resolution of pending
litigation against the company; changes in accognttandards and other factors described in thisrt®r the other documents we file with
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The alamters, the following disclosures, as well as otatements in this report and in the
Notes to AMERC('s Consolidated Financial Statements, could countelo or cause such differences, or could caus&R®O’s stock price
to fluctuate dramatically. Consequently, the fomvbroking statements should not be regarded agseptations or warranties by the
Company that such matters will be realized. The gamy disclaims any intent or obligation to updateewise any of the forward-looking
statements, whether in response to new informatinfareseen events, changed circumstances or ageerw

General

Information on fiscal year, industry segmeantsl the Company and SAC Holdings is incorporageteterence to “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes 1, 21220f Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeiitisé notes discuss the principles
consolidation, summarized consolidated financitdinmation and industry segment and geographic daéa In consolidation, all
intersegment premiums are eliminated.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managemens’ discussion and analysis of financial conditiod egsults of operations are based upon the comgetidinancial statemen
which have been prepared in accordance with act@uptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé&taThe preparation of these financial
statements requires the use of estimates and jutdgrtiet affect the reported amounts of assetslitias, revenues and expenses, and relatec
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.a&@rongoing basis, estimates are reevaluated dimgjuhose related to areas that require a
significant level of judgment or are otherwise sajto an inherent degree of uncertainty. Thesasarelude allowances for doubtful
accounts, depreciation of revenue earning vehameisbuildings, self-insured liabilities, impairmemf assets, insurance reserves, premiums
and acquisition cost amortization, income taxes@mmitments and contingencies. The estimatesasedoon historical experience,
observance of trends in particular areas, inforomaéind valuations available from outside sources
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and on various other assumptions that are belitvbd reasonable under the circumstances and vidgrichthe basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilitie$ are not readily apparent from other sour&etual amounts may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions and conditiBach differences may be material.

Accounting policies are considered criticélen they are significant and involve difficult, gedtive or complex judgments or estimates.
The accounting policies that we deem most criticals, and involve the most difficult, subjectivecomplex judgments include the
following:

Principles of consolidation — The consolidafimancial statements include the accounts of AMERand its wholly owned subsidiaries
and SAC Holdings and its wholly owned subsidiarismaterial intercompany accounts and transastioave been eliminated in
consolidation. SAC Holdings has been classified apecial purpose entity that meets the criteri@dnsolidation and therefore the accounts
of SAC Holdings are included in the consolidatethficial statements. AMERCO has concluded that SAldirgs qualifies as a Variable
Interest Entity, as defined by FIN 46, and will tooe to be included in the consolidation. AMERC@ed not have an equity ownership
interest in SAC Holdings or any of SAC Holdingsbsidiaries, except for investments made by RepWedtOxford in a SAC Holdings-
controlled limited partnership, which holds Canadsalf-storage properties. SAC Holdings are natllsgbsidiaries of AMERCO. AMERCO
is not liable for the debts of SAC Holdings andréhare no default provisions in AMERCO indebtedrtbas cross-default to SAC Holdings’
obligations. SAC Holdings has concluded that a tmmgrate of entities, known as Private Mini Stor&galty L.P. (“Private Mini")qualifies
as a Variable Interest Entity and will be includedhe consolidation beginning July 1, 2003. Adarch 31, 2003 and for the period then
ended, Private Mini is accounted for on the eqoigthod of accounting.

Revenue earning vehicles and buildings — Beiption is recognized in amounts expected to résthe recovery of estimated residual
values upon disposal (i.e. no gains or lossegjetarmining the depreciation rate, historical dsg@xperience and holding periods, and
trends in the market for vehicles are reviewed. udenger holding periods on trucks and the résglincreased possibility of changes in the
economic environment and market conditions, thetimates are subject to a greater degree of risk.

Long-lived assets and intangible assets —cHhngying value is reviewed whenever events owairstances indicate the carrying values
may not be recoverable through projected undisealfutture cash flows. The events could includeiiant underperformance relative to
expected, historical or projected future operategylts, significant changes in the manner of uiegassets, overall business strategy,
significant negative industry or economic trendd an unexpected non-compliance with significant égjpeements.

Investments — For investments accounted fideu SFAS 115, in determining if and when a dediinmarket value below amortized cost
is other than temporary, quoted market prices,adteplotes or discounted cash flows are revieweldeGthan-temporary declines in value are
recognized in the current period operating regolthe extent of the decline.

Insurance Revenue and Expense RecognitiomemiBms are recognized as revenue and earnedteérims of the respective policies.
Benefits and expenses are matched with recognizsdipms to result in revenue and expense recogritier the life of the contracts. This
match is accomplished by recording a provisiorfiéiture policy benefits and unpaid claims and claiijustment expenses and by amortizing
deferred policy acquisition costs. Charges rel&teskrvices to be performed are deferred untilegariihe amounts received in excess of
premiums and fees are included in other policyholdeds in the consolidated balance sheets.

Unearned premiums represent the portion @hprms written which relate to the unexpired tefrpdicies. Liabilities for health and
disability and other policy claims and benefits @lalg represent estimates of payments to be madeorance claims for reported losses and
estimates of losses incurred but not yet repoifthdse estimates are based on past claims expedadaaurrent claim trends as well as social
and economic conditions such as changes in legalits and inflation. Due to the nature of undedytisks and the high degree of
uncertainty associated with the determination eflidbility for future policy benefits and
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claims, the amounts to be ultimately paid to sdilgilities cannot be precisely determined and mary significantly from the estimated
liability.

Acquisition costs related to insurance cantrhave been deferred to accomplish matching sifiiture premium revenue. The costs are
charged to current earnings to the extent it ismeined that future premiums are not adequatevercamounts deferred.

U-Haul Insurance Expense — Expense is reeegnannually based on reported claims and an dstiofiduture claims. A reserve is
booked for unpaid losses. U-Haul's self-insure@mébn is paid out over time as claims are settieliving the reserve for unpaid losses.

Disclosures about Contractual Obligations and Comnreial Commitments

Payments due by Period (as of March 31, 2003)

Prior to 04/01/04 04/01/06 April 1, 2008
Financial Obligations Total 03/31/04 03/31/06 03/818 and Thereafter

(In thousands)

AMERCQO's notes and loar $ 954,85t 954,85t — — —
AMERCQO's operating least 552,16! 552,16! — — —
SAC Holding? notes and loar 983,19( 79,97 120,06’ 19,241 763,91:

Elimination of SAC Holdings’
obligations to AMERCC (394,17) — (23,619 — (370,55)
Total Contractual Obligatior $2,096,04 1,586,99: 96,44¢ 19,241 393,35t
| | I | |

On October 15, 2002 AMERCO defaulted on iBAB's and related obligations. This default triggkceoss-default provisions in
AMERCO'’s other debt agreements. As a result, apprately $1,178.1 million of the Company’s contragdtabligations and commercial
commitments listed below became immediately duepmyéble. As of March 31, 2003, SAC Holdings hasrast bearing debt to outside
parties of $589.0 million, is not in default of argfated covenants and is current on all of itsypents.

(In millions)

Bank of Montreal synthetic lea: $ 149.(
Citibank synthetic leas 101.5
3 yr Credit Agreemer 205.(
Royal Bank of Canada lea 5.7
Amerco Real Estate Not 100.(
‘03 Notes 175.(
‘05 Notes 200.(
Medium Term Note: 109.t
BBAT 100.(
Bank of America Obligation (BBAT 11.2
Citicorp Obligation (BBAT) 15.2
Bank of America Swa 2.1
JP Morgan Swa 3.t
$1,178.:

|

In February 1997, AMERCO, through its inswasubsidiaries, invested in the equity of Privdiei, a Texas based sedtorage operato
During 1997, Private Mini secured a line of credithe amount of $225 million with a financial ifigtion, which was subsequently reduced
in accordance with its terms to $125 million in Betber 2001. Under the terms of this credit fachitERCO entered into a support party
agreement with Private Mini and the financial ington whereby upon certain defaults or noncompiéawith debt covenants by Private M
AMERCO could be required to assume responsibifitfulfilling all
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payment obligations and certain covenant obligati@bated to this credit facility. Private Mini éefited on the credit facility due to
AMERCO'’s default under the support party agreemehtch support party agreement default was triggyénevirtue of cross-defaults to
certain other AMERCO obligations. Additionally, Pate Mini defaulted under the credit facility bytue of non-payment of the outstanding
balance at maturity. In December 2002, the finagaistitution exercised its option to require AMEB@ purchase all commitments under
the credit facility. In March 2003 AMERCO and thiedncial institution entered into a standstill agrent with respect to this obligation,
which standstill agreement expired by its term#\pnil 30, 2003. Since April 30, 2003, the finandiastitution has not re-issued any default
notices to AMERCO with respect to this obligatianotherwise required AMERCO to purchase all comreitis under the credit facility.
AMERCO has not purchased any commitments undecrtudit facility and, as of March 31, 2003, AMERC@shrecorded a liability for the
$55 million remaining balance under the creditlfgcivith a corresponding increase to its receiealobm Private Mini.

In February 2003, an entity affiliated withivate Mini closed on a $255 million financing a#d0 million of these proceeds were used to
pay down the $125 million line of credit descrilabve. The aggregate amount of support provideddgRCO remains unchanged at
$125 million ($55 million referred to in the preui® paragraph to the lenders under the Amended as@fRd loan agreement with the 1997
lenders and $70 million under the new $255 milfimancing). Under the terms of the support partyiteh agreement for the $255 million
financing, following certain events of default, AREO could be required to assume responsibilitysid million of the obligations under
this financing. AMERCO has recorded a liability the $70 million obligation with a correspondingiiease to its receivable from Private
Mini.

AMERCO uses certain equipment and occupidsicefacilities under operating lease commitmenith terms expiring through 2079. In
the event of a shortfall in proceeds from the salie underlying assets, AMERCO has guaranteetbappately $192.0 million of residual
values at March 31, 2003, for these assets atth@kthe respective lease terms.

Results of Operations

U-HAUL Moving and Storage Operation

Rental revenue was $1,433.4 million, $1,428illion and $1,364.5 million in fiscal years 20@802 and 2001, respectively. Rental
revenues increased from 2003 compared to fisca, 2@k to price and productivity gains. The incestism fiscal year 2001 to fiscal year
2002 is due to an increase in one-way transactidtfisan improved average dollar per transactiomoe-way rentals as well as growth in
transactions in trailer rentals and support reitéahs. Storage revenue decreased all of the ye@rsodthe sale of properties to SAC Holdings.

Net sales revenues were $174.1 million, $.88llion and $194.3 million in fiscal years 20@%02 and 2001, respectively. Revenue
declines in the sale of hitches, moving suppon&di.e. boxes, etc.) and propane for 2003 from2208s largely due to the sale of centers to
SAC.

Interest income, before consolidating entness $29.4 million, $22.7 million and $24.3 mitian fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The increase during fiscal year 2683 be attributed to an increase in the averagestment balance of SAC notes. The
decrease in fiscal year 2002 is mainly relateddeaease in average investment balance in SAG.note

Operating expenses, before intercompany etitiins, were $992.2 million, $1,041.4 million &t021.6 million in fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The decrease in apgraxpenses for fiscal year 2003 was due to tberporation of cost reduction programs
and the sale of centers to SAC. The increasedalfigear 2002 is due to increased personnel codthigher repair expense. Also, the add
of storage rooms will initially cause an increas@perating expenses without corresponding incesimsearnings until the properties reach a
stabilized level of occupancy.

Commission expense was $164.5 million, $153Ibon and $143.6 million for fiscal years 200802 and 2001 respectively. The
increase in commissions paid was due to the ovia@kase in rental revenues generated by indepéddalers (including SAC).
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Cost of sales was $93.7 million, $110.4 milland $116.6 million in fiscal years 2003, 2008 2001, respectively. The decrease in fiscal
year 2003 was due to lower sales volume, bettexsmiand the sales of certain locations to SAGrduthe last quarter of fiscal year 20!
The decrease in fiscal year 2002 is due to lowlessalume and lower costs of propane and otheeriadd.

Benefits and losses were $37.6 million, $47illion and $40.5 million for fiscal years 2003)@ and 2001 respectively. This expense
represents an adjustment in the reserve for insarealaims on U-Haul’s financial statements. Thispartially due to U-Haul's “Self-
Insurance Retention Level” increasing to 95% fa@2@nd 2002 and 100% in 2003. The Self-Insuranterfden is currently $2.0 million per
event. This is a non-cash expense until claimpaie:

Lease expense before intercompany elimination Ww&8.$ million, $171.7 million and $167.3 million fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2C
respectively. The decrease in lease expense tal figar 2003 was due to a decline in rental truclder lease. The increase in fiscal year
2002 is due to an increase in the value of progetéased that was partially offset by a decraasental equipment lease expense.

Depreciation expense, net was $112.8 millg@2.4 million and $87.5 million in fiscal years®) 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase in depreciation expense, net, for fiseat Y003 was caused by an increase in the numlibercks owned. The increase in fiscal
years 2002 reflects an overall increase in deptiegi@xpense on the rental truck fleet offset gtéil year 2002 by gains on the sale of sur
assets. A change in estimated salvage value anebise in our estimate of the useful lives of cartdiour trucks further reduced depreciation
expense for fiscal year 2002. An internal analgsisales of trucks was completed for the fiscakyemding March 31, 1996 through
March 31, 2001. The study compared the truck mais, age and average residual value of unitsfeolgach fiscal year indicated. The
analysis revealed that average residual valuesofaputed) when compared to sales prices were fiettige of the values that the Company
was receiving upon disposition. Based on the aigltfse estimated residual values were decreasagpimximately 25% of historic cost. In
addition, this analysis revealed that our estimafesseful lives were not reflective of the economives of our trucks, which ultimately were
being utilized by the Company for longer periodsimfe. Thus the useful lives of certain of our ksigvere increased by approximately
3 years. The net effect of these changes was tease net losses for the fiscal year 2002 by $8libmor $0.15 per share.

Earnings from operations, before intercompaliminations, were $71.0 million, $30.4 millioncd 6.0 million in fiscal years 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. The increase in earnings fsperations in fiscal year 2003 was due to aaaluin all expense categories except
depreciation. Tighter cost controls and the reduciin expenses due to the sale to SAC were thedampntributors. The increase in fiscal
year 2002 is due to the increase in rental reveaffsst by increases in operating expen

Interest expense before intercompany elimonatwas $10.0 million, $11.7 million and $17.1lfoi in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal years 200280@ can be attributed to lower average debt baland interest rate reductions.

Pretax earnings (loss) before intercompaimgieations were $61.0 million, $18.7 million andl$(1) million for the fiscal years 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatioi

Rental revenue was $168.0 million, $112.7iamland $92.5 million in fiscal years 2003, 200812001, respectively. Increased facility
capacity through the acquisition of new locationd acreased storage rates accounted for the gerd&e occupancy of existing storage
locations has remained stable.

Net sales revenues were $48.8 million, $24ildon and $17.9 million in fiscal years 2003, Z0@nd 2001, respectively. Revenue growth
was due to the addition of new locations.

Operating expenses, before intercompany eliminafiaere $105.3 million, $68.2 million and $49.2lroi in fiscal years 2003, 2002 a
2001, respectively. Personnel expenses, liabitisyiance, property taxes and utility expensesatbiased proportionately in relation to the
increased revenues from the acquisition of newtiogs.
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Cost of sales was $21.4 million, $12.2 milland $9.9 million in fiscal years 2003, 2002 af02, respectively. Higher sales volume
related to moving support items contributed toittoeeases in both fiscal years 2003 and 2002 alitigthe addition of new locations.

Depreciation expense, net was $21.4 millgi5.1 million and $12.4 million in fiscal years Z)2002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase is attributed to the acquisition of negat®mns.

Earnings from operations were $68.8 milli$a1.7 million and $38.9 million in fiscal years Z)2002 and 2001, respectively. The
increase is due to the addition of locations.

Interest expense before intercompany elironavas $81.2 million, $61.1 million and $53.5 naitl in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The average debt level outstandimgiicoed to increase due to the acquisition of gf@naroperties in fiscal year 2002 compared
to fiscal year 2001.

Pretax losses before intercompany eliminatiware $12.4 million, $19.4 million, and $14.6 ioifi for the fiscal years 2003, 2002, and
2001, respectively.

Real Estate Operation

Rental revenue, before intercompany eliminatiorerev$59.2 million, $68.2 million and $72.0 millianfiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2C
respectively. Intercompany rental revenue was $866libn. $64.3 million and $71.1 million in fiscglears 2003, 2002 and 2001, respecti
The decrease in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 isckbtatthe sale of properties to SAC Holdings.

Net investment and interest income was $adlifon, $8.3 million and $11.0 million in fiscalears 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The increase in fiscal 2003 is related to increaseestments in mortgage notes. The decline in 2082 due to a reduction in mortgage nc

Operating (income) expenses, before inter@my@liminations, were $(5.5) million, $(4.4) nmolti and $0.5 million in fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Lease expense before intercompany eliminationgefrestate operations was $14.2 million, $1112aniand $11.6 million for the fisc:
years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The igergafiscal year 2003 was due to more propertigieulease and the default lease rate
three multi-property leases. The lease expengedalfyear 2002 was virtually unchanged over thedl year 2001.

Depreciation expense, net, was $5.2 millg(@,0) million and $5.3 million in fiscal years 20®002 and 2001, respectively. The increase
in depreciation expense in 2003 was due to no deans the disposition of surplus real estate. Therdase in fiscal years 2002 reflects an
increase in gains from the disposition of propeptant and equipment.

Earnings from operations, before intercompany elations, were $56.0 million, $71.9 million and $6illion in fiscal years 2003, 20!
and 2001, respectively. The decline in earningsmfoperations in fiscal year 2003 was due to a méolu@ rental revenues and an increase in
lease expense. The increase in fiscal year 200@iisly related to lower operating costs and expgresed gains recorded on sales of surplus
properties.

Interest expense was $23.7 million, $34.3ioniland $44.3 million for fiscal years 2003, 20x&d 2001, respectively. Declining
intercompany loan balances and declining ratesddke overall decline in interest expense fordigears 2003 and 2002.

Pretax earnings before intercompany elimamestiwere $32.4 million, $37.6 million and $21.5lioil for the fiscal years ended March 31,
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Property and Casualt

Premium revenues, before intercompany elitrona, were $152.6 million, $262.0 million and $2Rénillion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelyefaéagency premiums were $66.0 million, $107.4iomland $64.3 million for the yea
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
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respectively. The decrease in 2002 from 2001 istdtlee run-off of RepWest's Non-Standard Auto bass which was cancelled in 2001, as
well as increased quota share reinsurance onubkitig program. The increase in 2001 from 2000 esesto trucking, commercial lines
business, and the non-standard auto program, wiastcancelled in 2001. Assumed treaty reinsuraremipms were $34.9 million,

$73.0 million and $83.2 million for the years end#ecember 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.dBerease in 2002 from 2001 is due
to the non-renewal and cancellation of the assumeadly business. Rental industry revenues weres$82lion, $47.5 million and

$51.3 million for the years ended December 31, 20021 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in #0822001 was due to a change in
policy structure on U-Haul business effective Afri2002. Under the new policy U-Haul is now resgble for losses from $0 — $2,000,000
per occurrence. The increase from 2000 was thét i@fsan increase in premiums of a retrospectivatgd policy on the U-Haul industry
liability policy.

Net investment income was $22.3 million, $2@illion and $25.5 million for the years ended Beber 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The increase in 2002 from 2001 istduacreased earnings on real estate offset lgceedse in income on fixed maturities due
to lower average invested assets. The decreag®infBom 2000 is due to lower invested asset barower interest rates, as well as the
write down of $4.1 million of fixed maturity invasents during 2001.

Operating expenses, before intercompany etitiuns, were $37.0 million, $77.2 million and $illion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively dEeecase in 2002 from 2001 is due to decreasechission expense on decreased
premium writings. The increase in 2001 from 20060us to a change in estimate on an aggregateagsyrkaty in which RepWest had
originally recorded the treaty as if it would beroouted. Estimates in 2001 have changed and thiy tn@es not commuted. The original
amount was a reduction to commissions of $17.7anilbf which RepWest had to recognize as additionaimission expense in 2001.
Commission expenses were $13.9 million, $51.2 amltind $33.1 million for the years ended Decemb8f22001 and 2000, respectively.
Lease expenses were $1.1 million, $1.7 million $&d million for the years ended December 20021208 2000, respectively. All other
underwriting expenses were $22.0 million, $24.3ianland $21.3 million for the years ended Decenf$2, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Benefits and losses incurred were $128.7anill$255.8 million and $211.3 million for the yeanded December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The decrease in 2002 from 29die to decreased earned premiums in all segroéRispWest’s business. The increase
in 2001 to 2000 was due to increased earned premnitihnee general agency programs and reservegstreming in the assumed reinsurance
treaty segment.

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs was 8Imillion, $22.1 million and $16.6 million for theears ended December 31, 2002, 2
and 2000, respectively. The decrease in 2002 fredi 2s due to RepWest's decreased premium writifigs.increase in 2001 from 2000 is
due to the amortization of higher commissions detém the 2000 year.

Pretax losses from operations were $8.0onill572.4 million and $32.9 million for the yeargled December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The decrease in losses in 2002 fro@i 2s due to RepWest exiting multiple unprofitalibes of business as well as reduced
expenses. The increase in losses in 2001 from @@8Gdue to the increase in earned premium fromdfiibgiole lines, increased commissions
due to the commutation write-off, reserve strengiing, and development in older years on the assumaty reinsurance business.

Life Insurance

Premium revenues, before intercompany elitrona, were $161.4 million, $159.4 million and $18 tillion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelyoi@ihcreased Medicare supplement premiums thrdirglet writings and the acquisitic
of Christian Fidelity Life Insurance Company (“CRLY); these actions increased premiums by $6.3 anilfrom 2001 and $54.5 million from
2000. Premiums from Oxford’s life insurance linesreased $2.5 million from 2001 and $3.7 milliomnfr 2000. Credit life and disability
premiums decreased $2.9 million from 2001 and $lon
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from 2000 due to account cancellations in spesifites and decreased penetration. Annuitizatiooredsed by $0.7 million from 2001 and
$2.6 million from 2000. Other health insurance prens decreased $3.2 million from 2001 and decre&8ezimillion from 2000 due to
termination of major medical programs.

Net investment income before intercompanyiglations was $13.9 million, $23.2 million, and 1 &nillion for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000. The changeOa 26m 2001 is due to lower interest rates, laghgnrt-term balances and write-downs
for other than temporary declines in the investnpemtfolio. The increase between 2001 and 2000imsayily due to write-downs for other
than temporary declines in the investment portfwii@000.

Operating expenses were $40.5 million, $37ilBon and $29.4 million for the years ended Debtem31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Commissions have increased $1.0anifiom 2001 and $4.9 million from 2000, primarilye to the increases in Medicare
supplement premiums. General and administrativersgs net of fees collected increased $2.1 mifimm 2001 and $6.3 million from 20C
The acquisition of CFLIC resulted in $3.3 milliohtbe increase from 2000.

Benefits incurred were $115.6 million, $12MBlion and $79.2 million for the years ended Dater 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Medicare
supplement benefits decreased $1.8 million froml3f@@marily due to decreased exposure and imprexgérience, and increased
$36.8 million from 2000 due to the acquisition ¢FLIC. Credit insurance benefits decreased $1.74anifrom 2001 and $1.2 million from
2000 due to decreased exposure. Benefits from atadth lines decreased $4.1 million from 2001 &&dmillion from 2000 due to the
termination of major medical programs. Annuity difiel benefits increased $2.3 million from 2001 &1d3 million from 2000 due to
increases in life insurance exposure.

Amortization of deferred acquisition costsA@) and the value of business acquired (VOBA) w28.% million, $18.6 million and
$19.6 million for 2002, 2001 and 2000. These castsamortized for life and health policies as trempgum is earned over the term of the
policy; and for deferred annuities, amortized ilatien to interest spreads. Amortization increa$&® million and $0.9 million from 2001
and 2000 due to the annuity and credit segments.

Pretax earnings (losses) before intercomgdimjinations were $(1.4) million, $5.6 million a83.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively d€eecase from 2001 is primarily due to other ttemmporary declines in the investment
portfolio and poor experience in the credit inswahnes. The increase from 2000 is due to realiggds in the investment portfolio.

Consolidated Group Earnings

As a result of the foregoing, pretax lossesen$38.9 million, $67.3 million and $64.7 millianfiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. After providing for income taxes,des were $25.0 million, $47.4 million and $42.1liwrl in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001
respectively. On a combined basis SAC HoldingsRepWest accounted for $14.1 million, $62.7 milleomd $32.4 million of the total losses
for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 respectively.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statets have been prepared assuming the Compangontihue as a going concern, which
contemplates the continuity of the Company’s openatand realization of its assets and paymernits d&bilities in the ordinary course of
business. As more fully described in Note 1 todbmsolidated financial statements, on June 20, 2ARERCO, the parent corporation, filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization under Cleaifdtl of the United States Bankruptcy Code. Am&eal Estate Company filed a volunt:
petition for relief under Chapter 11 on August 2803. The uncertainties inherent in the bankruptogess raise substantial doubt about
AMERCO'’s ability to continue as a going concern. BRICO is currently operating its business as a débtpossession under the
jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court, and contiriaatof the Company as a going concern is contingpot, among other things, t
confirmation of a plan of reorganization, the Comya ability to comply with all debt covenants

25




Table of Contents

under the existing debtor-in-possession financmgregement, and obtaining financing sources to riteéture obligations. If a
reorganization plan is not approved, it is poss#tuime assets of the Company may be liquidated. §amant’s plans in regards to these
matters are also described in Note 1. The congselidi@nancial statements do not include any adjestsito reflect future effects on the
recoverability and classification of assets orah®unt and classification of liabilities that mighsult from the outcome of these
uncertainties.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The matters described in “Liquidity and CapResources” to the extent that they relate toréuevents or expectations, may be
significantly affected by the Chapter 11 case. Tinateeding will involve, or may result in, variogstrictions on the Company’s activities,
limitations on financing, the need to obtain Banqkoy Court approval for various matters and unéetitaas to relationships with vendors,
suppliers, customers and others with whom the Compaay conduct or seek to conduct business.

Generally, under the Bankruptcy Code, most débtor’s liabilities must be satisfied in fullérder to preserve the value of the debtor’s
preferred and common stock. The rights and claitseoCompany’s various creditors and security bBrddvill be determined by the plan of
reorganization to be filed by AMERCO. Although AMER expects to file and consummate a “full valuelrpbf reorganization that
provides creditors with a combination of cash aed debt securities equal to the full amount ofrth#fowed claims and also preserves the
value of AMERCOQ'’s common and preferred stock, reueance can be given as to what values, if anypeibscribed in the bankruptcy
proceedings to each of these constituencies.

The Company'’s total of cash, cash equivalantsshorterm investments was $66.8 million at March 31,2@®mpared to $41.4 millic
at March 31, 2002.

To meet the needs of its customers, U-Hadtrmaintain a large inventory of fixed asset reitéahs. In fiscal year 2003, capital
expenditures were $182.4 million, as compared #8%2million and $411.9 million in fiscal years Z08nd 2001, respectively. These
expenditures primarily reflect the renewal of tbatal truck fleet. The capital required to fundsta@xpenditures was obtained through
internally generated funds from operations andddesncings.

During each of the fiscal years ending M&8th2004, 2005 and 2006, U-Haul estimates grossat@xpenditures will average
approximately $150 million to maintain the rentaleft at current levels. This level of capital exgitures, combined with a potential level of
debt amortization of approximately $100 milliong @xpected to create average annual funding néegigpmximately $250 million.
Management estimates that U-Haul will fund thesgiirements entirely with internally generated fuadsl proceeds from the sale of trucks
and surplus assets. The level of capital experaditwill be dependent upon the amount of interrgdigerated funds and proceeds from the
sale of assets.

DIP Facility

Reference is made to Note 1 (Going ConcesisB#o the Consolidated Financial Statements digaithe DIP facility. The DIP Facility
consists of a $300 million credit facility with @mterest rate option of LIBOR plus 3.5% or the pimate plus 1.0%. The DIP Facility will
mature on the earlier of (i) 12 months following tAankruptcy Court’s order approving the facilifiy} ten days following the date of entry of
an order confirming AMERCO's plan of reorganizatiamd (iii) the conversion of the Chapter 11 casa tase under Chapter 7. In order to
facilitate a drawing on the DIP Facility, Real Hetéiled for Chapter 11. This filing was neededdoilitate granting security to the lending
group in the real estate assets owned by RealeEJtae DIP Facility was approved on an interim ®&si the Bankruptcy Court on August
2003.

The terms of the DIP Facility include covetsathat require AMERCO to maintain agreed upon mimn levels of EBITDA, EBITDAR
and fixed charge coverage ratios. The DIP Fadli$p contains a limitation on capital expenditudssuch financial covenants will be test
quarterly. Other customary covenants (both posdivé negative) are included in the DIP Facility.
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Credit Agreements

Reference is made to Note 1 (Going Concern Basif)e Consolidated Financial Statements regardéfiguits of our credit and financit
arrangements.

AMERCO's operations were previously fundedviayious credit and financing arrangements, inclgdinsecured long-term borrowings,
unsecured medium-term notes and revolving linesedit with domestic and foreign banks. To finaitsdleet of trucks and trailers, U-Haul
routinely enters into sale and leaseback transatiass of March 31, 2003, AMERCO had $954.9 millioriotal notes and loans outstanding.

Certain of AMERCO's credit agreements corgdinestrictive financial and other covenants, iditlg, among others, covenants with
respect to incurring additional indebtedness, n@kiird party guarantees, entering into contingsdatigations, maintaining certain financial
ratios and placing certain additional liens orpitsperties and assets and restricting the issuafnmertain types of preferred stock AMERGO’
various credit and financing arrangements are tteby its credit ratings. When AMERCO experienttezlcredit downgrade, certain interest
rates that were being charged were increased.

On October 15, 2002, AMERCO failed to malk®&180 million principal payment due to the Serie872-«€ Bond Backed Asset Trust. On
that date, AMERCO also failed to pay a $26.5 millabligation to Citibank and Bank of America in cection with the BBATSs. As a result
of the foregoing, AMERCO is in default with respézits other credit arrangements that containssdefault provisions, including its
Revolver in the amount of $205 million. In addititmthe cross-default under the Revolver, AMERC@I$® in default under that agreement
as a result of its failure to obtain incrementalaash proceeds and/or availability from additidir@ncings in the aggregate amount of at
least $150 million prior to October 15, 2002. Ird@idn, Amerco Real Estate Company has defaulted $H00 million loan by failing to gra
mortgages required by the loan agreement in ayimeinner. The obligations of AMERCO currently irfalét (either directly or as a result
a cross-default) are approximately $1,178.1 million

Support Agreements

In February 1997, AMERCO, through its inswsubsidiaries, invested in the equity of Privdbei. During 1997, Private Mini secured
a line of credit in the amount of $225 million wakfinancial institution, which was subsequentiguged in accordance with its terms to
$125 million in December 2001. Under the termshés tredit facility AMERCO entered into a suppoarfy agreement with Private Mini and
the financial institution whereby upon certain defs or noncompliance with debt covenants by Peiwini, AMERCO could be required to
assume responsibility in fulfilling all payment @jadtions and certain covenant obligations relatetthis credit facility. Private Mini defaulted
on the credit facility due to AMERCO’s default umdiee support party agreement, which support pegtgement default was triggered by
virtue of cross-defaults to certain other AMERCOigdttions. Additionally, Private Mini defaulted uedthe credit facility by virtue of non-
payment of the outstanding balance at maturitfpéaember 2002, the financing institution exercigeaption to require AMERCO to
purchase all commitments under the credit facilityMarch 2003 AMERCO and the financial institutientered into a standstill agreement
with respect to this obligation, which standstgr@eement expired by its terms on April 30, 2008c8iApril 30, 2003, the financial institution
has not re-issued any default notices to AMERC wéspect to this obligation or otherwise requbddERCO to purchase all commitments
under the credit facility. AMERCO has not purchaaegt commitments under the credit facility andpBslarch 31, 2003, AMERCO has
recorded a liability for the $55 million remainibglance under the credit facility with a corresgagdncrease to its receivable from Private
Mini.

In February 2003, an entity affiliated withivate Mini closed on a $255 million financing a#d@0 million of these proceeds were used to
pay down the $125 million line of credit descritszbve. The aggregate amount of support provideiNd#RCO remains unchanged at
$125 million ($55 million to the lenders under thmended and Restated loan agreement with the E3@iets and $70 million under the new
$255 million financing). Under the terms of the pag party agreement for the $255 million finangifgjlowing certain events of default,
AMERCO would assume responsibility for $70 milliohthe obligations
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under this financing. AMERCO has recorded a ligpfior the $70 million obligation with a correspangd increase to its receivable from
Private Mini.

SAC Holdings

SAC Holdings intends to meet its current debt alilans through cash flows generated from its opegatctivities. SAC Holdings intent
to continue to purchase storage properties duhiagiext year using financing arrangements.

Reference is made to Note 5 of Notes to Clafeted Financial Statements.

U-HAUL Moving and Storage Operations

At March 31, 2003, U-HAUL Moving and Storagetes and loans payable due in less than one g@$81.7 million and its accounts
payable and accrued expenses total $283.6 milleHAUL Moving and Storage financial assets (caskgivables, inventories, and short
term investments) at March 31, 2003 were $117.6anilThese assets, if converted to cash, areablaito meet the financial obligations of
AMERCO.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatioi

At March 31, 2003, SAC Holdings notes anchibpayable due in less than one year total $8dldmand its accounts payable and
accrued expenses total $48.0 million. SAC Holdifigancial assets (cash, receivables, inventorias short term investments) at March 31,
2003 were $8.7 million. Because AMERCO does notehaw equity ownership in SAC Holdings (other tiarestments made by RepWest
and Oxford in a SAC Holdings-controlled limited pearship which holds Canadian self-storage progextthese assets are not available to
meet the obligations of AMERCO.

Real Estate Operation

At March 31, 2003, Real Estate had $100.0anibf notes and loans payable due in less thanyear and its accounts payable and
accrued expenses total $7.7 million. Real Estagnfiial assets (cash, receivables, inventoriesslaod term investments) at March 31, 2003
were $18.9 million. These assets, if convertedaghcare available to meet the obligations of AMERG the extent such cash exceeds
current obligations of Real Estate.

Property and Casualt

At December 31, 2002, Property and Casualtyrio notes and loans due in less than one yeatsaamctounts payable and accrued
expenses were $20.2 million. Property and Casfialtyicial assets (cash, receivables, inventoried shiort term investments) at
December 31, 2002 were $361.4 million. Because¢adé snsurance regulations that restrict the amofidividends that can be paid to
stockholders of insurance companies, these assetenerally not available to meet the obligatiohAMERCO. Reference is made to
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€@ahdition and Results of Operations — Insurancer&@tjmns.”

Life Insurance

At December 31, 2002, Life Insurance had otes and loans payable due in less than one yddtsamccounts payable and accrued
expenses total $10.7 million. Life Insurance finahassets (cash, receivables, inventories, and &ran investments) at December 31, 2002
were $870.2 million. Because of state insurancelegigns that restrict the amount of dividends tteat be paid to stockholders of insurance
companies, these assets are generally not avaitabieet the obligations of AMERCO. Reference islentb “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Insurance Operations.”
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Consolidated grouj

At March 31, 2003, total outstanding noted arortgages payable for AMERCO and consolidatedididries was $954.9 million
compared to $1,045.8 million at March 31, 2002.

At March 31, 2003, total outstanding noted arortgages payable for SAC Holdings and consalatibsidiaries, before intercompany
eliminations were $983.2 million as compared to3%$96nillion at March 31, 2002, including amounteda AMERCO of $394.2 million an
$399.6 million at March 31, 2003 and 2002. SAC Hiudd’ creditors have no recourse to AMERCO. AMERBQ@ot liable for the debts of
SAC Holdings. Further, there are no cross defaalipions on indebtedness between AMERCO and SAldikigs.

Due to the defaults and various cross defatiie consolidated group have notes, loans asd Igaligations due and payable of
$1.2 billion. The group also had accounts payabteaccrued expenses of $411.9 million. Liquid askstthe group totaled $511.2 million.
AMERCO is in the process of refinancing and regtrring its debt to meet its liquidity needs.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

U-HAUL Moving and Storage Operations

Cash provided by operating activities was.$88illion, $96.2 million and $106.9 million in fial years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in 2003 was due tolandén intercompany payables that was partialfgetf by an increase in depreciation of
rental equipment. The decrease in fiscal year 202 2001 is due to an increase in earnings argkbffy an increase in other investments.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatiol

Cash provided (used) by operating activitias $13.5 million, ($1.3) million and $15.1 milliam fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

At March 31, 2003, total outstanding notes and games payable before intercompany eliminations36#® million were $983.2 millio
compared to $961.5 million at March 31, 2002.

Real Estate Operation

Cash provided (used) by operating activitias $(87.1) million, $(144.1) million and $68.7 haih in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The decrease in fiscal years 2002280@ was due to a decrease in the intercompargbpawith AMERCO.

Property And Casualt

Cash provided (used) by operating activities wa@s () million, $(61.5) million and $15.2 millionfahe years ended December 31, 2
2001 and 2000, respectively. The change in 2008 #601 is due to increased receivables. The chian2@01 from 2000 change is due to
decreased unearned premiums, increased receivahtban increase in federal income tax recoverable.

RepWest's cash and cash equivalents and-santinvestment portfolio were $35.1 million, $38nillion and $17.0 million at
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectivelys Baliance reflects funds in transition from mayypitoceeds to long-term investments.
This level of liquid assets, combined with anticgghoperating cash flow, is adequate to meet pierieekds. Capital and operating budgets
allow RepWest to schedule cash needs in accordaittténvestment and underwriting proceeds.

During fiscal 2002, RepWest realized a wdtavn of investments due to other than temporarjimeapproximating $1.8 million.
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Life Insurance

Oxford’s primary sources of cash are premiumeeipts from interest-sensitive products anéstment income. The primary uses of cash
are operating costs and benefit payments to padicigns. Matching the investment portfolio to theltflow demands of the types of
insurance being written is an important consideratBenefit and claim statistics are continuallymitared to provide projections of future
cash requirements.

Cash provided (used) by operating activitbas $(18.0) million, $(5.2) million and $3.5 millidor the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in ¢asis from operating activities in 2001 and 200@tes$ to federal income taxes paid,
general and administrative expenses and paid lgesience. Cash flows provided by financing adtgitwere $67.3 million, $58.1 million
and $13.7 million for the years ended Decembe2802, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Cash flows fdeferred annuity sales increase
investment contract deposits, which are a compouoigiimiancing activities. The increase in investineontract deposits over 2001 and 20(
due to growth in new deposits offset by withdravaaig terminations of existing deposits.

In addition to cash flows from operating dim&ncing activities, a substantial amount of Idjéiinds is available through Oxford’s short-
term portfolio. At December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2G0®rt-term investments amounted to $80.4 millgs8.5 million and $44.9 million,
respectively. Management believes that the ovemltces of liquidity will continue to meet foresbkacash needs.

During fiscal 2002, Oxford realized a writeveh of investments due to other than temporaryideglapproximating $2.3 million. During
fiscal 2003, Oxford realized a write-down of invasints due to other than temporary declines of aqpately $7.9 million.

Consolidated Grouj

Cash provided (used) by operating activitiese $74.5 million, ($19.6) million and $172.6 nat for fiscal year 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Stockholders’ Equity

U-Haul’s Moving and Storage Operatior

U-Haul's stockholders’ equity was $499.4 ioitl, $458.6 million and $449.6 million as of Mar8h, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
Earnings or losses from operating activities wasddwuse for the change in each of the years.

SAC Moving and Storage Operatiol

SAC Holdings’ stockholders’ deficit was $45nlllion, $37.7 million and $23.5 million as of Mar 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively

AMERCQO'S Real Estate Operatior

Real Estate stockholders’ equity was $21510om, $196.4 million and $88.4 million as of Mdr&1, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The increase in fiscal year 2003 and 2002 is duecteased earnings and the sale of storage pregpelring fiscal year 2002.

Property and Casualt

RepWest's stockholderequity was $199.1 million, $205.3 million and $IBmillion at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 200&peetively
The decrease in 2002 from 2001 is due to the dpgrhtsses in 2002. The increase in 2001 from 2088 due to a $60.2 million capital
contribution from the RepWest's parent AMERCO, effey operating losses in 2001. RepWest does motlelst or equity issues to increase
capital and therefore has no exposure to capitékehaonditions. RepWest did not pay dividendssgarent during 2002, 2001 or 2000.
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Applicable laws and regulations of the Statérizona require RepWest and Oxford to maintainimum capital and surplus determined
in accordance with statutory accounting practidé& amount of dividends that can be paid to shddeh® by insurance companies domiciled
in the State of Arizona is limited. Any dividendémcess of the limit requires prior regulatory agyad. At December 31, 2002, RepWest has
$6.5 million of statutory surplus available fortdisution. However, as discussed in Item 1, subsatjto December 31, 2002, RepWest
consented to an Order of Supervision which, amdhgrahings, prohibits any dividend payments to ARED without prior approval of the
DOLI.

Life Insurance

Oxford’s stockholdes equity was $111.1 million, $117.7 million and $illion as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 20€€pectively
The decrease from 2001 to 2002 is from investnas#ds, the increase from 2000 to 2001 is a rekaliraings, changes in market value of
the available for sale investment portfolio andl&.8 million contribution from AMERCO. Oxford didbhpay dividends in 2002, 2001 or
2000. At December 31, 2002, Oxford cannot distelary of its statutory surplus as dividends withegulatory approval.

Consolidated grouj

The Consolidated group’s stockholder equias\$333.0 million, $381.5 million and $446.4 mifiias of the end of fiscal years 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Quarterly Results

The quarterly results shown below are derivenh unaudited financial statements for the emldrters beginning April 1, 2001 and
ending March 31, 2003. The Company has restatequaeerly information to reflect the adjustmenteritified with the reaudit and current
year audit of the consolidated financial statemehte Company believes that all necessary adjugtteve been included in the amot
stated below to present fairly, and in accordanitle generally accepted accounting principles. U4Haaving and storage operations are
seasonal and proportionally more of the Comparguvgmues and net earnings from its U-Haul movingsaachge operations are generated in
the first and second quarters of each fiscal y&pri(through September). The operating resultstifierperiods presented are not necessarily
indicative of results for any future period.

Quarter Ended

Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30,
Mar 31, 2002 2002 2002
2003 Restated Restated Restated

(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

Total revenue $ 448,99 467,22: 636,87- 579,29
Earnings/(loss) from operatiol (10,539 (6,722 62,86¢ 63,597
Net earnings (loss (25,110 (45,787 22,12¢ 23,77¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding basiditaned 20,837,16 20,762,72 20,779,54 20,592,85
Earnings (loss) from operations per common sha (0.5)) (0.39 3.02 3.0¢
Earnings (loss) per common Share basic and di (1.36) (2.37) 0.91 1.0C
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Quarter Ended

Mar 31 Dec 31, Sep 30 Jun 30
2002 2001 2001 2001
Restated Restated Restated Restated

(In thousands, except for share and per share data)

Total revenue $ 461,88: 480,63( 655,15( 595,91°
Earnings from operatior (19,879 (31,657 61,51( 32,16:
Net earnings (los¢ (39,410 (36,067 20,75: (7,279
Weighted average common shares outstanding bagiditared 21,022,71 20,892,34 21,106,34 21,280,36
Earnings (loss) from operations per common sha (0.95) (1.52) 2.91 1.52
Earnings (loss) per common share basic and di (2.05) (1.8¢) .83 0.1¢

(1) Net earnings (loss) per common share amounts veenpuated after giving effect to the dividends on ARIEC's Preferred Stocl
Risk Factors
AMERCO has filed for protection under Chapter 11 tfe Bankruptcy Code

On June 20, 2003, AMERCO filed a voluntaryitimn for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankrup@ode. AMERCOQO's subsidiaries were
not included in the initial filing. However, on Augt 13, 2003, Amerco Real Estate Company filegfotection under Chapter 11. AMER(
will continue to manage its properties and opeitatbusinesses as “debtor-in-possession in” urfdejurisdiction of the Bankruptcy Court
and in accordance with the applicable provisionthefBankruptcy Code. In order to exit Chapter ddcessfully, AMERCO will need to
propose, and obtain confirmation by the Bankrui@oyrt of, a plan of reorganization that satisfles tequirements of the Bankruptcy Code.
Although AMERCO expects to file a “full-value” plasf reorganization that provides creditors withoanbination of cash and new debt
securities equal to the full amount of their allahw@aims as well as AMERCO'’s emergence from banksups a going concern, there can be
no assurance at this time that a plan of reorgtoizavill be confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court diat any such plan will be implemented
successfully.

The U.S. Trustee has appointed a Creditoosh@ittee and an Equity Committee. The Creditoran@uttee, Equity Committee and their
respective legal representatives have a right todaed on certain matters that come before the Bty Court. There can be no assurance
that the Creditors’ Committee and Equity Commitiék support AMERCO'’s positions or AMERCO'’s ultimaplan of reorganization, once
proposed, and disagreements between AMERCO ar@réditors’ Committee and Equity Committee couldtgaet the Chapter 11 case,
could negatively impact AMERCO'’s ability to operataring the Chapter 11 case, and could prevent ARIBR emergence from Chapter

At this time, it is not possible to prediccarately the effect of the Chapter 11 reorgarizragirocess on the Company’s business or when
AMERCO may emerge from Chapter 11. The Companytigréuresults depend on the timely and successhflrazation and implementation
of a plan of reorganization. The rights and claghsarious creditors and security holders will l#eitmined by the plan as well. Although
AMERCO expects to file and consummate a “full valpkan of reorganization that provides creditorshaa combination of cash and new
debt securities equal to the full amount of thééoveed claims and also preserves the value of AMBRZommon and preferred stock, no
assurance can be given as to what values, if aifjpevascribed in the bankruptcy proceedings thea these constituencies. Accordingly,
the Company urges that appropriate caution be meetevith respect to existing and future investraémtany of such securities and claims.
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We operate in a highly competitive industry.

The truck rental industry is highly compefitiand includes a number of significant nationa hundreds of regional and local
competitors. Competition is generally based ongynizoduct quality, convenience, availability, litarame recognition and service. In our
truck rental business, we face competition from gaidCar and Truck Rental Company and Penske Traeakihg. Some of our competitors
may have greater financial resources than we ha&feecannot assure you that we will not be forcexdkttuce our rental prices or delay price
increases.

We compete with national and regional selfafje operators as well as local operators. Cotigretn the market areas in which we
operate is significant and affects the occupaneglée rental rates and operating expenses of ailitifss. Competition might cause us to
experience a decrease in occupancy levels, limiability to increase rental rates and compel usffier discounted rental rates which could
have a material adverse effect on our operatingtses

Entry into the self-storage business throagduisition of existing facilities is possible foersons or institutions with the required initial
capital. Development of new self-storage faciliiesore difficult, however, due to zoning, envinoental and other regulatory requirements.
The self-storage industry has in the past expegi@ioverbuilding in response to perceived increasdsmand. We cannot assure you that we
will be able to successfully compete in existingkess or expand into new markets.

Control of AMERCO remains in the hands of a smalbatingent.

As of June 30, 2003, Edward J. Shoen, Chairofidhe Board of Directors and President of AMERQ@&mes P. Shoen, a director of
AMERCO, and Mark V. Shoen, an executive officeAMERCO, collectively own 8,893,078 shares (approadiaty 43.1%) of the
outstanding common shares of AMERCO. AccordinglywBrd J. Shoen, Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shdidoevim a position to continue
to influence the election of the members of therBad Directors and approval of significant trartsas. In addition, 2,402,456 shares
(approximately 11.7%) of the outstanding commonrehaf AMERCO, including shares allocated to emeésyand unallocated shares, are
held by our Employee Savings and Employee Stockédsimip Trust.

Our operations subject us to numerous environmentagulations and the possibility that environmentédbility in the future could
adversely affect our operations.

Compliance with environmental requirementfederal, State and local governments significaaftfgcts our business. Among other
things, these requirements regulate the dischdrgmterials into the water, air and land and govwbeuse and disposal of hazardous
substances. Under environmental laws, we can loedtréttly liable for hazardous substances thaf@wad on real property we have owne
operated. We are aware of issues regarding hazasidistances on some of our real estate and wephaireplace a remedial plan at each
site where we believe such a plan is necessaryedgidarly make capital and operating expenditusestdy in compliance with environmen
laws. In particular, we have managed a testingrambval program since 1988 for our undergroundagi®itanks. Under this program, we
spent $43.7 million between April 1988 and March 2103. Despite these compliance efforts, riskneirenmental liability is part of the
nature of our business.

While we do not expect the future cost of compleandth environmental laws or future environmeniabilities, including compliance a
remediation costs, to have a material adversetaffeour business, environmental laws and reguiatase complex, change frequently and
could become more stringent in the future. We caaesure you that future compliance with theselegiguns or future environmental
liabilities will not have a material adverse effect our business.

Our business is seasonal.

Our business is seasonal and our resultparations and cash flows fluctuate significanttynirquarter to quarter. Historically, revenues
have been stronger in the first and second fisgaitqrs due to the overall
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increase in moving activity during the spring anchsner months. The fourth fiscal quarter is gengrattakest, when there is a greater
potential for adverse weather conditions.

We obtain our rental trucks from a limited numbef emanufacturers.

In the last ten years, we purchased all ofrental trucks from Ford and General Motors. Aligb we believe that we have alternative
sources of supply for our rental trucks, termiraid one or more of our relationships with anytefde suppliers could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditioresults of operations.

Our property and casualty insurance business ha#feted extensive losses.

Our property and casualty insurance busiriRepWest, has experienced significant net losdabrtg approximately $77.0 million for the
three calendar years ended December 31, 2002. Tdesss are primarily attributable to businesssliteat were unprofitable as underwritten.
To restore profitability in RepWest, we are exit@fgnon-U-Haul related lines and the exit may tesunear term losses as these lines are
eliminated. Although we believe the changes willdha positive impact on the financial position &jRVest, we cannot assure you that we
will be successful in returning RepWest to sustdipefitability. Our inability to sustain profitalty could have a material adverse effect on
our earnings and financial position.

Our insurance businesses have recently suffered dgrades in their ratings from national insurance aapany rating agencies.

A.M. Best has recently downgraded RepWest@xidrd. These downgrades have affected their stgrid the insurance industry and
caused their premiums to decrease. Ratings hawereean increasingly important factor in establigttime competitive position of insurance
companies. A.M. Best ratings reflect its opinioraafinsurance company’s financial strength, opegaperformance, strategic position and
ability to meet its obligations to policyholdershé A.M. Best ratings are C for RepWest and C+ frio@.

Notes receivable from SAC Holdings are a signifidgrortion of AMERCC'S total assets.

At March 31, 2003, we held $394.2 millionmbrtgage loans and notes due from SAC Holdinghodigh these assets have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statementshave significant economic exposure to SAC khgis. SAC Holdings is highly
leveraged with total outstanding indebtedness dnelr@bligations of $982.2 million at March 31, 300Ve hold various senior and junior
unsecured notes of SAC Holdings. The senior unselcootes of SAC Holdings that we hold rank equaight of payment with the notes of
certain senior mortgage holders, but junior toakient of the collateral securing the applicabletgages and junior to the extent of the cash
flow waterfalls that favor the senior mortgage leod If SAC Holdings are unable to meet their adtiigns to their senior lenders, it could
trigger a default on their obligations to us. lels@an event of default, we could suffer a signifidass to the extent the value of the
underlying collateral on our loans to SAC Holdinggnadequate to repay SAC Holdings’ senior lendic us. We cannot assure you that
SAC Holdings will not default on their loans to ithgenior lenders or that the value of SAC Holdiragsets upon liquidation would be
sufficient to repay us in full.

AMERCO is a holding company and is dependent onsitdbsidiaries for cash flon

As a holding company with no business openati AMERCOQO’s material assets consist only of thelsof its subsidiaries. AMERCO will
have to rely upon dividends and other payments itersubsidiaries to generate the funds neceseggyt its obligations. AMERCO'’s
subsidiaries, however, are legally distinct from BRICO and have no obligation, contingent or otheswis make funds available to
AMERCO. The ability of AMERCO'’s subsidiaries to nea#lividend and other payments to AMERCO is suliigcamong other things, the
availability of funds, the terms of the indebtedneSAMERCO’s subsidiaries and applicable stateslawd insurance regulations.
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We face risks related to an SEC investigation amtgrities litigation.

The SEC has issued a formal order of invatitg to determine whether we have violated theeF@dsecurities laws. Although we have
fully cooperated with the SEC in this matter angtird to continue to fully cooperate, the SEC magmaine that we have violated Federal
securities laws. We cannot predict when this irgasibn will be completed or its outcome. If theGEakes a determination that we have
violated Federal securities laws, we may face samgtincluding, but not limited to, significant metary penalties and injunctive relief.

In addition, the Company has been namedendeaht in a number of class action and relateduisvsThe findings and outcome of the
SEC investigation may affect the class-action latsghat are pending. We are generally obligedh&extent permitted by law, to indemnify
our directors and officers who are named defendargeme of these lawsuits. We are unable to estinvhat our liability in these matters
may be, and we may be required to pay judgmengsttiements and incur expenses in aggregate amthatitsould have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of ogt@ns.

We face risks related to a Department of Labor listigation.

The DOL is presently investigating whetherthwere violations of ERISA involving the AMERCnigloyee Savings, Profit Sharing,
and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “Plan”)héiltgh the Company has fully cooperated with the i®©this matter and intends to
continue to fully cooperate, the DOL may deterntime the Company has violated ERISA. In that eviiet, Company may face sanctions,
including, but not limited to, significant monetgrgnalties and injunctive relief.

Our common stock may be delisted from the NASDAQcRtMarket.

On June 24, 2003, we received a letter frohSNAQ indicating that, in light of AMERCGQ'recent Chapter 11 filing, a NASDAQ Listi
Qualifications Panel (the “Panel”) would considecls filing and associated concerns in renderingtarchination regarding AMERCO'’s
listing status. NASDAQ has requested, and we haweiged, information regarding the Chapter 11 §land the anticipated effect of the
filing on the shareholders of AMERCO. On August 2803, AMERCO received a letter from Nasdaq indingathat the Panel has determi
to continue the listing of AMERCQO’s common stockMasdaq provided that: (1) on or before August2Z®3, AMERCO files this report
and its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 303 2dth the SEC and Nasdaq (Nasdaq has been adbigethis deadline was not met and
further discussions with Nasdaq are anticipate®))pf or before deadlines determined by the PAMERCO submits to Nasdaq a copy of
the Company'’s plan of reorganization as filed wfith bankruptcy court, a copy of any amendmentldgtan of reorganization as submitted
to the bankruptcy court; documentation evidencired AMERCO has commenced the solicitation of voégmrding the plan of
reorganization, as well as documentation evidenthiagithe plan of reorganization has been confirtmethe bankruptcy court; and (3) on or
before January 9, 2004, AMERCO submits documemtaticNasdaq evidencing its emergence from bankyupricaddition to the foregoing,
AMERCO must comply with all other requirements éontinued listing on Nasdaq. Although we intendeéek a modification of the
deadlines to file its Form 10-K and Form 10-Q axdssed above and to take all actions availabieaiatain its Nasdagq listing, there can be
no assurance that AMERCO will be able to do so.

Our preferred stock may be delisted from the NewkyStock Exchange.

The New York Stock Exchange has completeslieew of the continued listing of the Series A 8%/preferred stock of AMERCO
following its filing for protection under Chaptefl1According to NYSE, this assessment has showtrthieaCompany is currently in
compliance with all of the NYSE’s quantitative cionted listing standards. The NYSE will continuectosely monitor events at the Company
in connection with assessing the appropriatenessrifnued listing of the Company’s preferred stoftke NYSE has indicated that it will
give consideration to immediate suspension of the@any’s preferred stock if authoritative advicedseived that the Company’s securities,
including the common stock, are without value,fdhé Company subsequently falls below any of theSH’s quantitative continued listing
standards. In addition, the NYSE noted that it n@ny time, suspend a security if it believes domtinued dealings in
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the security on the NYSE are not advisable. Acealyi there can be no assurance that the Compansferred stock will continue to be
listed on NYSE.

RepWest has consented to an Order of Supervisisnésl by the Arizona Department of Insuranc

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@fdgupervision issued by the DOI. Pursuant te @ider and Arizona law, during the
period of supervision, RepWest may not engage litaiceactivities without the prior approval of tB®I.

The requirements to abate the order are épViRest to eliminate the specific credit risk asatea with the exposures to AMERCO and its
affiliates and establish that it possesses sumulfficient with Arizona law and as the Arizona Qter of Insurance may require based on t
volume or nature of its business pursuant to Arizian.

In addition, if RepWest fails to satisfy ttegjuirements to abate DOI's concerns, the DOI rakg further action, including, but not
limited to, commencing a conservatorship.

IRS Examination

In connection with the resolution of litigation Witertain members of the Shoen family and theipa@tions, AMERCO has deducted
income tax purposes approximately $372.0 milliothef payments made to plaintiffs in a lawsuit. WHIMERCO believes that such income
tax deductions are appropriate, there can be noass that such deductions ultimately will beaid in full. The IRS has proposed
adjustments to the Company’s 1997 and 1996 taxnetiNearly all of the adjustments are attributabldenials of deductions claimed for
certain payments made in connection with thisatiign. We believe these income tax deductions ppeopriate and are vigorously contest
the IRS adjustments. No additional taxes have peavided in the accompanying financial statemesgananagement believes that none will
result.

New Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirem@btigations, requires recognition of the fair \alf liabilities associated with the
retirement of long-lived assets when a legal oliligato incur such costs arises as a result oatigglisition, construction, development and/or
the normal operation of a long-lived asset. Upaogaition of the liability, a corresponding assetécorded at present value and accreted
over the life of the asset and depreciated overdhmining life of the long-lived asset. SFAS 143inks a legal obligation as one that a party
is required to settle as a result of an existingracted law, statute, ordinance, or written ol @vatract or by legal construction of a contract
under the doctrine of promissory estoppel. SFASid48fective for fiscal years beginning after Jute 2002. The implementation of this
accounting standard is not expected to have a rakitmpact on the financial statements.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No, Z&tounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets. SFAS 144 requires
that longlived assets be measured at the lower of carryimguat or fair value less cost to sell, whether reggbin continuing operations or
discontinued operations. Therefore, discontinuegtatpons will no longer be measured at net realézaalue or include amounts for operat
losses that have not yet occurred. SFAS 144 isteféefor financial statements issued for fiscadngebeginning after December 15, 2001 and,
generally, are to be applied prospectively. We red@pted this statement effective April 1, 2002 amlid not affect our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1R&scission of No. 4, (Reporting Gains and Loss&s fExtinguishment of Debt), No. 44
(Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carrigmo. 64, (Extinguishments of Debt Made to SatiSfyking-Fund Requirements),
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 (Accountinglfeases) and Technical Corrections. This statenlgninates the current requirement
that gains and losses on debt extinguishment nausldssified as extraordinary items in the incotagement. Instead, such gains and losses
will be classified as extraordinary items onlyhiéy are deemed to be unusual and infrequent, ordaoce with the current GAAP criteria for
extraordinary classification. In addition,
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SFAS 145 eliminates an inconsistency in lease attouby requiring that modification of capital ks that result in reclassification as
operating leases be accounted for consistent wlileaseback accounting rules. The statementalsiains other nonsubstantive corrections
to authoritative accounting literature. The chanmgésted to debt extinguishment were effectivefiizal years beginning after May 15, 2002,
and the changes related to lease accounting wieretieé for transactions occurring after May 15020Pre-tax earnings were reduced by
$3.3 million and $547 thousand for the fiscal yeladed March 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Ttlassification did not reduce net
earnings for the fiscal year ended March 31, 20@l.2000 as the extraordinary loss on early extstguent of debt was reported net of taxes.

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statementradriial Accounting Standards No. 146, (SFAS 14&)otnting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities, which addresses acamgnfor restructuring and similar costs. SFAS sdPersedes previous accounting
guidance, principally Emerging Issues Task Ford&KlEIssue No. 94-3. SFAS 146 requires that thility for costs associated with an exit
or disposal activity be recognized when the ligpi incurred. Under EITF No. 93; a liability for an exit cost was recognizedis tate of .
company’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 aktablishes that the liability should initially beasured and recorded at fair value.
Accordingly, SFAS 146 may affect the timing of rgo@ing future restructuring costs as well as ttn@ant recognized. The provisions of 1
Statement are effective for exit or disposal atiigithat are initiated after December 31, 2002 atioption of SFAS 146 will not have any
immediate effect on the Company’s consolidatednioia statements and will be applied prospectively.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Imgtation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting for Diselos Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness be@t, an interpretation of FASB Statements No75a8d 107 and rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34, Disclosure of Indirect Guaees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45”). FINcirifies the requirements for a
guarantors accounting for and disclosure of certain guaesigsued and outstanding. It also requires a gta@rt recognize, at the incept
of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value bétobligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee.Company entered into a support party
agreement for $70.0 million of indebtedness of ffilize. Under the terms of FIN 45, the Compangagnized a liability in the amount of
$70.0 million, which is management'’s estimate @fliabilities associated with the guarantee.

In December 2002, the FASB issued StatemfeRin@ncial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accongtfor Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (“FAS ")4&hich amends Statement of Financial Accountgigndards No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123"). FAS bt8vides alternative methods of transition for &umtary change to the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based emplogemensation. In addition, FAS 148 amends thdalisce requirement of FAS 123 to
require more prominent and more frequent disclasimdinancial statements of the effects of stoakddl compensation. The transition
guidance and annual disclosure provisions of FASdré effective for fiscal years ending after Debeni5, 2002. The interim disclosure
provisions are effective for financial reports @ining condensed financial statements for interariquls beginning after December 15, 2002.
The Company does not have any stock based commenp&ins and the adoption of FAS 148 is not exgbtd have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet or resultp@fations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruteemd Hedging Activities.” This
Statement amends and clarifies the accountingddvative instruments, including certain derivatimstruments embedded in other contracts
and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133.drtipular, SFAS No. 149 (1) clarifies under whatamstances a contract with an initial
investment meets the characteristic of a derivadirdiscussed in SFAS No. 133, (2) clarifies whderavative contains a financing
component, (3) amends the definition of an undedyderivative to conform it to the language useBASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaemticluding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedné&tioers, and (4) amends certain
other existing pronouncements.. SFAS No. 149 iegaly effective for contracts entered into or niigdi after June 30, 2003. The Company
does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 149 alle a material impact on the Company'’s finanaisifon, results of operations or cash
flows.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150;¢dunting for Certain Financial Instruments witha@drcteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” This Statement establishes standardslémsifying and measuring as liabilities certairafigial instruments that embody obligations
of the issuer and have characteristics of botfiliis and equity. SFAS No. 150 is effective a theginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003; including all fin@hinstruments created or modified after May 3102 SFAS No. 150 currently has no
impact on the Company.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Intgiron No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Intergstities, an interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletins (“ARB”) No. 51, Consolidated &fiigial Statements (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 applies imnedly to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003, and in the fitstiim period beginning after June 15, 2003 forafale interest entities created prior to
January 31, 2003. The interpretation explains homidentify variable interest entities and how ategorise assesses its interests in a variable
interest entity to decide whether to consolidass #ntity. The interpretation requires variableiast entities to be consolidated by their
primary beneficiaries if the entities do not effeely disperse risks among parties involved. Vdaabterest entities that effectively disperse
risks will not be consolidated unless a singleyhdlds an interest or combination of interests &ffectively recombines risks that were
previously dispersed. The Company has determiredPttivate Mini is a Variable Interest Entity andl weed to be consolidated beginning
July 2003. The impact of this on the consolidatedricial statements is to increase assets by appatedy $320.0 million and increase debt
by approximately $308.0 million. AMERCO also detared that SAC qualifies as a Variable Interest fgreihd will continue to be
consolidated.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk
Interest Rate Risk

In the normal course of business, AMERCOxosed to fluctuations in interest rates. AMERCQnhages such exposure through the use
of a variety of derivative financial instrumentsevhdeemed prudent. AMERCO does not enter into é&eat financial transactions or use
derivative financial instruments for trading purpssThe exposure to market risk for changes imésteates relates primarily to debt
obligations. AMERCO's objective is to mitigate timepact of changes in interest rates on its varigdte debt. Historically, AMERCO has
used interest rate swap agreements to provide dchimg the gain or loss recognition on the hedgisgrument with the recognition of the
changes in the cash flows associated with the ltedgget or liability attributable to the hedged ns the earnings effect of the hedged
forecasted transaction. At March 31, 2003, no @derate swap contracts existed. At March 31, 20@2Company had interest rate swap
contracts to pay variable rates of interest aBtineonth US LIBOR and receive fixed rates of intefaserage rate of 8.6%) on $45 million
notional amount of indebtedness. This resultegpraeximately $238 million of the Company’s undenlgidebt being subject to variable
interest rates. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidateaincial Statements in Item 8. A fluctuationtie interest rates of 100 basis points would
change AMERCO's interest expense by approximat2Il$ $illion.

SAC Holdings debt is primarily fixed rateuEtuations in interest rates for new operationdcchave an impact on operations. SAC
Holdings does not enter into leveraged financehsactions or use derivative financial instrumémt$rading purposes.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The Company’s earnings are affected by flaittuns in the value of foreign currency exchanges.aApproximately 2.0% of the
Companys revenue is generated in Canada. The result @¥achange in the value of the U.S. dollar relatovéhe Canadian dollar would r
be material. The Company does not typically hedgefareign currency risk since the exposure isaootsidered material.

SAC Holdings earnings are affected by flutiares in the value of foreign currency exchangesaf\pproximately 6.4% of SAC Holdings
revenue is generated in Canada. SAC Holdings datetypically hedge any foreign currency risk sitice exposure is not considered
material.
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Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

The Report of Independent Accountants andsGlaatated Financial Statements of AMERCO and SA@igs, including the notes to
such statements and the related schedules, d@thedn pages 54 through 106 and are thereby jmocated herein.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial
Disclosure

On July 17, 2002, the Company dismissed RaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC") as the Company’speteent auditors. On August 8,
2002, the Company engaged BDO as the Company'pémdikent auditing firm.

On July 23, 2002, the Company disclosed dfieviing:

* That the reports of PwC on the financial statemefitie Company for the fiscal years ended March28D2 and 2001 did not contain
an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, wede not qualified or modified as to uncertaintydia scope or accounting principle

« That the decision to dismiss PwC was recommendatdZompany’s audit committee and authorized byBbard of Directors of the
Company.

« That for the Company’s fiscal years ended March2®D2 and 2001 and through July 17, 2002, there werdisagreements with PwC
on any matter of accounting principles or practifesncial statement disclosure or auditing scopprocedure, which disagreement:
not resolved to the satisfaction of PwC would heagsed it to make reference to the subject mattiweadisagreements in its repc

* That for the Company’s fiscal years ended March2BD2 and 2001 and through July 17, 2002, thereobedrred none of the
“reportable even” listed in Item 304(a)(1)(v)(-D) of Regulation -K.

» That PwC indicated to the Company that materialkmeases exist in certain aspects of the Compantgsnal controls that were noted
during PwC('s audits of the Compa’s financial statements for the fiscal years endedckl 31, 2001 and 200

» That PwC recommended examination and augmentatsoappropriate, of certain aspects of the Compantgésnal control procedures,
including the following: (1) Responsibility for dageneral ledger account should be assigned tp@nopriate person, reconciliations
(particularly with respect to intercompany accouwsith SAC Holdings, inventory, and fixed asset)ul be performed on a monthly
basis, and the financial reporting manager shondtiie that all accounts with variances at monthsgadnvestigated and corrected
within an appropriate timeframe; (2) The internahtol structure and monitoring process of managersieould be strengthened to h
detect misstated account balances on a timely.lf@sisections of items should be made on a timakid) as well, to ensure proper
quarterly and annual reporting; (3) Access to theegal ledger should be limited to a few selecividdals, with the appropriate level
authority, who do not possess incompatible jobaasijbilities. Further, journal entries should beieeved and approved to ensure that
each adjustment is supported by appropriate doctati@n and that each entry has been reflected ®@subsidiary ledger, if applicable;
(4) Controls relating to inventory costing, inclndiLIFO reserve calculations, manufacturing andlo@ad costs, and retention of
records should be improved; and (5) Position vaiearghould be filled in a timely manner with conggtpersonnel. Documentation of
job responsibilities, processes, etc. should bpagyeal to ensure efficient and accurate knowledgester. In addition, cross training
employees and functions should occur to strengtireicontrol environment and to minimize disruptiamshe event of employee
turnover.

* That the Audit Committee had discussed these nsattgh PwC and the Company had begun addressisg thatters.

 That the Company had authorized PwC to respond folany inquiries concerning these matters froenatditor selected to replace
PwC.
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 That the Company had received a letter from Pwingtéhat PwC agreed with the statements repotedea

Subsequently, the Report of Independent Actands on the financial statements of the Companthie year ended March 31, 2002
issued by PwC on January 6, 2003 included a gaingern explanatory paragraph. Such explanatorygpapa expressed substantial doubt
about the Company'’s ability to continue as a gaiogcern due, in part, to AMERCO'’s default (eith&edtly or indirectly as a result of cross-
default) of approximately $1,175.4 million in cunteobligations.

On May 7, 2003 PwC notified the Company thatreport referred to in the preceding paragrtpit,is dual dated September 23, 2002,
except notes 1, 21, and 22, which are dated Ja®y@§03, should no longer be associated withittential statements (a) of AMERCO and
its subsidiaries, SAC Holding Corporation and itbsdiaries, and SAC Holding Corporation Il andsitdsidiaries at March 31, 2002, and
results of their operations and their cash flowsfie year then ended and (b) of AMERCO and itsislidries and SAC Holding Corporation
and its subsidiaries at March 31, 2001, and thalteesf their operations and their cash flows facte of the two years in the period ended
March 31, 2001.

PART IlI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrar
The Registrant’s Directors and Executive €Xfifs are:
Name Age* Office
Edward J. Shoe 54 Chairman of the Board, President, and Dire
William E. Carty 76 Director
John M. Dodd: 66 Director
Charles J. Baye 63 Director
John P. Broga 59 Director
James J. Groge 49 Director
M. Frank Lyons 67 Director
James P. Shoe 43 Director
Gary B. Hortor 59 Treasurer of AMERCO and Asst. Treasurer -Haul
Gary V. Klinefelter 55 Secretary & General Counsel of AMERCO ar-Haul
Rocky D. Wardrig 45 Assistant Treasurer of AMERC
Mark V. Shoer 52 President of -Haul Phoenix Operatior
John C. Taylo 45 Director and Executive V.P. of-Haul
Ronald C. Fran| 62 Executive V.P. of I-Haul Field Operation
Mark A. Haydukovict 46 President of Oxford Life Insurance Compsz
Carlos Vizcarre 56 President of Amerco Real Estate Comp
Richard M. Amoros 44 President of Republic Western Insurance Comy

* Ages are as of June 30, 2C
Class | (Term Expires at 2003 Meeting)

JOHN P. BROGAN has served as a Director of AMERCO since AugusBI#8] has served as the Chairman of Muench-KreZaedle
Company since 1980. He has been involved with warammpanies including a seven year associatidnAl#mo Rent-A-Car that ended in
1986. He is a member of the American Institute eftiied Public Accountants and served as Chairofahe Board of Trustees, College of
the Holy Cross, from 1988 to 1996.
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JAMES J. GROGAN has served as a Director of AMERCO since AugusB184] is the CEO of Loreto Bay Company. He wasiéeat
of G.W. Holdings, a diversified investment compaingm 2001 to 2002. Throughout 1999 and 2000, Ineeskas President and CEO of
Sterling Financial Corporation, a Toronto Stock BExiege company focused on real estate investmeataidd the Senior Executive Vice
President of UDC Homes, a homebuilder, from 19989@8. He serves on the Board of Directors of sehaaritable organizations.

Class Il (Term Expires at 2004 Meeting)

EDWARD J. SHOEN has served as a Director and Chairman of the BafahdMERCO since 1986, as President since 1987, iseztor
of U-Haul since 1990, and as the President of Utidince 1991. Mr. Shoen has been associated wétictdmpany since 1971.

M. FRANK LYONS was elected to the Board of AMERCO on February0®22o fill the vacancy created by the resignatbRichard
J. Herrera. Mr. Lyons served in various positiofithwthe Company from 1959 until 1991, includingy&ars as the president of Warrington
Manufacturing. From 1991 until his retirement irDRthe was president of Evergreen Realty, Inc.

Class Il (Term Expires at 2005 Meeting)

JOHN M. DODDS has served as a Director of AMERCO since 1987 anecdr of U-Haul since 1990. Mr. Dodds has beesvemted
with the Company since 1963. He served in regitinll operations until 1986 and served in natidiedtl operations until 1994. Mr. Dodds
retired from the Company in 1994,

JAMES P. SHOEN has served as a director of AMERCO since 1986 aaslWice President of AMERCO from 1989 to Novem20®@
Mr. Shoen has been associated with the Compang 8@i£6. He served from 1990 to November 2000 asuEixe Vice President of U-Haul.

Class IV (Term Expires at 2006 Meeting)

WILLIAM E. CARTY has served as a Director of AMERCO since 1987 aral@irector of U-Haul since 1986. He has beencatsal
with the Company since 1946. He has served in uaréxecutive positions in all areas of the Compafry Carty retired from the Company
in 1987.

CHARLES J. BAYER has served as a Director of AMERCO since 1990 ascbleen associated with the Company since 196fakle
served in various executive positions and servederesident of Amerco Real Estate Company untitdtisement in October 2000.

Other Executive Officers

GARY B. HORTON has served as Treasurer of AMERCO since 1982 anmistaat Treasurer of U-Haul since 1990. He has been
associated with the Company since 1969.

GARY V. KLINEFELTER, Secretary of AMERCO since 1988 and Secretary ofdudisince 1990, is licensed as an attorney in Aidgzo
and has served as General Counsel of AMERCO ana&l$ince June 1988. He has been associated witBdmpany since 1978.

ROCKY D. WARDRIP, Assistant Treasurer of AMERCO since 1990, has lassnciated with the Company since 1978 in various
capacities within accounting and treasury operation

MARK V. SHOEN has served as a Director of AMERCO from 1990 urgibruary 1997. He has served as a Director of U-ftamn
1990 until November 1997 and as President, Phd@péetations, from 1994 to present.

JOHN C. TAYLOR, Director of U-Haul since 1990, has been associatduthe Company since 1981. He is presently arckee Vice
President of U-Haul.

RONALD C. FRANK has been associated with the Company since 1958. ptesently Executive Vice President of U-Haudléi
Operations.
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MARK A. HAYDUKOVICH has served as President of Oxford since June F96im 1980 to 1997 he served as Vice President of
Oxford.

CARLOS VIZCARRA has served as President of Amerco Real Estate Gongirace September 2000. He began his previousigrosis
Vice President/ Storage Product Group for U-Haul988.

RICHARD M. AMOROSO has served as President of RepWest since August Blg0was Assistant General Counsel of U-Haul from
1993 until February 2000. He served as Assistaneéx Counsel of ON Semiconductor Corporation fieebruary to August 2000.

Edward J., Mark V., and James P. Shoen athédms. William E. Carty is the uncle of Edwarddd Mark V. Shoen. M. Frank Lyons was
married to William E. Carty’s sister and the auhEdward J. and Mark V. Shoen until her death iB2.%ee Item 1. Business — Recent
Developments for a discussion of AMERCO’s Chaptefiling.

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchangedkdt934 requires the Company’s directors and exesuwfficers, and persons who own more
than 10% of a registered class of the Company’syegacurities, to file reports of ownership ofdamansactions in, the Company’s securities
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Sirelctdrs, executive officers and 10% stockholdeesadso required to furnish the
Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms tfiky

Based solely on a review of the copies ohdiaems received by it, the Company believes thaing) fiscal 2003, all Section 16(a) filing
requirements applicable to its directors, officansl 10% stockholders were complied with.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The following Summary Compensation Table shdve annual compensation paid to (1) the Compaty&f executive officer; and
(2) the four most highly compensated executivecef of the Company, other than the chief executffieer.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation

All Other

Salary Bonus Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year ($)(1) %) $)(2)
Edward J. Shoe 200: 503,70¢ — 334
Chairman of the Board and President of AMER 200z 503,70¢ — 1,311
and L-Haul 2001 503,70¢ — 2,311
Mark V. Shoer 200z 617,30¢ — 334
President of -Haul Phoenix Operatior 200z 623,07 — 1,311
2001 623,07 — 2,311
Gary V. Klinefelter 200z 251,73t 55,00( 334
Secretary and General Counsel of AMERCO a-Haul 200z 222,54° 67,00( 1,311
2001 224,23¢ 60,00( 2,311
Gary B. Hortor 200: 242,30¢ 40,00( 334
Treasurer of AMERCO and Assistant Treasi 200z 233,65! 40,00( 1,311
of U-Haul 2001 234,53¢ 110,00 2,192
Ronald C. Franl 200: 237,99! 15,70¢ 334
Executive V.P. -Haul Field Operation 200z 188,47: — 1,311
2001 188,47 — 2,311

(1) Includes annual fees paid to Directors of AMERC@ &-Haul.

(2) Represents the value of Common Stock allocatedruthdeAMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Sharing antplbyee Stock Ownersr
Plan.
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The annual fee for all services as a direstékMERCO prior to June 4, 2003 was $26,400. Effecon that date, the annual fee was
increased to $50,000. This amount is paid in emqathly installments. Audit Committee members reeain additional $50,000 annual fee.
Executive Finance Committee and Compensation Camenihembers each receive an additional $20,000ehferi Independent Governal
Committee members receive an annual fee of $50,000.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, tleiving table lists, as of June 30, 2003 (1) tkedficial ownership of AMERCO's equity
securities of each director and director nomineAMERCO, of each executive officer named in Item d1d of all directors and executive
officers of AMERCO as a group; (2) the beneficialnership of Common Stock of those persons who ligaly own more than five percent
(5%) of AMERCO’s Common Stock; and (3) the beneficwnership of each director and director nomioleAMERCO, of each executive
officer named in Item 11, and of all directors axecutive officers of the Company as a group, effrcentage of net payments received by
such persons during the 2003 fiscal year in respfeftéet-owner contracts issued by U-Haul.

Shares of Common Percentage of Percentage of Net
Name and Address of Stock Beneficially Common Stock Fleet Owner
Beneficial Owner Owned Class Contract Payments
Edward J. Shoen(: 3,487,64/(2) 16.¢ .001

Chairman of the Boart
President and Directt
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
Mark V. Shoen(1 3,355,47/(2) 16.Z N/A
President, -Haul
Phoenix Operation
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500

James P. Shoen( 2,049,96:(2) 9.¢ N/A
Director
1325 Airmotive Way
Reno, NV 8950:

Sophia M. Shoe 1,388,66i(2) 6.7 N/A

5104 N. 32nd Stret
Phoenix, AZ 8501
Heartland Advisors, Inc 1,143,50(3) 5.k N/A
789 North Water Stret
Milwaukee, WI 5320z

Paul F. Shoe 1,110,44(2) 54 N/A
P.O. Box 52¢
Glenbrook, NV 8941.

The ESOP Trust(Z 2,402,45i 11.7 N/A

2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
John M. Dodd: 0 0 N/A
Director
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500
William E. Carty(1) 0 0 N/A
Director
2727 N. Central Avi
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
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Name and Address of
Beneficial Owner

Shares of Common
Stock Beneficially

Owned

Percentage of
Common Stock
Class

Percentage of Net
Fleet Owner
Contract Payments

Charles J. Baye
Director
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500
John P. Broga
Director and Director Nomine
2727 N. Central Avi
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
James J. Groge
Director and Director Nomine
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500
M. Frank Lyons
Director
2727 N. Central Avi
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
Gary V. Klinefelter
Secretary and General Coun
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
Ronald C. Franl
Executive V.P. Fiel(
Operations of -Haul
2727 N. Central Av
Phoenix, AZ 8500
John C. Taylo
Executive Vice President of-Haul
2727 N. Central Avi
Phoenix, AZ 8500«
Officers and Directors as a group (17 person:

2,18¢

6,00(

10C

30C

3,51

2,59:

1,42

8,917,54

*%

*%

*%

*%

*%

*%

*%

43.2

.001

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

.00z

N/A

.004

** The percentage of the referenced class beradffjoowned is less than one percent.

1)

()

(3)

Edward J. Shoen, Mark V. Shoen, James P. Shoen\dham E. Carty beneficially own 16,300 share2@o), 16,700 shares (0.27¢
31,611 shares (0.51%), and 12,000 shares (0.19%M&RCO’s Series A 8 1/2% Preferred Stock, respetyi The executive officers
and directors as a group beneficially own 77,6dre$ (1.27%) of AMERC’s Series A 8 1/2% Preferred Sto

The complete name of the ESOP Trust is theEESfst Fund for the AMERCO Employee Savings anglegee Stock Ownership
Trust. The ESOP Trustee, which consists of thrd&iduals without a past or present employmentinjsor business relationship with
the Company, is appointed by the Company’s Boafdiafctors. Under the ESOP, each participant (ocharticipant’s beneficiary) in
the ESOP directs the ESOP Trustee with respebetodting of all Common Stock allocated to theipgpant’s account. All shares in
the ESOP Trust not allocated to participants ated/by the ESOP Trustee. As of June 30, 2003,e021#02,456 shares of Common
Stock held by the ESOP Trust, 1,607,509 shares allreated to participants and 794,947 shares regdainallocated. The number of
shares reported as beneficially owned by Edwaghden, Mark V. Shoen, James P. Shoen, Paul F. Shndrsophia M. Shoen inclu
Common Stock held directly by those individuals &@b4, 3,690, 3,648, 779, and 196 shares of ConBtack, respectively, allocated
by the ESOP Trust to those individuals. Those share also included in the number of shares heltié¥SOP Trus

The ownership information set forth hereib@sed on material contained in a Schedule 13Gd dabruary 13, 2003, filed with the
SEC by William Nasgovitz and Heartland Advisors;.IAccording tc
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the Schedule 13G, Heartland Advisors, Inc. hasaatieg and sole dispositive power over 264,200 543,500 shares, respectively.
According to the same Schedule 13G, Mr. Nasgowtzdole voting and sole dispositive power over@@Band 0 shares, respective

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, tlageeno arrangements giving any stockholder th# tacquire the beneficial ownership of
any shares owned by any other stockholder.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactio

AMERCO has related party transactions wittiase major stockholders, directors and officershaf consolidated group as disclosed in
Notes 11 and 19 of Notes to Consolidated Finargtialements and below. Management believes thatahsactions described in the rela
notes and below were consummated on terms equivalémose that would prevail in arm’s-length tractsons.

On December 23, 2002, Mark V. Shoen, Presidéfdaul Phoenix Operations and a significant kihmtder of AMERCO, purchased a
condominium in Phoenix, Arizona from Oxford Lifesiwrance Company. The purchase price was $279,3%8hwvas in excess of the
appraised value.

During fiscal 2003, U-Haul purchased $2.1liomil of printing from Form Builders, Inc. Mark V h®8en, his daughter and Edward J.
Shoens sons are major stockholders of Form Builders, FBaward J. Shoen is Chairman of the Board of Dimscand President of AMERC
and is a significant stockholder of AMERCO. MarkShoen is President, U-Haul Phoenix Operationssadsignificant stockholder of
AMERCO. The Company ceased doing business with FRuitders, Inc. on April 18, 2003.

During fiscal 2003, Sam Shoen, a son of EdwaiShoen, was employed by U-Haul as project gsoypgrvisor. Mr. Shoen was paid an
aggregate salary and bonus of $77,327 for hiseeswuring the fiscal year.

During fiscal 2003, a subsidiary of the Comp&eld various senior and junior unsecured not&A€ Holdings. Substantially all of the
equity interest of SAC Holdings is owned by MarkShoen, a significant shareholder and executivieasfbf AMERCO. The Company does
not have an equity ownership interest in SAC Haidirexcept for minority investments made by RepVdadtOxford in a SAC Holdings-
controlled limited partnership which holds Canadself-storage properties. The senior unsecuredsrit8 AC Holdings that the Company
holds rank equal in right of payment with the naiésertain senior mortgage holders, but juniotti® extent of the collateral securing the
applicable mortgages and junior to the extent efdaish flow waterfalls that favor the senior mageaolders. The Company received cash
interest payments of $26.6 million from SAC Holdsnduring fiscal year 2003. The notes receivablariza outstanding at March 31, 2003
was, in the aggregate, $394.2 million. The largegsiregate amount outstanding during the fiscal gaded March 31, 2003 was
$407.4 million. At March 31, 2003, SAC Holdings’tes and loans payable to third parties totaled $688llion. Interest on the senior and
junior notes accrues at rates ranging from 6.5%38%.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of senior notes of SAC Holdings that tbenany holds at a fixed rate and is paid on
a monthly basis.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of junior notes of SAC Holdings that th@r®any holds at a stated rate of basic
interest. A fixed portion of that basic interespad on a monthly basis. Additional interest igdgan the same payment date based on the
difference between the amount of remaining bas@rést and an amount equal to a specified percemtiile net cash flow before interest
expense generated by the underlying propaitys the sum of the principal and interest due on the senior noté&&AC Holdings relating to
that propertyand a multiple of the fixed portion of basic interestighon that monthly payment date.

The latter amount is referred to as the “démhi-based calculation.”

To the extent that this cash flow-based datmn exceeds the amount of remaining basic istemntingent interest equal to that excess
and the amount of remaining basic interest are paithe same monthly date as the fixed portionagidinterest. To the extent that the cash
flow-based calculation is less than the amoungofaining basic interest, the additional interegapée on the applicable monthly date is
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limited to the amount of that cash flow-based daliton. In such a case, the excess of the remalvaisic interest over the cash flow-based
calculation is deferred and all amounts so defebesat the stated rate of basic interest until nitgtof the junior note.

In addition, subject to certain contingenctée junior notes provide that the holder of th¢ens entitled to receive 90% of the
appreciation realized upon, among other thingsséhe of such property by SAC Holdings. To datesmch properties have been sold by ¢
Holdings.

The Company currently manages the self-seopagperties owned by SAC Holdings pursuant taadsrd form of management
agreement with each SAC Holdings subsidiary, umdech the Company receives a management fee eg@dbtof the gross receipts. The
Company received management fees of $12.3 millioing fiscal year 2003. This management fee is isterst with the fees received for
other properties the Company manages for thirdgzart

RepWest and Oxford currently hold a 46% ladipartnership interest in Securespace LimitechPestiip (“Securespace”), a Nevada
limited partnership. A SAC Holdings subsidiary ss\as the general partner of Securespace and ol¥bdrgerest. Another SAC Holdings
subsidiary owns the remaining 53% limited partnigrghterest in Securespace. Securespace was fdin8AC Holdings to be the owner of
various Canadian self-storage properties.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company leagmts for marketing company offices, vehicle rephops and hitch installation centers in
35 locations owned by subsidiaries of SAC Holdingstal lease payments pursuant to such leases$2etamillion during fiscal year 2003.
The terms of the leases are similar to the termsasfes for other properties owned by unrelatetigsathat are leased to the Company.

At March 31, 2003, subsidiaries of SAC Holgiracted as U-Haul independent dealers. The finhand other terms of the dealership
contracts with subsidiaries of SAC Holdings aressabtially identical to the terms of those with empany’s other independent dealers.
During fiscal 2003, the Company paid subsidiarieSAC Holdings $27.7 million in commissions purstismsuch dealership contracts.

The transactions discussed above involvin@ $ldings have all been eliminated from the Conysnonsolidated financial statements.
Although these transactions have been eliminatefirfancial statement reporting purposes, excepirfimority investments made by
RepWest and Oxford in Securespace, the Compangdtdsad any equity ownership interest in SAC Haldin

SAC Holdings were established in order touaregself-storage properties which are being mathdyethe Company pursuant to
management agreements. The sale of self-storagenies by the Company to SAC Holdings has in t& provided significant cash flows
to the Company and the Company’s outstanding lt@a8AC Holdings entitle the Company to participat&AC Holdings’excess cash flov
(after senior debt service).

Management believes that its sales of selage properties to SAC Holdings over the pastrs¢years provided a unique structure for
the Company to earn rental revenues from the SAIJiRtgs self-storage properties that the Companyagas and participate in SAC
Holdings’ excess cash flows as described above.

Although the Board of Directors of the appiate subsidiary which was a party to each tramsaaetith SAC Holdings approved such
transaction at the time it was completed, the Compuid not seek approval by AMERCO'’s Board of Dimes for such transactions.
However, AMERCOQ's Board of Directors, including timelependent members, was made aware of and relgeévandic updates regarding
such transactions from time to time. All futurelrestate transactions with SAC Holdings that ineallte Company or any of its subsidiaries
will have the prior approval of AMERCOQO'’s Board ofrBctors, even if it is not legally required, indlag a majority of the independent
members of AMERCO'’s Board of Directors.
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In connection with transactions describedvalr@garding parts, tools and printing services,Ithernal Audit Department of U-Haul
periodically tests pricing against competitive dhirarty bids for fairness.

Management believes that the foregoing tretitaas were consummated on terms equivalent teettiea prevail in arm’s-length
transactions.

ltem 14. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure control procedures, whieghd®signed to ensure that material informatiortediéto AMERCO and its subsidiari
and SAC Holdings and their subsidiaries is disaldseour public filings on a regular basis. In respe to recent legislation and proposed
regulations, we reviewed our internal control stuoe and our disclosure controls and proceduréstrial controls are procedures which are
designed with the objective of providing reasonasisurance that 1) records are maintained thagisonable detail accurately reflect the
Company’s transactions and dispositions of itstas2¢ assets are safeguarded against unauthanizegproper use; and 3) transactions are
properly recorded and reported, all to permit threppration of our financial statements in confoymiith generally accepted accounting
principles. Disclosure controls are designed whith dbjective of ensuring that information is acclated and communicated to our
management to allow timely decisions regarding iregudisclosure.

The Company’s management does not expecthtbanternal controls and disclosure controls piitvent all error or fraud. A control
system, no matter how well conceived and operaiga provide only reasonable, not absolute, asserduat the objectives of the control
system are met. Further, the design of a contisiesy must reflect the fact that there are resotmostraints, and the benefits of controls n
be considered relative to the cost. Because ahtierent limitations in all control systems, no lexaion of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instanciaud, if any, within the company have been detkcidese inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making carfcdty, and that breakdowns can occur becausengdlsierror or mistake. Additionally,
controls can be circumvented by the individual aftsome persons, by collusion of two or more peppt by management override of the
control. The design of any system of controls édddased in part upon certain assumptions abolikéiiood of future events, and there can
be no assurance that any design will succeed iiewol its stated goals under all potential futcoaditions. Over time, controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, atdheee of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate. Because of the
inherent limitations in a cost-effective controb®m, misstatements due to error or fraud may cmedmot be detected.

Within 90 days prior to filing this Form 10;kembers of the Company’s management, includiagothmpany’s principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, evaluattite effectiveness of the design and operation@fXbmpany’s disclosure controls and
procedures. Based upon that evaluation, managdmsrtoncluded that there were deficiencies in ésigth and operations of our internal
controls that adversely affected our ability toaek; process, summarize and report financial data.deficiencies were considered to be
material weaknesses under the standards establigtteé American Institute of Certified Public Acogants. As a result of the conclusions
discussed above, under the direction of the Audin@ittee and the Board of Directors, we have tal@nective action to strengthen our
internal controls and procedures to ensure thatnmdition required to be disclosed in the reporas we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, suineshand accurately reported, within the time pisispecified in the SEC’s rules and
forms.

Changes in Controls and Procedures

There were significant changes in the Comjzaimyernal controls and other factors that cougphsicantly affect these internal controls
after the date of our most recent evaluation. Tihelude, but are not limited to, the following:

a. We limited access to the general ledgertifmpability) to specifically identified individual
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b. We require documentation for all journal fross;

c. We have hired a system administrator to dwsu and map all accounting imports and exportegorarious subledgers
maintained throughout the organizati

d. We have initiated a formal cross traininggyam to ensure that any unforeseen loss of peesoloes not adversely affect the
financial reporting and disclosure proces:

e. We have hired additional qualified accountiersonnel; and

f.  We are implementing control procedures tofyeach inter company account is reconciled prioeach month end closing
process

PART IV, ITEM 16, EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCH EDULES
AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) The following documents are filed as mdithis Report:

Page No.
1. Financial Statemen
Report of Independent Accountal 54
Consolidated Balance She— March 31, 2003 and 20( 56
Consolidated Statements of Operations — Years ehtéedh 31,
2003, 2002 and 20c 57
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhol&epsity —
Years ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and z 58
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inconss)(le- Years
ended March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2! 59
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Years ekf#edh 31,
2003, 2002 and 20c 60
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 61
2. Additional Informatior 107
Summary of Earnings of Independent Trailer Fli 107
Notes to Summary of Earnings of Independent Tré&ileets 10¢
3. Financial Statement Schedules required toleé fiy Item 8 and
Paragraph (d) of this Item :
Condensed Financial Information of Regist— Schedule 11C
Supplemental Information (For Property-Casualtyurasce
Underwriters)— Schedule \ 114

All other schedules are omitted as the requiredrinétion is not applicable or the information isgnted in the financial
statements or related notes ther
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(b) No reports on Form 8-K were filed durithg last quarter of the period covered by this repo

Exhibit No. Description
2.1 Order Confirming Plan(1
2.2 Second Amended and Restated De’'s Plan of Reorganization Proposed by Edward J. /&
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of AMERCO:
3.2 Restated B-Laws of AMERCO(3)
3.3 Restated Articles of Incorporation o-Haul International, Inc
3.4 Bylaws of L-Haul International, Inc
4.1 Debt Securities Indenture dated May 1, 199
4.2 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 6614)
4.3 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 7, 1998
4.5 Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Oc&her997(11
4.€ Calculation Agency Agreement(1
4.7 6.65%— AMERCO Series 1997 A Bond Backed Asset Trust dediés “BATs") due October 15, 2000(1
4.8 Indenture dated September 10, 199t
4.9 First Supplemental Indenture dated September 195(99
4.1C Senior Indenture dated April 1, 1999(C
4.11 First Supplemental Indenture dated April 5, 1999
4.17 Second Supplemental Indenture dated February 4,(26%
10.1* AMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Sharing and Empdogéck Ownership Plan(
10.1A* First Amendment to the AMERCO Employee SavingsfiP&haring and Employee Stock Ownership Plan
10.z U-Haul Dealership Contract(!
10.2 Share Repurchase and Registration Rights AgreewitnPaul F. Shoen(t
10.t ESOP Loan Credit Agreement(
10.€ ESOP Loan Agreement(
10.7 Trust Agreement for the AMERCO Employee SavingsfiPSharing and Employee Stock Ownership Plal
10.¢ Amended Indemnification Agreement
10.€ Indemnification Trust Agreement(
10.1C Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation asdibsidiary of AMERCO(1z2
10.10A Addendum to Promissory Note between SAC Holdingp@mation and a subsidiary of AMERCO(z
10.11 Promissory Notes between Four SAC +Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:
10.11A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweem SAC Self-Storage Corporation and Nationwide
Commercial Co. (2C
10.12 Management Agreement between Three SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO!
10.1: Management Agreement between Four SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO
10.1¢ Agreement, dated October 17, 1995, among AMERC®@aed J. Shoen, James P. Shoen, Aubrey K. Johnson,

John M. Dodds and William E. Carty(
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Exhibit No. Description

10.1¢ Directors’ Release, dated October 17, 1995, exddmteEdward J. Shoen, James P. Shoen, Aubrey Ksdoh
John M. Dodds and William E. Carty in favor of AMER(8)

10.1¢€ AMERCO Release, dated October 17, 1995, executekMiyRCO in favor of Edward J. Shoen, James P. Shoen
Aubrey K. Johnson, John M. Dodds and William E.tQ&)

10.21 Management Agreement between Five SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.22 Management Agreement between Eight SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO

10.2: Management Agreement between Nine SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.2¢ Management Agreement between Ten SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.2¢ Management Agreement between-A SAC SeltStorage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO

10.2¢ Management Agreement between-B SAC Sel-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO

10.2% Management Agreement between-C SAC Sel-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO

10.2¢ Management Agreement between Eleven SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.2¢ Management Agreement between Twelve SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.3(C Management Agreement between Thirteen SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO!

10.31 Management Agreement between Fourteen SAGStorage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO!

10.3: Management Agreement between Fifteen SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO!

10.3: Management Agreement between Sixteen SAC-Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO:

10.3¢ Management Agreement between Seventeen SA¢Storage Corporation and a subsidiary of AMERCO

10.3¢ Management Agreement between Eighteen SAC-Storage Corporation and-Haul(20)

10.3¢ Management Agreement between Nineteen SACStorage Limited Partnership an-Haul(20)

10.3% Management Agreement between Twenty SAC-Storage Corporation anc-Haul(20)

10.3¢ Management Agreement between Tw-One SAC SelStorage Corporation anc-Haul(20)

10.3¢ Management Agreement between Tw-Two SAC Sel-Storage Corporation anc-Haul(20)

10.4( Management Agreement between Tw-Three SAC Se-Storage Corporation anc-Haul(20)

10.41 Management Agreement between Tw-Four SAC Self Storage Limited Partnership ar-Haul(20)

10.4: Management Agreement between Tw-Five SAC SelStorage Limited Partnership an-Haul(20)

10.4: Management Agreement between Twi-Six SAC Sel-Storage Limited Partnership an-Haul(20)
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Exhibit No. Description
10.4¢ Management Agreement between Twi-Seven SAC Se-Storage Limited Partnership an-Haul(20)
10.4¢ 3-Year Credit Agreement with certain lenders namedetim(20)
10.4¢ Promissory Note between Four SAC ¢Storage Corporation anc-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.46A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweemn SAC Self-Storage Corporation and U-Haul
International, Inc.(20
10.47 Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation Matlonwide Commercial Co.(2!
10.4¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation idationwide Commercial Co.(2!
10.48A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweédd Solding Corporation and Nationwide Commercial
Co.(20)
10.4¢ Promissory Note between Five SAC ¢Storage Corporation and Nationwide Commercial @).
10.5C Promissory Note between Five SAC ¢Storage Corporation and Nationwide Commercial @).
10.50A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweéenFAC Self-Storage Corporation and Nationwide
Commercial Co.(20
10.51 Promissory Note between Five SAC ¢Storage Corporation and-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.52 Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation @xébrd Life Insurance Company(2
10.52A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweédD ISolding Corporation and Oxford Life Insurance
Company(20
10.5: Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation Matlonwide Commercial Company(2
10.53A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweédd ISolding Corporation and Nationwide Commercial
Co.(20)
10.5¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation d-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.54A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betwédD ISolding Corporation and U-Haul International,
Inc.(20)
10.5¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation d-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.55A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betwed ISolding Corporation and U-Haul International,
Inc.(20)
10.5¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation d-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.56A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betwédD ISolding Corporation and U-Haul International,
Inc.(20)
10.57 Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation idationwide Commercial Co.(2!
10.57A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweédd Solding Corporation and Nationwide Commercial
Co.(20)
10.5¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation Matlonwide Commercial Co.(2!
10.58A Amendment and Addendum to Promissory Note betweéed ISolding Corporation and Nationwide Commercial
Co.(20)
10.5¢ Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation idationwide Commercial Co.(2!
10.6(C Junior Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporeaind Nationwide Commercial Co.(2
10.61 Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation d-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.62 Promissory Note between SAC Holding Corporation d-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.6: Promissory Note between SAC Financial Corporatiweh E-Haul International, Inc.(2C
10.6¢4 1997 AMERCO Support Party Agreem
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Exhibit No. Description
10.6¢ Private Mini Storage Realty, L.P. N-Exoneration Agreemel
10.6¢€ 2003 AMERCO Support Party Agreement for the berddfieMAC Commercial Holding Capital Cor
10.6% Engagement Letter with Alvarez & Marsal, Inc. dakédy 22, 200:
10.6¢ Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. Commitment Letter datkthe 19, 200
10.6¢ State of Arizona Department of Insurance Notic®efermination, Order for Supervision and Conserdr&to
21 Subsidiaries of AMERC(
23.1 Consent of Independent Certified Public Account
23.2 Report of Independent Certified Public Account:
99.1 Certificate of Edward J. Shoen, Chairman of therB@ad President of AMERCO pursuant to Section &6e
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z
99.2 Certificate of Gary B. Horton, Treasurer of AMER@Qrsuant to Section 906 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
99.c Certificate of Edward J. Shoen, Chairman of therB@ad President of U-Haul International, Inc. piarg to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002
99.4 Certificate of Gary B. Horton, Assistant Treaswkl-Haul International, Inc. pursuant to Secti@édf the

Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

1)
(@)
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)

(13)

Indicates compensatory plan arrangement

Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Regt#raStatement on Form S-3, Registration no. 333511

Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Quayt&kport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Dece®bel1992, file no. 1-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Quayt&eport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepeerd®, 1996, file no. 1-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Curri@eport on Form 8-K, dated May 6, 1996, file no.1235.

Incorporated by reference to AMERCO’s AnnuabBrt on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,31 %ie no. 1-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERCO’s AnnuabBrt on Form 10-K for the year ended March 31,01 %i¢e no. 1-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Quayt&eport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepeerd®, 1995, file no. 1-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERCO'’s Curri@eport on Form 8-K dated September 6, 1996, filelabl1255.

Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended March 31, 1999, file n-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended December 31, 1997, filel-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended March 31, 1997, file n-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERC(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998, file -11255.
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(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)

(20)

Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Current Report on Forn-K dated April 5, 1999, file no.-11255.

Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Current Report on Forn-K dated February 4, 2000, file nc-11255.

Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended March 31, 2000, file n-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended March 31, 2001, file n-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMERC(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, fild-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2000, filel-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of AMERCO

We have audited the accompanying consolidad¢ahce sheets of AMERCO and its subsidiaries, Slafding Corporation and its
subsidiaries, and SAC Holding Corporation Il arsdsitibsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) asMdrch 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operations,ggsaim stockholders’ equity, comprehensive incofiess), and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended March 31, 2003s8 kensolidated financial statements are the red#ipibty of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on aditsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with audiiagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAsmerica. Those standards reqt
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reabtnassurance about whether the financial statsnaea free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidenpporting the amounts and disclosures in thedlisladed financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenielhas evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We beltbat our audits provide a reasonable basis floopmion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatsments referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of
AMERCO and its subsidiaries, SAC Holding Corporatand its subsidiaries, and SAC Holding Corporatiand its subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of thegratpons and their cash flows for each of the tlyeses in the period ended March 31,
2003, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying consolidated financial stetgts have been prepared assuming the Compangontihue as a going concern, which
contemplates the continuity of the Company’s openatand realization of its assets and paymernits G&bilities in the ordinary course of
business. As more fully described in Note 1 todbesolidated financial statements, on June 20, 2ARERCO, the parent corporation, filed
a voluntary petition for reorganization under Cleadtl of the United States Bankruptcy Code. Am&eal Estate Company filed a volunt
petition for relief under Chapter 11 on August 2803. The uncertainties inherent in the bankruptogess raise substantial doubt about
AMERCO'’s ability to continue as a going concern. BRICO is currently operating its business as a dabtpossession under the
jurisdiction of the bankruptcy court, and contiriaatof the Company as a going concern is contingpon, among other things, t
confirmation of a plan of reorganization, the Comga ability to comply with all debt covenants undiee existing debtor-in-possession
financing arrangement, and obtaining financing sesiito meet its future obligations. If a reorgatidraplan is not approved, it is possible
some assets of the Company may be liquidated. Mameugt's plans in regards to these matters aredalscribed in Note 1. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustmenteflect future effects on the recoverabilitydatassification of assets or the amount and
classification of liabilities that might result frothe outcome of these uncertainties.

As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanyimgalidated financial statements, the Company hetaterl the consolidated balance sheet as
of March 31, 2002, and the related consolidategkistants of operations, changes in stockholderstyegqeomprehensive income/(loss), and
cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2002 &0d 2

Our audits were conducted for the purpodemfiing an opinion on the consolidated financiaksments taken as a whole. The
consolidating balance sheets, statements of opasasichedules, statements of cash flows scheduidgshe summary of earnings of
independent trailer fleets information includedpamges 107 through 109 of this Form K @e presented for purposes of additional anatyk
the consolidated financial statements rather thgresent the financial position, results of ogerat, and cash flows of the individual
companies or the earnings of the independent fléetsordingly, we do not express an opinion onfthancial position, results of operations,
and cash flows of the individual companies, ortmnédarnings of the
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independent trailer fleets. However, such infororatias been subjected to the auditing procedur@sgedpn the audit of the consolidated
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fastgted in all material respects in relation to¢besolidated financial statements taken as a
whole.

/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Los Angeles, California
August 18, 2003
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31,

Restated

2003 2002
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 66,83« $  41,44¢
Trade receivables, n 263,73 274,87(
Notes and mortgage receivables, 2,86¢ 7,27¢
Inventories, ne 53,27( 65,77¢
Prepaid expenst 21,84¢ 15,27¢
Investments, fixed maturitie 860,60( 988,39
Investments, othe 389,25 240,91.
Deferred policy acquisition costs, r 105,10( 97,91¢
Deferred income taxe 32,24. 6,04t
Other asset 63,60( 58,31¢
1,859,34 1,796,24.
Property, plant and equipment, at ct
Land 157,98 160,89!
Buildings and improvemen 747,85: 725,21
Furniture and equipme 291,38: 288,71:
Rental trucks 1,140,29. 1,071,60.
Rental trailers and other rental equipm 149,70° 162,76¢
SAC Holdings property plant and equipm 757,29:. 727,63(
3,244,511 3,136,82:
Less accumulated depreciati (1,298,19) (1,200,74)
Total property, plant and equipme 1,946,31 1,936,07!
Total asset $ 3,805,66! 3,732,31
| |
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expel $ 387,01 233,87
AMERCO'S notes and loans payal 954,85¢ 1,045,80.
SAC Holding’ notes and loans payable, -recourse to AMERC( 589,01¢ 561,88
Policy benefits and losses, claims and loss exgepegable 836,63. 819,58:
Liabilities from investment contrac 639,99¢ 572,79:
Other policyholder funds and liabilities 30,30¢ 73,591
Deferred incom 40,38 43,25¢
Total liabilities 3,478,21 3,350,79:

Stockholder' equity:

Serial preferred stock, with or without par valG6,000,000 shares

authorizec—

Series A preferred stock, with no par value, 6,000,shares
authorized; 6,100,000 shares issued and outstaadiog

March 31, 2003 and 20(

Series B preferred stock, with no par value, 100 $lfares
authorized; none issued and outstanding as of MaitcR2003 an

2002.

Serial common stock, with or without par value, 080,000 shares

authorizec—

Series A common stock of $0.25 par value, 10,0@Dd@&res



authorized; 5,662,496 shares issued as of MarcBBI3 and 2002.

Common stock of $0.25 par value, 150,000,000 steardwrized;
35,664,367 and 35,919,281 issued as of March 313 a6d 2002

Additional paicin capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income/ (I

Retained earning

Cost of common shares in treasury, net (20,96 %6613
20,850,763 shares as of March 31, 2003 and 208@ectvely)

Unearned employee stock ownership plan sk

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

1,441

9,12z
238,98:
(55,76%)
568,22

(421,379
(13,17)

327,44

$ 3,805,66!

1,441

9,12z
239,49
(40,58()
606,17

(419,970
(14,15)

381,52

$3,732,31

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION

AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue:
Rental revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment and interest incol

Total revenue

Costs and expens
Operating expenst
Commission expenst
Cost of sale:
Benefits and losse
Amortization of deferred acquisition co:
Lease expens
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and expens

Earnings from operatior
Interest expens

Pretax earnings/(los
Income tax benefit/(expens

Net earnings/(loss
Less: Preferred stock dividen

Net earnings/(loss) available to common sharehs
Basic and diluted loss per common sh.

Weighted average common shares outstani
Basic and dilute:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

Years Ended March 31,

Restated

Restated

57

2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

$ 1,560,00! 1,512,25I 1,436,83:
222,88¢ 222,81t 212,24
307,92! 411,17( 328,10¢
41 ,56¢ 47,34 52,29;
2,132,38 2,193,57! 2,029,48!
1,134,46! 1,146,30! 1,076,30°
136,82 140,44: 132,86!
115,11! 122,69 126,50t
281,86¢ 423,70¢ 331,07¢
37,81¢ 40,67 36,23:
179,64 174,66« 175,46(
137,44¢ 102,95 103,80°
2,023,17 2,151,44! 1,982,25i
109,21( 42,13¢ 47,22¢
148,13: 109,46! 111,87¢
(38,929 (67,33) (64,654
13,93¢ 19,89: 22,54
$ (24,980 (47,440 (42,110
(12,969 (12,969 (12,969
$ (37,949 (60,409 (55,079
— — —
$ (1.89) (2.87) (2.56)
— — —
20,743,07 21,022,71 21,486,37
— — —
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended March 31,

Restated Restated
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)
Series A common stock of $0.25 par val
10,000,000 shares authorized; 5,662,496 sharesdiss2003, 2002 and
2001
Beginning and end of ye $ 1,441 1,441 1,441

Common stock of $0.25 par value:
150,000,000 shares authorized; 35,664,367, 35,819¢hd
35,919,281 shares issued in 2003, 2002 and

Beginning and end of ye 9,127 9,127 9,127
Additional paic-in capital:
Beginning of yea 239,49:. 239,40: 239,30°
Issuance of common shares under leveraged empitgele ownershi
plan (509 89 96
End of yeal 238,98 239,49: 239,40:
Accumulated other comprehensive incol

Beginning of yea (40,580) (45,197 (44,879
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 (25,03) (7,259
Fair market value of cash flow hed (6,31¢) 8,94: (1,18¢)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investme (12,649 20,70¢ 8,121

End of yeal (55,76%) (40,580) (45,197

Retained earning:

Beginning of yea 606,17: 666,57 721,64
Net earnings/(loss (24,98¢) (47,440 (42,110
Preferred stock dividend

Series A ($2.13 per share for 2003, 2002 and 2 (12,967 (12,967) (12,967

End of yeal 568,22: 606,17: 666,57

Less treasury stoc

Beginning of yea (419,97() (409,81¢) (400,199
Net increast (1,409 (10,159 (9,617

End of yeal (421,379 (419,97() (409,816

Less Unearned employee stock ownership plan st

Beginning of yea (14,157 (15,179 (16,36¢)
Purchase of shari (72 (46)
Shares allocated to participal 97t 1,09: 1,23¢

End of yeal (13,177 (14,157 (15,179

Total stockholder equity $ 327,44 381,52 446,35«
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCO ME/(LOSS)

Years Ended March 31,

Restated Restated
2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)
Comprehensive income/(los:

Net earnings/(loss $(24,98¢) (47,440 (42,110

Other comprehensive income/(loss) net of
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 (25,03) (7,257%)
Fair market value of cash flow hedc¢ (6,319 8,94: (1,186
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments, (12,649 20,70¢ 8,121
Total comprehensive income/(los $(40,177) (42,829 (42,429
I L] L]

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net earnings/(loss
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for losses on accounts receiv:
Net gain on sale of real and personal prop
Loss on sale of investmer
Changes in policy liabilities and accru
Additions to deferred policy acquisition co
Net change in other operating assets and lials

Net cash provided(used)by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie

Purchases of investmen
Property, plant and equipme
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Other asset investme
Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Proceeds from sales of investmel
Property, plant and equipme
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Changes in other investmel

Net cash (used) by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in shc-term borrowings
Proceeds from note
Debt issuance cos
Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership P

Purchase of shar

Payments on loa
Principal payments on not
Treasury stock acquisitions, r
Preferred stock dividends pe
Investment contract depos
Investment contract withdrawe

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Years Ended March 31,

Restated Restated

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

$ (24,986 (47,440 (42,110
185,83 149,05¢ 148,02t
3,90 5,682 4,311
(10,515) (3,52¢6) (13,307)
9,497 5,92: 6,73¢
(78,314 (6,561) 62,67
(42,669 (39,252 (42,535
31,77¢ (83,519 48,82¢
74,53( (19,637 172,63(
(243,16) (381,48Y) (617,274
(278,35) (257,559 (122,86/)
— (419) (31,779
— (2,077) —
(1,410 (2,259) (5,915
(21,759 4,277 (26)
— (1,351 (22,567
96,88¢ 229,37! 354,24(
364,11 233,71t 152,76
— — 6,19/
2,88t 4,40( 37z
22,04: 3,70 —
18,17: 18,69( 17,22¢
4,481 2,891 —
(36,107) (148,08 (269,624
21,90( (9,277%) 156,07(
349,83t 247,89: 94,07,
(3,010 (390) (694)
— (72) (46)
97t 1,09: 1,23¢
(442,117 (107,18:) (143,59
(1,409) (10,154 (9,617)
(6,48() (12,969 (12,969
165,28 150,43: 86,65
(98,029 (99,84Y) (72,959
(13,040 159,53t 98,17¢
25,38¢ (8,182) 1,18:
41,44¢ 49,62¢ 48,44¢
$ 66,83« 41,44¢ 49,62¢
— — —



The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation (“AMERCQ"), ieetholding company for U-Haul International, IntJ{Haul”), which conducts
moving and storage operations; Amerco Real Estategany (“Real Estate”), which conducts real estaterations; Republic Western
Insurance Company (“RepWest"), which conducts priypend casualty insurance operations; and Oxfdfiel lnsurance Company
(“Oxford”), which conducts life insurance operatiotynless the context otherwise requires, the t&ompany” refers to AMERCO and all
of its legal subsidiaries. All references to adisgear refer to AMERCO's fiscal year ended MardhoB8 that year.

SAC Holding Corporation and SAC Holding Il poration and their consolidated subsidiaries émtively referred to as SAC Holdings)
are majority owned by Mark V. Shoen. Mark V. Shaethe beneficial owner of 16.3% of AMERCO’s comnsgiack and is an executive
officer of U-Haul.

Going Concern Basit

On June 20, 2003 (the “Petition Date”), AMER(@led a voluntary petition for relief under Chaptl1 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the United StatesmiBuptcy Court, District of Nevada (the “Bankruptéourt”) (Case No. 0352103).
AMERCO will continue to manage its properties apeémte its businesses as “debtor-in-possessiorérithd jurisdiction of the Bankruptcy
Court and in accordance with the applicable prowisiof the Bankruptcy Code. In general, as delptgreissession, AMERCO is authorized
under Chapter 11 to continue to operate as an ngdmisiness, but may not engage in transactiorssdeuthe ordinary course of business
without the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Co@pecific information pertaining to the bankrupfityng may be obtained from the website
WWw.amerco.com.

The accompanying consolidated financial statets have been prepared assuming the Compangontihue as a going concern, which
contemplates the continuity of the Company’s openatand realization of its assets and paymernits déabilities in the ordinary course of
business. The uncertainties inherent in the batkyygrocess raise substantial doubt about AMERGDIBty to continue as a going concern.
AMERCO is currently operating its business as aafein-possession under the jurisdiction of thekvaptcy court, and continuation of the
Company as a going concern is contingent upon, grotrer things, the confirmation of a plan of reorigation, the Company’s ability to
comply with all debt covenants under the existiagtdr-in-possession financing arrangement, andrabtafinancing sources to meet its
future obligations. If a reorganization plan is approved, it is possible some assets of the Coynpay be liquidated. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustmenteflect future effects on the recoverabilitydaiassification of assets or the amount and
classification of liabilities that might result frothe outcome of these uncertainties.

The Chapter 11 filing was undertaken to et a restructuring of AMERCO's debt in respoteséquidity issues which developed
during the second half of 2002. In February 20b2,EGompany’s prior independent auditor advisedXbmmpany that its financial statements
would have to be consolidated for reporting purposith those of SAC Holdings. This consolidationgdahe resulting lack of clarity
regarding AMERCOQ's operating results and financ@hdition, contributed substantially and directlyatseries of significant developments
adversely impacting the Company’s access to cafite consolidation of SAC Holdings resulted in atenial decrease in the Company’s
reported net earnings and net worth and a correfpgiincrease in its consolidated leverage rattmnsolidating SAC Holdings also requit
a costly and timeonsuming restatement of prior period results ldhto the untimely filing of quarterly and annwaports with the Securiti
and Exchange Commission.
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

As the situation was occurring, AMERCO wasmpting to negotiate the replacement of its $4@0om credit facility with JP Morgan
Chase. On June 28, 2002, AMERCO entered into acneghit facility with JP Morgan Chase, which redu¢eddERCO'’s line of credit to
$205 million. The terms of the new JP Morgan CHas#ity required that AMERCO raise $150 millionrttugh a capital markets transaction
prior to October 15, 2002. Additionally AMERCO hpdyments for principal and related swap arrangesnemier AMERCOQ's Series 1997-
C Bond Backed Asset Trust (“BBAT”) maturing Octoliér, 2002. In response to these requirements, AMERGdertook a $275 million
bond offering. The bond offering was ultimately uosessful, exemplifying AMERCO'’s significantly rezkd access to the capital markets to
meet its financial needs due to, among other thitigsconfusion and adverse perception resultiog fthe SAC Holdings consolidation. On
October 15, 2002, AMERCO defaulted on the repayroétite BBATS, which led to cross-defaults and ecederation of substantially all of
the other outstanding instruments in the Compadgls structure.

Since that time, AMERCO has continuously riieged with its creditor groups to attempt to reaatonsensual restructuring arrangement
that would provide for the repayment of all creditand the maintenance of AMERCOQO's existing equitywever, while substantial progress
has been made in negotiations with certain keyittedonstituencies, the complexity of AMERCOQO's itapstructure and the diversity of
interests of the creditor groups has made an dgjeitand consensual restructuring, outside of fom@alganization proceedings, exceedingly
difficult. Accordingly, AMERCO filed its Chapter 1froceeding to provide the structure and framewofinalize and implement a
restructuring of all of its debt.

We have secured from Wells Fargo FoothilB&@Gmillion debtor-in-possession financing faciltiie “DIP Facility”), and a commitment
for a $650 million bankruptcy emergence facilitheBe financing arrangements provide the basic fatismdupon which AMERCO plans to
build its reorganization plan. On August 13, 20881erco Real Estate Company (“Real Estate”) wasl filto Chapter 11 proceedings in
order to facilitate granting security to the lerglgroup in real estate assets. Real Estate adenimiali of the Company’s real property and
owns approximately 90 percent of the Company’s estdte assets.

The exit or emergence financing facility Wil used to fund cash payments to AMERCO'’s cregliteith the balance of the creditor
claims being paid through the issuance of newruetitred debt securities at market interest réeswithstanding AMERCO'’s default on the
BBATS in October 2002, and the resulting cross-aié$aunder AMERCO'’s other debt facilities, untietPetition Date AMERCO has
remained current in interest payments on all oflé@bt obligations, in many cases at default inteass.

In order to exit Chapter 11 successfully, ARIEO will need to propose, and obtain confirmatigrtiee Bankruptcy Court of, a plan of
reorganization that satisfies the requirementf@fBankruptcy Code. A plan of reorganization walsolve, among other things,
AMERCO'’s pre-petition obligations and set forth tle@ised capital structure. The timing of filingpkan of reorganization by AMERCO wiill
depend on the timing and outcome of humerous athgoing matters in the Chapter 11 case. AlthougrER@O expects to file a “full-
value” plan of reorganization that provides creditawith a combination of cash and new debt seegritiqual to the full amount of their
allowed claims as well as AMERCOQ'’s emergence frankouptcy as a going concern, there can be noasstiat this time that a plan of
reorganization will be confirmed by the Bankrup@gurt or that any such plan will be implementedcessfully.

Under Section 362 of the Bankruptcy Code filivey of a bankruptcy petition automatically ssagnost actions against a debtor, including
most actions to collect pre-petition indebtednas® @xercise control over the property of the debtestate. Absent an order of the
Bankruptcy Court, substantially all pre-petitioatilities are subject to settlement under the pfareorganization.
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Under Section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code, AMERCQ mssume, assume and assign, or reject certaint@xgcontracts and unexpir
leases, subject to the approval of the BankruptmyrCand certain other conditions. In general,atij@ of an unexpired lease or executory
contract is treated as a poetition breach of the lease or contract in quastiubject to certain exceptions, this rejectidieves AMERCO o
performing its future obligations under that leaseontract but entitles the lessor or contracinterparty to a pre-petition general unsecured
claim for damages caused by the deemed breach.

Counterparties to these rejected contracksasies may file proofs of claim against AMERCGstage for such damages. Generally, the
assumption of an executory contract or unexpireddeequires a debtor to cure most existing defaultler such executory contract or
unexpired lease.

The United States Trustee for the DistricNefvada (the “U.S. Trustee”) has appointed an iafftcommittee of unsecured creditors (the
“Creditors’ Committee”) and an Equity Committee.eT@reditors’ Committee and Equity Committee andrthespective legal representatives
have a right to be heard on certain matters thaiechefore the Bankruptcy Court. There can be narasse that the Creditors’ Committee
and Equity Committee will support AMERCO'’s positioar AMERCO'’s ultimate plan of reorganization, opeeposed, and disagreements
between AMERCO and the Creditors’ Committee andifgdCommittee could protract the Chapter 11 casalcnegatively impact
AMERCO'’s ability to operate during the Chapter Bke, and could prevent AMERCO'’s emergence from @ndgd. At this time, it is not
possible to predict accurately the effect of thethr 11 reorganization process on the Companymbss or when AMERCO may emerge
from Chapter 11. The Company'’s future results ddpenthe timely and successful confirmation andlémgntation of a plan of
reorganization. The rights and claims of varioweditors and security holders will be determinedh®yplan as well. Although AMERCO
expects to file and consummate a “full value” ptdmeorganization that provides creditors with anbination of cash and new debt securities
equal to the full amount of their allowed claim&laiso preserves the value of AMERCO’s common aeteped stock, no assurance can be
given as to what values, if any, will be ascribedhe bankruptcy proceedings to each of these itoasties. Accordingly, the Company ur
that appropriate caution be exercised with resgeekisting and future investments in any of suetusities and claims.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been madbeé®002 and 2001 financial statements to confortheé®003 presentation.

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements inclildeaccounts of AMERCO and its wholly-owned sulasids and SAC Holdings and their
subsidiaries. All material intercompany accounts tansactions have been eliminated in consolidatixcept for minority investments me
by RepWest and Oxford in a SAC Holdings-controliedted partnership, which holds Canadian self-at@r properties, the Company has not
had any equity ownership interest in SAC Holdings.

RepWest, which consists of Republic Westasutance Company and its wholly-owned subsidiarstiNamerican Fire & Casualty
Insurance Company (“NAFCIC"), and Oxford, which sats of Oxford Life Insurance company and its wholwned subsidiaries North
American Insurance Company (“NAI") and Christiamélity Life Insurance Company (“CFLIC"), have bemmsolidated on the basis of
calendar years ended December 31. Accordinglyedtences to the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 camdsp AMERCO's fiscal years 2003,
2002, and 2001, respectively.
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The operating results and financial positbMERCOQO’s consolidated insurance operations a&temnined as of December 31 of each
year. There were no effects related to interveewents between January 1 and March 31 of 2003,, 20001 that would materially affe
the consolidated financial position or results pétions for the financial statements presentegime

See Note 22 for additional information regagdhe insurance subsidiaries and for financitdrimation regarding the industry segments.

Description of Operating Segme!

U-Haul moving and seHtorage operations consist of the rental of traid trailers, sales of moving supplies, salesailetr hitches, sale
of propane, and the rental of self-storage spax#setdo-it-yourself mover. Operations are condiicteder the registered tradename U-i&aul
throughout the United States and Canada.

SAC moving and self-storage operations condithe rental of self-storage spaces, sales aofimgossupplies, sales of trailer hitches, and
sales of propane. In addition, SAC functions agxdependent dealer and earns commissions frometitalrof U-Haul trucks and trailers.
Operations are conducted under the registeredrteane U-Haul® throughout the United States and Canad

Real Estate owns approximately 90% of the @amy’s real estate assets, includingddul Center and Storage locations. The remainc
the real estate assets are owned by various U-¢tuitiles. Real Estate is responsible for oversepingerty acquisitions, dispositions and
managing environmental risks of the properties.

RepWest originates and reinsures propertycasdalty insurance products for various markeigipants, including independent third
parties, U-Haul's customers, and the Company.

Oxford originates and reinsures annuitiesditdife and disability, life insurance, and supplental health products. Oxford also
administers the self-insured employee health amtbtiplans for the Company.

Foreign Currency

The consolidated financial statements incligeaccounts of U-Haul Co. (Canada) Ltd., a suésicdf U-Haul. The assets and liabilities,
denominated in foreign currency, are translated thtS. dollars at the exchange rate as of the balaheet date. Revenue and expense
amounts are translated at average monthly exchae® The related translation gains or lossegaheded in the Consolidated Statement
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and ConsolidatedeBtients of Comprehensive Income/(Loss).

Accounting Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with generally accepted accounting prithegprequires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints in the financial statements and accompgmaites. Actual results could differ fri
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalent
The Company and SAC Holdings consider ligoigstments with an original maturity of three munor less to be cash equivalents.
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Revenue Recognition Policie

Rental revenue is recognized over the pdriocks and equipment are rented. Sales are recatjaizthe time title passes and the customel
accepts delivery. Premium revenues are recognizedtbe policy periods. Interest and investmentine are recognized as earned.

Receivable:

Accounts receivable include trade accourtfcustomers and dealers. RepWest and Oxford aduesinclude premiums and agents’
balances due, net of commissions payable and asmdustfrom ceding reinsurers. Accounts receivatdeeduced by amounts considered by
management to be uncollectible based on histociml#dction loss experience and a review of theantrstatus of existing receivables.

Notes and mortgage receivables include addnterest and are reduced by discounts and amoanssdered by management to be
uncollectible.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cagnharket. Cost is primarily determined using th&Ql(last-in, first-out) method.

Investments

Fixed maturities consist of bonds and redd@enpreferred stocks. Fair values for investmergsbased on quoted market prices, dealer
guotes or discounted cash flows. Fixed maturitresctassified as follows:

* Held-to-maturity — recorded at cost adjusted fer dimortization of premiums or accretion of disceunt

* Available-for-sale — recorded at fair value withrealized gains or losses reported on a net basiri€onsolidated Statements of
Changes in Stockholders’ Equity unless such chaagedeemed to be other than temporary. Gainscmsed on the sale of these
securities are reported as a component of revamieg the specific identification methc

Mortgage loans & notes on real estate — phaithbalances, net of allowance for possible loaseisany unamortized premium or
discount.

Real estate — at cost less accumulated deficet

Policy loans — at their unpaid balance.

Investment income is recognized as follows:

* Interest on bonds and mortgage loans & notes —grézed when earned.

« Dividends on common and redeemable preferred steckscognized on ex-dividend dates.

« Realized gains and losses on the sale of invesgmentecognized at the trade date and includedviermees using the specific
identification method

* Short-term investments consist of other securg@®eduled to mature within one year of their adjaisdate. See Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statemer
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Cosi
Commissions and other costs, which vary waitt are primarily related to the production of Hmwginess have been deferred.
For Oxford, costs are amortized in relatiomevenue such that costs are realized as a copsentage of revenue.

For RepWest, costs are amortized over ttegaglcontract period which generally do not exaaealyear.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are carriezbat and are depreciated on the straight-line anelerated methods over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Building and non-rental eq@iptihave estimated lives ranging from three tg-fifte years, while rental equipment have
estimated lives ranging from two to twenty yeargitienance is charged to operating expenses asedcwhile renewals and betterments
are capitalized. Major overhaul costs are amortest the estimated period benefited. Gains angkbsn dispositions are netted against
depreciation expense when realized. Interest @osisred as part of the initial construction ofetssare capitalized. Interest of $732 thous
$2.0 million and $2.5 million was capitalized dgifiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During fiscal year 2002, based on an in-depénket analysis, U-Haul decreased the estimaledgavalue and increased the useful lives
of certain rental trucks. The effect of the chargguced net losses for fiscal year 2002 by $3.1ani($0.15 per share) net of taxes. The in-
house analysis of sales of trucks was completeth&fiscal years ending March 31, 1996 throughdii&@1, 2001. The study compared the
truck model, size, age and average residual vdlueits sold for each fiscal year indicated. Thalgsis revealed that average residual values
(as computed) when compared to sales prices wenefhective of the values that the Company wagirgeg upon disposition. Based on the
analysis, the estimated residual values were dsedei® approximately 25% of historic cost. In addit this analysis revealed that our
estimates of useful lives were not reflective & #tonomic lives of our trucks, which ultimatelyrevdeing utilized by the Company for
longer periods of time. Thus the useful lives fertain of our trucks were increased by approxinya@efears. The adjustment reflects
management’s best estimate, based on informatiaite@le, of the estimated salvage value and usigg of these rental trucks.

The Company reviews property, plant and egeipt for impairment whenever events or changegr@umstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recabie through expected undiscounted future opeyatash flows.

The carrying value of the Company'’s real testhat is no longer necessary for use in its atimperations, and available for sale/lease, at
March 31, 2003 and 2002, was approximately $13I0omiand $18.4 million respectively. Such propestavailable for sale are carried at
cost, less accumulated depreciation, which istlems fair market value and is included in investtagather.

Environmental Costs

Liabilities for future remediation costs aeeorded when environmental assessments and rdreéfdiss, if applicable, are probable and
the costs can be reasonably estimated. The liakslibased on the Company’s best estimate of uodiged future costs. Certain recoverable
environmental costs related to the removal of ugidemd storage tanks or related contamination apéalized and depreciated over the
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estimated useful lives of the properties. The &dipiéd costs improve the safety or efficiency & phoperty as compared to when the prog.
was originally acquired or are incurred in prepgtine property for sale.

Financial Instruments

Historically AMERCO has entered into interegte swap agreements to reduce its floating isteste exposure and does not use the
agreements for trading purposes. Although the @patties to the agreements expose AMERCO to deditfor the interest rate differential
in the event of nonperformance, it does not andiieimonperformance by the counterparties.

For the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002806d, AMERCO recognized $0 thousand, $16 thousaddba6 thousand as interest
income, respectively, representing the ineffectagmnof the cash flow hedging activity.

The Company has mortgage receivables, whotenpially expose the Company to credit risk. Thetfplio of notes is principally
collateralized by mini-warehouse storage facilitesl other residential and commercial propertié® Tompany has not experienced losses
related to the notes from individual notes or goapnotes in any particular industry or geogran&a. The estimated fair values were
determined using the discounted cash flow methsisiguinterest rates currently offered for similaaus to borrowers with similar credit
ratings.

Fair Value Summary of Note and Mortgage Receivab

Note and mortgage receivables are carri€d4tl million and $14.6 million in 2003 and 2004y fvalue of these receivables
approximates carrying value.

Other financial instruments that are subfedair value disclosure requirements are carnmethe financial statements at amounts that
approximate fair value, unless elsewhere discloSed.below, as well as Notes 5 and 6 of Notes ts@mated Financial Statements.

The Company’s financial instruments thatexposed to concentrations of credit risk consisharily of temporary cash investments,
trade receivables and notes receivable. The Complangs its temporary cash investments with fir@riostitutions and limits the amount of
credit exposure to any one financial institutioenCentrations of credit risk with respect to tragleeivables are limited due to the large
number of customers and their dispersion acrosy midferent industries and geographic areas.

Policy Benefits and Losses, Claims and Loss ExparBayable

Liabilities for policy benefits payable omdiitional life and certain annuity policies areaddished in amounts adequate to meet estimated
future obligations on policies in force. These lliiles are computed using mortality and withdrawasumptions, which are based upon
recognized actuarial tables and contain marginadeerse deviation. At December 31, 2002, inteasstimptions used to compute policy
benefits payable range from 2.5% to 9.25%.

The liability for annuity contracts, whicheasiccounted for as investment contract depositsists of contract account balances that
accrue to the benefit of the policyholders, exatgdsurrender charges. Carrying value of investroentract deposits were $640.0 million ¢
$572.8 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, retspsly.

Liabilities for health and disability and ettpolicy claims and benefits payable represeimeasts of payments to be made on insurance
claims for reported losses and estimates of lassesred but not yet reported. These estimatebased on past claims experience and
consider current claim trends.
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RepWest's liability for reported and unrepartosses is based on RepWest's historical andgsindaverages. The liability for unpaid loss
adjustment expenses is based on historical ratitms® adjustment expenses paid to losses paid.uAitagecoverable from reinsurers on
unpaid losses are estimated in a manner consistidmthe claim liability associated with the reimsd policy. Adjustments to the liability for
unpaid losses and loss expenses as well as anreanigerable from reinsurers on unpaid losses argel or credited to expense in periods
in which they are made.

Income Taxes

AMERCO files a consolidated federal incomergturn with its subsidiaries, except for NAI aBELIC, which file on a stand alone basis.
SAC Holdings files a consolidated return with itdsidiaries. SAC Holdings Il files a consolidateturn with its subsidiaries. For tax
purposes AMERCO and SAC returns are not consolidatth one another. The provision for income tavefkects deferred income taxes
resulting from changes in temporary differencesvben the tax basis of assets and liabilities aaul teported amounts in the financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109.

Advertising Cost:

The Company expenses advertising costs as incukthartising expense of $39.9 million, $37.8 mifliand $37.9 million was chargec
operations for fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 20Gheetively.

New Accounting Standard

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards M3, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligatioresjuires recognition of the fair value
of liabilities associated with the retirement ofidplived assets when a legal obligation to incwhseosts arises as a result of the acquisition,
construction, development and/or the normal opemadf a longlived asset. Upon recognition of the liability, @esponding asset is recort
at present value and accreted over the life ohtfset and depreciated over the remaining life@fahg-lived asset. SFAS 143 defines a legal
obligation as one that a party is required to settl a result of an existing or enacted law, gatrtdinance, or written or oral contract or by
legal construction of a contract under the doctahpromissory estoppel. SFAS 143 is effectivefiatal years beginning after June 15, 2002.
We have adopted this statement effective Aprild02and we do not expect it to have a materiateffia the Company’s financial position,
results of operation or cash flows.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No, Z&tounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lehiyed Assets. SFAS 144 requires
that longtived assets be measured at the lower of carryimguat or fair value less cost to sell, whether regabin continuing operations or
discontinued operations. Therefore, discontinuegtatpons will no longer be measured at net realézaalue or include amounts for operat
losses that have not yet occurred. SFAS 144 isteféefor financial statements issued for fiscadngebeginning after December 15, 2001 and,
generally, are to be applied prospectively. We red@pted this statement effective April 1, 2002 amlid not affect our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Rg&scission of No. 4, (Reporting Gains and Lossas fExtinguishment of Debt), No. 44
(Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carrigmo. 64, (Extinguishments of Debt Made to SatiSfyking-Fund Requirements),
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 (Accountinglfeases) and Technical Corrections. This statenlgninates the current requirement
that gains and losses on debt extinguishment neusldssified as extraordinary items in the incotatesent. Instead, such gains and losses
will be classified as extraordinary items onlyhiey are deemed to be unusual and infrequent, ordaoce with the current GAAP criteria for
extraordinary classification. In addition,
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SFAS 145 eliminates an inconsistency in lease adoayby requiring that modification of capital = that result in reclassification as
operating leases be accounted for consistent wl&ilsaseback accounting rules. The statementals@ins other nonsubstantive corrections
to authoritative accounting literature. The changésted to debt extinguishment will be effectiee fiscal years beginning after May 15,
2002, and the changes related to lease accouniiingeveffective for transactions occurring afteai15, 2002. We have to reclassify debt
extinguishments expense net of taxes, previougigrted as extraordinary to interest expense. Tleetefvas to increase interest expense by
$3.3 million and $0.5 million and the benefit facome taxes by $1.2 million and $0.2 million foe fiiscal years 2001 and 2000 respectively.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruteemd Hedging Activities.” This
Statement amends and clarifies the accountingdvative instruments, including certain derivatimstruments embedded in other contracts
and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133.drtipular, SFAS No. 149 (1) clarifies under whatuamstances a contract with an initial
investment meets the characteristic of a derivaiédiscussed in SFAS No. 133, (2) clarifies whderivative contains a financing
component, (3) amends the definition of an undedyderivative to conform it to the language useBASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guaemticluding Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedné&tioers, and (4) amends certain
other existing pronouncements. SFAS No. 149 is gdigeeffective for contracts entered into or maetif after June 30, 2003. The Company
does not believe the adoption of SFAS No. 149 dlle a material impact on the Company'’s finanaisitpon, results of operations or cash
flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150z¢dunting for Certain Financial Instruments witha@dcteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.” This Statement establishes standardsléssifying and measuring as liabilities certairafigial instruments that embody obligations
of the issuer and have characteristics of botfiliis and equity. SFAS No. 150 is effective a theginning of the first interim period
beginning after June 15, 2003; including all fin@hinstruments created or modified after May 3102 SFAS No. 150 currently has no
impact on the Company.

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statementradriial Accounting Standards No. 146, (SFAS 14&)otnting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities, which addresses acamgnfor restructuring and similar costs. SFAS sdPersedes previous accounting
guidance, principally Emerging Issues Task Ford&KlEIssue No. 94-3. SFAS 146 requires that thility for costs associated with an exit
or disposal activity be recognized when the ligpil incurred. Under EITF No. 93; a liability for an exit cost was recognizedta tate of .
company’s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 aktablishes that the liability should initially beasured and recorded at fair value.
Accordingly, SFAS 146 may affect the timing of rgo@ing future restructuring costs as well as ttn@ant recognized. The provisions of 1
Statement are effective for exit or disposal atiigithat are initiated after December 31, 2002.Hake adopted this statement effective
January 1, 2003, and it did not effect our consaéd financial position or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Imgtation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting for Diselos Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness b@t, an interpretation of FASB Statements No75a8d 107 and rescission of FASB
Interpretation No. 34, Disclosure of Indirect Guaess of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45”). FINcirifies the requirements for a
guarantors accounting for and disclosure of certain guaemigsued and outstanding. It also requires a gtaart recognize, at the incept
of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value bétobligation undertaken in issuing the guararféés Interpretation also incorporates without
reconsideration the guidance in FASB Interpretahlon 34, which is being superseded. The Compargrettnto a support party agreement
for
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$70 million of indebtedness of an affiliate. Undee terms of FIN 45, the Company recognized alltgbn the amount of $70 million, which
management estimated to be the fair value of tiaeaguee.

In December 2002, the FASB issued StatemfeRin@ncial Accounting Standards No. 148, “Accongtfor Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure” (“FAS ")4&hich amends Statement of Financial Accountiigndards No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation” (“FAS 123"). FAS bt8vides alternative methods of transition for &umtary change to the fair value
based method of accounting for stock-based emplogemensation. In addition, FAS 148 amends thdalisce requirement of FAS 123 to
require more prominent and more frequent disclasimdinancial statements of the effects of stoakddl compensation. The transition
guidance and annual disclosure provisions of FASdlr4 effective for fiscal years ending after Debemnil5, 2002. The interim disclosure
provisions are effective for financial reports @ining condensed financial statements for interariquls beginning after December 15, 2002.
The Company does not have any stock based compenp&ns and the adoption of FAS 148 is not exgbtd have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet or resultp@fations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Inttgiron No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Intergstities, an interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletins (“ARB”) No. 51, Consolidated &ficial Statements (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 applies imnagdly to variable interest entities
created after January 31, 2003, and in the fitetiim period beginning after June 15, 2003 forafale interest entities created prior to
January 31, 2003. The interpretation explains hmidentify variable interest entities and how ateegprise assesses its interests in a variable
interest entity to decide whether to consolidas #ntity. The interpretation requires existing emenlidated variable interest entities to be
consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if #rgities do not effectively disperse risks amondies involved. Variable interest entities that
effectively disperse risks will not be consolidatedess a single party holds an interest or contioinaf interests that effectively recombines
risks that were previously dispersed. The Compasydetermined that Private Mini is a Variable lestEntity and will need to be
consolidated beginning in July 2003. The impadhaf on the consolidated financial statements iat¢cease assets by approximately
$320.0 million and increase debt by approximat@980 million. AMERCO also determined that SAC dfieg as a Variable Interest Entity
and will continue to be consolidated.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are comaeed on the weighted average number of sharesioditsg for the year and quarterly
periods, excluding shares of the employee stockeostnip plan that have not been committed to baseld. Preferred dividends include
undeclared (i.e. contractual) or unpaid dividend8MERCO. Net income is reduced for preferred dends for the purpose of the
calculation. For the purpose of calculating earsipgr share, the Company aggregates both the $e@iesnmon and the Common Stock.

Comprehensive Income/(Los

Comprehensive income/(loss) consists of medme, foreign currency translation adjustmentealized gains and losses on investments
and fair market value of cash flow hedges, nehefrelated tax effects.

2. Restatements and Reclassifications

The Company has identified various adjustsiémits previously issued consolidated finandialesnents. The following table highlights
the effects of the restatement adjustments onringqusly reported
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consolidated statement of operations for fiscal22&dd 2001, and 2001 beginning retained earninijsiofes and schedules have been
restated as appropriate.

Net Net
Income/(Loss) Income/(Loss) April 1, 2000
Fiscal 2002 Fiscal 2001 Retained Earnings

(In thousands)

As previously reporte $ 2,721 1,012 738,80!

Adjustments to net income/(los:
Insurance reserves( (55,57() (56,255 (13,320
Investments in Private Mini(t (9,729 (8,399 (8,132
Capitalized G&A costs(c (900 — (31,749
Accrued property taxes( — — (3,600
Fixed assets(e 3,84¢ (4,829 —
Cash surrender valuel (3,949 63€ 3,307
Impairment of real estate investments (2,366 — —
Other(h) (860) 80C (5,15¢)
Pretax adjustmen (69,529 (68,04() (58,65()
Income tax benefit(i 19,36: 24,91¢ 41,49:
As restated $(47,44() (42,110 721,64
| I |

2002 net income, 2001 net income, and begipretained earnings were adjusted by $50.2 mjl$a&3.1 million, and $17.2 million,
respectively, after tax as a result of the follogviestatement adjustments:

(a) To accrue for fully-developed actuarial estiesabf the Company’s insurance reserves.

(b) To recognize equity-method losses relatindiéo@ompany’s investments in Private Mini StoragaliyeL.P.
(c) To write-down unamortized capitalized G&A costs

(d) To adjust property tax under-accruals.

(e) To correct net depreciation expense and gaiddasses on the disposition of fixed assets.

(f) To record changes in the cash surrender vdllieeansurance in the proper periods.

(9) To record impairment of real estate in the praperiod.

(h) Other miscellaneous adjustments.

(i) To record the income tax effects of the restapt adjustments.
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3. Trade Receivables, Notes and Mortgage Recailes, Net

A summary of trade receivables follows:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Trade accounts receivak $ 14,08: 24,77¢
Premiums and ager balance: 40,40: 54,63(
Reinsurance recoverak 165,46 155,17¢
Accrued investment incon 10,40¢ 11,827
Independent dealer receival 1,34¢ 1,71¢
Other receivable 34,31¢ 29,36¢

266,02( 277,49t
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (2,289 (2,629

$263,73' 274,87(

A small portion of the independent dealeereables set forth in the table above originatemftransactions with related parties. See also
Note 19.

A summary of notes and mortgage receivalubgws:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Notes, mortgage receivables and other, net of disk $2,93¢ 7,34¢
Less allowance for doubtful accoul (70 (70
$2,86¢ 7,27¢

| |

4. Inventories, Net

A summary of inventory components follows:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Truck and trailer parts and accesso $33,25¢ 43,07t
Hitches and towing componer 10,38¢ 12,03
Moving supplies and promotional iter 9,62 10,66¢

$53,27( 65,77¢

Inventories are stated net of reserve fooldssence of $4.9 million and $2.7 million at Magh 2003 and 2002, respectively.

LIFO inventories, which represent approxinha89% and 96% of total inventories at March 3102@nd 2002, respectively, would have
been $4.9 million greater at March 31, 2003 and22@@he consolidated group had used the FIFGQ-in, first-out) method
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5. Investments, Fixed Maturities & Other

A comparison of amortized cost to estimatedkmat value for fixed maturities is as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 200:

CONSOLIDATED HELEC-TO-MATURITY

U.S. treasury securities and government obligat
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie
Corporate securitie

Mortgagebacked securitie

Redeemable preferred stoc

DECEMBER 31, 200:

CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

U.S. treasury securities and government obligat
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie
Obligations of states and political subdivisic
Corporate securitie

Mortgagebacked securitie

Redeemable preferred stoc

Redeemable common stoc

Total

DECEMBER 31, 200:

CONSOLIDATED HELLC-TO-MATURITY

U.S. treasury securities and government obligat
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie
Corporate securitie

Mortgage-backed securitie

Redeemable preferred stoc

73

Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

(In thousands)

$ 50C 17C — 67C
15,68: 58¢ — 16,26¢

16,18: 758 — 16,93¢

$ 31,697 3,40% (49 35,05:
10,18: 201 (13 10,37(

3,97¢ 232 4,20¢

574,33: 25,99¢ (25,397) 574,93t
95,89: 2,20¢ (4,316 93,78:

126,30: 1,55¢ (2,962 124,89°
1,101 304 (23%) 1,17C

843,48. 33,90: (32,967 844,41°
$859,66! 34,65 (32,967 861,35:
— — —— —
$ 3,28¢ 21¢ — 3,50¢
15,15¢ 554 (35 15,67¢

42,62¢ 1,21¢ (97 43,74

20,64¢ 70E (1) 21,35:

112,35( 502 (2,122 110,73
194,06° 3,19¢ (2,255 195,01
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Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value
(In thousands)
DECEMBER 31, 200:
CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
U.S. treasury securities and government obligat $ 40,65¢ 2,22 (128) 42,751
U.S. government agency mortg-backed securitie 20,00: 843 3 20,841
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 10,03t 344 2 10,37
Corporate securitie 651,12! 24,63 (14,797 660,96¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 26,52( 2,12¢ (865) 27,78
Redeemable preferred stoc 29,97¢ 314 (422 29,86¢
Redeemable common stoc 2,43¢ — (692) 1,742
780,74° 30,481 (16,909 794,33(
Total $974,81: 33,68¢ (19,159 989,34:
| | I |

Fixed maturities estimated market valuesbased on publicly quoted market prices at the addseding on December 31, 2002 or

December 31, 2001, as appropriate.

The amortized cost and estimated market vaflwebt securities by contractual maturity arevaindelow. Expected maturities will differ

from contractual maturities as borrowers may haeeright to call or prepay obligations with or waitlt call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2002

December 31, 2001

Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Market Value Cost Market Value
(In thousands)
CONSOLIDATED HELE-TO-MATURITY

Due in one year or le: $ 19 20 20,65: 21,15¢
Due after one year through five ye 204 252 19,457 20,15¢
Due after five years through ten ye 20t 287 1,35¢ 1,461
After ten years 72 111 4,44, 4,481
50C 67C 45,91« 47,25t
Mortgage-backed securitie 15,68 16,26¢ 35,80« 37,02¢
Redeemable preferred stc — — 112,35( 110,73(
$ 16,18 16,93¢ 194,06 195,01:

CONSOLIDATED AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
Due in one year or le: $ 53,24( 53,98¢ 52,29( 53,30¢
Due after one year through five ye 210,76! 215,99¢ 259,65¢ 266,00:
Due after five years through ten ye 181,42! 176,64! 251,41: 254,00:
After ten year: 164,57! 167,57: 138,45¢ 140,78:
610,00! 614,19 701,81t 714,09t
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December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Market Value Cost Market Value

(In thousands)

Mortgagebacked securitie 106,07! 104,15: 46,52 48,624
Redeemable preferred stc 126,30: 124,89° 29,97¢ 29,86¢
Redeemable common sto 1,101 1,17C 2,43¢ 1,742
843,48 844,41 780,74 794,33(

Total $859,66! 861,35! 974,81« 989,34:
| | | |

Proceeds from sales of investments in dehirgées for the years ended December 31, 20021 20@ 2000 were $248.0 million,
$175.9 million and $52.8 million respectively. Gsagains of $6.0 million, $3.8 million and $733 tkand and gross losses of $2.4 million,
$256 thousand and $646 thousand were realizedose tales for the years ended December 31, 2002,&@ 2000, respectively. The
Company realized a writdewn of investments due to other than temporarjirecapproximating $9.8 million, $6.7 million, a$6.5 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 an@, 288pectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001 fixed matugitnelude bonds with an amortized cost of $11.Tioniland $18.5 million respectively, on
deposit with insurance regulatory authorities teetrstatutory requirements.

Investments, other consists of the following:

March 31,
2003 2002
(In thousands)
Shor-term investment $111,37 65,93
Mortgage loan: 67,51 85,45¢
Real estat 75,01« 74,82¢
Policy loans 5,78¢ 6,20t
Receivable from Private Mit 125,00( —
Other 4,564 8,48¢

$389,25: 240,91
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A summary of net investment and interest inedollows:

Year Ended
March 31,

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

Fixed maturities $ 60,85t 67,94¢ 57,37¢
Real estat 2,43¢ (1,519 12
Policy loans 36¢ 1,092 25C
Mortgage loan: 8,001 8,79¢ 7,262
Shor-term, amounts held by ceding reinsurers, net aner ghvestment (2,17¢) (1,579 4,19¢
Investment incom 69,49: 74,74( 69,10:
Less investment expens (32,389 (30,919 (21,977
Net investment incom 37,10¢ 43,82¢ 47,12¢
Interest incomt 4,46/ 3,51 5,16¢
Net investment and interest incol $ 41,56¢ 47,34 52,297

I I I

Short-term investments consist primarilyigé€l maturities of three months to one year fromuasition date. Mortgage loans,
representing first lien mortgages held by the iapae subsidiaries, are carried at unpaid balafessallowance for possible losses and any
unamortized premium or discount. Equity investmemntd real estate obtained through foreclosuresalttifor sale are carried at the lowel
cost or fair value. Policy loans are carried atrtbhapaid balance. Investment expenses includesdgostirred in the management of the
investment portfolio and interest credited on atyhpolicies.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, mortgage lbaftas investments with a carrying value of $68ilion, and $85.5 million,
respectively, were outstanding. The estimatedviaine of the mortgage loans at December 31, 20628601 aggregated $68.0 million and
$86.4 million, respectively. The estimated fairued were determined using the discounted cashrflethod, using interest rates currently
offered for similar loans to borrowers with similzredit ratings. Investments in mortgage loanduthed as a component of investments, are
reported net of allowance for possible losses @7#housand and $323 thousand in 2002 and 20Qdgctgely.

In February 1997, AMERCO, through its inswmsubsidiaries, invested in the equity of Privdiei Storage Realty, L.P. (Private Mini),
a Texas-based self-storage operator. RepWest et/8483.5 million and has a direct 30.6% interedtamindirect 13.2% interest. Oxford
invested $11 million and has a direct 24.9% inteaesl an indirect 10.8% interest. U-Haul is a 50#ter of Storage Realty L.L.C., which
serves as the general partner and has a direatte¥est in Private Mini. AMERCO does not maintapemting control of Private Mini and
the minority holders have substantial participatigits. During 1997, Private Mini secured a life@dit in the amount of $225.0 million
with a financing institution, which was subsequgmnéduced in accordance with its terms to $125l0aniin December 2001. Under the
terms of this credit facility, AMERCO entered ird@support party agreement with Private Mini wherepgn default or noncompliance with
debt covenants by Private Mini, AMERCO assumesamesibility in fulfilling all obligations related tthis credit facility.

At March 31, 2003 AMERCO had become contirlydiable for the $55.0 million under the termstb& support agreement. This resulted
in increasing other liabilities by $55.0 milliondour investment in a receivable from Private Mini$55.0 million. Under the terms of
FIN 45, the Company recognized a liability
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in the amount of $70.0 million, which is managen®eastimate on the liability associated with theiguntee. This resulted in increasing other
liabilities by $70.0 million and our investmentRmivate Mini by $70.0 million.

On June 30, 2003, RepWest and Oxford exchangedrtdsgiective interests in Private Mini for certedal property owned by certain S/
Holding’s entities. The exchanges were non-monedad/were recorded on the basis of the book valtite assets exchanged. Private Mini
has been determined to be a variable interesyeagitlefined by FIN 46. Since the entity was ciaifore January 31, 2003, it will be
consolidated effective July 1, 2003. By virtue loé hon-monetary exchange of assets discussed éa@Holdings became the primary
beneficiary of the Private Mini variable interesSA\C Holdings will initially measure the assets &ia8ilities at their carrying amounts, whi
is the amounts at which they would have been rezbidl the consolidated financial statements if BB\had been effective at the inception of
Private Mini. Accordingly, on July 1, 2003 SAC Huold's assets will increase by approximately $328illion, liabilities will increase by
approximately $308.0 million, and shareholders’iggwill increase by approximately $12.0 millionh& consolidation of this VIE will not
have a material effect on results of operations th® year ended December 31, 2002 Private Minireadnue of approximately $39.0 milli
and a net loss of $4.0 million.

6. Notes and Loans Payable

At March 31, 2003 the Company was in defanoller substantially all of its borrowings due te tioss default provisions in the
agreements. As a result of this default, all ameimthe following charts are currently due andgtdg other than borrowings against the cash
surrender values of life insurance policies.
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AMERCO'’s notes and loans payable consisheffbllowing:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Shor-term borrowings, 2.85% interest r: $ — 12,50(
Notes payable to banks under revolving lines oflityensecurec

7.00%interest rate 205,00( 283,00(
Notes payable to insurance companies, 9.0% to 1 100,00( —
Medium-term notes payable, unsecured, 7.23% td?8 @8rest rates,

due through 202 109,50( 109,50(
Notes payable under Bond Backed Asset Trust, unsegcid. 14%

interest rate, due through 20 100,00( 100,00(
Notes payable to public, unsecured, 7.85% inteetst due throug

2003 175,00( 175,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 7.20% interest rate, duad 200z — 150,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 8.80% interest rate, coeigiin 200¢ 200,00( 200,00(
BBAT option terminatior 26,55( —
Loan against cash surrender value of insuranceyp 18,22¢ —
Fair market value SWA — 77t
Debt related to SWAP terminatic 5,59( —
Other notes payable, secured and unsecured, 7®2%25% interest

rate, due through 20( 194 234

940,06: 1,031,00!
Financed lease obligatiol 14,79: 14,79:

$954,85t¢ 1,045,80.

Other notes payable are secured by land aitdifgs at various locations with a net carryirejue of $6.0 million and $5.5 million at
March 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At March 31, 2003, AMERCO had a revolvingditdoan (long-term) available from participatingriks under an agreement, which
provided for a credit line of $205 million throughne 30, 2005. Depending on the form of borrowiegted, interest will be based on the
London Interbank Offering Rate (LIBOR), prime ratee federal funds effective rate, or rates deteehiby a competitive bid. LIBOR loans
include a spread based upon the senior debt rifeddBRCO. Facility fees paid are based upon the amof credit line. As of March 31,
2003, loans outstanding under the revolving crétittotaled $205 million.

At March 31, 2003, AMERCO had short-term barings, from its total uncommitted lines of creafit$59.7 million.
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Revolving Credit Activity Short-Term Borrowing
Year Ended Year Ended
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

(In thousands, except interest rates)

Weighted average interest rate during the 4.€% 3.55% 6.3¢% N/A 3.5¢% 6.67%
Interest rate at year el 7.C% 2.448% 5.68% N/A 2.6% 5.96%
Maximum amount outstanding during the y $400,00( 283,00( 258,00( N/A  33,55: 41,50(
Average amount outstanding during the y $248,84° 224,66° 86,00( N/A  23,53: 18,45¢
Facility fees $ 1,53i 507 507 N/A N/A N/A

AMERCO has entered into interest rate swapagents (SWAPS) to potentially mitigate the impEathanges in interest rates on its
floating rate debt. These agreements effectiveinge AMERCO's interest rate exposure on $45.0 onilbf floating rate notes to a weighted
average fixed rate of 8.63%. The SWAPS matureeatithe the related notes mature. Incremental istengoense associated with SWAP
activity was $1.5 million, $2.4 million and $1.0llin during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

As of March 31, 2003, the Company no longes imterest rate swap agreements. All interestsiasg agreements at March 31, 2002
expired during the year ended March 31, 2003, edfoepwo (2), which were converted to debt in #mount of $5.6 million.

During fiscal year 2002, AMERCO paid down $Bmillion of 7.44% to 7.52% Medium Term Notes.

During fiscal year 2001, AMERCO extinguist&tD0.0 million of BBATs with interest of 6.89% oiiglly due in fiscal year 2011, and
$25.0 million of 6.71% Medium-Term notes originatlye in fiscal year 2009. This resulted in an exttaary loss of $2.1 million, net of tax
of $1.2 million ($0.10 per share).

Certain of AMERCO's credit agreements contaitrictive financial and other covenants, inahgdiamong others, covenants with respect
to incurring additional indebtedness, maintainiega&in financial ratios and placing certain addiéibliens on its properties and assets.

Interest paid in cash amounted to $76.6 om)l$77.9 million and $92.6 million for fiscal ysa2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

SAC Holdings’ notes and loans payable, nauese to AMERCO consist of the following:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Notes payable, secured, bearing interest ratesmgfigm 7.50% tc

8.82%, due between 2004 and 2| $590,81: 563,92:
Less discounts on notes paya $ (1,799 (2,035

$589,01¢ 561,88

Secured notes payable are secured by deedsstsf on the collateralized land and buildinggmd#pal and interest payments on notes
payable to third-party lenders are due monthlyt&emotes payable contain provisions whereby ¢tl@d may not be prepaid at any time
prior to the maturity date without payment to thader of a Yield Maintenance Premium, as defingtiénoan agreements. The loans on a
portfolio of sixteen properties are cross-colldieeal and cross-defaulted.
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The annual maturities of long-term debt for hext five years adjusted for subsequent actargypresented in the table below:

Year Ended

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

(In thousands)
Notes payable, secur 79,97, 88,23t 8,21: 8,91¢ 10,32! 393,35¢

Interest paid in cash amounted to $20.1 oml$33.8 million and $23.7 million for fiscal yse2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

7.  Stockholders Equity

AMERCO has authorized capital stock consistings,000,000 shares of common stock, 150,000,00@sludrSerial common stock a
50,000,000 shares of Serial preferred stock. Trerd@of Directors may authorize the Serial commaoulsto be issued in such series and on
such terms as the Board shall determine. Serif¢pesl stock issuance may be with or without pduea

AMERCO has issued 6,100,000 shares of 8 bi@#tulative, no par, non-voting Series A preferretls (“Series A”). The Series A is not
convertible into, or exchangeable for, shares gf@her class or classes of stock of AMERCO. Dindieare payable quarterly in arrears and
have priority as to dividends over AMERCO’s comnsbtack. On or after December 1, 2000, AMERCO, abjitson, may redeem all or part
of the Series A, for cash at $25.00 per sharegtosued and unpaid dividends to the redemption @ate to the Chapter 11 filing, AMERCO
does not expect to make any dividend payments e #nies A for the duration of such proceedingsofdarch 31, 2003, AMERCO has
accrued unpaid dividends of $6.5 million.

8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/ (La3

A summary of accumulated comprehensive inégloss) components follows:

Unrealized Fair Market Accumulated
Foreign Gain/(Loss) Value of Other
Currency on Cash Flow Comprehensive
Translation Investments Hedge Income

(In thousands)

Balance at March 31, 20( $(35,45() (7,127) (2,624 (45,199
Foreign currency translatic (25,03) — — (25,03)
Fair market value of cash flow hed — — 8,94: 8,94:
Unrealized gain on investmer — 20,70¢ — 20,70¢
Balance at March 31, 20( $(60,487) 13,58 6,31¢ (40,580
Foreign currency translatic 3,781 — — 3,781
Fair market value of cash flow hed — — (6,319 (6,319
Unrealized (loss) on investmet — (12,649 — (12,649
Balance at March 31, 20( $(56,700) 93t — (55,76%

I | ] I

80




Table of Contents

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

9. Earnings Per Share

As of March 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, 6,100 $ltares of preferred stock have been excluded themveighted average shares

outstanding calculation because they are not constamk equivalents

10. Income Taxes

The components of the consolidated expehsaifit) for income taxes applicable to operatiaresas follows:

Year Ended
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Current:
Federal $ 4,44 3,831 2,25z
State and loce 2,127 3,591 1,07z
Foreign 84C 923 1,04z
Deferred:
Federal (19,63)) (25,13¢) (24,659
State and loce (1,717 (3,100 (2,25))
Foreign — — —
$(13,93%) (19,89) (22,549
| | |

Income taxes paid in cash amounted to $12IBm $7.2 million and $6.3 million for fiscal ys 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Actual tax expense reported on earnings foperations differs from the “expectetdix expense amount (computed by applying the U
States federal corporate tax rate of 35% in 200822nd 2001) as follows:

Year Ended
2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
Computecexpecte” tax expense (benefi (13,627 (23,56¢) (22,629
Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting fr
Tax-exempt interest income/ (los 63C 75E —
Dividends received deductic — 914 —
Canadian subsidiary income/ (lo! (1,130 (1,202 (3617)
Federal tax expense/ (benefit) of state and l@ocads (2,029 (511 (74¢€)
Other (42 2,30t 1,32¢
Actual federal tax expense/ (bene (15,19) (21,305 (22,407
State and local income tax expense/ (ben 1,25¢ 1,414 (137
Actual tax expense/ (benefit) of operatic $(13,93Y) (29,89 (22,549
I I I
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are casepras follows:

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Deferred tax asse

Tax net operating loss and credit carryforwe $ 99,37¢ 88,21
Accrued expenses/ (benet 127,67 111,30:
Deferred revenue from sale/ leaseb 5,137 9,89:
Policy benefits and losses, claims and loss exgepegable, ne 26,59¢ 30,98
Unrealized gains/ (losse 2,04z (4,9972)
Total deferred tax asse 260,82t 235,40:
Deferred tax liabilities Property, plant and equégt 196,52! 194,27(
Deferred policy acquisition cos 26,127 24,217
Other 5,93 10,86¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 228,58: 229,35¢
Net deferred tax asse $ 32,24 6,04~
I L]

Prior to the restatements, AMERCO had a hjstd profitable operations and management hasladed that it is more likely than not
that AMERCO will ultimately realize the full benebf its deferred tax assets. Management has digtednit has tax strategies which could
implemented sufficient to recover all of its deézfitax assets. Accordingly, AMERCO believes thedlaation allowance is not required at
March 31, 2003 and 2002. See also Note 15 of Not&€onsolidated Financial Statements.

Under the provisions of the Tax Reform ActléB4 (the Act), the balance in Oxford’s accourdigieated “Policyholders’ Surplus
Account” is frozen at its December 31, 1983 balaofc®19.3 million. Federal income taxes (Phaseil) be payable thereon at applicable
current rates if amounts in this account are distdd to the stockholder or to the extent the agtexceeds a prescribed maximum. Oxford
did not incur a Phase Il liability for the yeanmsded December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

In connection with the resolution of litigation Witertain members of the Shoen family and theipa@tions, AMERCO has deducted
income tax purposes approximately $372.0 milliothef payments made to plaintiffs in a lawsuit. WHIMERCO believes that such income
tax deductions are appropriate, there can be noars=e that such deductions ultimately will bea#d in full. The IRS has proposed
adjustments to the Company’s 1997 and 1996 taxnetiNearly all of the adjustments are attributabldenials of deductions claimed for
such payments. We believe these income tax dedscéire appropriate and are vigorously contestiadR%$ adjustments. No additional ta:
have been provided in the accompanying financékstents, as management believes that none wiltres

At March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002, AMER&®@ RepWest have non-life net operating loss cammdrds available to offset federal
taxable income in future years of $181.6 milliord &181.4 million, respectively. These carryforwaedpire in 2011 through 2020. At
March 31, 2003 and March 31, 2002, AMERCO has rétieve minimum tax credit carryforwards of $5.4lioih and $5.3 million,
respectively, which do not have an expiration dat& may only be utilized in years in which reguac exceeds alternative minimum tax.
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The SAC consolidated group consists of twiasate affiliated groups for tax purposes. The $#allings affiliated group has net
operating losses of $61.6 million and $42.2 milliorfiscal years ending March 31, 2003 and March28D2 respectively, to offset federal
taxable income in future years. The SAC Holdingrbup, which began to file tax returns in fiscahyending March 31, 2003 has a net
operating loss carryforward of $7.6 million to afdederal taxable income in future years. Thesg/fmawards expire in 2013 through 2023.

During 1994, Oxford distributed its investrhenRepWest common stock as a dividend to itsigaaebook value. As a result of such
dividend, a deferred intercompany gain arose dukedalifference between the book value and fawevalf such common stock. However,
such gain can only be triggered if certain evectsio If the DOI places RepWest under conservaipyshat event might be deemed to tric
the deferred gain. The current tax payable astreftiiat deferred gain could be as much as $1BomilHowever, the same hypothetical
action by the DOI would most likely lead to an etting current tax loss to AMERCO resulting in figuecovery of that same tax. To date,
no events have occurred which would trigger suéh gecognition. No deferred taxes have been pralidéhe accompanying consolidated
financial statements as management believes thewermts have occurred to trigger such gain.

Under certain circumstances and sectionsefriternal Revenue Code a change in ownershigakopurposes will limit the amount of net
operating loss carryforwards that can be usedfsebfuture taxable income.

11. Transactions with Fleet Owners and Other Rgal Equipment Owners

Independent rental equipment owners (fleates) own approximately 4% of all U-Haul rentailaes and 0.01% of certain other rental
equipment. There are approximately 1,290 fleet esrincluding certain officers, directors, employead stockholders of AMERCO. Such
AMERCO officers, directors, employees and stockbcdwned approximately 0.07%, 0.09% and 0.10%l &f-alaul rental trailers during
the fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectivdlyental equipment is operated under contrachwi-Haul whereby U-Haul administers
the operations and marketing of such equipmeniranreturn receives a percentage of rental feesIpaitlistomers. Based on the terms of
various contracts, rental fees are distributed-iddul (for services as operators), to the fleet @emsr{including certain subsidiaries and related
parties of U-Haul) and to Rental Dealers (includ®gmpany-operated U-Haul Centers).

See also note 19.
12. Employee Benefit Plans

AMERCO employees participate in the AMERCOg#oyee Savings, Profit Sharing and Employee Stoaké&ship Plan (the “Plan”)
which is designed to provide all eligible employeegth savings for their retirement and to acquigraprietary interest in AMERCO.

The Plan has three separate features: a phafiing feature under which the Employer may nwkdributions on behalf of participants; a
savings feature which allows participants to dafeome under Section 401(k) of the Internal ReveBade of 1986; and an employee stock
ownership feature under which AMERCO may make doations of AMERCO common stock or cash to acqaireh stock on behalf of
participants. Generally, employees of AMERCO argilge to participate in the Plan upon completidra@mne year service requirement.

No contributions were made to the profit gi@plan in fiscal year 2003, 2002, or 2001.
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AMERCO has arranged financing to fund the PSfst (ESOT) and to enable the ESOT to purchases. Below is a summary of the
financing arrangements:

Amount
Outstanding
as of Interest Payments
March 31,
Financing Date 2003 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands)
May 1990 — — — 8
June 199: 14,39¢ 97¢ 1,21( 1,118
March 199¢ 14C 11 14 16
February 200( 88t 62 74 —
April, 2001 144 5 — —

Shares are released from collateral andatkakto active employees based on the proportiaielof service paid in the plan year.
Contributions to the ESOT charged to expense w22 iillion, $2.1 million and $2.2 million for fist years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

The shares held by ESOP as of March 31 wefellaws:

March 31, 1992

2003 2002

(In thousands)

Allocated share 1,63¢ 1,67¢
Shares committed to be relea: — —
Unreleased shart 79E 86(C
Fair value of unreleased sha $3,21¢ 14,97:

[ | [ |

For purposes of the schedule, fair valuenvéleased shares issued prior to December 31,i§3ined as the historical cost of such
shares. Fair value of unreleased shares issuedcudrs to December 31, 1992 is defined as the Mzitdhading value of such shares for
2002 and 2001.

Oxford insures various group life and groigadility insurance plans covering employees ofdbesolidated group. Premiums earned
were $2.7 million, $2.0 million and $1.4 million dog the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 ab@, 28spectively, and were eliminated
in consolidation.

13. Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits

AMERCO provides medical and life insurancedfés to retired employees and eligible dependewts age 65 if the employee meets
specified age and service requirements.

AMERCO uses the accrual method of accourfingostretirement benefits. AMERCO continues todumedical and life insurance
benefit costs as claims are incurred.
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The components of net periodic postretirenbemiefit cost for 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as falow

Year Ended

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

Service cost for benefits earned during the pe $ 29¢ 25¢ 22¢
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement be 35& 30z 27€
Other component (279 (315 (340
Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢ $ 37¢ 24¢ 164

| | |

The 2003 and 2002 postretirement benefitlitglincluded the following components:

Year Ended
2003 2002
(In thousands)
Beginning of yea $4,98: 4,097
Service cos 29¢ 25¢
Interest cos 35¢ 30z
Benefit payments and exper (122 (82)
Actuarial (gain) los: (53€) 40¢
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligat 4,97¢ 4,98
Unrecognized net ga 4,36¢ 4,107
$9,34: 9,08¢
| |
The discount rate assumptions in computiegrformation above were as follows:
2003 2002 2001
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligat 6.75%  7.25%  7.50%

The year-to-year fluctuations in the discoate assumptions primarily reflect changes in ih®rest rates. The discount rate represents
the expected yield on a portfolio of high-grade (AAA rated or equivalent) fixed-income investmeniish cash flow streams sufficient to
satisfy benefit obligations under the plans whee.du

The assumed health care cost trend rateinsedasuring the accumulated postretirement beokligation was 5.6% in 2003, declining
annually to an ultimate rate of 4.20% in 2016.

If the health care cost trend rate assumgtioere increased by 1.00%, the accumulated pastregnt benefit obligation as of March 31,
2003 would be increased by approximately $270 thodsnd a decrease of 1.00% would reduce the adatedyostretirement benefit
obligation by $294 thousand.

Post employment benefits, other than retirgiErovided by AMERCO are not material.

14. Reinsurance
In the normal course of business, RepWesiGatfdrd assume and cede reinsurance on both auraimse and risk premium basis.

RepWest and Oxford obtain reinsurance for thatigoif risks exceeding retention limits. The maximamount of life insurance retained on
any one life is $150,001
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Year ended December 31, 2002 Life
insurance in forc

Premiums earne
Life

Accident and healt
Annuity

Property and casual

Total

Year ended December 31, 2001 Life
insurance in forc

Premiums earne
Life

Accident and healt
Annuity

Property and casual

Total

Year ended December 31, 2000 Life
insurance in forc

Premiums earnet
Life

Accident and healt
Annuity

Property and casual

Total

@)

A summary of reinsurance transactions byrimss segment is as follows:

Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed to Ne
(In thousands)
$2,036,99 1,045,01. 1,613,81. 2,605,78! 62%
— — — —
22,97: 10,07¢ 15,11: 28,00¢ 54%
114,52¢ 15,27 26,58 125,83 21%
1,272 — 3,60¢ 4,881 74%
166,67 69,37 51,90z 149,20! 34%
$ 305,44 94,72¢ 97,20: 307,92! —
— — — —
Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed to Ne
(In thousands)
$2,088,89: 925,60¢ 1,732,12: 2,895,41. 60%
| | | |
$ 21,43] 8,88¢ 14,08: 26,631 53%
115,36« 18,26¢ 28,05 125,15( 23%
1,651 — 3,93¢ 5,59( 70%
217,40: 55,30: 91,69¢ 253,79¢ 37%
$ 355,85! 82,45 137,77: 411,17( —
| | | |
Ceded to Assumed Percentage of
Direct Other from Other Net Amount
Amount(a) Companies Companies Amount(a) Assumed to Ne
(In thousands)
$1,736,33. 923,47 1,812,54i 2,625,40i 69%
| | | |
$ 23,66¢ 2,49: 8,232 29,40¢ 28%
72,59: 15,19¢ 16,88 74,28 23%
574 — 6,932 7,50¢ 92%
153,81¢ 33,18: 96,28! 216,91 44%
$ 250,64¢ 50,87( 128,32¢ 328,10¢ —
| | | |

Balances are reported net of intersegmensacions. Premiums eliminated in consolidationl 884 million, $8.2 million and

$9.2 million for RepWest, and $2.7 million, $2.0llion and $1.4 million for Oxford for the years esdtiDecember 31, 2002, 2001 and

2000, respectively
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To the extent that a reinsurer is unable to meathtigation under the related reinsurance agretanBepWest would remain liable for-
unpaid losses and loss expenses. Pursuant torceftdiese agreements, RepWest holds letters ditae$7.6 million from reinsurers and
has issued letters of credit of approximately $1billion in favor of certain ceding companies aDafcember 31, 2002.

RepWest is a reinsurer of municipal bond insurahoaugh an agreement with MBIA, Inc. Premiums gatedt through this agreement
recognized on a pro rata basis over the contraerage period. On December 1, 2002, MBIA, Inc. RegWest entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the agreement on a cutasfébln conjunction with the Termination AgreemdepWest paid MBIA, Inc.
$3.4 million in December of 2002 for reimbursemehtinearned premiums.

The following is a summary of balances raldtethe agreement with MBIA, Inc as of DecemberZ101:

(In thousands)

Unearned premiurr $4,30(
Case loss reserv $ 70z
Aggregate exposure for Class | municipal bond iasoe $5,20(

15. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The Company uses certain equipment and oeswgirtain facilities under operating lease comeitis with terms expiring through 2079.
Lease expense was $163.8 million, $170.0 millioth $h73.0 million for the years ended 2003, 2002 20101, respectively. During the year
ended March 31, 2003, a subsidiary of U-Haul ent@r® two transactions, whereby AMERCO sold retiatks, which were subsequently
leased back. AMERCO has guaranteed $192.0 millforsidual values at March 31, 2003, for thesetassethe end of the respective lease
terms. Certain leases contain renewal and fair etar&kiue purchase options as well as mileage arat oéstrictions similar to covenants
disclosed in Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Firritatements for notes payable and loan agreament

Following are the lease commitments for leds®ving terms of more than one year:

March 31, 2003

Property, Plant and Rental
Year Ended Other Equipment Fleet Total

(In thousands)

2004 $120,33¢ 117,51 237,84
2005 2,831 107,40¢ 110,24
2006 2,692 84,89: 87,58
2007 2,17¢ 71,43¢ 73,61«
2008 1,37¢ 25,69( 27,06¢
Thereaftel 5,69¢ 10,107 15,80¢
$135,11¢ 417,04¢ 552,16!

| | |

The Company, at the expiration of the lehass, the option to renew the lease, purchase fomfaiket value, or sell to a third party on
behalf of the lessor.

The Company maintains credit facilities agasing agreements, collectively the Lease Fagilitinder these Lease Facilities, the lessor
acquires land to be developed for storage locatidtisadvances of funds (the Advances) made byateparties to the facilities. AMERCO
separately leases the land and
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improvements, including completed locations (theperties) under the facilities and respective |lesagplements.

In December of 1996, AMERCO executed a $1@filllon Lease Facility with a number of financiaktitutions, which was amended and
restated in July 1999 to $170.0 million. This ctédcility related to this Lease Facility termindti& July of 2001, however the leasing
agreement under which AMERCO leases the Propetties not terminate until July of 2004. In Septemit899, and April of 2001,

AMERCO entered into additional Lease Facilitiesdwoailable credit of $115.5 million and $49.0 nailli respectively. Both the Credit
Facility and the Leasing Agreement for the respedtcilities expire in September 2004 and Apri020respectively. There was no available
credit under the Lease Facilities at March 31, 2803 2002.

As of March 31, 2003 the Company had oblayatioutstanding of $254.0 million under the Leaaeiliies, of this, $117.0 million
represents properties qualifying as operating kase

The facilities contain certain restrictionmar to those contained in Note 6. Upon occureeatany event of default, the lessor may
rescind or terminate any or all leases and, amdmgy things, require AMERCO to repurchase any ofahe properties. The facilities havi
three-year term, with options for successive orex-yenewal terms subject to consent of other artie

Upon the expiration of the facilities, AMERGay either purchase all of the properties basea jpurchase price equal to all amounts
outstanding under the Advances, including the @geand yield thereon, or remarket all of the privgg to a third party purchaser.

In the normal course of business, AMERCO defendant in a number of suits and claims. AMERE@Iso a party to several
administrative proceedings arising from state aall provisions that regulate the removal and/eatp of underground fuel storage tani
is the opinion of management that none of suclssdims or proceedings involving AMERCO, indivadly or in the aggregate, are expec
to result in a material loss. Also see Note 16.

Compliance with environmental requirementfedkeral, state and local governments significaatfgcts Real Estate’business operatiol
Among other things, these requirements regulateigeharge of materials into the water, air andlland govern the use and disposal of
hazardous substances. Real Estate is aware of issg@rding hazardous substances on some of fienpies. Real Estate regularly makes
capital and operating expenditures to stay in caanpk with environmental laws and has put in placemedial plan at each site where it
believes such a plan is necessary. Since 1988,B3¢atle has managed a testing and removal prognanmflerground storage tanks. Under
this program we have spent $43.7 million.

Based upon the information currently available ®EC, compliance with the environmental laws andlitare of the costs of investigat
and cleanup of known hazardous waste sites arexpetcted to have a material adverse effect on AMBR@nancial position or operating
results.

16. Legal Proceedings

Pursuant to the $7.5 million settlement ofass action lawsuit relating to overtime compensaand brought on behalf of current and
former Moving Center General Managers in Califor@arah Saunders, et al. vsHaul Company of California, Inc., final payment waade
on April 5, 2002.

On July 20, 2000, Charles Kocher (“Kocheit8d suit in Wetzel County, West Virginia, Civil Aion No. 00-C-51-K, entitled Charles
Kocher v. Oxford Life Insurance Co. (“Oxford”) séeg compensatory and punitive damages for breadomtract, bad faith and unfair
claims settlement practices arising from an allefgddre of Oxford to properly and timely pay aiataunder a disability and dismemberment
policy. On March 22, 2002, the jury returned a vetrdf $5 million in compensatory damages and $34an in punitive
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damages. On November 5, 2002, the trial court edtan Order (“Order”) affirming the $39 million yuverdict and denying Oxford’s motion
for New Trial Or, in The Alternative, Remittitur.x@»rd has perfected its appeal to the West VirgBigreme Court. Oral argument on the
appeal petition is set for September 9, 2003. Mamat does not believe that the Order is sustaéraid expects the Order to be overturned
by the West Virginia Supreme Court, in part becabsgury award has no reasonable nexus to thaldtaum suffered by Kocher. The
Company has accrued $725,000, which representsgearnt’s best estimate of the costs associatedegti fees to appeal and re-try the
case and the Company’s uninsured exposure to avarable outcome.

As previously discussed, on June 20, 2003ER@O filed a voluntary petition for relief under &iter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As
debtor-in-possession, AMERCO is authorized undexp@¥r 11 to continue to operate as an ongoing bssjrbut may not engage in
transactions outside the ordinary course of busimgéthout the prior approval of the Bankruptcy Gois of the Petition Date, all pending
litigation against AMERCO is stayed, and absenttierorder of the Bankruptcy Court, no party, sabfe certain exceptions, may take any
action, again subject to certain exceptions, tovecon pre-petition claims against AMERCO. Theoadtic stay, however, does not apply to
AMERCO's subsidiaries, other than Amerco Real Es@mpany, which filed for protection under Chagdteéron August 13, 2003.

On September 24, 2002, Paul F. Shoen filderizative action in the Second Judicial Districtu@ of the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Paul F. Shoen vs. SAC Holdingo@ration et al, CV02-05602, seeking damages anitaddgi relief on behalf of
AMERCO from SAC Holdings and certain current andrfer members of the AMERCO Board of Directors, uinishg Edward J. Shoen,
Mark V. Shoen and James P. Shoen as defendantsR&NDES named a nominal defendant for purposeseofiémivative action. The
complaint alleges breach of fiduciary duty, selélifeg, usurpation of corporate opportunities, wifohgterference with prospective
economic advantage and unjust enrichment and skekswinding of sales of self-storage propertisiibsidiaries of AMERCO to SAC
Holdings over the last several years. The compkeks a declaration that such transfers are woigell as unspecified damages. On
October 28, 2002, AMERCO, the Shoen directorspthe Shoen directors and SAC Holdings filed Motitm®ismiss the complaint. In
addition, on October 28, 2002, Ron Belec filed avdgive action in the Second Judicial District Coof the State of Nevada, Washoe
County, captioned Ron Belec vs. William E. Cartyale CV 02-06331 and on January 16, 2003, M.S.adament Company, Inc. filed a
derivative action in the Second Judicial Districiutt of the State of Nevada, Washoe County, captidi.S. Management Company, Inc. vs.
William E. Carty, et. al, CV 03-00386. Two additadrderivative suits were also filed against thesdi@s. These additional suits are
substantially similar to the Paul F. Shoen derixatiction. The five suits assert virtually identicaims. In fact, three of the five plaintiffs are
parties who are working closely together and chiodge the same claims multiple times. The coumsolidated all five complaints before
dismissing them on May 8, 2003. Plaintiffs havedik notice of appeal. These lawsuits falsely atlahat the AMERCO Board lacked
independence. In reaching its decision to disnhiesé claims, the court determined that the AMER®@ar® of Directors had the requisite
level of independence required in order to havedhwaims resolved by the Board.

A subsidiary of U-Haul, INW Company (“INW"pwns one property located within two different sthbzardous substance sites in the
State of Washington. The sites are referred th@$Yakima Valley Spray Site” and the “Yakima Ra#dd Area.” INW has been named as a
“potentially liable party"under state law with respect to this property aslétes to both sites. As a result of the cleatugis of approximate
$5.0 million required by the State of WashingtdwW filed for reorganization under the federal bankcy laws in May of 2001. A success
mediation with other liable parties has occurred fnure liability to INW will be in the range of7$0,000 to $1.25 million.
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The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SB@3% issued a formal order of investigation tedeatne whether the Company has
violated the Federal securities laws. On Janua®p@3, the Company received the first of four sinas issued by the SEC. SAC Holdings,
the Company’s current and former auditors, andrethave also received one or more subpoenas ighatithis matter. The Company is
cooperating fully with the SEC and is facilitatitige expeditious review of its financial statemeanid any other issues that may arise. The
Company has produced a large volume of documenitetdner materials in response to the subpoenashandompany is continuing to
assemble and produce additional documents andiadatfar the SEC. Although the Company has fullpperated with the SEC in this
matter and intends to continue to fully coopertite, SEC may determine that the Company has vioktderal securities laws. We cannot
predict when this investigation will be completedte outcome. If the SEC makes a determinatiohweahave violated Federal securities
laws, we may face sanctions, including, but nottéohto, significant monetary penalties and injiretelief.

AMERCO is a defendant in four putative clason lawsuitsArticle Four Trust v. AMERCO, et al. , District of Nevada, United States
District Court, Case No. CV-N-03-0050-DWH-VPC. Até Four Trust, a purported AMERCO shareholder, memced this action on
January 28, 2003 on behalf of all persons andiestitho purchased or acquired AMERCO securitiewden February 12, 1998 and
September 26, 200Zhe Article Four Trust action alleges one claim for violation of Sectid{ld) of the Securities Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 thereundekates v. AMERCO, et al. , United States District Court, District of Neva@&gse No. CV-N-03-0107. Maxine Mates,
an AMERCO shareholder, commenced this putativesc@dation on behalf of all persons and entities min@hased or acquired AMERCO
securities between February 12, 1998 and Septe2@h@002. Théates action asserts claims under section 10(b) and Rule5, and
section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Kttig v. AMERCO, et al. , United States District Court of Nevada, Case GM-S-03-0380.
Edward Klug, an AMERCO shareholder, commencedghtative class action on behalf of all persons emtities who purchased or acquired
AMERCO securities between February 12, 1998 ande®aper 26, 2002. Thi€lug action asserts claims under section 10(b) and Rale5
and section 20(a) of the Securities Exchange &Holdings v. AMERCO, et al. , United States District Court, District of Neva@ase
No. CVv-N-03-0199. IG Holdings, an AMERCO bondholder, coemmed this putative class action on behalf of @lspns and entities who
purchased, acquired, or traded AMERCO bonds betWwebruary 12, 1998 and September 26, 2002, allegi@igns under section 11 and
section 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 and sectid(b) and Rule 10b-5, and section 20(a) of thmuftiies Exchange Act. Each of these four
securities class actions allege that AMERCO engagédnsactions with SAC entities that falsely noyeed AMERCOS financial statement
and that AMERCO failed to disclose the transactiormperly. The actions are at a very early stagpeKlug action has not been served. In
other three actions, AMERCO does not currently readeadline by which it must respond to the comgaiManagement has stated that it
intends to defend these cases vigorously. We likaged notice of AMERCO'’s bankruptcy petition ate tautomatic stay in each of the
Courts where these cases are pending.

The United States Department of Labor (“DOIis’presently investigating whether there wereatiohs of the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISAThvolving the AMERCO Employee Savings, Profit Shariand Employee Stock Ownership Plan
“Plan”). The DOL has interviewed a number of Compegpresentatives as well as the Plan fiduciameshas issued a subpoena to the
Company and a subpoena to SAC Holdings. At theepitedgme, the Company is unable to determine whetteeDOL will assert any claims
against the Company, SAC Holdings, or the Planci@hies. The DOL has asked AMERCO and its curr@ettbrs as well as the Plan
Trustees to sign an agreement tolling the statuliendations until December 31, 2003 with resptcainy claims arising out of certain
transactions between AMERCO or any affiliate of ARIEO and SAC Holdings or any of its affiliates angls persons have done so. The
DOL recently asked such parties to extend thenplligreement. The DOL has not advised
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the Company that it believes that any violationEBISA have in fact occurred. Instead, the DOLingpdy investigating potential violations.
The Company intends to take any corrective actiahmay be needed in light of the DOL’s ultimatalfngs. Although the Company has
fully cooperated with the DOL in this matter antkinds to continue to fully cooperate, the DOL majedmine that the Company has viola
ERISA. In that event, the Company may face sanstimtluding, but not limited to, significant moagt penalties and injunctive relief.

17.  Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

AMERCO'’s Board of Directors adopted a stodiko-rights plan in July 1998. The rights were deetl as a dividend of one preferred
share purchase right for each outstanding sha#dBfRCQO’s common stock. The dividend distributionsy@ayable on August 17, 1998 to
the stockholders of record on that date. When ésadute, each right will entitle its holder to puasle from AMERCO one one-hundredth of a
share of Series C Junior Participating PreferrediS(Series C), no par value per share of AMERQG@, @rice of $132.00 per one one-
hundredth of a share of Series C, subject to adgist AMERCO has created a series of 3,000,00@sludrauthorized but unissued prefel
stock for the Series C stock authorized in thisldtolder-rights plan.

The rights will become exercisable if a perso group of affiliated or associated persons aequr obtain the right to acquire beneficial
ownership of 10% or more of the common stock witrapproval of a majority of the Board of Direct@fSAMERCO. The rights will expire
on August 7, 2008 unless earlier redeemed or exgthhy AMERCO.

In the event AMERCO is acquired in a merger or pthesiness combination transaction after the rigetsome exercisable, each holde
a right would be entitled to receive that numbesitdres of the acquiring compasygommon stock equal to the result obtained byipiyiihg
the then current Purchase Price by the number nedondredths of a share of Series C for whickylat is then exercisable and dividing that
product by 50% of the then current market pricegtere of the acquiring company.

18.  Stock Option Plan

AMERCO's stockholders approved a ten yeaenmtive plan entitled the AMERCO Stock Option anddntive Plan (the Plan) for officers
and key employees in October 1992. No stock optioresvards were granted under this plan, the péantérminated during fiscal year 2003.

19. Related Party Transactions

AMERCO has related party transactions wittiage major stockholders, directors and officershaf consolidated group as disclosed in
Notes 3 and 11 of Notes to Consolidated Finand&tethents and below. Management believes thatdhsedctions described in the rela
notes and below were consummated on terms equivalémose that would prevail in arm’s-length tractions.

On December 23, 2002, Mark V. Shoen, a dicanit shareholder purchased a condominium in PRp@nizona from Oxford Life
Insurance Company. The purchase price was $2738%8h was in excess of the appraised value.

During fiscal 2003, U-Haul purchased $2.1ligmil of printing from Form Builders, Inc. Mark V h®8en, his daughter and Edward J.
Shoens sons are major stockholders of Form Builders, Buward J. Shoen is Chairman of the Board of Dirscand President of AMERC
and is a significant stockholder of AMERCO. MarkShoen is President, U-Haul Phoenix Operationssadsignificant stockholder of
AMERCO. The Company ceased doing business with Ruitders, Inc. on April 18, 2003.
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During fiscal 2003, Sam Shoen, a son of EdwaiShoen, was employed by U-Haul as project gsoypgrvisor. Mr. Shoen was paid an
aggregate salary and bonus of $77,327 for hiseeswuring the fiscal year.

During fiscal 2003, a subsidiary of the Comp&eld various senior and junior unsecured not&A€ Holdings. Substantially all of the
equity interest of SAC Holdings is owned by MarkShoen, a significant shareholder and executivieaafbf AMERCO. The Company does
not have an equity ownership interest in SAC Haidirexcept for minority investments made by RepVdadtOxford in a SAC Holdings-
controlled limited partnership which holds Canadself-storage properties. The senior unsecuredsrit8 AC Holdings that the Company
holds rank equal in right of payment with the naiésertain senior mortgage holders, but juniothi® extent of the collateral securing the
applicable mortgages and junior to the extent efahsh flow waterfalls that favor the senior maggholders. The Company received cash
interest payments of $26.6 million from SAC Holdsnduring fiscal year 2003. The notes receivablarizad outstanding at March 31, 2003
was, in the aggregate, $394.2 million. The larggsiregate amount outstanding during the fiscal gaded March 31, 2003 was
$407.4 million. At March 31, 2003, SAC Holdings’tes and loans payable to third parties totaled £b8#llion. Interest on the senior and
junior notes accrues at rates ranging from 6.5%38%.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of senior notes of SAC Holdings that tbenany holds at a fixed rate and is paid on
a monthly basis.

Interest accrues on the outstanding prinddpédnce of junior notes of SAC Holdings that th@r@any holds at a stated rate of basic
interest. A fixed portion of that basic interesp&d on a monthly basis. Additional interest i&gpan the same payment date based on the
difference between the amount of remaining bas@rést and an amount equal to a specified percemtiile net cash flow before interest
expense generated by the underlying propaitys the sum of the principal and interest due on the senior noté&&AC Holdings relating to
that propertyand a multiple of the fixed portion of basic interestighon that monthly payment date.

The latter amount is referred to as the “démhi-based calculation.”

To the extent that this cash flow-based datmn exceeds the amount of remaining basic istemntingent interest equal to that excess
and the amount of remaining basic interest are paithe same monthly date as the fixed portionagidinterest. To the extent that the cash
flow-based calculation is less than the amoungofaining basic interest, the additional interegapée on the applicable monthly date is
limited to the amount of that cash flow-based dalibon. In such a case, the excess of the remalmasit interest over the cash flow-based
calculation is deferred and all amounts so defelestt the stated rate of basic interest until nitgtaf the junior note.

In addition, subject to certain contingengtle junior notes provide that the holder of théens entitled to receive 90% of the
appreciation realized upon, among other thingss#ie of such property by SAC Holdings. To datesmch properties have been sold by ¢
Holdings.

The Company currently manages the self-stoprgperties owned by SAC Holdings pursuant taadsrd form of management
agreement with each SAC Holdings subsidiary, umdech the Company receives a management fee eg@dbtof the gross receipts. The
Company received management fees of $12.3 millioing fiscal year 2003. This management fee is isterst with the fees received for
other properties the Company manages.

RepWest and Oxford currently hold a 46% ladipartnership interest in Securespace LimitechBeship (“Securespace”), a Nevada
limited partnership. A SAC Holdings subsidiary ss\as the general partner of Securespace and ol¥nsraterest. Another SAC Holdings
subsidiary owns the remaining 53%
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limited partnership interest in Securespace. Sepace was formed by SAC Holdings to be the owneadbus Canadian self-storage
properties.

During fiscal year 2003, the Company leagmts for marketing company offices, vehicle rephps and hitch installation centers in 35
locations owned by subsidiaries of SAC Holdingstal tease payments pursuant to such leases wedg1$858 during fiscal year 2003. The
terms of the leases are similar to the terms afdedor other properties owned by unrelated patttigsare leased to the Company.

At March 31, 2003, subsidiaries of SAC Holgiracted as U-Haul independent dealers. The finhand other terms of the dealership
contracts with subsidiaries of SAC Holdings aressabtially identical to the terms of those with @empany’s other independent dealers.
During fiscal 2003, the Company paid subsidiarieSAC Holdings $27,658,641 in commissions pursuarsuch dealership contracts.

The transactions discussed above involving $ibldings have all been eliminated from the Comyfroonsolidated financial statements.
Although these transactions have been eliminatefirfancial statement reporting purposes, excepirfimority investments made by
RepWest and Oxford in Securespace, the Compangdtdsad any equity ownership interest in SAC Haddin

SAC Holdings were established in order tousregself-storage properties which are being mathdyethe Company pursuant to
management agreements. The sale of self-storagenties by the Company to SAC Holdings has in & provided significant cash flows
to the Company and the Company’s outstanding ltm&AC Holdings entitle the Company to participat&AC Holdings’excess cash flov
(after senior debt service).

Management believes that its sales of setage properties to SAC Holdings over the pastrsgyears provided a unique structure for
the Company to earn rental revenues from the SAI0iklgs self-storage properties that the Companyagas and participate in SAC
Holdings’ excess cash flows as described above.

Although the Board of Directors of the appiage subsidiary which was a party to each tramsacetith SAC Holdings approved such
transaction at the time it was completed, the Compid not seek approval by AMERCO'’s Board of Dimes for such transactions.
However, AMERCO's Board of Directors, including timelependent members, was made aware of and relggéredic updates regarding
such transactions from time to time. All futurelrestate transactions with SAC Holdings that inedllite Company or any of its subsidiaries
will have the prior approval of AMERCOQO'’s Board ofrBctors, even if it is not legally required, indlag a majority of the independent
members of AMERCO’s Board of Directors.

During the fiscal year ended 2001, AMERCQisk10.5 million of remanufactured engines and seuaibmotive parts and purchased
$53.7 million of automotive parts and tools frornaampany wherein a major stockholder, director affidey of AMERCO formerly had a
beneficial minority ownership interest. The relapedty interest ceased to exist as of Decembe2®10.

During the fiscal year ended 2001, AMERCOchased $1.1 million of rebuilt torque converterd ather related transmission parts from
a company wherein an owner was a family membermoépr stockholder, director and officer of AMERCUhe related party interest ceased
to exist as of December 31, 2000.

During the years ended 2003, 2002 and 20MERCO purchased $2.1 million, $3.2 million and $8lion, respectively, of printing
services from a company wherein an owner is relatedmajor
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stockholder, director and officer of AMERCO. Thermany ceased doing business with this entity oril Agr 2003.

In connection with transactions describedvaelregarding parts, tools and printing services,lthernal Audit Department of U-Haul
periodically tests pricing against competitive dhirarty bids for fairness.

Management believes that the foregoing tretitaas were consummated on terms equivalent teettiea prevail in arm’s-length
transactions.

20. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The (increase) decrease in receivables,rarehtories and increase (decrease) in accountblesgad accrued expenses net of other
operating and investing activities follows:

Year Ended

2003 2002 2001

(In thousands)

Trade receivables, n 11,13¢ (26,77%) (57,520
I I I
Inventories 12,50¢ 8,64: 9,563¢
I I I
Prepaid expenst (6,567) (6,577) 17,95¢
I I I
Deferred income taxe (26,197 (26,307 (4,649
I I I
Accounts payable and accrued expet 28,14: 5,47: 68,54
I I I
Deferred incomt (2,877 (4,777 6,572
I I I

21. Summarized Consolidated Financial Informabn of Insurance Subsidiaries

Applicable laws and regulations of the Statérizona require Oxford and RepWest to maintainimum capital and surplus determined
in accordance with statutory accounting practidé® amount of dividends that can be paid to shdden® by insurance companies domiciled
in the State of Arizona is limited. Any dividendémcess of the limit requires prior regulatory agyad. At December 31, 2002, Oxford cannot
distribute any of their statutory surplus as divide without regulatory approval. At December 302@®RepWest had $6.5 million of
statutory surplus available for distribution. Howevas discussed above, as a result of the Ordgupdrvision issued by the DOI, RepWest
must obtain approval from the DOI prior to any demd payments to AMERCO.

Audited statutory net income (loss) for RepiMfer the years ended December 31, 2002, 2002600 was $4.1 million, $(36.6 million)
and $(28.1 million), respectively; audited statytoapital and surplus was $65.4 million and $15tiion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Audited statutory net income (loss)NAFCIC for the years ended December 31, 200@120hd 2000 was $(346,000),
$558,000 and $298,000, respectively; audited statutapital and surplus was $3.8 million and $4ilion at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Audited statutory net income (loss) for Oxfdor the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 @d@d &as $(11.6 million), $(1.3 million)
and $6.6 million, respectively; audited statutoapital and surplus was $39.1 million and $77.9iomllat December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Audited statutory net income for CElfor the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 @d@d @as $3.2 million, $3.6 million
and $4.7 million, respectively; audited statutoapital and surplus was $17.2 million and $20.0iomllat
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December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Auditatiory net income (loss) for NAI for the yearsled December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 was $3.1 million, $0.7 million and $43,00Gpectively; audited statutory capital and surplas %25.9 million and $40.5 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

On November 13, 2000, Oxford acquired alhefissued and outstanding shares of Christianifidéfe Insurance Company (“CFLIQ}
for $37.6 million. CFLIC’s premium volume is primigrfrom the sale of Medicare Supplement products.

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@odé&upervision issued by the Arizona Departnadrinsurance (“DOI”). The DOI
determined that RepWest's level of risk based eafiRBC”) allowed for regulatory control. Pursudntthis order and Arizona law, during
the period of supervision, RepWest may not engageitain activities without the prior approvaltbé DOI.

If RepWest fails to satisfy the requiremeintabate the DOI's concerns, the DOI may take &rrction, including, but not limited to,
commencing a conservatorship.
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22. Consolidating Industry Segment and GeograpbiArea Data

AMERCO has four industry segments represebyethoving and storage operations (AMERCO and U-Haahl estate (AREC), property
and casualty insurance (RepWest) and life insuré@géord). SAC Holdings consist of one moving atakrage industry segment. Moving ¢
Storage. Management tracks revenues separatelgipbatnot report any separate measure of the giudifiy for rental of vehicles, rental of
self-storage spaces and sales of products thatquéed to be classified as a separate operatiggpent and accordingly does not present
these as separate operating segments. Deferrauéntzxes are shown as liabilities on the consafigattatements. This differs from the
consolidated balance sheet where deferred incoxes tre presented as assets. This presentatiensdiiécause in total the deferred tax asset
is due to the inclusion of SAC.

Information concerning operations by industegment follows:

Consolidating balance sheets by industry segaeof March 31, 2003 are as follows

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Real Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1)
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents 18,52 30,04¢ 174 4,10¢ 9,32(
Receivable! — 22,44 1,55¢ 224,42 23,06:
Notes and Mortgag
receivables, ne — 10,46: 17,28t — —
Inventories, ne — 49,22¢ 4 — —
Prepaid expenst 87 27,40( 11 — —
Investments, fixed
maturities — — 253,87: 613,20¢
Investments, othe 135,00( 170,88t 217,61¢ 120,37. 224,60:
Deferred policy
acquisition cost — — — 13,20¢ 91,89
Other asset 471,88 161,82! 3,991 88,66( 2,28¢
625,49! 472,29: 240,64 704,64 964,37!
Investment in
Subsidiarie 1,037,75! — — — —
Investment in SACH (41,939 — — — —
Property, plant and
equipment, at cos
Land — 18,84¢ 139,13t — —
Buildings and
improvement: — 14517 602,67¢ — —
Other property, plant
and equipmer 45¢ 272,88: 18,04( — —
Rental trailers and oth
rental equipmer — 149,70° — — —
Rental trucks — 1,140,29. — — —
SAC Holdings
property, plant and
equipment(2 — — — — —
45¢ 1,726,91 759,85: — —
Less accumulated

depreciatior (315) (990,41 (254,409 — —

Total property, plant
and equipmer 144 736,49¢ 505,44! — —




TOTAL ASSETS $1,621,45 1,208,79. 746,08 704,64 964,37!

[Additional columns below

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations ®nsolidated

(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents — 62,17: 4,66 — 66,83«
Receivable! — 271,49: — (7,759)b 263,73
Notes and Mortgag
receivables, ne — 27,747 — (24,879b 2,86¢
Inventories, ne — 49,23: 4,037 — 53,27(
Prepaid expenst — 27,49¢ 811 (6,46%9)b 21,84¢
Investments, fixed
maturities — 867,07 — (6,477)b 860,60(
Investments, othe (79,707)b 788,77 — (399,52)b 389,25:
Deferred policy
acquisition cost — 105,10( — — 105,10(
Other asset (689,689b 38,96¢ 24,63¢ — 63,60(
(769,39) 2,238,05 34,14¢ (445,09ha 1,827,10
Investment in
Subsidiaries (1,037,75)a — — — —
Investment in SACH — (41,939 — 41,93t —
Property, plant and
equipment, at cos
Land — 157,98 — — 157,98°
Buildings and
improvementt — 747,85: — — 747,85:
Other property, plant
and equipmer — 291,38: — — 291,38
Rental trailers and oth
rental equipmer — 149,70° — — 149,70°
Rental trucks — 1,140,29. — — 1,140,29.
SAC Holdings propert
plant and equipment
(2) — — 1,015,56. (258,277 757,29:
— 2,487,22. 1,015,56. (258,277 3,244,511
Less accumulated
depreciatior — (1,245,13)) (59,679 6,61¢ (1,298,19)
Total property, plant
and equipmer — 1,242,08: 955,88 (251,659 1,946,31
TOTAL ASSETS (1,807,14) 3,438,20 990,02¢ (654,810 3,773,42.
| | | | |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(2) Included in this caption is land of $273,470, binitgs and improvements of $739,534 and furniture equipment of $2,55
(a) Eliminate investment in subsidiari

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease incol



(d) Eliminate intercompany premiun
(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on dt
(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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Consolidating balance sheets by industry segmas of March 31, 2003 are as follows:

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Real Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Estate Insurance(1) Insurance(1)

(In thousands)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and

accrued expenst 139,49¢ 263,39: 7,892 — 57C
AMERCO'’s notes and

loans payabli 861,15¢ 31,69 101,50! — —
SAC Holdings notes and

loans payabl — — — — —
Policy benefits and losst

claims and loss

expenses payab — 168,66t — 485,38: 182,58
Liabilities from

investment contrac! — — — — 639,99¢
Other policyholder’s

funds and liabilities — — — 20,16¢ 10,14¢
Deferred incom 2,86: 30,94: 1,011 —
Deferred income taxe 120,44¢ 214,71! 94,91 — 8,66¢
Other liabilities — — 325,78 — 11,31¢

Total liabilities 1,123,96. 709,41: 531,10! 505,54 853,27!
Minority Interest — — — — —
STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY
Serial preferred stoc— — — — — —

Series A preferred

stock — — — — —

Series B preferred sto — — — — —
Serial common stoc— —

Series A common stot 1,441 — — —
Common stocl 9,122 54C 1 3,30(¢ 2,50(C
Additional paic-in- capita 396,05( 121,23l 147,48: 70,02: 16,43¢
Additional paid-in-

capital— SACH 3,19¢ — — — —
Accumulated other

comprehensive los (54,279 (39,849 — 13,58¢ 4,16¢
Accumulated other

comprehensive loss —

SACH (1,487%) — — — —
Retained

earnings/accumulated

deficit 561,60t 430,65t 67,50( 112,18! 87,99¢
Cost of common shares

treasury (418,179 —
Unearned ESOP shar 20 (13,197 — — —

Total stockholder’s
equity 497,49: 499,38( 214,98: 199,09 111,10(

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY $1,621,45 1,208,79. 746,08 704,64 964,37!



[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

[Additional columns below

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and
accrued expenst

AMERCO'’s notes and
loans payabl

SAC Holdings notes and
loans payabli

Policy benefits and
losses, claims and loss
expenses payab

Liabilities from
investment contrac

Other policyholder’s
funds and liabilities

Deferred incom

Deferred income taxe

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Minority Interest
STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY
Serial preferred stoc—

Series A preferred

stock

Series B preferred

stock
Serial common stoc—
Series A common
stock
Common stocl
Additional paid-in-

capital
Additional paid-in-
capital— SACH

Accumulated other
comprehensive los

Accumulated other
comprehensive loss —
SACH

Retained
earnings/accumulated
deficit

Cost of common shares
in treasury

Unearned ESOP shar

Total stockholder’s
equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations @nsolidated
(In thousands)

(39,73%a 371,61 48,03: (32,639b 387,01
(39,500b 954,85t — — 954,85t
— — 983,19( (394,17)b 589,01¢

— 836,63. — — 836,63.

— 639,99¢ — — 639,99¢

— 30,30¢ — 30,30¢

— 34,81 12,03: (6,469)b 40,38
(353,059b 85,68: (19,919 (98,00)f (32,247
(337,099b — — —
(769,39’ 2,953,911 1,023,33! (531,27) 3,445,97
— — 11,82¢ (11,829 —

— 1,441 — — 1,441
(6,340)a 9,12: — — 9,122
(355,169a 396,05 — (160,260f 235,78:
— 3,19¢ 3,19¢ (3,199a 3,19¢
22,09 (54,27%) — (54,27%)

— (1,487 (1,487 1,487 (1,487
698,34@ 561,60t (43,650) 50,26¢a 568,22.
— (418,17 (3,199 — (421,379
— (13,177 — — (13,17))
(1,037,75) 484,29 (45,13)) (111,71)a 327 44t
(1,807,14) 3,438,20 990,02¢ (654,81) 3,773,42.
.| | | | |



)
(@)
(b)
(©
(d)
(e)
()

Balances as of December 31, 2(

Eliminate investment in subsidiari

Eliminate intercompany receivables and paya

Eliminate intercompany lease incol

Eliminate intercompany premiun

Eliminate intercompany interest on d

Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property from ARIEO to SAC
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ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents
Receivable:
Notes and mortgac
receivables, ne
Inventories, ne
Prepaid expenst
Investments, fixed
maturities
Investments, othe
Deferred policy
acquisition cost
Other asset

Investment in
subsidiaries
Investment in SAC
Property, plant and
equipment, at cos
Land
Buildings and
improvements
Furniture and
equipmen
Rental trucks
Rental trailers and
other rental
equipmen
SAC Holdings

property, plant and

equipment(2

Less accumulated
depreciatior

Total property, plant

and equipmer

TOTAL ASSETS

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
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[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)
(In thousands)
$ 71 25,71¢ 57¢ 5,912 9,15¢
— 40,06¢ (50) 227,04¢ 24,59
— 16,92¢ 4,89 — —
— 62,48( 4 — —
112 24,58 10 — —
— — — 362,56¢ 632,30t
10,00( 170,46¢ 227,96( 95,717 174,08
— — — 15,94¢ 81,97:
809,53t 8,17¢ 3,71t 103,93: 1,73¢
819,71¢ 348,41¢ 237,10° 811,12: 923,85
991,26¢ — — — —
(34,53)) — — — —
— 18,35¢ 142 ,54( — —
— 145,43 579,78. — —
39t 270,07" 18,24: — —
— 1,071,60. — — —
— 162,76¢ — —
39t 1,668,23: 740,56: — —
(300) (917,459 (248,52} — —
95 750,77¢ 492,03 — —
$1,776,55. 1,099,19! 729,14! 811,12: 923,85:
— — — — —
[Additional columns below
SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations @nsolidated




(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash
equivalents — 41,43¢ 10 — 41,44¢
Receivable! — 291,65¢ — (16,789 274,87(
Notes and mortgac
receivables, ne — 21,81% — (14,539 7,27¢
Inventories, ne — 62,48¢ 3,292 — 65,77¢
Prepaid expenst — 24,70 1,02z (10,447 15,27¢
Investments, fixed
maturities — 994,87! — (6,47¢) 988,39
Investments, othe (32,84%) 645,38° — (404,47Y 240,91:
Deferred policy
acquisition cost — 97,91¢ — — 97,91¢
Other asset (890,39)) 36,70: 21,61¢ — 58,31¢
(923,23) 2,216,97 25,94: (452,726 1,790,19i
Investment in
subsidiaries (991,26 — — — —
Investment in SAC — (34,53)) — 34,53: —
Property, plant and
equipment, at cos
Land — 160,89! — — 160,89!
Buildings and
improvementt — 725,21 — — 725,21
Furniture and
equipmen — 288,71: — — 288,71:
Rental trucks — 1,071,60. — — 1,071,60.
Rental trailers and other
rental equipmer — 162,76¢ — — 162,76¢
SAC Holdings propert)
plant and equipment
2) — — 985,90: (258,27 727,63(
— 2,409,19 985,90: (258,27 3,136,82:
Less accumulated
depreciatior — (1,166,28i) (39,15¢) 4,69( (1,200,74)
Total property, plant
and equipmer — 1,242,971 946,74! (253,58 1,936,07!
TOTAL ASSETS (1,914,50i) 3,425,35! 972,68t (671,77Y 3,726,27.
.| .| I | .|

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(
(2) Included in this caption is land of $264,410, bunitgs and improvements of $719,728 and furnitureequipment of $1,76!
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Consolidating balance sheets by industry segras of March 31, 2002 (Restated) are as follows:

AMERCO

U-Haul
Moving and
Storage
Operations

Property and
Casualty
Real Estate Insurance(1)

Life
Insurane(1)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and

accrual expense
AMERCO's notes and

loans payabl 1,030,80!
SAC Holdings notes ar

loans payabl —
Policy benefits and

losses, claims and loss

expenses payab —
Liabilities from

investment contrac —
Other policyholders’

funds and liabilities —
Deferred incomt 3,43¢
Deferred income taxe 149,96!
Other liabilities —

$ 37,87¢

Total liabilities 1,222,08
Minority Interest —
STOCKHOLDERS'

EQUITY
Serial preferred stoc—

Series A preferred

stock —
Series B preferred
stock —
Serial common stoc—
Series A common
stock 1,441
Common stocl 9,12:
Additional paid- in-

capital 396,55¢
Additional paid- in-

capital- SAC 3,19¢
Accumulated other

comprehensive los (37,809
Accumulated other

comprehensive loss —

SAC (2,779%)
Retained earnings/

accumulated defic 601,48:
Cost of common shares

in treasury (416,77)
Unearned ESOP shar 20

Total stockholders’
equity 554,47

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS'

203,60t

14,79

90,23¢

33,72¢
228,90(
69,29:

640,55t

54C

121,23(

(39,809

390,84

(14,177

458,63!

(In thousands)

10,08¢ —

208 —

— 551,59:

99¢ —
93,19¢ —
429,20: —

533,68! 605,84t

=

3,30(

147,34 69,62¢

— 14,79¢

48,11: 117,55t

195,46( 205,27t

9,35:

177,75:
572,79:
19,34:

16,08:
10,80}

806,13(

2,50(

16,44

9,90¢

117,72:




EQUITY

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and
accrual expense

AMERCO'’s notes and
loans payabli

SAC Holdings notes and
loans payabli

Policy benefits and
losses, claims and loss
expenses payab

Liabilities from
investment contrac!

Other policyholders’
funds and liabilities

Deferred incom

Deferred income taxe

Other liabilities

Total liabilities
Minority Interest
STOCKHOLDERS’

EQUITY
Serial preferred stoc—

Series A preferred

stock

Series B preferred

stock
Serial common stoc—
Series A common
stock
Common stocl
Additional paid- in-
capital
Additional paid- in-
capital- SAC
Accumulated other
comprehensive los
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss —

SAC
Retained earnings/

accumulated defic
Cost of common shares

treasury
Unearned ESOP shatr

Total stockholders
equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

$1,776,55 1,099,19! 729,14! 811,12: 923,85
| | I L] L]
[Additional columns below
SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations @nsolidated
(In thousands)

(32,619 228,30 36,89: (31,326 233,87
— 1,045,80. — — 1,045,80.

— — 961,49¢ (399,619 561,88

— 819,58: — — 819,58:

— 572,79: — — 572,79:

— 73,59 — — 73,59

— 38,15¢ 15,55( (10,44% 43,25¢
(381,32) 106,82; (14,865) (98,005 (6,045
(509,307 — — —
(923,23) 2,885,06! 999,07 (539,390) 3,344,74:
— — 11,34: (11,34)) —

— 1,441 — — 1,441

(6,34)) 9,12: — — 9,12:
(354,649 396,55¢ — (160,26¢) 236,29:
— 3,19¢ 3,19¢ (3,199 3,19¢
15,10¢ (37,802 — — (37,802
— (2,779 (2,779 2,77¢ (2,779
(645,389 601,48: (34,957 39,64 606,17:
— (416,77) (3,199 — (419,97()
— (14,152 — — (14,152
(991,269 540,29¢ (37,73) (121,049 381,52«
(1,914,501 3,425,35! 972,68t (671,779 3,726,27.
— — — — —



(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

99
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2003 are &swfel

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Rental revenu — 1,433,44. 59,16: — —
Net sales — 174,06! 56 — —
Premiums — — — 152,61¢ 161,39¢
Net investment an
interest income 1,19¢ 29,35¢ 10,69¢ 22,31¢ 13,89
Total revenue 1,19t 1,636,86! 69,91 174,93t 175,28¢
Costs and expens
Operating expenst 43,50: 992,21 (5,507) 36,95¢ 40,54¢
Commission expen — 164,50¢ — — —
Cost of sale: — 93,73t 21 — —
Benefits and losse 37,56( — 128,68( 115,62¢
Amortization of
deferred policy
acquisition cost — — — 17,28: 20,53¢
Lease expens 927 165,02( 14,18: — —
Depreciation, ne 112,81! 5,16¢ — —
Total costs and
expense: 44.,44¢ 1,565,85. 13,87: 182,91¢ 176,71!
Equity in Earnings of
Subsidiary 52,95: — — — —
Equity in Earning of
SAC (8,697 — — — —
Earnings (loss) from
operations 1,00t 71,01 56,04 (7,987%) (1,426
Interest expens 69,21 9,991 23,65: — —
Pretax earnings (los (68,209 61,02: 32,39 (7,987) (1,426
Income tax (expense)/
benefit 41,29¢ (21,21 (13,009 2,612 54¢
Net earnings/ (loss (26,917 39,81: 19,38¢ (5,379) (877)
Less: preferred stock
dividends (12,967 — — — —
Earnings (loss)
available to
common
shareholder $(39,87%) 39,81: 19,38¢ (5,37)) (877)
| | | | |
[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet
SAC Moving
and Storage
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations

[Additional columns below

Total
@nsolidated




(In thousands)

Revenue:
Rental revenu (60,116)c 1,432,438
Net sales — 174,12:
Premiums (6,091)d 307,92!
Net investment an
interest incom:e — 77,457
Total revenue (66,207 1,991,99
Costs and expens
Operating expenst (66,207)c 1,041,51!
Commission expens — 164,50¢
Cost of sale: — 93,75¢
Benefits and losse — 281,86¢
Amortization of
deferred policy
acquisition cost — 37,81¢
Lease expens — 180,12¢
Depreciation, ne — 117,99¢
Total costs and
expense: (66,207 1,917,59.
Equity in Earnings of
Subsidiary (52,95) —
Equity in Earning of
SAC — (8,697)
Earnings (loss) from
operations (52,95) 65,70(
Interest expens — 102,85¢
Pretax earnings (los (52,95) (37,15¢)
Income tax (expense)/
benefit — 10,24«
Net earnings/ (loss (52,95) (26,917
Less: preferred stock
dividends — (12,967
Earnings (loss) availak
to common
shareholder (52,95) (39,87
| |

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(a) Eliminate investment in subsidiaries

(b) Eliminate intercompany receivables and payables

(c) Eliminate intercompany lease income

(d) Eliminate intercompany premiums

(e) Eliminate intercompany interest on debt

(f) Eliminate gain on sale of surplus property fré&dflERCO to SAC

100

168,02°
48,76¢

216,79t

105,28

21,35¢

21,37

148,01¢

68,77¢
81,16«
(12,38%)

3,691

(8,697)

(8,697)

(40,510c

(35,889

(76,39¢)

(12,345)c
(27,68)c

(487)
(1,926

(42,430)

8,697

(25,26¢)
(35,88¢)
10,62:

10,62:

10,62

1,560,00!
222,88
307,92!

41,56¢

2,132,38

1,134,46!
136,82

115,11!
281,86

37,81¢
179,64.
137,44t

2,023,17

109,21
148,13
(38,92)

13,03t
(24,98¢)

(12,969)

(37,949
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2002 (Restaredys follows:

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Rental revenu $ — 1,425,68! 68,24 — —
Net sales — 198,31: 55 — —
Premiums — — — 261,97! 159,38
Net investment an
interest income 873 22,68¢ 8,321 20,65: 23,17¢
Total revenue 872 1,646,68. 76,62: 282,62t 182,55!
Costs and expens
Operating expenst 8,94 1,041,35. (4,447) 77,21( 37,47:
Commission expen — 153,46! — —
Cost of sale: — 110,44¢ 24 — —
Benefits and losse — 47,03¢ — 255,75¢ 120,91
Amortization of
deferred policy
acquisition cost — — — 22,09: 18,58:
Lease expens 91¢ 171,65¢ 11,222 —
Depreciation, ne (500) 92,35! (2,039 — —
Total costs and
expense: 9,36: 1,616,31. 4,764 355,05 176,97:
Equity in Earnings of
Subsidiary (10,499 — — — —
Equity in Earnings of
SAC (14,024 — — — —
Earnings (loss) from
operations (33,010 30,37: 71,85% (72,43)) 5,582
Interest expens 30,77: 11,67¢ 34,29¢ — —
Pretax earnings (los (63,787 18,691 37,55¢ (72,43) 5,58
Income tax (expense)/
benefit 14,417 (6,117 (15,109 23,73¢ (2,419
Net earnings (loss (49,36¢€) 12,58( 22,45¢ (48,69%) 3,16¢
Less: preferred stock
dividends (12,967 — — — —
Earnings (loss)
available to
common
shareholder $(62,329) 12,58( 22,45¢ (48,69%) 3,16¢
| | | | |
[Continued from above table, first column(s) repeét
SAC Moving
and Storage
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations

[Additional columns below

Total

@nsolidated



Revenue:
Rental revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment an
interest incomt

Total revenue

Costs and expens
Operating expenst
Commission expens
Cost of sale:
Benefits and losse
Amortization of

deferred policy

acquisition cost
Lease expens
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and
expense:

Equity in Earnings of
Subsidiary

Equity in Earnings of
SAC

Earnings (loss) from
operations
Interest expens

Pretax earnings (los
Income tax (expense)/
benefit

Net earnings (loss
Less: preferred stock
dividends

Earnings (loss) availak
to common
shareholder

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

(64,325)
(10,18%)

(74,51()

(74,510

(74,510

10,49:

10,49t

10,49t

10,49:

10,49t

1,429,60!
198,36
411,17(

75,70¢

2,114,84i

1,086,03!
153,46!
110,47:
423,70¢

40,674
183,79!
89,81:

2,087,95i

(14,025)
12,86¢
76,74’

(63,88:)
14,51¢

(49,36¢)

(12,969)

(62,329

(In thousands)

112,74
24, 44¢

137,19¢

68,220

12,22:

15,07:

95,51¢

41,68!
61,08

(19,400

5,37¢

(14,02Y

(14,025

101

(30,10%)

(28,362)

(58,46%)

(7,94%)
(13,029

9,13)
(1,926)

(32,029

14,02¢

(12,417)
(28,362)

15,95

15,95!

15,95

1,512,25
222,81t
411,17(

47,34:

2,193,57

1,146,30!
140,44.
122,69«
423,70¢

40,674
174,66«
102,95

2,151,44!

42,13¢
109,46!

(67,33)
19,89
(47,440

(12,969)

(60,407
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SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating income statements by industgnsent for the year ended March 31, 2001 (Restaredys follows:

Revenue:

Rental revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment an

interest incomt

Total revenue

Costs and expens
Operating expenst
Commission expenst

Cost of sale:
Benefits and losse
Amortization of
deferred policy
acquisition cost
Lease expens
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and
expense:

Equity in earnings of
Amerco subsidiarie

Equity in earnings of
SACH

Earnings (loss) from
operations
Interest expens

Pretax earnings/ (los
Income tax (expense)/
benefit

Net earnings (loss
Less: preferred stock
dividends

Earnings available to

common shareholde $(56,577)

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)
(In thousands)
(2 1,364,50. 72,04: — —
— 194,27( 50 — —
— — — 226,08t 112,61¢
962 24,34¢ 10,96: 25,47¢ 19,00:
961 1,583,12 83,05: 251,56° 131,61°
7,11: 1,021,571 467 56,50¢ 29,35:
— 143,58t — — —
— 116,60: 28 — —
— 40,52 — 211,32¢ 79,23:
— — — 16,59¢ 19,63¢
68¢ 167,29( 11,57¢ — —
12: 87,53¢ 5,25¢ — —
7,924 1,577,11! 17,32¢ 284,42t 128,22:
(13,657) — — — —
(9,400) — — — —
(30,015 6,00¢ 65,72 (32,86) 3,39¢
25,52: 17,09 44,26" — —
(55,537 (11,089 21,45¢ (32,86)) 3,39¢
11,92¢ 4,921 (8,19¢) 9,88( (1,15¢)
(43,609) (6,16¢) 13,26: (22,98)) 2,23¢
(12,969 — — — —
(6,16¢) 13,26: (22,987 2,23¢
L] | | I L]
SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage

Eliminations

Consolidated

Operations

Eliminations

[Additional columns below

Total

@nsolidated

(In thousands)



Revenue:

Rental revenu
Net sales
Premiums
Net investment an

interest incomt

Total revenue

Costs and expens
Operating expenst
Commission expenst
Cost of sale:
Benefits and losse
Amortization of deferred
policy acquisition cost
Lease expens
Depreciation, ne

Total costs and expens

Equity in earnings of
Amerco subsidiarie

Equity in earnings of
SACH

Earnings (loss) from
operations
Interest expens

Pretax earnings/ (los
Income tax (expense)/
benefit

Net earnings (los
Less: preferred stock
dividends

Earnings available to
common shareholde

(71,109)
(10,59¢)

(81,709

(81,709

(81,702

13,65

13,65

13,65:

13,65:

13,65:

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

1,365,43
194,32(
328,10t

80,75

1,968,61.

1,033,31
143,58t
116,62¢
331,07¢

36,23:
179,55
92,92(

1,933,31

(9,400)
25,89¢
86,88
(60,98:)
17,37¢
(43,609)
(12,962

(56,57

92,451
17,92:

110,38(

49,237

9,871

12,38¢

71,49¢

38,88:
53,45!

(14,570

5,17(

(9,400)

(9,400)

102

(21,060)

(28,45/)

(49,51

(6,249)
(10,729)

(4,099
(1,499)

(22,55¢)

9,40(

(17,556)
(28,45

10,89¢

10,89¢

10,89¢

1,436,83.
212,24
328,10t

52,29°

2,029,481

1,076,30
132,86!
126,50t
331,07¢

36,23:
175,46(
103,80°

1,982,25

47,22¢
111,87¢

(64,65/)
22,54t
(42,110
(12,969)

(55,079
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by induséigment for the year ended March 31, 2003 afellasvs:

U-Haul
Moving and Property and
Storage Casualty Life
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)

(In thousands)
Net cash flows provide
(used) by operating
activities $ 200,51¢ 83,49¢ (87,059 (75,139 (17,987

Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of
investments
Property, plant and
equipmen (64) (182,409 (30,17¢) — —
Fixed maturities — — — (10,409 (267,949
Common Stocl — — — — —
Preferred Stoc — — — — —
Other asset
investmen — — — — (18,910
Real estat — — — — (21,759
Mortgage loan: — — — — (22,000)
Proceeds from sale of
investments
Property, plant and
equipmen — 85,28¢ 11,60( — —
Fixed maturities — — — 101,37: 262,74
Common Stocl — — — — —
Preferred Stoc — — — — 2,88t
Real estat — — — — 22,04
Mortgage loan: — 73 13C 561 17,40¢
Changes in other
investment: — — 4,481 (18,1979 (23,579

Net cash provide
(used) by investing
activities (64) (97,04 (13,96%) 73,32¢ (49,11Y

Cash flows from

financing activities
Net change in shc-

term borrowings 5,00(C 16,90( — — —
Proceeds from note 257,00° — 101,32¢ — —
Debt issuance cos (2,330 — (680) — —
Leveraged ESOP:

Repayment on loa — — — — —

Purchase of shar — —

Payments on loa — 97t — — —
Principal payments on

notes (433,789 — (27) — —
Treasury stock

acquisitions, ne (1,40¢) — — — —
Preferred stock

dividends paic (6,480 — — — —
Investment contract

deposits — — — — 165,28:
Investment contract

withdrawals — — — — (98,029



Net cash provide
(used) by financing

activities (181,999 17,87: 100,62: — 67,25¢
Increase (decrease) in
cash and cash
equivalents 18,45: 4,32 (402) (1,809 162
Cash and cash
equivalents at the
beginning of periot 71 25,71¢ 57€ 5,912 9,15¢
Cash and cash
equivalents at the end
of period $ 18,52« 30,04¢ 174 4,10¢ 9,32(
| | | | |
[Additional columns below
[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet
SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations ®nsolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash flows provide
(used) by operating
activities (41,777 62,06¢ 13,47 (2,011 74,53(
Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of
investments
Property, plant and
equipmen — (212,649 (30,517 — (243,16)
Fixed maturities — (278,35) — — (278,35)
Common Stocl — — — — —
Preferred Stoc — — — — —
Other asset
investmen 17,50( (1,410 — — (1,410
Real estat — (21,759 — — (21,759
Mortgage loan: 22,00( — — —
Proceeds from sale of
investments
Property, plant and
equipmen — 96,88¢ — — 96,88¢
Fixed maturities — 364,11 — — 364,11
Common Stocl — — — — —
Preferred Stoc — 2,88t — — 2,88t
Real estat — 22,04 — — 22,04
Mortgage loan: — 18,17: — — 18,17:
Changes in other
investment: 41,77 4,481 — — 4,481
Net cash provided (use
by investing activitie: 81,27: 207,05¢ (30,519 — (36,107)
Cash flows from
financing activities
Net change in shc-
term borrowings — 21,90( — — 21,90(
Proceeds from note (39,500 318,83t 58,827 (27,827 349,83t
Debt issuance cos — (3,010 — — (3,010
Leveraged ESOP:
Repayment on loa — — — — —
Purchase of shart — — — — —
Payments on loa — 97t — — 97t



Principal payments on

notes — (433,81Y
Treasury stock

acquisitions, ne — (1,409
Preferred stock

dividends paic — (6,48(0)
Investment contract

deposits — 165,28:
Investment contract

withdrawals — (98,027

Net cash provided (use
by financing activities (39,500 (35,747

Increase (decrease) in

cash and cash

equivalents — 20,73¢
Cash and cash

equivalents at the

beginning of periot — 41,43¢

Cash and cash
equivalents at the end
of period — 62,17:

(1) Balances as of December 31, 2(

103

(37,13%)

21,69:

4,65z

10

4,66z

28,83t

(442,112
(1,408
(6,480)

165,28:

(98,027)

(13,049)

25,38¢

41,44¢

66,83+
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by induseigment for the year ended March 31, 2002 (Rahtare as follows:

U-Haul
Moving
and Property and
Storage Life Casualty
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)

(In Thousands)
Net cash flows
provided (used)
by operating
activities $ 148,58¢ 96,24t (144,08) (5,150 (61,537

Cash flows from
investing
activities:
Purchases of
investments
Property,
plant and
equipmen 12 (248,67() (32,329 — —
Fixed
maturities — — — (248,67 (8,88¢)
Common
stock — — — (41¢) —
Preferred
stock — — — (2,072 —
Other asset
investmen — — — (2,259 —
Real estat — — — (35 4,317
Mortgage
loans — — (567) (790 —
Proceeds from
sales of
investments
Property,
plant and
equipmen 69¢ 143,31 173,18« — —
Fixed
maturities — — — 168,98 64,73:
Common
stock — — — — —
Preferred
stock — — — 4,40 —
Real estat — — — 1,03¢ 2,662
Mortgage
loans — 26€& 51C 17,91( 2
Changes in other
investments — — 2,897 (8,575 1,56¢

Net cash (used) k
investing
activities 682 (105,08 143,70 (70,48¢) 64,38¢

Cash flows from
financing
activities:
Net change il
short-term
borrowings (24,070 14,79: — — —



Proceeds from
notes
Debt issuance
cost
Leverage
Employee
Stock
Ownership
plan:
Purchase of
shares
Payments on
loan
Principal
payments on
notes
Preferred stock
dividends paic
Treasury stock
acquisitions, ne
Dividends paic
Investment
contract
deposits
Investment
contract
withdrawals

Net cash provide
by financing
activities

Increase (decreas
in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents at tt
beginning of yee

Cash and cash
equivalents at tr
end of yea

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

Net cash flows
provided (used) by
operating activitie:

Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of

investments
Property, plant
and equipmer
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Other asset
investmen:

(390) — — —
— (72) — —
— 1,09t — —
(101,739 — — —
(12,967 — _ _
(10,154 — _ _
— — 7,501 —
_ — 150,43: —
_ — (99,84%) —
(149,31H 15,81« 58,08¢ —
(43 6,972 (17,55() 2,84¢
114 18,74t 26,70¢ 3,06:
71 25,71¢ 9,15¢ 5,912
| | | | I
[Additional columns below
SAC Moving
AMERCO and Storage Total
Eliminations Consolidated Operations Eliminations ®nsolidated
(In Thousands)

497 34,557 (1,346 (52,84%) (19,63))

— (281,009 (378,87)) 278,39¢ (381,48))

— (257,559 — — (257,55

— (416) — — (41¢)

— (2,072 — — (2,072

— (2,259 — — (2,259



Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Proceeds from sales

of investments

Property, plant
and equipmer
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Real estat
Mortgage loan:
Changes in other
investments

Net cash (used) k
investing activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Net change in shc-

term borrowings
Proceeds from note
Debt issuance co
Leverage Employee
Stock Ownership
plan:
Purchase of
shares
Payments on
loan
Principal payments
on notes
Preferred stock
dividends paic
Treasury stock
acquisitions, ne
Dividends paic
Investment contract
deposits
Investment contract
withdrawals

Net cash provided b
financing activities

Increase (decrease) in

cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents at the
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents at the
end of yea

7,00¢

7,00¢

4,271
(1,351)

317,19¢
233,71t

4,400
3,70
18,69

2,891

40,20¢

9,277
(390

(72)
1,09:
(101,77)
(12,96%)

(10,159

150,43.

(99,84%)

(82,947

(8,182)

49,61¢

41,43¢

(325,65

526,29:

(199,28)

327,00t

10

10

104

(141,039

137,36«

(278,399

(84,527)

4,27
(1,35])

229,37!
233,71t

4,40(
3,70
18,69(

2,897

(148,08)

(9,277
247,89:
(390)

(72)
1,09:
(107,18)
(12,962

(10,159

150,43.

(99,84%)

159,53t

(8,187)

49,62¢

41,44¢
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATIONS AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIAR IES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT S — (Continued)

Consolidating cash flow statements by induséigment for the year ended March 31, 2001 afellasvs:

U-Haul
Moving
and Property and
Storage Life Casualty
AMERCO Operations Real Estate Insurance(1) Insurane(1)

(In Thousands)
Net cash flows
provided
(used) by
operating
activities $ 3,84( 106,94t 68,69¢ 3,45¢ 15,20¢

Cash flows from
investing
activities:
Purchases of
investments
Property, plar
and
equipmen (16) (411,910 (53,069 — —
Fixed
maturities — — — (67,737 (55,13)
Common
stock — — — (31,779 —
Preferred
stock — — — — —
Other asset
investmen — — — (5,915 —
Real estat — — — — (26)
Mortgage
loans — (102) — (22,46) —
Proceeds from
sales of
investments
Property, plar
and
equipmen — 303,57( 42,19% — —
Fixed
maturities — — — 101,78( 50,98:
Common
stock — — — 6,19 —
Preferred
stock — — — 372 —
Real estat — — — —
Mortgage
loans — 3,34z 26€& 13,60" 7
Changes in other
investments — — — (14,230 (9,345

Net cash (used) k
investing
activities (16) (105,100 (10,599 (20,16)) (13,519

Cash flows from
financing
activities:

Net change il
short-term



borrowings 156,07(
Proceeds from
notes —
Debt issuance
cost (43%)
Leverage
Employee Stoc
Ownership plar
Purchase of
shares —
Payments on
loan 137
Principal
payments on
notes (137,010
Net change i
cash overdral —
Preferred stock
dividends paic
Treasury stock
acquisitions, ne (9,617)
Dividends paic (12,969
Investment
contract
deposits —
Investment
contract
withdrawals —

(46) —

1,10z —

— (57,769

Net cash provide
by financing
activities (3,819

61C (58,079

Increase

(decrease) in ca:

and cash

equivalents 6
Cash and cash

equivalents at the

beginning of yea 10¢

2,45¢ 27

16,28¢ 961

Cash and cash
equivalents at the
end of yea $ 114

18,74: 98¢

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

Eliminations

AMERCO
Consolidated

86,65’

(72,959

13,70¢

(3,007)

29,70¢

26,70¢

SAC Moving
and Storage
Operations

1,69¢

1,36¢

3,06:

Eliminations

[Additional columns below

Total

@nsolidated

Net cash flows
provided (used) by

operating activitie: (81,340

Cash flows from
investing activities
Purchases of
investments
Property, plant
and equipmer —
Fixed maturities —
Common stocl —
Preferred stoc —

116,80¢

(464,98¢)
(122,86
(31,779

(In Thousands)

15,12¢

(369,67

40,69¢

217,38t

172,63(

(617,279
(122,865
(31,779



Other asset
investmen
Real estat
Mortgage loan:

Proceeds from sales
of investments
Property, plant
and equipmer
Fixed maturities
Common stocl
Preferred stoc
Real estat
Mortgage loan:
Changes in other
investment:

Net cash (used) k
investing activities

Cash flows from
financing activities
Net change in shc-

term borrowings
Proceeds from note
Debt issuance co
Leverage Employee
Stock Ownership
plan:
Purchase of
shares
Payments on
loan
Principal payments
on notes
Net change in cas
overdraft
Preferred stock
dividends paic
Treasury stock
acquisitions, ne
Dividends paic
Investment contract
deposits
Investment contract
withdrawals

Net cash provided b
financing activities

Increase (decrease) in
cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash
equivalents at the
beginning of yea

Cash and cash
equivalents at the
end of yea

23,577

23,577

(5,915)
(26)
(22,56%)

345,76°
152,76:
6,194
372

17,22«

(125,81

156,07
(446)
(694)

(46)
1,23¢

(137,06

(9,617)
(12,96%)

86,65’

(72,959

10,18¢

1,182

48,43¢

49,61¢

(322,72)

460,53

(152,941

307,59°

105

10

10

(38,479

178,90¢

(366,019

(219,60

(5,915)
(26)
(22,567)

354,24(
152,76:
6,19¢
372

17,22«

(269,62

156,07
94,07
(692)

(46)
1,23¢

(143,59

(9,617)
(12,967)

86,65’

(72,959

98,17¢

1,182

48,44¢

49,62¢
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AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES AND
SAC HOLDING CORPORATION, SAC HOLDING Il CORPORATION
AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Financial information by geographic areaasdollows

Year Ended United States Canada Consolidated

(All amounts are in thousands U.S. $'s)

March 31, 2003

Total revenue $2,077,33. 55,05¢ 2,132,38
Depreciation/ amortization n 169,79¢ 5,46¢ 175,26!
Interest expense/ (benel 146,14« 1,98 148,13:
Pretax earnings/ (los (45,62¢) 6,707 (38,92)
Income tax expense/ (bene! 16,28: (2,349 13,93t
Identifiable asset 3,673,73 131,92¢ 3,805,661
March 31, 2002

Total revenue $2,141,22! 52,35( 2,193,57!
Depreciation/ amortization n 138,40: 5,23( 143,63:
Interest expense/ (benel 107,37( 2,09t 109,46!
Pretax earnings/ (los (74,829 7,497 (67,33)
Income tax expense/ (bene! 22,51t (2,629 19,891
Identifiable asset 3,615,10! 117,20¢ 3,732,31

23. Subsequent Event:

On April 18, 2003, AMERCO filed suit agairitst former auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWg.complaint seeks actual and
punitive damages in excess of $2.5 billion doless result of the alleged negligent, frauduledttartious conduct of PwC during the last
seven years of its audit engagement.

On June 20, 2003, AMERCO filed a voluntaryitpmn for protection under Chapter 11 of the UBankruptcy Code. AMERCO has taken
this action in order to expedite the financial nesturing of its debt. On August 13, 2003, AmeraaREstate Company filed a voluntary
petition for relief under Chapter 11 of the BankaypCode with joint administration under BK-03-53tGWZ. Not included in the
Chapter 11 filing are the following AMERCO subsidis: U-Haul, Oxford Life Insurance Company andsitdsidiaries, and Republic
Western Insurance Company, among others. The Ghhpfiding by AMERCO is not expected to impact thygerations of these subsidiaries,
and their business will continue uninterrupted. #iddally, since the Company is solvent, with assdtie in excess of its debt, AMERCO
intends to repay its creditors in full pursuanattull-value plan of reorganization, without dilg the interest of its shareholders.

On June 30, 2003, RepWest and Oxford exclthtiggr respective interests in Private Mini fortaé real property owned by certain
SAC Holdings entities. The exchanges were non-naopetnd were recorded on the basis of the boolegadfithe assets exchanged.

On May 20, 2003, RepWest consented to anr@odé&upervision issued by the Arizona Departnadritsurance (“DOI”). The DOI
determined that RepWest'’s level of risk based ehfiRBC") allowed for regulatory control. Pursuéntthis order and Arizona law, during
the period of supervision, RepWest may not engagamy of the following activities without the priapproval of the DOI. If RepWest fails
satisfy the requirements to abate DOI's concefmes[XOI may take further action, including, but hotited to, commencing a
conservatorship.

In April 2003, the Company determined thatdmnection with overall restructuring efforts, Régst is exiting non-U-Haul related lines
of business.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OF INDEPENDENT TRAILER FLEETS
Unaudited

The following Summary of Earnings of IndepentTrailer Fleets is presented for purposes dfyaisaand is not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands, except earnings
per $100 of average investment)

Earnings data (Note A
Fleet owner income

Credited to fleet owner gross rental incao $ 82: 1,02¢ 1,35( 1,977 2,191
Credited to trailer accident fund (Notes D anc 49 61 79 114 144
Total fleet owner incom 872 1,08¢ 1,42¢ 2,091 2,33t
Fleet owner operation expens
Charged to fleet owner (Note ! 422 532 71¢ 99¢ 873
Charged to trailer accident fund (Notes D ani 9 15 18 23 27
Total fleet owner operation expen: 431 547 737 1,02z 90C
Fleet owner earnings before trailer accident furedit,
depreciation and income tax 40z 49¢€ 631 97¢ 1,31¢
Trailer accident fund credit (Note [ 39 46 61 91 117
Net fleet owner earnings before depreciation acdrime
taxes $ 441 542 69z  1,06¢ 1,43¢
I I | I I

Investment data (Note A

Amount at end of yez $1,38¢ 1,66: 2,04¢ 2,65¢  3,27-
| | | | |
Average amount during ye $1,52¢ 1,858 2,35 3,574  3,57¢
I I | I I

Net fleet owner earnings before depreciation aodrime
taxes per $100 of average investment (Note B)
(unaudited’ $19.98 20.0¢ 23.3¢t 28.1z  29.5¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofS8himmary of Earnings of Independent Trailer Fleets.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
NOTES TO SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OF INDEPENDENT TRAILER FLEETS

(A) The accompanying Summary of Earningsnoelpendent Trailer Fleets includes the operatibtimiters under the brand name of “U-
Haul” owned by independent fleet owners. Earnirgta depresent the aggregate results of operatiefiosebdepreciation and taxes.
Investment data represent the cost of trailersimrestments before accumulated depreciation.

Fleet owner income is based on IndependentaRBealer reports of rentals transacted throhghdy preceding the last Monday of each
month and received by U-Haul International, Incthy end of the month and U-Haul Center reportgifals transacted through the last day
of each month. Payments to fleet owners for trailest or retired from rental service as a resuttasnage by accident have not been reflected
in this summary because such payments do not rel&arnings before depreciation and income tanesther, investment (depreciation).

The investment data is based upon the cashitdrs to the fleet owners as reflected by sedesrds of the U-Haul manufacturing
facilities.

(B) The summary of earnings data statedrim$eof amount per $100 of average investment repteshe aggregate results of operations
(earnings data) divided by the average amountw&stment during the periods. The average amounwvebtment is based upon a simple
average of the month-end investment during eadbgehverage earnings data is not necessarily sgmtative of an individual fleet owner’s
earnings.

(C) A summary of operations expenses chadiyedtly to independent fleet owners follows:

Year Ended March 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Licenses $ 52 86 124 15C 15¢
Public liability insurance 53 65 87 12¢ 134
Repairs and maintenan 317 381 50¢ 728 58C

$422 532 71¢ 99¢ 87z
| | | | |

(D) The fleet owners and subsidiary U-HauhféCompanies forego normal commissions on aqoxf gross rental fees designated for
transfer to the Trailer Accident Fund. Trailer a@&sit repair expenses, otherwise chargeable todieeérs, are paid from this Fund to the
extent of the financial resources of the Fund. am®unts designated “Trailer Accident Fund credittie accompanying summary of
earnings represents independent fleet owner corungsforegone, which exceed expenses borne byuhd.F

(E) Commissions foregone for transfer toThailer Accident Fund follow:

Fleet Owners

Subsidiary
U-Haul Subsidiary
Companies Companies Independent Total
(In thousands)
Year ended

March 31, 200: $6,84¢ 3,631 49 10,53:
March 31, 200: 6,38t 3,371 61 9,82
March 31, 200: 6,07: 3,191 79 9,34:
March 31, 200( 6,061 3,15( 114 9,32t
March 31, 199¢ 6,081 3,131 144 9,35¢
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
NOTES TO SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OF INDEPENDENT TRAILER FLEETS — (Continued)

(F) A summary of independent fleet owner eges borne by the Trailer Accident Fund follows:

Fleet Owners Total
Trailer
Subsidiary Trailer Accident
U-Haul Subsidiary Sub Accident Repair
Companies Companies Independent Total Retirements Hpenses

(In thousands)

Year ended

March 31, 200« $1,09¢ 582 8 1,68¢ 394 2,07¢
March 31, 200: 1,22¢ 647 12 1,88¢ 45t 2,33¢
March 31, 200: 1,067 561 18 1,64¢ 49¢ 2,14
March 31, 200( 1,23: 641 23 1,891 354 2,251
March 31, 199¢ 1,14¢ 591 27 1,76¢ 34z 2,10¢

(G) Certain reclassifications have been ntadbe Summary of Earnings of Independent Traileets for the fiscal years ended 1999 to
conform to the current year’s presentation.
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SCHEDULE |

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Cash

Investment in subsidiarie
Due from unconsolidated subsidiar
Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS
Liabilities:
Notes and loans payat
Other liabilities

Stockholder' equity:
Preferred stoc
Common stocl
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive incc
Retained earnings/ (los:
Beginning of yea
Net earnings/ (loss
Dividends accrued/ pa

Less:
Cost of common shares in treas
Unearned employee stock ownership plan sk
Total stockholder equity

Total Liabilities and stockholde’ equity

March 31,

2003

2002

(In thousands)

$ 18,52
995,81t
451,42«
155,69:

$1,621,45

"EQUITY

$ 861,15
262,80!

10,56
399,24¢
(55,769

601,48
(26,917)
(12,962)
561,60

(418,179
20

497,49

$1,621,45

71
956,73
792,32°

27,41¢

1,776,55:

1,030,80!
191,27!

10,56:
399,75¢
(40,58()

663,81(
(49,366)
(12,96%)
601,48

(416,77)
20

554,47

1,776,55:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended March 31,

2002 2001
2003 (Restated) (Restated)
(In thousands, except share and per share data)
Revenue:
Net interest income from subsidiari $ 1,19¢ 87:% 961
Expense!

Interest expens 69,21 30,77 25,52:
Other expense 44,44 9,36: 7,924
Total expense 113,65 40,13¢ 33,44¢t
Operating los! (112,46 (39,267 (32,48
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidia 44,25 (24,52() (23,057
Income tax (expense)/bene 41,29¢ 14,417 11,92¢
Net earnings/(loss $ (26,91) (49,36¢) (43,609
Less: preferred stock dividel (12,969 (12,969 (12,969
Earnings/(Loss) available to common sharehol (39,87Y) (62,329 (56,577
.| .| .|
Earnings/(Loss) per common share (both basic dntkd): $ (1.92) (2.96) (2.63)
| | |

Weighted average common shares outstan 20,743,07 21,022,71 21,486,37
| | |

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31,

2003 2002 (Restated) 2001 (Restated)

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net earnings/ (loss $ (26,917 (49,36€) (43,609
Amortization, ne 1,752 2,04¢ 1,36¢
Gain/ (loss) on sal — (559 —

Equity in earnings of subsidiari — — —
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from unconsedidaibsidiarie — —
Net change in operating assets and liabil 225,67¢ 196,46¢ 46,08

Net cash provided by operating activit 200,51¢ 148,58¢ 3,84(

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (64) 12 (16)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipt 69E

Net cash used by investing activit (64) 683 (16)
Cash flows from financing activitie

Net change in short term borrowin 5,00( (24,070 156,07(
Proceeds from note 257,00° — —
Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership |-repayments from loa — — 137
Principal payments on not (433,78 (101,739 (137,010
Debt issuance cos (2,330 (390 (43%)
Repurchase of preferred stc — — —
Preferred stock dividends pe (6,480 (12,969 (12,967
Treasury stock purchase, 1 (1,409 (10,159 (9,617%)
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of delet, — — —
Net cash used by financing activiti (181,999 (149,31H (3,819
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 18,45: (43 6
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 71 114 10¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 18,52 71 114
| | |

Income taxes paid in cash amounted to $11libm $5.9 million and $5.4 million for 2003, 2@Gand 2001, respectively. Interest paid in
cash amounted to $76.6 million, $77.9 million a®@$ million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF AMERCO

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation, was incorpatateApril, 1969, and is the holding company foHawl International, Inc., Republic
Western Insurance Company, Oxford Life Insurancey@any and Amerco Real Estate Company. The finastaééments of the Registrant
should be read in conjunction with the Consolid&athncial Statements and notes thereto includégisriForm 10-K.

AMERCO is included in a consolidated Fedarabme tax return with all of its U.S. subsidiariéscordingly, the provision for income
taxes has been calculated for Federal income @x&MERCO and subsidiaries included in the consabd return of the Registrant. State
taxes for all subsidiaries are allocated to thpeesve subsidiaries.

The financial statements include only theoaitts of the Registrant (a Nevada Corporation)ctvimclude certain of the corporate
operations of AMERCO (excluding SAC Holdings). Tiheerest in AMERCO’s majority owned subsidiariesxounted for on the equity
method. The debt and related interest expense dER®IO have been allocated to the consolidated sabigisl The intercompany interest
income and expenses are eliminated in the consetidamancial statements.

2. Guarantees

AMERCO has guaranteed performance of celtaig-term leases and other obligations. See Notef Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

3. Notes and Loans Payable

Notes and loans payable consist of the faligw

March 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands)
Medium-term notes payable, unsecured, 7.23% td?8 @8rest rates,

due through 202 $109,50( 109,50(
Notes payable under Bond Backed Asset Trust, unsegcid.14%
interest rates, due through 20 100,00( 100,00(

Notes payable to banks under commercial paper agnets, unsecure
5.00% to 6.20% interest rat — —
Notes payable to public, unsecured, 7.85% inteetst due throug

2003. 175,00( 175,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 7.20% interest rate, doeidgin 2002 — 150,00(
Senior Note, unsecured, 8.80% interest rate, doeidin 2005 200,00( 200,00(
Other notes payable, unsecured, 8.15% interestdagethrough 201° 22,00( 30
Notes payable to banks under revolving lines odlitrensecurec

7.00% interest rat 205,00( 283,00(
Debt related to SWAP terminatic 5,582 77t
Debt related to BBAT option terminatic 26,55( —
Other shor-term promissory notes, 2.88% interest | 17,52¢ 12,50(

$861,15¢ 1,030,80!

For additional information, see Note 6 of &&to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SCHEDULE V

AMERCO AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (FOR PROPERTY-CASUALTY INS URANCE UNDERWRITERS)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002, 2001 AND 2000

Claim and Claim

Reserves Adjustment
for Unpaid Expenses Incurred
Deferred Claims and Related to
Policy Claim Discount Net
Fiscal Affiliation with  Acquisition  Adjustment if any, Unearned Net Earned Investment Current Prior  Fiscal
Year Registrant Costs Expenses Deductec  Premiums Premiums(1) Income(2) Year Year Year

(In thousands)

2003 Consolidatec $13,20¢ 399,44¢ N/A 62,34¢ 149,20¢ 27,93: 112,28 16,39¢ 200:
property
casualty entity

2002 Consolidatec $15,94¢ 448,98: N/A 91,72¢ 253,79¢ 27,87¢ 232,98: 23,04: 200z
property
casualty entity

2001 Consolidatec $21,37¢ 382,65: N/A 107,88( 216,91! 30,37: 162,26! 41,28: 2001
property
casualty entity

[Additional columns below

[Continued from above table, first column(s) repet

Amortization Paid
of Deferred Claims and
Policy Claim Net
Fiscal Acquisition Adjustment Premiums
Year Costs Expenses Written(1)

(In thousands)

2003 17,14: 196,79¢ 120,94t
2002 22,067 236,86t 227,37t
2001 16,57 178,22: 256,03«

(1) The earned and written premiums are reporgtahintersegment transactions. Earned premiuimsrelted in consolidation amount to
$3.4 million, $8.2 million and $9.2 million for theears ended 2002, 2001 and 2000, respecti

(2) Net Investment Income excludes net realized gdirssés) on investments of ($5.6 million), ($7.2limil) and ($4.9 million) for th
years ended 2002, 2001 and 2000, respecti
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 185¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rdwstrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

AMERCO

By: /sl EDWARD J. SHOEN

Edward J. Shoen
Chairman of the Board and President

Dated: August 22, 2003
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears belovitatessand appoints Edward J. Shoen
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agenthvitll power of substitution and resubstitution; fom and in his name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amemdse this Form 10-K Annual Report, and to file #tame, with all exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith with theuBiies and Exchange Commission, granting untd atiorney-in-fact and agent, full
power and authority to do and perform each andyeaetror things requisite and necessary to be @oaad about the premises, as fully an
all intents and purposes as he might or could gmison hereby ratifying and confirming all thatlsattorney-in-fact and agent, or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cateske done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secariiichange Act of 1934, this report has been sitpedmlv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl EDWARD J. SHOEN Chairman of the Board and President August 22, 200
(Principal Executive Officer)

Edward J. Shoe

/sl GARY B. HORTON Treasurer August 22, 200
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Gary B. Hortor

/s| WILLIAM E. CARTY Director August 22, 200

William E. Carty

/sl JAMES P. SHOEN Director August 22, 200

James P. Shoe

/sl CHARLES J. BAYER Director August 22, 200

Charles J. Baye

/s/ JOHN M. DODDS Director August 22, 200
John M. Dodd:
/sl JAMES J. GROGAN Director August 22, 200

James J. Groge

/s/ JOHN P. BROGAN Director August 22, 200

John P. Broga



/s/ M. FRANK LYONS Director August 22, 200

M. Frank Lyons
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 185¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rdwstrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

U-HAUL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /slEDWARD J. SHOEN

Edward J. Shoen
Chairman of the Board and President

Dated: August 22, 2003
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears belovitatessand appoints Edward J. Shoen
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agenthvitll power of substitution and resubstitution; fom and in his name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amemdse this Form 10-K Annual Report, and to file #tame, with all exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith with theuBiies and Exchange Commission, granting untd atiorney-in-fact and agent, full
power and authority to do and perform each andyeaetror things requisite and necessary to be @oaad about the premises, as fully an
all intents and purposes as he might or could gmison hereby ratifying and confirming all thatlsattorney-in-fact and agent, or his
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cateske done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secariiichange Act of 1934, this report has been sitpedmlv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl EDWARD J. SHOEN Chairman of the Board and President August 22, 200
(Principal Executive Officer)

Edward J. Shoe

/sl GARY B. HORTON Assistant Treasurer August 22, 200
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Gary B. Hortor

/sl WILLIAM E. CARTY Director August 22, 200

William E. Carty

/s/ JOHN M. DODDS Director August 22, 200
John M. Dodd:

/s/ JOHN C. TAYLOR Director August 22, 200
John C. Taylo
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Edward J. Shoen, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Fof@¥Klof AMERCO and U-Haul International, Inc. (topet, the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repagsdwt contain any untrue statement of a matex@ldr omit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjend other financial information included ifsthnnual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, issaf operations and cash flows of the registesnof, and for, the periods presented in
this annual repor

4. The registrard’other certifying officers and | are responsililedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contaold procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the registrant and ha\

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaressure that material information relating te thgistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this annual
report is being prepare

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrattisslosure controls and procedures as of a datennd0D days prior to the filing
date of this annual report (t“ Evaluation Dat”); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusadimit the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Da

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafy to the registrarg’auditors an
the audit committee of the registr’'s board of directors (or persons performing theéwedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies in the design orepgtion of internal controls which could adversaffect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financia datl have identified for the registrant’s audiemmg material weaknesses in
internal controls; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt’
internal controls; an

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this annual report whethere were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulginsficantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard tonsfigant deficiencies and material weaknes

/sl EDWARD J. SHOEN

Edward J. Shoen
Chairman of the Board
and U-Haul International, Inc.

Date: August 22, 2003
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I, Gary B. Horton, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Fo@¥Klof AMERCO and U-Haul International, Inc. (tobet, the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual repagsdwmt contain any untrue statement of a matexcildr omit to state a material f
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual rep

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statés)end other financial information included irsthnnual report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenof, and for, the periods presented in
this annual repor

4. The registrand’other certifying officers and | are responsiltledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedure
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules -14 and 15-14) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaressure that material information relating te thgistrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in which this annual
report is being prepare

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures as of a dateni80 days prior to the filing
date of this annual report (t Evaluation Dat”); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusidomut the effectiveness of the disclosure conants procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Da

5. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have disclosed, based on our most recent atiafy to the registrarg’auditors an
the audit committee of the registr's board of directors (or persons performing thevedent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies in the design orepgtion of internal controls which could adversaffect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financia datl have identified for the registrant’s auditmg material weaknesses in
internal controls; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrars’
internal controls; an

6. The registrant’s other certifying officersdal have indicated in this annual report whethere were significant changes in
internal controls or in other factors that coulgngiicantly affect internal controls subsequenttte date of our most recent evaluation,
including any corrective actions with regard tonfigant deficiencies and material weaknes

/sl GARY B. HORTON

Gary B. Horton
Treasurer of AMERCO and
Assistant Treasurer of U-Haul International, Inc.

Date: August 22, 2003
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Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, fild-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2000, filel-11255.
Incorporated by reference to AMER(s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
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RESTATED

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION



OF
U-HAUL INTERNATIONAL, INC.

The undersigned, acting as the incorporator ofrparation in accordance with Section 78.403 ofNlewada General Corporation Law, adt
the following Restated Articles of Incorporation &uch corporation:

1. The name of the corporation is U-Haul Interradio Inc.
2. The name and address of the resident agenei€olporation Trust Company of Nevada, One East Birreet, Reno, Nevada 89501.

3. The nature of the business and the objects arpbpes to be transacted, promoted, or carried/dhebcorporation are to engage in any
lawful act or activity for which corporations mag brganized under the Nevada General Corporatianiheluding, but not in any way
limited to, acting as an accounting clearing hdesgersons, firms and corporations engaged irbtisiness of the rental of trucks, trailers
and general rental equipment.

4. The corporation shall have all the general qetific powers authorized for corporations in thevBida General Corporation Law as nov
hereafter in effect.

5. The number of shares of common stock whichabiporation is authorized to issue is twenty mill{@0,000,000) shares with a par value
of One Cent ($0.01) per share. In addition to mmon stock authorized to be issued by the forepgsémtence, the corporation is authori
to issue five million (5,000,000) shares of prederstock, with the Board of Directors having auitydio issue such shares in one or more
series, with par value of One Cent ($0.01) pereshaith limited voting powers or without voting pevs, and with such designations,
preferences, and relative, participating, optiaadther special rights or qualifications, limitats or restrictions thereof as shall be stated or
expressed in the resolution regarding such stookted by the Board of Directors pursuant to théatitty expressly vested in it by this
provision of the Articles of Incorporation, or aagnendment hereto.



6. For the management of the business, and fardhduct of the affairs of the corporation, andtfa further definition, limitation, and
regulation of the powers of the corporation andlitectors and stockholders, it is further provided

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Board of Directors stadhsist of not less than 4 nor more than 8 dirsctbe exact number of directors
to be determined from time to tine solely by a haeson adopted by an affirmative vote of a majoufythe entire Board of Directors. The
directors shall be divided into four classes, desigd Class I, Class 11, Class 111, and Classubjegt to applicable law, each class shall
consist, as nearly as may be possible, of oneHaifrthe total number of directors constituting #mire Board of Directors. At each annual
meeting of stockholders, commencing in 1990, swsmrsgo the class of directors whose term expirésesannual meeting shall be elected or
reelected for a four-year term.

If the number of directors is changed, any increasgecrease shall be apportioned among the clagsi®ctors so as to maintain the nurr
of directors in each class as nearly equal asIplessiut in no case will a decrease in the numbdirectors shorten the term of any incumt
director. When the number of directors is incredsgethe Board of Directors and any newly createdalorships are filled by the Board of
Directors, there shall be no classification of ldielitional directors until the next annual meetifigtockholders.

A director shall hold office until the meeting fibre year in which his or her term expires and umsilor her successor shall be elected and
shall qualify, subject, however, to prior deatlsigeation, retirement, disqualification or remofralm office.

This Article 6.A may be amended only by the affitima vote of twothirds of all of the outstanding shares of commimiels of the corporatic
entitled to vote, which vote must be by ballot audy constituted meeting of the stockholders,tbice of which meeting must include the
proposed amendment.

Directors need not be stockholders. The namesgadeés class designations, and terms of officeedfitst members of the Board of Directors
are:



Name Address Class Term
Mark V. Shoen 2727 N. Central Avenu e | 1 year
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Edward J. Shoen 2727 N. Central Avenu e | 1 year
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Richard J. Herrera 2727 N. Central Avenu e Il 2 years
Phoenix, AZ 85004

John C. Taylor 2727 N. Central ] 3 years
Phoenix, AZ 85004

W.E. "Hap" Carty 2727 N. Central ] 3 years
Phoenix, AZ 85004

John M. Dodds 2727 N. Central v 4 years
Phoenix, AZ 85004

James P. Shoen 1325 Airmotive Way v 4 years
Suite 160,

Reno, NV 89502

B. POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. In furtheranoe not in limitation of the powers conferred bg taws of the State of
Nevada, the Board of Directors is expressly autieariand empowere

() To make, alter, amend, and repeal the bylaulsjest to the power of the stockholders to amerdtiaws, which power may be exercised
only by the affirmative vote of two-thirds of alf the outstanding shares of common stock of thpamation entitled to vote, which vote must
be by ballot at a duly constituted meeting of tteekholders, the notice of which meeting must idelthe proposed amendment. This Article
6.B(i) may be amended only by the affirmative votéwo-thirds of all of the outstanding shares ofrenon stock of the corporation entitled
to vote, which vote must by ballot at duly congétimeeting of the stockholders, the notice of Winmeeting must include the proposed
amendment;

(i) Subject to the applicable provisions of thddwys then in effect, to determine, from time todinvhether and to what extent, and at what
times and places, and under what conditions andatgns, the accounts and books of the corporatioany of them, shall be open to
stockholder inspection. No stockholder shall hawergght to inspect any of the accounts, books or

3



documents of the corporation, except as permitjeldiv, unless and until authorized to do so by Ikggmn of the board of Directors or of the
stockholders of the corporation;

(iii) To authorize and issue, without stockholdensent, obligations of the corporation, securedwarscured, under such terms and
conditions as the Board of Directors, in its sdkerktion, may determine, and to pledge or mortgageecurity therefor, any real or personal
property of the corporation, including after-aceditproperty;

(iv) To determine whether any and, if so, what pafrthe earned surplus of the corporation shapdid in dividends to the stockholder, an
direct and determine other use and dispositiomgfsaich earned surplus;

(v) To fix, time time to time, the amount of theofits of the corporation to be reserved as worldapital or for any other lawful purpose;

(vi) To establish bonus, profit-sharing, stock optior other types of incentive compensation pfanthe employees, including officers and
directors, of the corporation, and to fix the antoofrprofits to be shared or distributed, and ttedmine the persons to participate in any such
plans and the amount of their respective parti@pat

(vii) To designate, by resolution or resolutionssed by a majority of the entire Board of Directanse or more committees, each consisting
of two or more directors, which, to the extent pitted by law and authorized by the resolution @ llylaws, shall have and may exercise the
powers of the Board of Directors;

(viii) To provide for the reasonable compensatibitsoown members, and to fix the terms and coadgiupon which such compensation will
be paid;

(ix) In addition to the powers and authority hebsifore, or by statute, expressly conferred upahé Board of Directors may exercise all
such powers and of all such acts and things ashmaxercised or done by the corporation, subjestertheless, to the provisions of the laws
of the State of Nevada, of these Articles of Incogtion, and of the bylaws of the corporation.

4



C. LIMITATION OF DIRECTOR LIABILITY. A director ofofficer of the corporation shall not be personéfiple to this corporation or its
stockholders for damages for breach of fiduciarty és a director or officer, but this Article 6.8adl not eliminate or limit the liability of a
director or officer for (i) acts or omissions whittvolve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowirnglation of law, or (ii) the unlawful
payment of dividends. Any repeal or modificatiortlis Article

6.C by the stockholders of the corporation shalptmspective only, and shall not adversely affegt lanitation on the personal liability of a
director or officer of the corporation for actsamissions prior to such repeal or modification.

7. The name and post office address of the incatpois as follows:

Name Address
Gary V. Klinefelter 2727 North Central Ave.
Phoenix, Arizona 8 5004

8. Except as otherwise provided by the board oé@aors, no holder of any shares of the stock ottrporation shall have any preemptive
right to purchase, subscribe for, or otherwise aecany shares of stock of the corporation of dagsnow or hereafter authorized, or any
securities exchangeable for or convertible intchssltares, or any warrants or other instrumentseecidg rights or options to subscribe for,
purchase or otherwise acquire such shares.

9. The duration of this corporation shall be parpet

10. The affirmative vote of the holders of two-ttEr(2/3) of the outstanding shares of common stdé¢hkis corporation entitled to vote shall
be required to approve, adopt or authorize:

A. Any agreement for the merger, consolidation, lgraation or combination of this corporation withimto any other corporation which is
an Interested Stockholder (as hereafter defined);

B. Any sale, lease, exchange or other dispositiaar with this corporation of any assets of angilested Stockholder;

C. Any sale, lease, exchange or other dispositjotiiis corporation of all or substantially all &t assets of this corporation to or with an
Interested Stockholder;



D. Any plan or proposal for liquidation or dissatut of this corporation if any stockholder of tlsisrporation is an Interested Stockholder; or

E. Any reclassification of securities (includingyareverse stock split) or recapitalization of tbégporation which has the effect, directly or
indirectly, of increasing the proportionate shar¢he outstanding shares of any class of stocloovertible securities of this corporation,
directly or indirectly owned by an Interested Stoakler.

As used herein, Interested Stockholder shall megrparson, firm, corporation or other entity whiels,of the record date for the
determination of stockholders entitled to noticenfl to vote on any of the above transaction$ieideneficial owner, directly or indirectly,
more than five percent (5%) of any class of vositark of this corporation. For the purposes herauy, person, firm, corporation or other
entity shall be deemed to be the beneficial owfhi@ny shares of voting stock of this corporatioriakh(i) it has the right to acquire pursuant
to any agreement or upon exercise of conversidrigjgvarrants or options, or otherwise, or (ii) anned, directly or indirectly (including
shares deemed owned through the application o§eléyabove), by any other person, firm, corporatr other entity with which it has any
agreement, arrangement or understanding with regpéte acquisition, holding, voting or dispositiof stock of this corporation, or which is
its "affiliate" or "associate" as those terms agéreed in the Rules and Regulations under the $@&siExchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The Board of Directors of this corporation shaéahe power and duty, by resolution adopted byaffiemative vote of a majority of the
entire Board of Directors, to determine (and suetednination shall be conclusive) for the purpasfehis Article 10, on the basis of
information known to it, whether (i) any persomnfi corporation or other entity is the beneficialn@r, directly or indirectly, of more than
five percent (5%) of any class of voting stockhagtcorporation, (ii) any proposed sale, leaseharge or other disposition involves all or
substantially all of the assets of this corporatmm(iii) any person, firm, corporation or othetiéy has any agreement, arrangement or
understanding with respect to the acquisition, ingidvoting or disposition of stock of this corptiom with any other person, firm,
corporation or other entity.



Notwithstanding any other provision of these Adggbf Incorporation, the affirmative vote of thdders of twe-thirds (2/3) of the outstandil
shares of common stock of this corporation entittedote shall be required to amend, alter, chamgepeal, or to adopt any provision
inconsistent with, this Article 10.

The respective two-thirds voting requirements dpetiabove for any of the transactions referrethtany one or more of paragraphs A
through E above, or to amend, alter, change omatepeto adopt any provision inconsistent withs tArticle 10, shall not be applicable to a
proposed action which has been approved or recom@aeny majority of the Disinterested Directorspasd herein, a "Disinterested
Director" means (i) any Director named in thesdddes of Incorporation as one of the first memb#rthe corporation's Board of Directors,
(i) any Director of the corporation who is electegthe stockholders or appointed by the Boardieédors of this corporation and was not at
the time of such election or appointment associaftitid or an affiliate of an Interested Stockhold@ectly or indirectly involved in the
transaction or proposal before the Board of Dines;tor (iii) a person designated, before his ebectir appointment as a director, as a
Disinterested Director by a majority of DisinteesgbtDirectors then on the Board of Directors.

11. Shareholder action by written consent is pritdnib This Article 11 may be amended only by tHeraftive vote of two-thirds of all of the
outstanding shares of common stock of the corpmratititled to vote, which vote must be by ballod @uly constituted meeting of the
stockholders, the notice of which meeting mustudelthe proposed amendment.

The name and address of the original incorporats: w
Gary V. Klinefelter 2727 N. Central Ave.
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed the foregétegStated Articles of Incorporation of U-Haul Intetional, Inc. this 3rd day of
August, 1992.

/'s/ Edward J. Shoen

Edward J. Shoen, President
/sl Gary V. Klinefelter

Gary V. Klinefelter, Secretary
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AFFIDAVIT OF AUTHORITY
Edward J. Shoen and Gary V. Klinefelter, beingt fihsly sworn, deposes and says:
1. Edward J. Shoen and Gary V. Klinefelter aredhly elected President and Secretary, respectieél;Haul International, Inc.

2. The President and Secretary of U-Haul Intermafidnc. have been authorized to execute the Rekfaticles of Incorporation of U-Haul
International, Inc. by resolution of the Board afdators adopted on August 3, 1992.

3. The Restated Articles of Incorporation of U-Hmikrnational, Inc. do not alter or amend the @es of Incorporation in any manner.

4. The Restated Avrticles of Incorporation oHawl International, Inc. correctly set forth th&ttef the Articles of Incorporation as amende:
the date thereof.

/'s/ Edward J. Shoen

Edward J. Shoen, President

/sl Gary V. Klinefelter

Gary V. Klinefelter,
Secretary

STATE OF ARIZONA )
) ss
COUNTY OF MARICOPA )

| HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 3rd day of August,99 Edward J. Shoen and Gary V. Klinefelter, peafigrappeared before me a Notary
Public in and for the State and County aforesalt) made oath under due form of law that the faet$osth are true and correct to the bes
their knowledge and belief.

| hereunto affix my hand and notarial seal.

/sl Nancy Jo Beil ey

Notary Public

[OFFICIAL SEAL OF NANCY JO BEILEY]



Exhibit 3.4
BYLAWS OF
U-HAUL INTERNATIONAL, INC.
A NEVADA CORPORATION
ARTICLE |
SECTION 1. Offices:

The principal office and registered office of thermoration shall be located in the State of Newatdauch locations as the Board of Directors
may from time to time authorize by resolution. Teeporation may have such other offices either iwitr without the State of Nevada as the
Board of Directors may designate or as the busiokse corporation may require from time to time.

SECTION 2. References:

Any reference herein made to law will be deemeskter to the law of the State of Nevada, includamy applicable provisions of Chapter 78
of Title 7, Nevada Revised Statutes (or its suam@sas at any given time in effect. Any refereheeein made to the Articles will be deemed
to refer to the applicable provision or provisiaighe Articles of Incorporation of the corporatj@nd all amendments thereto, as at any ¢
time on file with the office of the clerk of Wash@aunty, Nevada.

SECTION 3. Shareholders of Record:
The word "shareholder" as used herein shall meando is a holder of record of shares in the cafan.
ARTICLE Il
SHAREHOLDERS
SECTION 1. Annual Meeting:

An annual meeting of the shareholders for the igledf directors to succeed those whose terms exguid for the



transaction of such other business as may properhe before the meeting shall be held on the latstr8ay of September of each year at a
time of day and place as determined by the Boafirgictors, or on such other date as may be detedridy the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Special Meetings:

a. Special meetings of the shareholders may bewtedthever and wherever called by the ChairmaneBibard, a majority of the Board of
Directors, or upon the delivery of proper writteguest of the holders of not less than fifty per¢B@%o) of all the shares outstanding and
entitled to vote at such meeting. The businesshvimay be conducted at any such special meetingowitlonfined to the purpose stated in
notice thereof, and to such additional matterhashairman of such meeting may rule to be gerrtmsach purposes.

b. For purposes of this Section, proper writteruest for the call of a special meeting shall be entagla written request specifying the
purposes for any special meeting requested anddingvthe information required by Section 5 of tAigicle Il hereof. Such written request
must be delivered either in person or by registereckrtified mail, return receipt requested, te @hairman of the Board, or such other pe

as may be specifically authorized by law to recsiveh request. Within thirty (30) days after reteipproper written request, a special
meeting shall be called and notice given in themeamequired by these bylaws and the meeting bledtield at a time and place selected by
the Board of Directors, but not later than nin&@g)(days after receipt of such proper written retjuiehe shareholder(s) who request a special
meeting of shareholders must pay the corporatierctimporation's reasonably estimated cost of pirggpand mailing a notice of a meeting of
shareholders before such notice is prepared anddanai

SECTION 3. Notice:

Notice of any meeting of the shareholders will beeg by the corporation as provided by law to esteareholder entitled to vote at st
meeting. Any such notice may be waived as provimethw.

SECTION 4. Right to Vote:

For each meeting of the shareholders, the BoaRirettors will fix in advance a record date as eomplated by law, and the shares of stock
and the shareholders "entitled to vote" (as thangrsimilar term is herein used) at any meetinthef
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shareholders will be determined as of the appleattord date. The Secretary (or in his or herratesan Assistant Secretary) will see to the
making and production of any record of shareholéetiled to vote that is required by law. Any sggtiitiement may be exercised through
proxy, or in such other manner as is specificattypled by law. No proxy shall be valid after elave

(11) months from the date of its execution unlgbgwise provided by the proxy. In the event oftesh the burden of proving the validity of
any undated, irrevocable, or otherwise contestegypwill rest with the person seeking to exercise $ame. A telegram, cablegram, or
facsimile appearing to have been transmitted byaseholder (or by his duly authorized attorneyaat) may, in the discretion of the tellers
any, be accepted as a sufficiently written and ebestproxy.

SECTION 5. Manner of Bringing Business Before thedting:

At any annual or special meeting of shareholdehg such business (including nomination as a dingctball be conducted as shall have been
properly brought before the meeting. In order t@haperly brought before the meeting, such businasst have either been (A) specified in
the written notice of the meeting (or any suppletibareto) given to shareholders on the record fdatsuch meeting by or at the direction of
the Board of Directors, (B) brought before the rirepéat the direction of the Board of Directors loe Chairman of the meeting, selected as
provided in Section 9 of this Article Il, or (C)esgified in a written notice given by or on behdlacsshareholder on the record date for such
meeting entitled to vote thereat or a duly autheatiproxy for such shareholder, in accordance witbfdhe following requirements. A notice
referred to in clause (C) hereof must be delivgrexdonally to, or mailed to and received at, thiegipal executive office of the corporation,
addressed to the attention of the Secretary, not than ten

(10) days after the date of the initial notice redd to in clause (A) hereof, in the case of busdrte be brought before a special meeting of
shareholders, and not less than one hundred amty\{#20) days prior to the anniversary date ofitfigal notice referred to in clause (A)
hereof with respect to the previous year's annwadting, in the case of business to be brought eeforannual meeting of shareholders. Such
notice referred to in clause (C) hereof shall eghf(i) a full description of each such item osmess proposed to be brought before the
meeting and the reasons for conducting such busatesuch meeting, (ii) the name and address gfe¢hson proposing to bring such busir
before the meeting, (iii) the class and numberhafss held of record, held beneficially, and regmésd by proxy by such person as of the
record date for the meeting, if such date has beshe
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publicly available, or as of a date not later thiairty(30) days prior to the delivery of the initiaotice referred to in clause (A) hereof, if the
record date has not been made publicly availabgif @ny item of such business involves a nomimrafor director, all information regarding
each such nominee that would be required to bfodétin a definitive proxy statement filed withettsecurities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Section 14 of the Securities ExchangieoA1934, as amended, or any successor theraaha written consent of each such
nominee to serve if elected, (v) any material iméof such shareholder in the specified busir{egsyhether or not such shareholder is a
member of any partnership, limited partnershipdégyaite, or other group pursuant to any agreemeraingement, relationship, understanding,
or otherwise, whether or not in writing, organiZzedvhole or in part for the purpose of acquiringjmng, or voting shares of the corporation,
and (vii) all other information that would be rergd to be filed with the Securities and Exchangen@dssion if, with respect to the business
proposed to be brought before the meeting, theopgysoposing such business was a participant glicitation subject to Section 14 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, osaogessor thereto. No business shall be broudtitebany meeting of the shareholder:
the corporation otherwise than as provided in 8@stion.

Notwithstanding compliance with the foregoing psions, the Board of Directors shall not be obligateinclude information as to au
shareholder nominee for director or any other diwder proposal in any proxy statements or othemrnanication sent to shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting may, if the facts watrrdetermine that any proposed item of businesmorination as director was not brou
before the meeting in accordance with the foregpmgedure, and if he should so determine, he sbaleclare to the meeting and the
improper item of business or nomination shall letjarded.

SECTION 6. Right to Attend:

Except only to the extent of persons designatethéyBoard of Directors or the Chairman of the megtd assist in the conduct of the
meeting, and except as otherwise permitted by tiedBor such Chairman, the persons entitled to@tmy meeting of shareholders may be
confined to (i) shareholders entitled to vote thesnd (ii) the persons upon whom proxies validpiamposes of the meeting have been
conferred or their duly appointed substitutesh# telated proxies confer a power of substitutipnyvided, however, that the Board of
Directors or the Chairman of the meeting may ehlslles
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limiting the number of persons referred to in ckai as being entitled to attend on behalf of ahgreholder so as to preclude such an
excessively large representation of such sharehatdée meeting as, in the judgment of the Boarsuch Chairman, would be unfair to ot
shareholders represented at the meeting or be yidduliptive to the orderly conduct; of businessuath meeting (whether such
representation would result from fragmentationhef aggregate number of shares held by such shdegtol the purpose of conferring
proxies, from the naming of an excessively largexprdelegation by such shareholder, or from emplkaynof any other device). A person
otherwise entitled to attend any such meeting egiise to be so entitled if, in the judgment ofGhairman of the meeting, such person
engages thereat in disorderly conduct impedingtbper conduct of the meeting in the interestdisteareholders as a group.

SECTION 7. Quorum Requirements:

A majority of the outstanding shares of the corfioraentitled to vote, represented in person opimxy, shall constitute a quorum at a
meeting of the shareholders. If less than a mgjofithe outstanding shares are represented attngethe majority of the shares so
represented may adjourn the meeting without funtféice. At such adjourned meeting at which a qooshall be present or represented, any
business may be transacted which might have beesacted at the meeting originally called.

SECTION 8. Tellers:

The Board of Directors, in advance of any sharedrsldheeting may appoint one or more tellers t@aastich meeting (and any adjournment
thereof), and may appoint one or more alternaterteto serve (in the order designated) in the mtesef any teller or tellers so appointed. If
any person appointed as teller or alternate tédits to appear or to act, a substitute may be iapgd by the Chairman of the meeting. The
tellers (acting through a majority of them on aigpdted matter) will determine the number of shangstanding, the authenticity, validity
and effect of proxies, the credentials of the pesguurporting to be shareholders or persons namesfesred to in proxies, and the number of
shares represented at the meeting in person apcbly; they will receive and count votes, ballotsl @onsents and announce the results
thereof; they will hear and determine all challengad questions pertaining to proxies and voting; & general, they will perform such acts
as may be proper to conduct elections and votirly @@mplete fairness to all shareholders. No saltbrtneed be a shareholder of the
corporation. Each shareholder shall be entitleshi® VVote
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for each share of stock held by him or her, anthénevent a shareholder holds a fraction of a stvaf@l shares plus a fraction, any such
fractional share shall be entitled to a proportterfeaction of one vote.

SECTION 9. Organization and Conduct of Business:

Each shareholders' meeting will be called to oedet thereafter chaired by the Chairman of the Bddlaere then is one; or, if not, or if the
Chairman of the Board is absent or so requests,liighe President; or if both the Chairman ofBleard and the President are unavailable,
then by such other officer of the corporation artsahareholder as may be appointed by the Bodbdreftors. The Secretary (or in his or her
absence an Assistant Secretary) of the corporatibact as secretary of each shareholders meeifimgjther the Secretary nor an Assistant
Secretary is in attendance, the Chairman of thdingemay appoint any person (whether a sharehaldeot) to act as secretary thereat. After
calling a meeting to order, the Chairman thereof neguire the registration of all shareholdersridiag to vote in person, and the filing of
proxies, with the teller or tellers, if one or mdrave been appointed (or, if not, with the secyeththe meeting). After the announced time
such filing of proxies has ended, no further prexde changes, substitutions, or revocations ofipsowill be accepted. The Chairman of a
meeting will, among other things, have absolut@dauty to determine the order of business to bedooted at such meeting and to establish
rules for, and appoint personnel to assist in,grésg the orderly conduct of the business of tleetimg (including any informal, or question
and answer, portions thereof). Any informationabtiter informal session of shareholders conductettuthe auspices of the corporation
after the conclusion of or otherwise in conjunctigith any formal business meeting of the sharehsldall be chaired by the same person
who chairs the formal meeting, and the foregointpauity on his or her part will extend to the contaf such informal session.

SECTION 10. Voting:

The number of shares voted on any matter subntittéte shareholders which is required to constitioeér action thereon or approval thereof
will be determined in accordance with applicabig,lthe Articles, and these bylaws, if applicableti\g will be by ballot on any matter as to
which a ballot vote is demanded, prior to the tihmee voting begins, by any person entitled to vetesach matter; otherwise, a voice vote will
suffice. No ballot or change of vote will be acaapafter the polls have been declared closed fatigpthe ending of the announced time for
voting.
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SECTION 11. Shareholder Approval or Ratification:

The Board of Directors may submit any contractarfar approval or ratification at any duly constéd meeting of the shareholders, the
notice of which either includes mention of the pyegd submittal or is waived as provided by lavany contract or act so submitted is
approved or ratified by a majority of the votestdhsreon at such meeting, the same will be vaidias binding upon the corporation as it
would be if approved and ratified by each and ewfigreholder of the corporation.

SECTION 12. Informalities and Irregularities:

All informalities or irregularities in any call arotice of a meeting, or in the areas of credentfalsxies, quorums, voting, and similar matters,
will be deemed waived if no objection is made atieeting.

SECTION 13. Action Without a Meeting:

No action which may be taken by a vote of the diaoers may be taken unless taken at a meetingduettiant to Section 1 or Section 2
this Article 11.

ARTICLE Il
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SECTION 1. Number and Term of Directors:

The Board of Directors shall consist of not lestl nor more than 8 directors, the exact numbdire€tors to be determined from time to
time solely by a resolution adopted by an affirmatrote of a majority of the entire Board of Direst The directors shall be divided into f
classes, designated Class I, Class Il, Class tliGlass V. Subject to applicable law, each clasdl €onsist, as nearly as may be possible, of
one-fourth of the total number of directors comsitity the entire Board of Directors. At each anmaakting of shareholders, successors to the
class of directors whose term expires at the anmea&lting shall be elected or reelected for a faaryerm.
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If the number of directors is changed, any increasgecrease shall be apportioned among the clagsi®ctors so as to maintain the nurr
of directors in each class as nearly equal as lples$iut in no case will a decrease in the numbati@ctors shorten the term of any
incumbent director. When the number of directorisdseased by the Board of Directors and any nendated directorships are filled by the
Board, there shall be no classification of the ddal directors until the next annual meeting ledieholders.

A director shall hold office until the meeting fibre year in which his or her term expires and umsilor her successor shall be elected and
shall qualify, subject, however, to prior deatlsigeation, retirement, disqualification or remofralm office.

SECTION 2. Vacancies:

Newly created directorships resulting from an iase=in the number of the directors and any vacandje Board of Directors shall be fill:
by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Boardirectors then in office. If the number of direcs then in office is less than a quorum, ¢
newly created directorships and vacancies maylled foy a majority of the directors then in offi@though less than a quorum, or by the
remaining director. A director elected by the Boafdirectors to fill a vacancy shall hold officatil the next meeting of shareholders called
for the election of directors and until his or Baccessor shall be elected and shall qualify.

SECTION 3. Regular Meetings:

After the adjournment of the annual meeting ofgshareholders of the corporation, the newly eleBlizectors shall meet for the purpose of
organization, the election of officers, and thes@ction of such other business as may come bsfideneeting. No notice shall be required
for such meeting. The meeting may be held withiwibhout the State of Nevada. Regular meetingsratinan the annual ones, may be he
regular intervals at such times and places as tlzedBof Directors may provide.

SECTION 4. Special Meetings:

Special meetings of the Board of Directors mayddked at any time by the President or by any onmber of the Board giving written noti
thereof to the President of said corporation, a special meeting may be called without noticaubgnimous consent of all the members by
the presence of all the members
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of said board at any such meeting. The specialingebf the Board of Directors may be held withimagthout the State of Nevada.
SECTION 5. Notice:

No notice need be given of regular meetings oBbard of Directors. Notice of the time and placat (ot necessarily the purpose or al

the purposes) of any special meeting will be giteeaach director in person or by telephone, omvéal or telegram addressed in the manner
then appearing on the corporation's records. Noti@ny director of any special meeting will be meel given sufficiently in advance wher

if given by mail, the same is deposited in the BlaiStates mail at least four days before the mgetite, with postage thereon prepaid, (ii) if
given by telegram, the same is delivered to thegtelph office for fast transmittal at least 48 lsqonior to the convening of the meeting, (i
given by facsimile transmission, the same is resbivy the director or an adult member of his ordféice staff or household, at least 24
hours prior to the convening of the meeting, o ffiyersonally delivered or given by telephones #ame is handed, or the substance thereof
is communicated over the telephone, to the diremtdo an adult member of his or her office stafhousehold, at least 24 hours prior to the
convening of the meeting. Any such notice may bevedhas provided by law. No call or notice of a tiragof directors will be necessary if
each of them waives the same in writing or by alté&cte. Any meeting, once properly called and ndt{ce as to which call and notice have
been waived as aforesaid) and at which a quordorised, may be adjourned to another time and dbgce majority of those in attendance.

SECTION 6. Quorum:

A majority of the Board of Directors shall constéwa quorum for the transaction of business, exsbptre otherwise provided by law or by
these bylaws, but if at any meeting of the Boasd khan a quorum is present, a majority of thosegmt may adjourn the meeting from time
to time until a quorum is obtained.

SECTION 7. Action by Telephone or Consent:

Any meeting of the Board or any committee thereaf/rhe held by conference telephone or similar comoations equipment as permitted
by law in which case any required notice of sucletimg may generally describe the arrangementsgrdittan the place) for the holding
thereof, and all other provisions herein contaioetkeferred to will apply to such meeting as
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though it were physically held at a single placetién may also be taken by the Board or any conemitihereof without a meeting if the
members thereof consent in writing thereto as coptated by law.

SECTION 8. Order of Business:

The Board of Directors may, from time to time, detime the order of business at its meetings. Tlialusrder of business at such meetings
shall be as follows:

1st Roll Call; a quorum being present.
2nd. Reading of minutes of the preceding meetirthaation thereon.
3rd. Consideration of communications of the BodrBioectors.
4th. Reports of officials and committees.
5th. Unfinished business.
6th. Miscellaneous business.
7th. New business.
8th. Adjournment.
ARTICLE IV

POWER OF DIRECTORS
SECTION I. Generally:
The Government in control of the corporation shallvested in the Board of Directors.
SECTION 2. Special Powers:
The Board of Directors shall have, in additionttodther powers, the express right to exercisédlt@ving powers:

1. To purchase, lease, and acquire, in any lawéuimar any and all real or personal property inclgdianchises, stocks, bonds and
debentures of other companies, business and gdpgatiénts, trademarks in contracts, and intetest®under, and other rights and prope
which in their judgment, may be
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beneficial for the purpose of this corporation, émissue shares of stock of this corporation iynpent of such property, and in payment for
services rendered to this corporation when theyndéadvisable.

2. To fix and determine and to vary, from timeitod, the amount or amounts to be set aside omedais reserve funds or as working capital
of this corporation.

3. To issue notes and other obligations or evideftke debt of this corporation, and to securestdmae, if deemed advisable, and endorst
guarantee the notes, bonds, stocks, and otheratiblig of other corporations with or without comgation for so doing, and from time to
time to sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispafseny of the property of this corporation, sulbjéowever, to the laws of the State of
Nevada, governing the disposition of the entireetssand business of the corporation as a goingecor

4. To declare and pay dividends, both in the fofrmoney and stock, but only from the surplus onfrile net profit arising from the busin
of this corporation, after deducting therefrom éimeounts, at the time when any dividend is declardeidh shall have been set aside by the
Directors as a reserve fund or as a working fund.

5. To adopt, modify and amend the bylaws of thipomation.

6. To periodically determine by Resolution of theaBd the amount of compensation to be paid to mesrdfehe Board of Directors in
accordance with Article 6, Section B, Subsectidnofithe Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE V
SECTION 1. Committees:

From time to time the Board of Directors, by affative vote of a majority of the whole Board may aipp any committee or committees for
any purpose or purposes, and such committee or dteesishall have and may exercise such powersadishe conferred or authorized by
the resolution of appointment. Provided, howevsaif such committee or committees shall at no timehmore power than that authorizec
law.
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ARTICLE VI
OFFICERS

SECTION 1. Officers:

The officers of the corporation shall consist ¢frasident, one or more Vice-Presidents, Secrefagistant Secretaries, Treasurer, Assistant
Treasurer, a resident agent and such other offaeshall from time to time be provided for by Baard of Directors. Such officers shall be
elected by ballot or unanimous acclamation at thetng of the Board of Directors after the anndetton of Directors. In order to hold any
election there must be quorum present, and angesffeceiving a majority vote shall be declaredtelé and shall hold office for one year ¢
until his or her respective successor shall haenlokily elected and qualified; provided, howeveat &ll officers, agents and employees of
the corporation shall be subject to removal froficefpre-emptorily by vote of the Board of Diretat any meeting.

SECTION 2. Powers and Duties of Chairman of therBoa

The Chairman of the Board of Directors will sergeaageneral executive officer, but not necessaslg full-time employee, of the
corporation. He or she shall preside at all mestivfghe shareholders and of the Board of Directirall have the powers and duties set forth
in these bylaws, and shall do and perform suchrathes as from time to time may be assigned byBbard of Directors.

SECTION 3. Powers and Duties of President:

The President shall at all times be subject tactirdrol of the Board of Directors. He shall havag®l charge of the affairs of the corporat
He shall supervise over and direct all officers antployees of the corporation and see that theieslare properly performed. The President,
in conjunction with the Secretary, shall sign ardaaite all contracts, notes, mortgages, and adlrathligations in the name of the
corporation, and with the Secretary or Assistatr&ary shall sign all certificates of the sharkethe capital stock of the corporation.

The President shall each year present an annuatt @the preceding year's business to the BohRirectors at a meeting to be held
immediately preceding the annual meeting Of theedfw@ders, which report shall be read at the anmeadting of the shareholders. The
President shall do and perform such other dutidsastime to time may be assigned by the BoarBioéctors to him.
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Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary cama in the bylaws of the corporation, the Board/ratany time and from time to tin
direct the manner in which any person or personstoym any particular contract, document, note striiment in writing of the corporation
may or shall be signed by and may authorize argenfbr officers of the corporation to sign sucimttacts, documents, notes or instruments.

SECTION 4. Powers and Duties of Vice-president:

The Vicepresident shall have such powers and perform sutibsdas may be assigned to him by the Board afdiirs of the corporation a
in the absence or inability of the President, thee\president shall perform the duties of the Piers.

SECTION 5. Powers and Duties of the Secretary asgistant Secretary:

The Secretary of said corporation shall keep thautes of all meetings of the Board of Directors #rmlminutes of all meetings of the
shareholders, and also when requested by a coraptitie minutes of such committee, in books providedhe purpose. He shall attend to
giving and serving of notice of the corporationshill be the duty of the Secretary to sign with Bmesident, in the name of the corporation,
all contracts, notes, mortgages, and other instnisrend other obligations authorized by the Bodiirectors, and when so ordered by the
Board of Directors, he shall affix the Seal of amgtion thereto. The Secretary shall have chargdl dboks, documents, and papers properly
belonging to his office, and of such other bookd papers as the Board of Directors may directhénabsence or inability of the Secretary,
the Assistant Secretary shall perform the dutigbefSecretary.

Execution of Instruments:

In addition to the provisions of any previous bysas@specting the execution of instruments of thpam@tion, the Board of Directors may
from time to time direct the manner in which anficgr or officers or by whom any particular deadyisfer, assignment, contract, obligation,
certificate, promissory note, guarantee and ottgriment or instruments may be signed on behalfeotorporation and any acts of the
Board of Directors subsequent to the 1st day ofeDdxer, 1978 in accordance with the provision of thilaw are hereby adopted, ratified
confirmed as actions binding upon and enforceatpénat the corporation.
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SECTION 6. Powers and Duties of Treasurer and fs#id reasurer:

The Treasurer shall have the care and custody hfrals and securities of the corporation, and dépbe same in the name of the corpors

in such bank or banks or other depository as tihedbirs may select. He shall sign checks, draftsces, and orders for the payment of
money, and he shall pay out and dispose of the saher the direction of the Board of Directors, bliecks may be signed as directed by the
Board by resolution. The Treasurer shall geneadiform the duties of and act as the financial afmrthe corporation for the receipt and
disbursement of its funds. He shall give such bondhe faithful performance of his duties as tteaR] of Directors may determine. The
office of the Treasurer of said corporation maybkl by the same person holding the President,-pliesident or Secretary's office, provided
the Board of Directors indicates the combinatiothelse offices. In the absence or inability of Theasurer, the Assistant Treasurer shall
perform the duties of the Treasurer.

SECTION 7. Indemnification:

The corporation shall indemnify, to the fullestentauthorized or permitted by law, as the sam&®»ir may hereafter be amended (but, in
the case of any such amendment, only to the ettahtuch amendment permits the corporation toigeodbroader indemnification rights th
such law permitted the corporation to provide ptiosuch amendment), any person made, or threaterisimade, a defendant or witness to
any threatened, pending or completed action, suftroceeding (whether civil, criminal, adminisivat investigative or otherwise) by reason
of the fact that he or she, or his or her testatantestate, is or was a director or officer af ttorporation or by reason of the fact that such
director or officer, at the request of the corpiamatis or was serving any other corporation, panghip, joint venture, trust, employee benefit
plan, or other enterprise. Nothing contained heseall diminish any rights to indemnification to istn employees or agents other than
directors or officers may be entitled by law, ahd torporation may indemnify such employees andtage the fullest extent and in the
manner permitted by law. The rights to indemnifimatset forth in this Article VI,

Section 7 shall not be exclusive of any other ggbtwhich any person may be entitled under anytgtaprovision of the Articles of
Incorporation, bylaw, agreement, contract, votstareholders or disinterested directors, or otrssrwi
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In furtherance and not in limitation of the poweosferred by statute:

1. The corporation may purchase and maintain imagran behalf of any person who is or was a dirgofficer, employee or agent of the
corporation, or is serving in any capacity, atthguest of the corporation, any other corporafi@mtnership, joint venture, trust, employee
benefit plan or other enterprise, against any liiglor expense incurred by him or her in any saapacity, or arising out of his or her statu
such, whether or not the corporation would havepther to indemnify him or her against such ligpitr expense under the provisions of
law; and

2. The corporation may create a trust fund, grasgcarity interest or lien on any assets of the@@tion and/or use other means (including,
without limitation, letters of credit, guarantiesirety bonds and/or other similar arrangements) eater into contracts providing
indemnification to the full extent authorized orpéted by law and including as part thereof prais with respect to any or all of the
foregoing to ensure the payment of such amountsagsbecome necessary to effect indemnificatiorragighed therein, or elsewhere.

ARTICLE VI
STOCK AND CERTIFICATES AND TRANSFERS
SECTION 1. Stock and Certificates and Transfers:

All certificates for the shares of the capital &to€ the corporation shall be signed by the Pregide Vice-President, and Secretary or
Assistant Secretary. All certificates shall be @magively numbered in progression beginning witmber one. Each certificate shall show
upon its face that the corporation is organizedeutide laws of Nevada, the number and par valua)if of each share represented by it, the
name of the person owning the shares represergeebty with the number of each share and and tteeadiassue, and that the stock thereby
represented is transferable only upon the bookiseoforporation. A stock transfer book, known asdtock register shall be kept, in which
shall be entered the number of each certificateegsnd the name of the person owning the shagestiy represented, with the number of
such shares and the date of issue. The transgeryohare or
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shares of stock in the corporation may be madeaitrgsder of the certificate issued therefor, ardwthitten assignment thereof by the owner
or his duly authorized Attorney in Fact. Upon ssanrender and assignment, a new certificate skaidued to the Assignee as he may be
entitled, but without such surrender and assignmeritansfer of stock shall be recognized by thgpation. The Board of Directors shall
have the power concerning the issue, transfer egidtration of certificates for agents and registd transfer, and may require all stock
certificates to bear signatures of either or bdtie stock transfer books shall be closed ten defer® each meeting of the shareholders and
during such period no stock shall be transferred.

SECTION 2. Right of First Refusal on Its Outstamgd@®ommon Stock:

a. In case any holder of shares of Common Stotkeo€orporation shall wish to make any sale, temasf other disposition of all or any part
of the shares held by him, he shall first notifg ®ecretary of the corporation in writing designgtihe number of shares which he desires to
dispose of, the name(s) of the person(s) to wharh shares are to be disposed of and the bonadg&leprice at which such shares are to be
so disposed of.

b. The corporation shall have a period of 30 caemtdys following the date of its receipt of suchice to determine whether it wishes to
purchase such shares at the price stated therath.dgtermination shall be made by the corpordiipits delivery to such holder of a written
acceptance of such offer within such 30-day per&uth written acceptance shall specify the datedtnot later than the tenth calendar day
following the date on which such 30-day period exg), time and place at which such holder shallvdeto the corporation the certificate(s)
for the shares of Common Stock to be so sold agtiegielivery by the corporation of a certifiedb@nk cashier's check in the amount of the
purchase price therefor.

c. If the corporation shall not so accept suchroffihin such 30-day period, then such holder shalentitled, for a period of 90 days
commencing on the first day after the date on wkiath 30-day period expires, to dispose of allnyr@art of the shares of Common Stock
designated in such notice to the corporation aptiee set forth therein to the prospective namadsferee(s) and such transferee(s)
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shall be entitled to have such shares transfemed the books of the corporation upon its acquisithereof at such price. If such holder shall
not dispose of all or any part of such shares withich 90-day period (or, in the event of a salgaof thereof, the shares remaining
untransferred), such shares shall continue to bgstin all respects to the provision of this Aldi VII, Sec. 2.

d. All certificates for shares of Common Stock §hsad long as the provisions of this Article VIle& 2 shall be in effect, bear the following
legend:

"The transfer of the shares represented by thtfficate is subject to a right of first refusal the corporation as provided in its bylaws, anc
transfer of this certificate or the shares repriethereby shall be valid or effective unless amiil auch provision of the bylaws shall have
been met. A copy of the bylaws of the corporat®anailable for inspection at the principal offafethe corporation.”

e. The provisions of this Article VII, Sec. 2 mag terminated or modified at any time by the affitiveavote of not less than a majority of the
then number of directors of the corporation. Eagldér of shares of Common Stock shall be notifiedny such termination and shall have
the right to exchange his outstanding certificatestich shares for a certificate without the afaicttegend.

SECTION 3. Lost Certificates:

In the event of the loss, theft or destructionmyf aertificate representing shares of stock of ¢tbigoration, the corporation may issue (or, in
the case of any such stock as to which a trangkmtaand/or registrar have been appointed, magtditech transfer agent and/or registrar to
countersign, register and issue) a replacemerificat in lieu of that alleged to be lost, stolendestroyed, and cause the same to be
delivered to the owner of the stock representeckthe provided that the owner shall have submisigch evidence showing the circumstar
of the alleged loss , theft or destruction, andoniker ownership of the certificate as the corpponaconsiders satisfactory, together with any
other facts which the corporation considers pentinend further
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provided that an indemnity agreement and/or indgnirond shall have been provided in form and ameatisfactory to the corporation and
to its transfer agents and/or registrars, if apytlie.

ARTICLE VIl

FISCAL YEAR
SECTION 1. Fiscal Year:
The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixgdrésolution of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IX

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

SECTION 1. Amendment of Bylaws by the Board of Ditgs:
The bylaws may be amended by a majority vote oBibard of Directors of this corporation at any nivegbf the Board of Directors.
SECTION 2 . Shareholder Amendment of Bylaws:

The bylaws may be amended by an affirmative votevofthirds of all of the outstanding shares of coom stock entitled to vote, which vote
must be by ballot at a duly constituted meetinthefshareholders, the notice of which meeting rmestide the proposed amendment.
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CERTIFICATE

I, Gary V. Klinefelter, Secretary of UHI Merger Quarration, a Nevada corporation, do hereby certifit the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of the corporation's bylaws, and that suclawglare in full force and effect as of the datebgr

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my handafiged the seal of the corporation this 30th dayuly,1990.

/sl Gary V. Klinefelter

Gary V. Klinefelter,
Secretary
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Exhibit 10.64

SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT
dated as of December 30, 1997
made by

AMERCO,
as Support Party

and

PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.P.,
as Borrower

in favor of

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK,
as Administrative Agent

for the benefit of

THE
VARIOUS FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
IDENTIFIED HEREIN
as Lenders
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SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT

THIS SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT (this "Support PartgrAement"), dated as of December 30, 1997, is lhpdeMERCO, as Suppc
Party (the "Support Party") and PRIVATE MINI STORE@REALTY, L.P., as Borrower (the "Borrower") in favof THE CHASE
MANHATTAN BANK, as Administrative Agent (the "Admistrative Agent") for the benefit of the variousdincial institutions as are or m
from time to time become Lenders under the Credite@ment (as hereinafter defined) (together wigr ttespective successors and assigns,
the "Lenders").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, as a condition to the occurrence of tHfedfive Date under the Credit Agreement dated deeotlate hereof (together with all
amendments, supplements, amendments and restasemmeindther modifications, if any, from time to énmereafter made thereto, the "Cr
Agreement"), among the Lenders, the Administrafigent, the General Partner and the Borrower, th@p8u Party is required to execute
deliver this Support Party Agreement in favor & #dministrative Agent for the benefit of the Lersle

WHEREAS, the Support Party has duly authorizedettexution, delivery and performance of this Suppaity Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Supanity to execute this Support Party Agreementninah as the Support Party has an
economic interest in the transactions contemplayetthe Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratibe receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, ianatder to induce th
Administrative Agent and the Lenders to enter thi® Credit Agreement with the Borrower, the Supantty agrees, for the benefit of the
Administrative Agent and the Lenders, as follo



Support Party Agreement
ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1. Definitions. Capitalized terms useti ot otherwise defined in this Support Party Agneat have the respective meanings
specified in the Credit Agreement; and the rulemtafrpretation set forth therein shall apply ts tBupport Party Agreement. As used in this
Support Party Agreement, the following terms hderheanings specified below:

"ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (Wiegtor not incorporated) that, together with the@ut Party, is treated as a single
employer under Section 414(b) or (c) of the Codesolely for purposes of
Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Cosl&gated as a single employer under Section 41fedCode.

"ERISA Event" means (a) any "reportable event'defined in

Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issuedeineder with respect to a Plan (other than an deenthich the 30-day notice period is
waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Piaan "accumulated funding deficiency"” (as defime&ection 412 of the Code or Section
302 of ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) the fjipursuant to Section 412(d) of the Code or Se@&@8(d) of ERISA of an application foi
waiver of the minimum funding standard with respgecany Plan; (d) the incurrence by the SupportyRarrany of its ERISA Affiliates of an
liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect tdié termination of any Plan; (e) the receipt byS@port Party or any ERISA Affiliate from
the PBGC or a plan administrator of any noticetiedpto an intention to terminate any Plan or Plan® appoint a trustee to administer any
Plan; (f) the incurrence by the Support Party or @inits ERISA Affiliates of any liability with rgsect to the withdrawal or partial withdrawal
from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; or (g) theemat by the Support Party or any ERISA Affiliatearfy notice, or the receipt by any
Multiemployer Plan from the Support Party or anyl&R Affiliate of any notice, concerning the impasit of Withdrawal Liability or a
determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, orxpected to be, insolvent or in reorganization, witihe meaning of Title IV of ERISA.

"5-Year Credit Facility" means the 5-Year Creditrégment dated as of June 30, 1997, among the Supgany, as borrower, the financial
institutions listed therein, as lenders and Thesehdanhattan Bank, as administrative agent for
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Support Party Agreement
the lenders, as the same may be amended, supptamantended and restated or otherwise modified firo to time.

"Material Subsidiary" shall mean any subsidiaryref Support Party having a tangible net worth, mieiteed in accordance with GAAP, equal
to or greater than $10,000,000.

"Plan" means any employee pension benefit plare(dtran a Multiemployer Plan) subject to the priovis of Title IV of ERISA or Section 4
12 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, and in eespf which the Support Party or any ERISA Affiids (or, if such plan were terminated,
would under

Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an "emplagdefined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

ARTICLE Il
SUPPORT PARTY OBLIGATIONS
SECTION 2.1. Obligations. (a) The Support Partyebgrcovenants and agrees as follows:

(i) if at any time the Borrower's ratio of Annuaik Consolidated Cash Flow to Annualized Consolatitash Interest Expense under Section
6.11 of the Credit Agreement shall be less thantd kO, the Support Party shall purchase eitheadxitional partnership interests in the
Borrower or (y) Subordinated debt of the Borrovadrthe Support Party's option, in such amountfiali enable the Borrower to repay the
Revolving Credit Exposures (together with accrugdrest thereon and fees and other obligationiseoBorrower accrued under the Credit
Agreement) and restore the aforesaid ratio toeleired level (the purchase price for such additipartnership interests or debt, the
"Issuance Price"), such purchase to occur on a(datéssuance Date") set forth in a notice fromAldeinistrative Agent to the Support Party
given no fewer than 3 Business Days prior to sgshdnce Date (an "Issuance Notice"); and

(i) in the event Borrower fails to repay all orygportion of the Revolving Credit Exposures by thiie date (including the
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Maturity Date and on the date of any mandatoryyepnt) the Support Party shall, at the option efAluministrative Agent and from time
time as directed by it, either (x) purchase sucthefProperties from the Borrower for the Allocaallateral Value thereof, (the "Property
Purchase Option"), or

(y) purchase so much of the right, title and inted# the Lenders in and to their respective Commaiits and Revolving Credit Exposures for
the Repayment Amount, as defined below, (the "LBarchase Option"), in the case of each of (x) and

(y) as shall be designated, and on a date (a "BsecbBate") designated in a notice from the Adnatiste Agent to the Support Party given at
least three Business Days prior to such Purchate (@adPurchase Notice"). The "Repayment Amountamsethe principal of such Revolving
Credit Exposures plus accrued interest thereorfeawland other obligations of the Borrower accuuedier the Credit Agreement.

(b) The Support Party hereby agrees that any debed by the Borrower to the Support Party in ataoee with clause
(@)(i)(y) of this Section or Revolving Credit Expwes purchased in accordance with clause (a)(i0{¥fis Section shall, in each case, be
Subordinated to the rights of the Lenders in acaocd with Section 2.8 hereof.

(c) The Support Party acknowledges that it is therit of the parties hereunder to cause the pueshaserred to in Sections 2.1(a)(i) and 2.1
(a)(ii)(x) in order to provide the Borrower withféigient funds to repay the Revolving Credit Expmesias and when due (together with
accrued interest thereon and fees and other oioligabf the Borrower accrued under the Credit Agreet) and restore the ratio under Sec
6.11 of the Credit Agreement to the required leaslthe case may be, and the Support Party hegebgsato cause the Borrower to apply the
proceeds thereof to repay the Revolving Credit Bxpes, and such other amounts due and payable diatgly upon receipt of such
proceeds.

(d) In the event the credit rating assigned toltickex Debt falls within Category 2 (as used indieéined term "Applicable Margin") as of the
end of any fiscal quarter, the Support Party hegpges to maintain at all times thereafter agdeagautilized commitments under its credit
facilities (not including the Credit Agreement)an amount equal to (x) the Revolving
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Credit Exposure under the Credit Agreement lesshigquotient of
() the Annualized Consolidated Cash Flow of therBwer (for the immediately preceding four quartersif fewer than four quarters of the
Borrower then exist, then for the period consistifithe consecutive fiscal quarters of the Borrothen recently ended) over (II) .09.

SECTION 2.2. Issuance and Purchase Procedurédn(afch Issuance Date, each party to the relatednse Notice shall take the following
actions required of it:

(i) If the Issuance Notice is with respect to theghase of additional partnership interests inBbeower:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the IssuanceeRa the Borrower in immediately available funalsg

(y) The Borrower shall accept such price and igeube Support Party additional partnership intesresthe Borrower.

(i) If the Issuance Notice is with respect to fhechase of Subordinated debt of the Borrower:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the IssuanceeRad the Borrower in immediately available funalsg

(y) The Borrower shall accept such price and igeube Support Party Subordinated debt in accomlarih Section 2.8.

(b) On each Purchase Date, each party to the defatechase Notice shall take the following actietgiired of it:

(i) If the Purchase Notice is with respect to theeghase of Properties from the Borrower:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the Allocatedla@eral Value for such Properties to the Borroweimmediately available funds; and

5



Support Party Agreement
(y) The Borrower shall accept such Allocated Celtat Value for such Properties and deliver to thpg®rt Party title to the Properties.
(i) If the Purchase Notice is with respect to fechase of Revolving Credit Exposures from thedezs:

(x) The Support Party shall (A) tender the Repaytdgnount to the Administrative Agent in immediatelyailable funds and (B) execute ¢
deliver to the Administrative Agent an assignment acceptance with respect to each Lender, antnatiion of Subordination, in each case
in form and substance satisfactory to the Admiatste Agent; and

(y) The Administrative Agent shall (A) accept stRbe-payment Amount, (B) deliver to the Support Partpunterpart of each such
assignment and acceptance executed by each respeetider and (C) deliver to Support Party all epiany, issued in connection with the
assignment of the Revolving Credit Exposures.

(c) The Support Party may, within three Businesgafter the Support Party is required to perfony @f its payment obligations pursuan
this Article Il, (i) purchase for the Repayment Ammd all of the right, title and interest of the Idams in and to their Revolving Credit
Exposures, together with all accrued interest thesnd fees and other obligations of the Borrowerwed or owing under the Credit
Agreement and (ii) require the Lenders to assigir ttespective Commitments to the Support Parte fights of the Support Party under this
clause (c) shall not otherwise affect the rightthef Administrative Agent and the Lenders undeichatVIl of the Credit Agreement.

SECTION 2.3. Rights of Administrative Agent and derns. The Support Party authorizes the Administeafigent on behalf of the Lenders
to perform any or all of the following acts at aiye in its sole discretion, all without noticettee Support Party and without affecting the
Support Party's obligations under this SupportyPagreement:

(a) The Administrative Agent at the instructiontioé Lenders pursuant to Section 9.02 of the Crgglieement may alter any terms of the
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amounts or Commitments outstanding under the CAagtikement or any part thereof, including renewt@mpromising, extending or
accelerating, or otherwise changing the time fgmpent of, or increasing or decreasing the ratafrest on, the amounts outstanding under
the Credit Agreement or any part thereof.

(b) The Administrative Agent or any Lender may take& hold security for the amounts or Commitmentstanding under the Credit
Agreement or this Support Party Agreement, accegitianal or substituted security for either, antbardinate, exchange, enforce, waive,
release, compromise, fail to perfect and sell bewise dispose of any such security.

(c) Upon any Event of Default, the Administrativgeit or any Lender may direct the order and maahany sale of all or any part of any
security now or later to be held for the amount€ommitments outstanding under the Credit Agreeroettiis Support Party Agreement,
respectively, and the Administrative Agent or argnter may also bid at any such sale.

(d) The Administrative Agent or any Lender may gpghy payments or recoveries from the Borrower Shpport Party or any other source,
and any proceeds of any security, to the Borrovedligations under the Credit Agreement in such meanorder and priority as the
Administrative Agent or such Lender may elect, vleetor not those obligations are secured at the @ihthe application.

(e) The Administrative Agent or any Lender may extadditional credit to the Borrower or the Supgtatty in addition to the amounts and
Commitments outstanding under the Credit Agreenaerd,may take and hold security for the creditxgeraled.

SECTION 2.4. Obligations Absolute, etc. The termthis Support Party Agreement shall in all respdoe continuing, absolute,
unconditional and irrevocable, and shall remaifulhforce and effect until all amounts outstandingder the Credit Agreement have been
paid in full, all Commitments have been terminaged all obligations of the Borrower and the Suppanty shall have been paid in full. The
liability of the Support Party under this Suppoatrty Agreement shall be irrevocable irrespective of
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(a) any lack of validity, legality or enforceabylibf the Credit Agreement;
(b) the failure of any Lender or the Administratiégent:

(i) to assert any claim or demand or to enforceragtyt or remedy against any Private Mini Entityamy other Person under the provisions of
the Credit Agreement or otherwise, or

(i) to exercise any right or remedy against angrgator of, or collateral securing, any amount€oemmitments outstanding under the Credit
Agreement;

(c) any change in the time, manner or place of mtrof, or in any other term of, all or any of #@ounts outstanding under the Credit
Agreement, the Commitments thereunder or any extensompromise or renewal of any of the amountstanding under the Credit
Agreement or Commitments thereunder;

(d) any reduction, limitation, impairment or terration of the amounts or Commitments outstandingeutite Credit Agreement, for any
reason, including any claim of waiver, releaserender, alteration or compromise, and any defensetoff, counterclaim, recoupment or
termination whatsoever by reason of the invaliditggality, nongenuineness, irregularity, compreajiunenforceability of, or any other ev
or occurrence affecting, the amounts or Commitmeuntstanding under the Credit Agreement;

(e) any amendment to, rescission, waiver, or atihadification of, or any consent to departure framy of the terms of the Credit Agreement;

(f) any addition, exchange, release, surrendepoperfection of any collateral, or any amendmertdrteaiver or release or addition of, or
consent to departure from, any guaranty, held byAtiministrative Agent or any Lender securing ahthe amounts or Commitments
outstanding under the Credit Agreement;
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(9) any failure on the part of the Borrower, anigastPrivate Mini Entity or any other Person in céymmy with its obligations under this
Support Party Agreement or the Credit Agreement; or

(h) any other circumstance which might otherwisestitute a defense available to, or a legal ortable discharge of, any Private Mini
Entity, any surety or any guarantor.

SECTION 2.5. Reinstatement, etc. The Support Ragtges that this Support Party Agreement shalimoato be effective or be reinstated,
as the case may be, if at any time any paymenttfoie or in part) of any of the amounts outstandinder the Credit Agreement is rescinded
or must otherwise be restored by the Administrafigent or any Lender, upon the insolvency, banlaypr reorganization of any Private
Mini Entity or otherwise, as though such paymerd hat been made.

SECTION 2.6. Waiver, etc. The Support Party henshives:

(a) All statutes of limitations as a defense to aatjon or proceeding brought against the SuppantlyPby the Administrative Agent or any
Lender, to the fullest extent permitted by law;

(b) Any right it may have to require the Adminidgive Agent or any Lender to proceed against thed®eer, proceed against or exhaust any
security held from the Borrower, or pursue any pteenedy in the Administrative Agent's or any Lerslpower to pursue;

(c) Any defense based on any claim that the Supemtty's obligations exceed or are more burdensbearethose of the Borrower;

(d) Any defense based on: (i) any legal disabdityhe Borrower,

(i) any release, discharge, modification, impaintner limitation of the liability of the Borroweptthe Administrative Agent or any Lender
from any cause, whether consented to by the Adinatige Agent or any Lender or arising by operatidtaw or from any insolvency
proceeding and (iii) any rejection or disaffirmamdghe amounts or Commitments outstanding undeitedit Agreement, or any part
thereof, or any security held for such amounts @m@itments, in any such insolvency proceeding;
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(e) Any defense based on any action taken or adnlityethe Administrative Agent or any Lender in amgolvency proceeding involving the
Borrower, including any election to have the Admatrative Agent's or that Lender's claim allowedbemg secured, partially secured or
unsecured, any extension of credit by the Lendetlsé Borrower in any insolvency proceeding, aretéking and holding by the
Administrative Agent or any Lender of any secufiiyany such extension of credit;

(f) All presentments, demands for performance,aastiof nonperformance, protests, notices of pratesices of dishonor, notices of
acceptance of this Support Party Agreement andeoéxistence, creation, or incurrence of new oitaael indebtedness, and demands and
notices of every kind;

(9) Any defense based on or arising out of (i) dafense that the Borrower may have to the paynrgmeidormance of the amounts
outstanding under the Credit Agreement or anytbareof, (ii) any defense that the Borrower halefbio perform any action required by it
hereunder, or in the state of any Property or tfiié) financial condition of the Borrower; and

(h) Any defense based on or arising out of anyoaatf the Administrative Agent or any Lender desed in Sections 2.3 or 2.4 above.

SECTION 2.7. Borrower's Agreement. The Borroweebgragrees to (i) conduct any action as may bessacgin order for the Support
Party to comply with its obligations under this apt Party Agreement, including, but not limited i&suing Subordinated debt and
partnership interests to the Support Party anthgalls respective Properties to the Support Pargccordance with Article Il and (i) apply
the proceeds of any amounts received from the Supaoty to the payment or prepayment of amountnasvhen due under the Credit
Agreement to the Lenders and the Administrativerige

SECTION 2.8. Subordination. In addition to the SupgParty's agreement under Section 2.1(b), thep&uParty hereby covenants and
agrees that any rights of the Support Party ordadritg subsidiaries, whether now existing or latdsing, to receive payment on account of
indebtedness owed to it by the Borrower or to recany payment from the Borrower shall at all tirbesSubordinate in accordance with the
provisions of Schedule S of the Credit Agreemegtfiedule S") to the full and prior repayment ofah@unts outstanding under the Credit
Agreement.
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Except as expressly provided in Schedule S, neitfeeBupport Party nor any of its subsidiariesIdiekntitled to enforce or receive payment
of any sums hereby Subordinated until the amounmistanding under the Credit Agreement have beahgra performed in full and all
Commitments terminated, and any such sums recé&ivédlation of this Support Party Agreement or 8dtle S shall be received by the
Support Party or its subsidiaries, as applicabléiust for the Administrative Agent and the Lersd@rhe Support Party shall cause each
subsidiary to Subordinate any indebtedness owédiothe Borrower in accordance with the termshig Section 2.8.

ARTICLE 1l
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
The Support Party represents and warrants to timeiristrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenddratt

SECTION 3.1. Organization; Powers. The SupportyPamtl each of its respective subsidiaries is dudyoized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction ofatganization, has all requisite power and authdatgarry on its business as now conducted
and as proposed to be conducted, is qualified foudiness in, and is in good standing in, evengdliction where such qualification IS
required. The Support Party and each of its regmestibsidiaries has the power and authority to ommold under lease the properties it
purports to own or hold under lease, to transaxbiisiness it transacts and proposes to traneastetute and deliver this Support Party
Agreement and to perform the Transactions.

SECTION 3.2. Authorization: Enforceability. The Tigactions are within the Support Party's powershave been duly authorized by all
necessary action. This Support Party Agreemenbbas duly executed and delivered by the Suppoty Bad constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Support Party, enforceaibl accordance with its terms, subject to appledlankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws affecting creditors' righgenerally and subject to general principles oitggregardless of whether considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law.

SECTION 3.3. Governmental Approvals; No Conflidiee Transactions (a) do not require any conseapproval of, registration or filing
with, or any other
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action by, any Governmental Authority, except sasthave been obtained or made and are in full fondeeffect, (b) will not violate any
applicable law, statute rule or regulation or tharter, by-laws or other organizational documefith® Support Party (or any of its
subsidiaries) or any order, writ, ruling, injunetior decree of any Governmental Authority, (c) wibt violate or result in a default under any
indenture, agreement or other instrument bindingnupe Support Party (or any of its subsidiarigsjassets, or give rise to a right
thereunder to require any payment to be made b@tpport Party (or any of its subsidiaries), arjda(l not result in the creation or
imposition of any Lien on any asset of the Suppantty (or any of its subsidiaries).

SECTION 3.4. Properties. (a) The Support Partyeauh of its subsidiaries has good title to, ord/lEasehold interests in, all its real and
personal property material to its business, exf@pninor defects in title that do not interferethwits ability to conduct its business as
currently conducted or to utilize such propertigstheir intended purposes.

(b) The Support Party and each of its subsidiawess, or is licensed to use, all trademarks, tradess, permits, service marks, licenses,
franchises, formulas, copyrights, patents and atiteHectual property or rights with respect te floregoing, and has obtained assignments of
all leases and other rights of whatever naturegseary for the present conduct of its busines$ionttany known conflict with the rights of
others which, or the failure to obtain which, as tase may be, would result in a Material AdverfedEon the business, operations, propt
assets, nature of assets, condition (financiatleravise) or prospects of the Support Party ohefSupport Party and its subsidiaries taken as
awhole..

SECTION 3.5.Litigation and Environmental Matteta) There are no actions, suits or proceedings tefore any arbitrator or Governmer
Authority pending against or, to the knowledgehaf Support Party, threatened against or affectiagSupport Party or any of its subsidiaries
(i) as to which there is a reasonable possibilitgroadverse determination and that, if adversetgmnined, could reasonably be expected,
individually or in the aggregate, to result in atbtéal Adverse Effect or (ii) that involve this Sagrt Party Agreement or the Transactions.

(b) Except with respect to any matter that, indistlly or in the aggregate, could not reasonablgxpected to result in a Material Adverse
Effect, neither the Support Party nor any of itsssdiaries (i) has failed to comply with any
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Environmental Law or to obtain, maintain or compligh any permit, license or other approval requiveder any Environmental Law, (ii) h
become subject to any Environmental Liability,)(lias received notice of any claim with respecry Environmental Liability or (iv) knows
of any basis for any Environmental Liability.

SECTION 3.6. Compliance with Laws and Agreement® Support Party and each of its subsidiaries ég@mpliance with all laws,
regulations and orders of any Governmental Auth@jiplicable to it or its property and all indemsiragreements and other instruments
binding upon it or its property, except where thitufe to do so, individually or in the aggregateuld not reasonably be expected to result in
a Material Adverse Effect. No Support Party Defduals occurred and is continuing.

SECTION 3.7. Investment and Holding; Company Statlesther the Support Party nor any of its subsidsais (a) an "investment company"
as defined in, or subject to regulation under,ltivestment Company Act of 1940, (b) a "holding camg' as defined in, or subject to
regulation under, the Public Utility Holding Compgafct of 1935 or (c) subject to any Federal orestatatute or regulation limiting its ability
to incur Indebtedness for money borrowed. NeitherSupport Party nor any of its subsidiaries igestlio the Interstate Commerce Act.

SECTION 3.8. Taxes. The Support Party and eacts glubsidiaries has timely filed or caused to leelfall Tax returns and reports required
to have been filed and have paid or caused to igeaflaraxes required to have been paid by it, pk¢a) Taxes that are being contested in
good faith by appropriate proceedings and for whiehSupport Party or such subsidiary, as appkgdtas set aside on its books adequate
reserves or (b) to the extent that the failured®ad could not reasonably be expected to resaltNtaterial Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.9. ERISA. No ERISA Event has occurreisaeasonably expected to occur that, when takgether with all other such ERISA
Events for which liability is reasonably expectedtcur, could reasonably be expected to resaltNtaterial Adverse Effect. The present
value of all accumulated benefit obligations ungleeh Plan (based on the assumptions used for papdStatement of Financial Account
Standards No. 87) did not, as of the date of thsetmazent financial statements reflecting such artmexceed by more than $10,000,000 the
fair market value of the assets of such Plan, bagtesent value of
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all accumulated benefit obligations of all undediad Plans (based on the assumptions used for mpapbStatement of Financial Account
Standards No. 87) did not, as of the date of thstmazent financial statements reflecting such artmexceed by more than $10,000,000 the
fair market value of the assets of all such undetéd Plans.

SECTION 3.10. Disclosure. The Support Party haslaked to the Administrative Agent and the Lenddiragreements, instruments and
corporate or other restrictions to which it or afiyts subsidiaries is subject, and all other nratkemown to it, that, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to resalMaterial Adverse Effect. None of the informatfarnished by or on behalf of the
Support Party to the Administrative Agent or anyder in connection with the negotiation of this Soi Party Agreement or delivered
hereunder (as modified or supplemented by othernmhtion so furnished) contains any material misst@nt of fact or omits to state any
material fact necessary to make the statementsithén the light of the circumstances under wtiledly were made, not misleading.

SECTION 3.11. Federal Reserve Regulations. NettteeSupport Party nor any of its respective subsiel is engaged principally, or as one
of its important activities, in the business ofending credit for the purpose of purchasing ornyéag Margin Stock.

SECTION 3.12. Environmental and Safety Matters. $bpport Party and each of its subsidiaries hagptiechin all material respects with
Federal, state, local and other statutes, ordirameders, judgments, rulings and regulationsirgjab environmental pollution or to
environmental regulation or control or to employealth or safety. Neither the Support Party nor@fnts subsidiaries has received notice of
any material failure so to comply. The Support Parnd its subsidiaries’ facilities do not managg hazardous wastes, hazardous
substances, hazardous materials, toxic substaioséspollutants or substances similarly denomidass those terms or similar terms are
used in the Resource Conservation and RecoventiieComprehensive Environmental Response Compensatd Liability Act, the
Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, the Toxaib8ance Control Act, the Clean Air Act, the Cl&dater Act or any other applicable law
relating to environmental pollution or employee Ilieand safety, in violation in any material respefcany law or any regulations
promulgated pursuant thereto. The Support Parigptigware of any events, conditions or circumstaimreolving
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environmental pollution or contamination or empleyealth or safety that could reasonably be exgdoteesult in material liability on the
part of the Support Party or any of its subsidrie

SECTION 3.13. Financial Statements. The SuppotlyReas heretofore furnished to the AdministrativgeAt and the Lenders its consolide
and consolidating balance sheets and statemeirtsahe and cash flows as of and for the fiscal yealed March 31, 1997, audited by and
accompanied by the opinion of Price Waterhousespeddent public accountants. Such financial state@esent fairly the financial
condition and results of operations of the Supparty and its consolidated subsidiaries as of siath and for such period. Such balance
sheets and the notes thereto disclose all matiatidities, direct or contingent, of the Suppo#rs and its consolidated subsidiaries as of the
date thereof. Such financial statements were pegparaccordance with GAAP applied on a considtests.

SECTION 3.14. No Material Adverse Change. Thereldgen no material adverse change in the businesstsa nature of assets, operations,
prospects or condition, financial or otherwisettaf Support Party and its subsidiaries, takenwalsade, since March 31 ,1997.

SECTION 3.15. Agreements. (a) Neither the Suppartyor any of its subsidiaries is a party to agyeement or instrument or subject to
any corporate restriction that has resulted ordcoegult in a Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Neither the Support Party nor any of its suiasids is in default in any manner under any priovi®f any indenture or other agreement or
instrument evidencing Indebtedness, or any otheéemahagreement or instrument to which it is atypar by which it or any of its properties
or assets are or may be bound, where such defaul cesult in a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.16. Borrower's Business. The SupportyRafamiliar with Borrower's financial conditiomd business operations and has done
all diligence to enter into this Support Party Agment and has not relied on the Administrative Agéth respect to such diligence. The
Support Party has received a copy of the CredieAgrent and hereby acknowledges and consents terthe and conditions thereunder.
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ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS

The Support Party covenants and agrees that, gaal®any portion of the amounts outstanding urtteCrredit Agreement shall remain
unpaid or any portion of the Commitment remainstautding, it will observe the following covenants:

SECTION 4.1. Notices of Material Events. The Sup@arty will furnish to the Administrative Agentéeach Lender prompt written notice
of the following:

(a) the occurrence of any Support Party Default;

(b) the filing or commencement of any action, suiproceeding by or before any arbitrator or Gowegntal Authority against or affecting the
Support Party or any Affiliate thereof that, if alsely determined, could reasonably be expectegbstdt in a Material Adverse Effect;

(c) the occurrence of any ERISA Event that, alontogether with any other ERISA Events that haveuo®d, could reasonably be expected
to result in liability of the Support Party and stsbsidiaries in an aggregate amount exceedin@@Q@00;

(d) any action by the Support Party pursuant tacket| of this Support Party Agreement, or anyesnent to do so;

(e) any provision of this Support Agreement is heltbe invalid, illegal or unenforceable in anyigdiction resulting in a Material Adverse
Effect on the ability of the Support Party to penfiats obligations hereunder;

(f) any change by Moody's or S&P in the ratinghed Support Party's senior, unsecured, non-cretigvgzed long-term indebtedness for
borrowed money after the date hereof; and

(9) any other development that results in, or coalsonably be expected to result in, a Materialekse Effect.
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Each notice delivered under this Section shalldm®mpanied by a statement of an executive offi€éne Support Party setting forth the
details of the event or development requiring suztice and any action taken or proposed to be takémrespect thereto.

SECTION 4.2. Existence; Conduct of Business. ThepSut Party will, and will cause each of its sulsiigs to, do or cause to be done all
things necessary to preserve, renew and keeplifofak and effect its legal existence and thetdglicenses, permits, privileges and
franchises material to the conduct of its busirmabwill maintain and operate such business intanhally the manner in which it is
presently conducted and operated. The Support Bhaaty; directly or through its wholly-owned subaiies, own and control not less than
50% of the Voting Stock of the General Partner.

SECTION 4.3. Payment of Obligations. The SupportyPaill, and will cause each of its subsidiaries pay its Indebtedness and other
obligations promptly and in accordance with themis and pay and discharge promptly when duexabtaassessments and governmental
charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its ine@mprofits or in respect of its property, beftite same shall become delinquent or in
default, as well as all lawful claims for labor, tex@als and supplies or otherwise which, if unpanight give rise to a Lien upon such
properties or any part thereof; provided, howetheat such payment and discharge shall not be redjwith respect to any such tax,
assessment, charge, levy or claim so long as tigityar amount thereof shall be contested in géaith by appropriate proceedings and the
Support Party or such subsidiary of the SupportyPsrall have set aside on its respective bookguate reserves with respect thereto.

SECTION 4.4. Maintenance of Properties; Insurafibe. Support Party will, and will cause each okitbsidiaries to, (a) keep and maintain
all property material to the conduct of its busggsgood working order and condition, ordinary waad tear excepted, and (b) maintain,
through a program of self insurance consistent satlnd business practices or with financially soand reputable insurance companies,
insurance in such amounts and against such riskseagistomarily maintained by companies engag#ueisame or similar businesses
operating in the same or similar locations, inahgdpublic liability insurance against claims forgenal injury or death or property damage
occurring upon, in, about or in connection with tlse of any properties owned, occupied or contidiieit, or as may be required by law.
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SECTION 4.5. Books and Records; Inspection Righite Support Party will, and will cause each okitbsidiaries to, keep proper books of
record and account in which full, true and corextries are made of all dealings and transactionslation to its respective business and
activities. The Support Party will, and will causach of its subsidiaries to, permit any represemsidesignated by the Administrative Agent
or any Lender through the Administrative Agent, mpeasonable prior notice, to visit and inspecpitsperties, to examine and make extracts
from its books and records, and to discuss itdraffinances and condition with its officers andeépendent accountants, all at such
reasonable times and as often as reasonably request

SECTION 4.6. Compliance with Laws. The Support Yuaiitl, and will cause each of its subsidiariesdomply with all laws, rules,
regulations and orders of any Governmental Authpwhether now in effect or hereafter enacted,iapple to it or its property, except whe
the failure to do so, individually or in the aggaég, could not reasonably be expected to resalt\taterial Adverse Effect.

SECTION 4.7. Financial Statements, Reports, ete. Sipport Party will furnish to the Administratiégent and each Lender:

(a) as soon as practicable and in any event wi@idays after the end of each fiscal quarter,diiisolidated balance sheets of the Support
Party and its subsidiaries and (ii) consolidateldiee sheets of the Support Party, each as anthefesuch period, and the related statements
of income, stockholders' equity and cash flowssfaeh fiscal quarter, setting forth in each caseoimparative form the figures for the
corresponding periods of the previous fiscal ybat (ogether with the consolidating intercompansniglations and adjustments in the case of
(i) and (ii)), all in reasonable detail and cedtifiby a Financial Officer of the Support Party tthaty fairly present the financial condition of

the Support Party and its subsidiaries as at tteeiddicated and the results of their operatiors@ranges in their financial position for the
periods indicated, subject to changes resultingn fanidit and normal year-end adjustment;

(b) as soon as practicable and in any event witBhdays after the end of each fiscal year of tyg8rt Party, consolidated balance sheets of
the Support Party and its subsidiaries, as atrideoésuch year, and the related consolidatedrataits of income, stockholders' equity and
cash

18



Support Party Agreement

flows for such fiscal year, setting forth in ea@se, in comparative form the consolidated figuoesHe previous year, all in reasonable detalil
and accompanied by a report thereon of Price Watksdhor other independent certified public accastaf recognized national standing
selected by the Support Party and reasonably aetiisy to the Required Lenders, which report shallnqualified as to going concern and
scope of audit and shall state that such conselidiancial statements present fairly, in all mateespects, the financial position of the
Support Party and its subsidiaries, as at the dadiésated, and the results of their operations @ash flows for the periods indicated in
conformity with GAAP (applied on a basis consistetth prior years unless as otherwise stated theid that the examination by such
accountants in connection with such consolidateanitial statements has been made in accordancgevitirally accepted auditing standa

(c) together with each delivery of financial stats of the Support Party and its subsidiariesyaursto Sections 4.7(a) and (b) above, (i) a
certificate of a Financial Officer stating that signer thereof has reviewed the terms of this Stigparty Agreement and has made, or ca

to be made, a review in reasonable detail of tesgictions and condition of the Support Party emslibsidiaries during the accounting
period covered by such financial statements andstizh review has not disclosed the existence dumirat the end of such accounting per
and that the signer does not have knowledge ofxistence as at the date of such certificate, pfcamdition or event which constitutes a
Support Party Default, or, if any such conditioresent existed or exists, specifying the natureparibd of existence thereof and what action
the Support Party has taken, is taking and proptosteke with respect thereto;

(d) together with each delivery of financial statts of the Support Party and its subsidiariesyantsto Section 4.7(b) above, a written
statement by the independent public accountanisgythie report thereon (i) stating that their aediamination has included a review of the
terms of this Support Party Agreement as theyedtatccounting matters, (ii) stating whether,danreection with their audit examination, &
condition or event which constitutes a SupportyPBefault has come to their attention, and if saatondition or event has come to their
attention, specifying the nature and period oftexise thereof; provided that such accountants sbalbe liable by reason of any failure to
obtain knowledge of any such Support Party
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Default that would not be disclosed in the courfséheir audit examination, and (iii) stating thatded on their audit examination nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to beliezeeither or both the information containedhia tertificates delivered therewith pursuant
to Section 4.7(b) above is not correct;

(e) promptly upon request therefor, copies of giarts submitted to the Support Party by indepetnpigiolic accountants in connection with
each annual, interim or special audit of the finalngtatements of the Support Party made by sucbutants, including any comment letter
submitted by such accountants to management inection with their annual audit;

(f) promptly upon their becoming available, copiésll (i) financial statements, reports, notices proxy statements sent or made available
generally by the Support Party to its security koddor by any of its subsidiaries to its securitydbrs other than the Support Party or another
of its subsidiaries, (ii) regular and periodic rep@and all registration statements and prospestifsany, filed by the Support Party or any of
its subsidiaries with any securities exchange ¢h tie Securities and Exchange Commission or angefBmnental Authority succeeding to
any of its functions, and (iii) press releases ather statements made available generally by theoBer or any of it Subsidiaries to the
public concerning material developments in the ess of the Support Party and its subsidiaries;

(9) promptly upon any officer of the Support Parsbtaining knowledge (i) of any condition or everttigh constitutes a Support Party
Default, or becoming aware that any Lender or tdeniistrative Agent has given any notice or takey ather action with respect to a
claimed Support Party Default under this SupportyPagreement, (ii) that any Person has given astyce to the Support Party or any of its
subsidiaries of the Support Party or taken anyrathon with respect to a claimed default or ev@ntondition of the type referred to in
paragraph (c) of Article V or (iii) of any conditicor event that might have a Material Adverse Effacertificate of a Financial Officer
specifying the nature and period of existence gfsrch condition or event, or specifying the nogoeen or action taken by such holder or
Person and the nature of such claimed default, Suparty
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Default, event or condition, and what action th@®ut Party has taken, is taking and proposeskmwath respect thereto;

(h) promptly upon any officer of the Support Pasbtaining knowledge of (i) the institution of, dwéat of any action, suit, proceeding,
governmental investigation or arbitration againsaffecting the Support Party or any of its sulesiidis or any property of the Support Part
any of its subsidiaries not previously disclosedh®y Support Party to the Lenders, or (ii) any maktelevelopment in any action, suit,
proceeding, governmental investigation or arbibratiwhich, in either case, if adversely determimeht have a Material Adverse Effect, the
Support Party shall promptly give notice thereothte Lenders and provide such other informatiomag be reasonably available to it to
enable the Lenders and their counsel to evaluate matters; and

(i) with reasonable promptness, such other infoimnaand data with respect to the Support Partyngrdad its subsidiaries as from time to time
may be reasonably requested by any Lender.

SECTION 4.8. Pari Passu Ranking. The Support Ryl take, or cause to be taken, all action theat be or become necessary or
appropriate to ensure that its obligations undisr Slupport Party Agreement will continue to rankealst pari passu in right of payment with
all other present and fixture unsecured Indebtexloéthe Support Party (including, but not limited Indebtedness owing under the 5-Year
Credit Facility).

SECTION 4.9. Equal Security for Revolving Creditggsure. In the event the Support Party shall créater, assume or permit to exist any
Lien upon any of its property or assets, whethev nwned or hereafter acquired, other than Lienmfigrd pursuant to the provisions of
Section 6.04 of the 5-Year Credit Facility (unlps®r written consent to the creation or assumptiereof shall have been obtained from the
Required Lenders), the Support Party shall mal@ose to be made, at the request of the Requinedierg, effective provision whereby the
Support Party's obligations hereunder will be seduny such Lien equally and ratably with any ahater Indebtedness thereby secured as
long as any such other Indebtedness shall be sweskc
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ARTICLE V
SUPPORT PARTY DEFAULT
Each of the following events shall constitute aargwof default under this Support Party AgreemanSupport Party Default"):

(a) any representation or warranty made or deensterhy or on behalf of the Support Party or angislidry in or in connection with this
Support Party Agreement or any amendment or medifio hereof or waiver hereunder, or in any reprtiificate, financial statement or
other document furnished pursuant to or in conpaatiith this Support Party Agreement or any amenttroe modification hereof or waiver
hereunder, shall prove to have been incorrect winate or deemed made;

(b) the Borrower or the Support Party shall faibtzserve or perform any covenant, condition or ement contained in Section 2.1 or 2.2 of
this Support Party Agreement;

(c) the Borrower or the Support Party shall faibtiserve or perform any covenant, condition or éguent other than as provided in this
Support Party Agreement (other than as referréa ¢tause (b) of this Article) and such failure bleantinue unremedied for a period of 30
days after notice thereof from the Administrativgefit to the Support Party (which notice shall hegiat the request of the Administrative
Agent or any Lender through the Administrative Agen

(d) any event or condition occurs that resultsnp Blaterial Indebtedness (including amounts outitapunder the 5-Year Credit Facility)
becoming due prior to its scheduled maturity ot #rables or permits (with or without the givingrmftice, the lapse of time, or both) the
holder or holders of any such Material Indebtedmesmy trustee or agent on its or their behatfanse any such Material Indebtedness to
become due, or to require the prepayment, repuechedemption or defeasance thereof, prior tocheduled maturity;
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(e) an involuntary proceeding shall be commencehanvoluntary petition shall be filed seekingliguidation, reorganization or other relief
in respect of the Support Party or any of its MateBubsidiaries or its debts, or of a substamiat of its assets, under any Federal, state or
foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership oriimlaw now or hereafter in effect or (ii) the ajptment of a receiver, trustee, custodian,
sequestrator, conservator or similar official floe Support Party or any of its Material Subsid&e for a substantial part of its assets, and, in
any such case, such proceeding or petition shatirmee undismissed for 60 days or an order or deapproving or ordering any of the
foregoing shall be entered,;

(f) the Support Party or any of its Material Sulsiés shall (i) voluntarily commence any procegdin file any petition seeking liquidéion,
reorganization or other relief under any Fedetakesor foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivepstii similar law now or hereafter in effect,
(i) consent to the institution of, or fail to c@st in a timely and appropriate manner, any prdogeat petition described in clause (e) of this
Article, (iii) apply for or consent to the appoirgmt of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestradoservator or similar official for the Supy
Party or any of its Material Subsidiaries or f@ubstantial part of its assets, (iv) file an ansadmitting the material allegations of a petition
filed against it in any such proceeding, (v) malgeaeral assignment for the benefit of creditors or

(vi) take any action for the purpose of effectimy af the foregoing;

(9) the Support Party shall become unable, admitriting or fail generally to pay its debts as thecome due;

(h) one or more judgments for the payment of mdneyn aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000tshaéndered against the Support
Party, any of its subsidiaries or any combinatiwer¢of and the same shall remain undischargedgeriad of 30 consecutive days during
which execution shall not be effectively stayedany action shall be legally taken by a judgmeatlitor to attach or levy upon any assets of
the Support Party or any of its subsidiaries t@ed any such judgment;

(i) an ERISA Event shall have occurred that, inapaion of the Administrative Agent, when takegether with all other ERISA Events that
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have occurred, could reasonably be expected tdt insaiMaterial Adverse Effect; and
()) a Change of Control (as defined in the 5-Yeacikty) shall have occurred.

then, in addition to any rights the Administrati&gent or the Lenders may have under the Credit &ment, and irrespective of whether (i)
such Support Party Default is the result, direotlyndirectly, of the failure of the Support Partlye Borrower, any other Private Mini Entity
any other Person in complying with its obligatiamsler this Support Party Agreement or (ii) any antswutstanding under the Credit
Agreement have become or have been declared imtabditue and payable under Article VII of the Ctellgreement or if the Commitmer
have been terminated thereunder, the Administratyent may, and at the request of the Required &enshall, proceed to protect and
enforce the rights of the Lenders by an actiomat k suit in equity or other appropriate proceggdwhether for specific performance of any
agreement contained herein, or for an injuncticairegj a violation of any terms hereof, or in aidhaf exercise of any power granted hereby
or by law or otherwise.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 6.1. Binding on Successors, TransfereesAasiyns; Assignment of Support Party Agreements Bupport Party Agreement sh
be binding upon the Support Party and its succestansferees and assigns and shall inure toethefib of and be enforceable by the
Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lenders anelit respective permitted successors and assigmadpd, however, that the Support P
may not assign any of its obligations hereundehavit the prior written consent of all of the Lergler accordance with

Section 9.02 of the Credit Agreement.

SECTION 6.2. Amendments, etc. No amendment to avevaf any provision of this Support Party Agreemeaor consent to any departure
by the Support Party herefrom, shall in any evenetiective unless the same shall be in writing sigded by the Administrative Agent, and
then such waiver or consent
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shall be effective only in the specific instance &or the specific purpose for which given; provddbat any amendment, waiver or consent
with respect to Article I1 shall require the appabef all of the Lenders.

SECTION 6.3. Addresses for Notices. Except in theecof notices and other communications expressiyifted to be given by telephone,
notices and other communications provided for mesbill be in writing and shall be delivered by dhan overnight courier service, mailed
certified or registered mail or sent by telecopy/falows:

(a) if to the Borrower or the Administrative Ageas provided in Section 9.01 of the Credit Agreetnaind

(b) if to the Support Party, to it at 1325 AirmatiWay, Suite 100, Reno, Nevada 89502-3239, AttardfdRocky Wardrip (Telecopy No.
(702) 688-6338).

Any party hereto may change its address or telecopyber for notices and other communications heteuhy notice to the other parties
hereto. All notices and other communications giteeany party hereto in accordance with the prowsiof this Support Party Agreement s
be deemed to have been given on the date of receipt

SECTION 6.4. No Waiver; Remedies. No failure onplet of the Administrative Agent to exercise, anddelay in exercising, any right
hereunder (including, but not limited to, the isstmof the Issuance Notice or Purchase Notice) spatate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any
single or partial exercise of any right hereundecfude any other or further exercise thereof erekercise of any other right. The remedies
herein provided are cumulative and not exclusivarof remedies provided by law.

SECTION 6.5. Section Captions. Section captionsl irs¢his Support Party Agreement are for convergesf reference only, and shall not
affect the construction of this Support Party Agneat.
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SECTION 6.6. Severability. Wherever possible eadvigion of this Support Party Agreement shall tteripreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifygrovision of this Support Party Agreement shallgoohibited by or invalid under such law,
such provision shall be ineffective to the exteisuch prohibition or invalidity, without invalidiaty the remainder of such provision or the
remaining provisions of this Support Party Agreemen

SECTION 6.7. Termination of Support Party Agreem@ihie Support Party's obligations under this Supparty Agreement shall terminate
(a) on the date upon which all amounts outstandirder the Credit Agreement have been paid inthél, Commitments terminated and all
other obligations under the Credit Agreement aig $lupport Party Agreement shall have been fully famally discharged or (b) upon
consummation of the transactions referred to insga

(i) and (ii) of Section 2.2(c) of this Support Baftgreement; provided that the agreements in Se&it2 of this Support Party Agreement
shall survive.

SECTION 6.8. Governing Law. THIS Support Party Agrent SHALL BE
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

SECTION 6.9. Waiver of Jury Trial. THE SUPPORT PARAEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION BASED HEREON, OR ARISING
OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THIS SUPPORRRTY AGREEMENT. THE SUPPORT PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES
AND AGREES THAT IT HAS RECEIVED FULL AND SUFFICIENTCONSIDERATION FOR THIS PROVISION AND THAT THIS
PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE ADMINISRATIVE AGENT AND THE LENDERS ENTERING INTO THE
CREDIT AGREEMENT.

SECTION 6.10. Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver ofimmities. The Support Party hereby acknowledgesagneles that:

(a) Itirrevocably submits to the jurisdiction afyafederal court sitting in the Southern Distri€iNew York in any action or proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Support Partyrégment, and the Support Party hereby irrevocalplges that all claims in respect of such
action or
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proceeding may be heard and detennined in suchaleztrurt. The Support Party hereby irrevocablywesj to the fullest extent it may
effectively do so, the defense of an inconvenienirh to the maintenance of such action or proceedihe Support Party agrees that a final,
unappealable judgment in any such action or prangeshall be conclusive and may be enforced inrgthvésdictions by suit on the judgment
or in any other manner provided by law.

(b) It hereby irrevocably designates, appoints emgowers C.T. Corporation System, presently locatdd33 Broadway, New York, New
York 10019 (together with any successor there®,'8ervice of Process Agent"), as its designeegiapge and agent to receive, accept and
acknowledge for and on its behalf, and in respeits @roperties, service of any and all legal gss; summons, notices and documents whick
may be served in any such action or proceedirfor iny reason the Service of Process shall cedse available to act as such, the Support
Party agrees to designate a new Service of Prégesst in New York City on the terms and for the pases of this provision satisfactory to
the Administrative Agent. The Support Party furthieevocably consents to service of process imth@ner provided for notices in Section
6.3. Nothing in this Support Agreement will affélae right of any party to this Support Agreemengaove process in other manner permitted
by law.

(c) Nothing in this Section shall affect the rigifithe Administrative Agent or any Lender to selegal process in any manner permitted by
law affect the right of the Administrative Agentamy Lender to bring any or proceeding againsSimgport Party or its property in the courts
of any other jurisdictions.

SECTION 6.11. Right of Setoff. If a Support PartgfBult shall have occurred and be continuing, tbenfistrative Agent, each Lender and
each of its Affiliates is hereby authorized at &inye and from time to time, to the hllest permittgdiaw, to set off and apply any and all
deposits (general or special, time demand, pravéior final) at any time held and other obligai@t any time owing by such Administrat
Agent, Lender or Affiliate to or for the credit titre account of the Support Party against any ofadirttie obligations of the Support Party r

or hereafter existing under this Support Party Agrent held by such Lender, irrespective of whetherot such Lender shall have made any
demand
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under this Support Party Agreement and although sbitigations may be unmatured. The rights of damtder under this Section are in
addition to other rights and remedies (includingeotrights of setoff) which such Lender may have.

SECTION 6.12. Expenses; Indemnity: Damage WaiagrThe Support Party shall pay (i) all reasonabikead-pocket expenses incurred by
the Administrative Agent and its Affiliates, inclungj the reasonable fees, charges and disbursewierdsinsel for the Administrative Agent,
in connection with the preparation and administratf this Support Party Agreement or any amendspembdifications or waivers of the
provisions hereof (whether or not the transactmorgemplated hereby or thereby shall be consummateti(ii) all out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Administrative Agent or any Lendacluding the fees, charges and disbursementaytaunsel for the Administrative
Agent or any Lender, in connection with the enfaneat or protection of its rights in connection wiitlis Support Party Agreement, including
its rights under this Section.

(b) The Support Party shall indemnify and hold Hass the Admin- istrative Agent, each Lender archead their respective officers,
directors, employees, counsel, agents and attoiinefget (each, an "Indemnified Person") from agdiast and pay them for any and all
liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, pemgléetions, judgments, suits, costs, charges, sggeanr disbursements (including attorney
costs) of any kind or nature whatsoever with resfethe execution, delivery and enforcement of SBipport Party Agreement, or the
Transactions, and with respect to any actual aspeotive claim, litigation, investigation or prode® relating to any of the foregoing,
whether based on contract, tort or any other thaad/regardless of whether any Indemnitee is g plagreto related to this Support Party
Agreement, whether or not any Indemnified Persanparty thereto (all the foregoing, collectivelye "Indemnified Liabilities"); provided,
that the Support Party shall have no obligatioretieder to any Indemnified Person with respect tiehmnified Liabilities directly arising
from the gross negligence or willful misconducsath Indemnified Person as determined by a cowbwipetent jurisdiction. The
agreements in this Section 6.12 shall survive payroethe amounts outstanding under the Credit &grent and termination of the
Commitments thereunder.

(c) To the extent permitted by applicable law, Sugport Party shall not assert, and hereby waamsclaim against any Indemnitee, on any
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theory of liability, for special, indirect, consetial or punitive damages (as opposed to direattral damages) arising out of, in connec
with, or as a result of, this Support Party Agreestrag any agreement or instrument contemplateddyese the Transactions.

(d) All amounts due under this Section shall beadsy promptly after written demand therefor.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Support Party and the Baaohave each caused this Support Party Agreerdrg tuly executed and
delivered by its officer thereunto duly authorizelof the date first above written.

AMERCO,
as Support Party

By /s/ Gary B. Horton

Name:
Title:

PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.P.

By STORAGE REALTY L.L.C., as
general partner

By
Name:
Title:
Agreed to and accepted by:
THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as
Administrative Agent
BY

Name:
Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Support Party and the Baaohave each caused this Support Party Agreerdrg tuly executed and
delivered by its officer thereunto duly authorizelof the date first above written.

AMERCO,
as Support Party

By

Name:

Title:
PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.P.

By STORAGE REALTY L.L.C., as
general partner

By /s/ Doug Ml vaney

Narme: Doug Mul vaney
Title: Manager

Agreed to and accepted by:

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as
Administrative Agent

By
Name:
Title:
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Support Party and the Baaohave each caused this Support Party Agreerdrg tuly executed and
delivered by its officer thereunto duly authorizelof the date first above written.

AMERCO,
as Support Party

By
Name:
Title:
PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.P.

By STORAGE REALTY L.L.C., as
general partner

By
Name:

Title:

Agreed to and accepted by:

THE CHASE MANHATTAN BANK, as
Administrative Agent

By /s/ Law ence Pal unbo Jr.

Name: Law ence Pal unbo, Jr.
Title: Vice President



Exhibit 10.65
EXECUTION COPY
NON-EXONERATION AGREEMENT

THIS NON-EXONERATION AGREEMENT (this "AGREEMENT"simade as
of the _ day of February, 2003 by AMERCO, a Nev@drporation (the "SUPPORT PARTY") in favor of théministrative Agent (as
defined below) for the benefit of the Lenders (afred below).

RECITALS

A. Reference is hereby made to (i) that certain Adeel and Restated Credit Agreement, dated thehdagef (the "AMENDED CREDIT
AGREEMENT"), among PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.Pa Texas limited partnership (the "BORROWER")CRAGE

REALTY L.L.C., a Texas limited liability company drgeneral partner of the Borrower, the financiatitations listed on Schedule 1 hereto
(together with each financial institution that bees a "Lender" pursuant to Section 9.04 of the AdedrCredit Agreement, collectively, the
"LENDERS"), JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, as administratiggent for the benefit of the Lenders (in such cipahe

"ADMINISTRATIVE AGENT") and J.P. MORGAN SECURITIESNC., as sole bookrunner and sole lead arranger{igrthat certain
Support Party Agreement, dated as of December@, (the "SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT"), entered injotbe Support Party and
the Borrower in favor of the Administrative Agewr the benefit of the Lenders. Capitalized termeslus this Agreement and not otherwise
defined herein have the meanings assigned to théheiAmended Credit Agreement.

B. As a result of an event of default under Sectifm) of the Existing Credit Agreement (the "CREDAGREEMENT DEFAULT"), the
Administrative Agent exercised the Lenders' righigheir behalf to declare the obligations of therBwer under the Existing Credit
Agreement immediately due and payable. The Borralignot pay the amounts due by their due datestunt to Section 2.1(a)(ii)(y) of the
Support Party Agreement, the Administrative Agenttb letter dated December 16, 2002 (the "EXERCLEETER") exercised the Lenders'
option (the "LOAN PURCHASE OPTION") on their beh#dfrequire the Support Party to purchase the rigle and interest of the Lenders
in and to their respective Commitments (as suah terdefined in the Existing Credit Agreement) &wel/olving Credit Exposures (as such
term is defined in the Existing Credit Agreemet) dn amount equal to the principal of the Revajviredit Exposures plus accrued interest
thereon and fees and other obligations of the BagroThe Support Party failed to timely purchaskgalions pursuant to the Loan Purchase
Option as required by the Exercise Letter and defdwnder the Support Party Agreement (the "SPABRBLT").

C. Notwithstanding the existence and continuandé®SPA Default, the Borrower has requested tlefdministrative Agent and the
Lenders amend and restate the Existing Credit Agest by entering into the Amended Cre



Agreement and thereby effectuate a cure of theiCAggleement Default as to the Borrower. The Supparty has an economic interest in
transactions contemplated by the Amended Crediedment, including, without limitation, the effedtioa of a cure of the Credit Agreement
Default, as to the Borrower and, accordingly, the@rt Party has also requested that the Admitisstrdgent and the Lenders amend and
restate the Existing Credit Agreement by entenmg the Amended Credit Agreement and has adviseddministrative Agent that it
consents thereto. The Administrative Agent and_#eders are willing to enter into the Amended Crédireement and effectuate a cure of
the Credit Agreement Default as to the Borroweoyjufed that the Support Party acknowledges andceaghat the obligation to perform the
Loan Purchase Option has ripened and that the S&faAuld remains outstanding, notwithstanding the Adeal Credit Agreement and that the
SPA Default is due, owing and unpaid. Thereforesassideration for the Administrative Agent and tiemders entering into the Amended
Credit Agreement, the Support Party is providingie® Administrative Agent this Agreement pursuan$ection 4.01(a) of the Amended
Credit Agreement.

CONFIRMATION OF OBLIGATIONS

The Support Party hereby confirms that, (a) thepBuParty's obligation to purchase the Commitmantsthe Revolving Credit Exposures
has fully ripened and is in full force and effgx) the Support Party consents to the Lenders amgrhd restating the Existing Credit
Agreement by entering into the Amended Credit Agrest, and (c) despite (i) the effectuation of seafrthe Credit Agreement Default as to
the Borrower, (ii) the change in the Revolving Gré&xkposures from revolving loans to term loansemtie Amended Credit Agreement and
(iii) all other changes in the terms of the obligas of the Borrower to the Lenders under the Anegin@redit Agreement: (x) the SPA Defe
consisting of the obligation of the Support Paayutrchase the Commitments and Revolving CredibBypes (now represented by the Lo
including all accrued interest thereon and all #@ed other obligations of the Borrower under theefiaed Credit Agreement) as required by
the Administrative Agent's exercise of the LoandPase Option remains a default and is a valid amdirg obligation that is due, owing and
unpaid under Article Il of the Support Party Agresar) (y) the Support Party Agreement is not tert@ddy the execution of the Amended
Credit Agreement and (z) all obligations of the Sonp Party under the Support Party Agreement castio exist and remain valid, binding,
and outstanding with respect to the Amended Creglieement. Any payment that the Support Party maktssrespect to the Support Party
Default shall constitute a ratable purchase otLibens under the Amended Credit Agreement, and beatubordinated to the rights of the
Lenders in accordance with Sections 2.1(b) andPtBe Support Party Agreement. The obligationdicmed under this paragraph are
confirmed subject to and in accordance with thengeof the Support Party Agreement, except to tiengxhat the Support Party's
confirmation of those obligations under this paagir are inconsistent with the Support Party Agragne which case the terms of this
paragraph shall control. Notwithstanding anythioghte contrary set forth herein, the Support Padligations to the Lenders in respect of
the SPA Default are limited by and subject to thevjsions in that certain Standstill Agreement eére date herewith by and among the
Support Party, the Administrative Agent and thedexs pursuant to which, inter alia, the Lendersteyreed to forebear
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temporarily from exercising their rights and rengsdin respect of the SPA Default and certain dihésting Defaults (as defined therein).
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SUPPORT PARTY
The Support Party represents and warrants to tineirfistrative Agent for the benefit of the Lenddratt

a. Powers. The Support Party has the power ana@ytho execute and deliver this Agreement andaiy out the transactions contemplated
herein and in the Support Party Agreement.

b. Authorization; Enforceability. The Support Panys duly executed and delivered this Agreemeris Agreement constitutes a legal, valid
and binding obligation of the Support Party, enéattale in accordance with its terms, subject toiegiple bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium or other laws affectimgditors’ rights generally and subject to gengriaiciples of equity, regardless of whether
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law.

c. Obligations Ripened. The Support Party's obiligato purchase the Commitments and Revolving €&dbosures is fully ripened and the
Support Party has no defenses thereto.

d. Governmental Approvals; No Conflicts. The exemutind delivery of this Agreement (a) do not regquainy consent or approval of,
registration or filing with, or any other action,lany Governmental Authority, except such as haanlobtained or made and are in full force
and effect, (b) will not violate any applicable lastatute, rule or regulation or the charter, bydar other organizational documents of the
Support Party (or its subsidiaries) or any ordetit, wuling, injunction or decree of any Governmedriuthority, (c) will not violate or result i

a default under any indenture, agreement or ottstriiment binding upon the Support Party (or itss@liaries) or its assets, or give rise to a
right thereunder to require the Support Party tosubsidiaries) to make any payment, and (d)neillresult in the creation or imposition of
any Lien on any asset of the Support Party (Gslitssidiaries).

e. Representations Bringdown. Except as otherwisoded in writing to the Administrative Agent, @fsthe date of and after giving effect to
this Agreement, all representations and warrasgég$orth in the Support Party Agreement are tnee@rrect as if made again on and as of
such date (except those, if any, which by theimtespecifically relate only to a different date).

f. Lenders' Reliance. The Support Party acknowledliyat the Lenders, in entering into the AmendestifAgreement, are relying on the
Support Party's representations made herein.

MISCELLANEOUS
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a. Release and Waiver. Each of the Borrower an&tipport Party hereby releases the Lenders, thamsinative Agent, and the Lenders'
and the Administrative Agent's officers, employaepresentatives, agents, counsel and directans oy and all actions, claims, demands,
damages and liabilities of whatever kind or natiméaw or in equity, now known or unknown, susgeicor unsuspected, to the extent that
any of the foregoing arises from any action oni@lto act on or prior to the date hereof with eg$po matters arising under the Existing
Credit Agreement or the amendment and restaterhergto pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreement.

The Support Party hereby (i) reaffirms and incogpes herein by reference Sections 2.3, 2.4 andf2t® Support Party Agreement and (ii)
represents that it has no claims, counterclainisetsf or defenses to the Loan Documents or toehenmance of its obligations thereunder,
or if the Support Party did have any such clainssinterclaims, offsets or defenses to the Loan Decusnor any transaction related to the
Loan Documents, the same are hereby waived, réihgd and released in consideration of each Lended the Administrative Agent's
execution and delivery of the Amended Credit Agreet

b. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement magieruted in counterparts, all of which taken tbgeshall constitute one and the same
instrument.

c. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNHEBY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL
LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK.

[signature page follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be executed by their respectivkeaized officers as of the day
and year first above written.

AMERCO ACKNOWLE DGED BY:
as Support Party
PRIVATE MINI STORAGE REALTY, L.P.
as Borro wer
By: /s/ Gary B. Horton
Name: Gary B. Horton By: STOR AGE REALTY L.L.C.,its
Title: Treasurer Gene ral Partner
By: /sl Doug Mulvaney

Name: Doug Mulvaney

Title: President of Storage
Realty, LLC, which is
the general partner of
PMSRLP

ACKNOWLEDGED BY:

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK,
as Administrative Agent

By: /s/ John M:Donagh

Name: John McDonagh
Title: Managing Director



Name of Lender

JPMorgan Chase Bank
270 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10017

Attention: John McDonagh
Facsimile: (212) 270-0430

Bank of America, N.A.
Timothy C. Hintz

555 S. Flower St. 9/F

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Mail Code: CA9-706-09-37
Facsimile: (213) 345-1284

and

Rafael Vistan

Banc of America
Strategic Solutions, Inc.
CA9-706-09-37

555 S. Flower St. 9/F

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Facsimile: (213) 345-1284

Dresdner Bank AG,
New York Branch ani
Grand Cayman Branch

Attention: Joanna Solowski
Facsimile: 212-429-2524

KBC Bank N.V.

515 South Figueroa Street
Suite 1920

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attention: Tom Jackson
Facsimile: (213) 62-5801

SCHEDULE |

LENDERS



Wells Fargo Bank, NA.

45 Fremont Street

San Francisco, CA 94105
Attention: Steve Dobel
Facsimile: (415) 947-8851

ABN AMRO Bank, N.V.
Financial Restructuring &
Recovery

350 Park Ave., 2nd Floor
New York, NY 1002z
Attention: David W. Stack
Facsimile: (212) 251-3685

Citicorp USA, Inc.

250 West Street

8th Floor

New York, NY 10012
Attention: Peter Nathanial
Facsimile: (212) 723-3042

Fleet National Bank

777 Main Street

Mail Stop. CT EH 40221A
Hartford, CT 06115
Attention: Mark A. VanOsdol
Facsimile: (860) 952-6759

Union Bank of California, N.A.
400 California Street

8th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104
Attention: George Vetek
Facsimile: (415) 765-2170

Bank One, NA

1717 Main Street

4th floor, TX1-2454

Dallas, TX 75201
Attention: Randy B. Durant
Facsimile: (214) 2€-2740



Comerica Bank - Texas
910 Louisiana, Suite 300
Houston, TX 77002
Attention: Mr. Hal Marshall
Facsimile: (713) 220-5550

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
f/lk/a The Fuji Bank, Limited,

Los Angeles Agency

350 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 1500
Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attention: Tami Kita

Facsimile: (213) 253-4175

WestLB AG, New York Branch
Credit Department

1211 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 1003¢
Attention: Walter T. Duffy I,
Associate

Director

Facsimile: (212) 85-6148



Exhibit 10.66
SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT
dated as of February ___, 2003
made by
AMERCO, a Nevada corporation
as Support Party and

PM PREFERRED PROPERTIES, L.P.,
a Texas limited partnership

as Borrower
in favor of

GMAC COMMERCIAL HOLDING CORP.,
a Nevada corporation

as Administrative Agent
for the benefit of

GMAC COMMERCIAL HOLDING CAPITAL CORP.,
a Colorado corporation
as Lender
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SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT

THIS SUPPORT PARTY AGREEMENT (this "Support PartgrAement"), dated as of February __, 2003, is rhgdeM ERCO, a Nevada
corporation (the "Support Party") and PM PREFERRHEREDPERTIES, L.P., a Texas limited partnership (Barower") in favor of GMAC
COMMERCIAL HOLDING CORP., a Nevada corporation,/sdministrative Agent (the "Administrative Agent'difthe benefit of GMAC
COMMERCIAL HOLDING CAPITAL CORP., a Colorado corpation (together with its successors and assiges;Ltender").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, as a condition to the making of a loathinmaximum principal amount of $255,000,000 torBaer from Lender under the
Loan Agreement dated of even date herewith (togetith all amendments, supplements, amendmentsestdtements and other
modifications, if any, from time to time hereafteade thereto, the "Loan Agreement"), by and betwieer.ender and the Borrower, the
Support Party and Borrower are required to exeantedeliver this Support Party Agreement in favidhe Administrative Agent for the
benefit of the Lender;

WHEREAS, the Support Party and Borrower have duth@rized the execution, delivery and performarfalis Support Party Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the Supatty to execute this Support Party Agreementingh as the Support Party has an
economic interest in the transactions contemplbyetthe Loan Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideratibe receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, ianatder to induce the Lender
enter into the Loan Agreement with the Borrowee, Bupport Party agrees, for the benefit of the Adistiative Agent and the Lender, as
follows:

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.1. Definitions. Capitalized terms usetitot otherwise defined in this Support Party Agneat have the respective meanings
specified in the Loan Agreement; and the rulestdrpretation set forth therein shall apply to SBigport Party Agreement. As used in this
Support Party Agreement, the following terms hdeerheanings specified below:

"Change of Control" as defined in the Loan Agreemen

"Covenant Obligation" shall mean each of the comgmand agreements made by Borrower under Sectlénod the Loan Agreemer



"Debt Obligation” shall mean each and every obiigabf Borrower under the Note and Loan Agreemerany other Loan Document to
make any payment of interest or other sum due timeier.

"ERISA Affiliate” means any trade or business (Wiegtor not incorporated) that, together with the@ut Party, is treated as a single
employer under Section 414(b) or (c) of the Codesolely for purposes of
Section 302 of ERISA and Section 412 of the Cosl&gated as a single employer under Section 41#ectode.

"ERISA Event" means (a) any "reportable event'defined in

Section 4043 of ERISA or the regulations issuedeineder with respect to a Plan (other than an deenthich the 30-day notice period is
waived); (b) the existence with respect to any Piaan "accumulated funding deficiency" (as defie&ection 412 of the Code or Section
302 of ERISA), whether or not waived; (c) the fiipursuant to Section 412(d) of the Code or Se@&@8(d) of ERISA of an application fot
waiver of the minimum funding standard with respgecany Plan; (d) the incurrence by the SupportyRarrany of its ERISA Affiliates of an
liability under Title IV of ERISA with respect tdé termination of any Plan; (e) the receipt byS@port Party or any ERISA Affiliate from
the PBGC or a plan administrator of any noticetiedpto an intention to terminate any Plan or Planto appoint a trustee to administer any
Plan; (f) the incurrence by the Support Party or @iits ERISA Affiliates of any liability with rgsect to the withdrawal or partial withdrawal
from any Plan or Multiemployer Plan; or (g) theemat by the Support Party or any ERISA Affiliateafy notice, or the receipt by any
Multiemployer Plan from the Support Party or anyl&R Affiliate of any notice, concerning the impasit of Withdrawal Liability or a
determination that a Multiemployer Plan is, orxpected to be, insolvent or in reorganization, imitine meaning of Title IV of ERISA.

"Fair Market Value" shall mean with respect to &mgrtgaged Property an amount equal to the NOI &imed in the Loan Agreement) of
such Mortgaged Property for the period of twelve) (honths immediately preceding the Valuation Ditéded by a capitalization rate fact
equal to .095.

"Future Advance" shall mean amounts funded by Leta@lBorrower under the Loan Agreement as a "SubsgigAdvance.”

"Issuance Date" shall mean the date specifieddrigbuance Notice (which date shall be no fewear th@ (5) Business Days from the date of
such Issuance Notice) on which the purchase cédaitional partnership interest, the purchase @o&linated debt, the escrow of cash, or
the purchase of Mortgaged Property must be madripat to Article 2.

"Issuance Notice" shall mean a notice from the Adstiative Agent to the Support Party stating theusrence of a default of Borrower of a
Debt Obligation or a breach of a Covenant Obligatiad designating an Issuance Date.

"Issuance Price" shall mean the purchase pricadditional partnership interests or Subordinatdut,dairchased pursuant to Article 2, which
shall be an amount equal to the default by Borrawmeter its Debt Obligation or the amount needeclte the breach of the Covenant
Obligations, as applicable.



"Loan Documents" shall mean each and every agreeimestrument or document evidencing, securingtbewise pertaining to the Loan or
the Debt Obligation.

"Material Subsidiary" shall mean any subsidiaryhef Support Party having a tangible net worth, mieiteed in accordance with GAAP, equal
to or greater than $10,000,000.

"Maximum Obligation" shall mean the amount of $0@®O0 plus any Future Advance less principal paysmmade by Borrower. From and
after the fourth (4th) anniversary date of this | Party Agreement, the Maximum Obligation shalladjusted annually based upon the
Aggregate Collateral NOI of the Mortgaged Proper({gs defined in the Loan Agreement) for the immatedly preceding fiscal year such that
the Maximum Obligation Amount shall be reduced By0$0,000 for each $500,000 of Aggregate Collatdfal for the immediately
preceeding year above $26,000,000 (the "Thresholdukt"). In the event that one or more of the Magied Properties have been releas¢
accordance with the provisions of the Loan Agreemtée Threshold Amount shall be reduced based tipwpercentage that such released
Mortgage Properties' projected NOI forecast fordhkendar year 2007 bears to the Aggregate Calladi®| projected for all Mortgaged
Properties for calendar year 2007 as set forthugh Schedule 4.1(c) of the Loan Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing in no event shall k@ imum Obligation as adjusted after the fourthigarsary date in accordance with-
preceding chart exceed $70,000,000 plus Future Aahaless principal payments made by the Borrower.

"Plan" means any employee pension benefit plare(dttan a Multiemployer Plan) subject to the priowvis of Title IV of ERISA or Section
412 of the Code or Section 302 of ERISA, and ipees of which the Support Party or any ERISA A#ié is (or, if such plan were
terminated, would under

Section 4069 of ERISA be deemed to be) an "emplagdefined in Section 3(5) of ERISA.

"Subordinated" shall mean subject and subordiratalf purpose to all liens, claims or encumbrarafdsender under this Support Agreen
and any other Loan Document evidencing or secuhiad-oan or this Support Agreement and shall bgestibo the specific terms and
conditions set forth on Exhibit A attached heratd enade a part hereof for all purposes.

"Valuation Date" shall mean the last day of any thaituring which the Support Party elects to puretasy Mortgaged Property in
accordance with the right granted to the SuppantyRander Section 2.1.C.

"Voluntary Prepayments" shall mean any amount pgidr on behalf of Borrower under the Note or amah Document prior to its
scheduled due date.

ARTICLE Il
SUPPORT PARTY OBLIGATIONS

SECTION 2.1. Obligations.



A. In the event that Borrower fails to pay any Déltligation as and when due, an Issuance Noticklshagiven and the Support Party shall,
on the Issuance Date, at Support Party's optitimerei

(i) purchase additional partnership interest inBlogrower at the Issuance Price; or
(if) purchase Subordinated debt of Borrower atlis@ance Price.

B. In the event that a Covenant Obligation is bihegcfor any reason, an Issuance Notice shall kengivnd the Support Party shall, on the
Issuance Date, at Support Party's option, either:

(i) purchase additional partnership interest inBlogrower at the Issuance Price; or
(if) purchase Subordinated debt of Borrower atlise@ance Price; or
(iii) escrow an amount equal to the Issuance Rni@ash with Lender.

C. After the expiration of the fourth (4th) Loan afgas defined in the Loan Agreement) the Suppartyshall have the right, in addition to
the options set forth in Section 2.1.A, 2.1.B ahdwgurchase from the Borrower any of the MortghBeoperties for an amount (the
"Purchase Price") equal to the greater of the Mairket Value of such Mortgaged Property or Reldaisee as defined in the Loan Agreement
plus any prepayment premium required under the I@uments to effectuate the release of the Mogd@gperty to be purchased by the
Support Party. No purchase or sale of a Mortgageddrty shall be permitted if, in Lender's sole abdolute discretion, after giving effect to
such sale, either (i) the Aggregate Debt Servicee@age Ratio would decline, or (ii) the LTV Ratidthvrespect to the Properties in the
aggregate would increase.

D. The Support Party acknowledges that it is thenof the parties hereunder to cause the purstragerred to in Sections 2.1.A and 2.1.|
order to provide the Borrower with sufficient funtspay the Debt Obligations and/or cure the breadf the Covenant Obligations, and the
Support Party hereby agrees to cause the Borranagoply the proceeds thereof for such purposesgiiately upon receipt of such procee

E. The Support Party acknowledges that any escrowiged for in Section 2.1.B is to be held in anres/ under Lender's exclusive control.
The Support Party hereby pledges all interest éhtarsaid escrow to Lender and agrees that Lendgrapply such escrow to any and all
amounts due and owing under the Loan Documeniafolg a default by Borrower in the payment of a D@bligation in such order as
Lender may elect. Upon the cure of the Covenanigatibns for which any funds were escrowed purstmtitis Section 2.1.E, and written
request from Support Party, Lender shall release#itrowed funds to the Support Party.

SECTION 2.2. Issuance and Purchase Procedures.



A. On each Issuance Date, each party to the relasednce Notice shall take the following actiomguired of it:

(i) If the Support Party has the right and hasteldéto purchase additional partnership interestserBorrower:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the IssuanceeRad the Borrower in immediately available funalsg

(y) The Borrower shall accept such price and igsube Support Party additional partnership inter@sthe Borrower.

(ii) If the Support Party has the right and hagted to purchase Subordinated debt of the Borrower:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the IssuanceeRa the Borrower in immediately available funalsg

(y) The Borrower shall accept such price and igeube Support Party Subordinated debt instrumiarttse amount of the Issuance Price.
(iii) If the Support Party has the right and hascedd to escrow funds with Lender:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the IssuanaeeRni cash to Lender; and

(y) Lender shall hold such amount as additionalisgcfor the repayment of the Loan, subject toti®ec2.1.E.

(iv) If the Support Party has the right and hastelé to purchase a Mortgaged Property from thed®agr as permitted by 2.1.C:

(x) The Support Party shall tender the PurchasseRor such Mortgaged Property to the Borrowenimiediately available funds; and
(y) The Borrower shall accept the Purchase Pricéhi® Mortgaged Properties and deliver to the Stipfparty title to the Properties.

SECTION 2.3. Rights of Administrative Agent and dens. The Support Party authorizes the Administeatigent on behalf of the Lender to
perform any or all of the following acts at any &nm its sole discretion, all without notice to thepport Party and without affecting the
Support Party's obligations under this SupportyPagreement:

A. The Lender may alter any terms of the Loan Doenits or any part thereof, including renewing, campsing, extending or accelerating,
or otherwise changing the



time for payment of, or increasing or decreasirggrite of interest on, the amounts outstanding ruthgel.oan Documents or any part thereof.

B. The Administrative Agent or Lender may take &ottl security for the amounts outstanding undeiLthen Documents or this Support
Party Agreement, accept additional or substituesaisty for either, and subordinate, exchange, reefovaive, release, compromise, fail to
perfect and sell or otherwise dispose of any sechrity.

C. Upon any Event of Default, the Administrativeelg or any Lender may direct the order and manhany sale of all or any part of any
security now or later to be held for the amountstunding under the Loan Documents or this Sugparty Agreement, respectively, and the
Administrative Agent or Lender may also bid at aogh sale.

D. The Administrative Agent or Lender may apply g@yments or recoveries from the Borrower, the Sugdparty or any other source, and
any proceeds of any security, to the Borrower'sgakibns under the Loan Documents in such manmderand priority as the Administrati
Agent or such Lender may elect, whether or notdtaldigations are secured at the time of the agfidin

E. The Administrative Agent or any Lender may egtedditional credit to the Borrower or the Supgatty in addition to the amounts
outstanding under the Loan Agreement, and maydallehold security for the credit so extended.

SECTION 2.4. Obligations Absolute, etc. The termthis Support Party Agreement shall in all respdoe continuing, absolute,
unconditional and irrevocable, and shall remaifulhforce and effect until all amounts outstandimgder the Loan Documents have been
in full, and all obligations of the Borrower ancetBupport Party shall have been paid in full. Thikility of the Support Party under this
Support Party Agreement shall be irrevocable iretpe of:

A. any lack of validity, legality or enforceabiliyf the Loan Documents;
B. the failure of Lender or the Administrative Agen

(i) to assert any claim or demand to enforce aglgtror remedy against any Person under the prassibthe Loan Agreement or any of the
Loan Documents otherwise, or

(i) to exercise any right or remedy against angrgator of, or collateral securing, any amountstamiding under the Loan Documents;

C. any change in the time, manner or place of paymf or in any other term of, all or any of the@unts outstanding under the Loan
Documents or any extension, compromise or renefwahy of the amounts outstanding under the Loanubemnts;

D. any reduction, limitation, impairment or termiiié of the amounts outstanding under the Loan Dramts, for any reason, including any
claim of waiver, release, surrender, alterationampromise, and any defense or setoff, counter¢li@ooupment or
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termination whatsoever by reason of the invaliditggality, nongenuineness, irregularity, compreajiunenforceability of, or any other ev
or occurrence affecting, the amounts outstandirdeuthe Loan Documents;

E. any amendment to, rescission, waiver, or othadification of, or any consent to departure fromy af the terms of the Loan Documents;

F. any addition, exchange, release, surrendermparfection of any collateral, or any amendmerdrtwaiver or release or addition of, or
consent to departure from, any guaranty, held byAtiministrative Agent or Lender securing any @& #mounts outstanding under the Loan
Documents;

G. any failure on the part of the Borrower, or atlyer Person in complying with its obligations unttés Support Party Agreement or the
Loan Documents;

H. any other circumstance which might otherwisestitute a defense available to, or a legal or atplgtdischarge of, any indemnitor, any
surety or any guarantor; or

I. the commencement of any case under the Bankripade by or against any person obligated undemoétiye Loan Documents.

SECTION 2.5. Reinstatement, etc. The Support Ragtges that this Support Party Agreement shalimoato be effective or be reinstated,
as the case may be, if at any time any paymentlfole or in part) of any of the amounts outstandinder the Loan Documents is rescinded
or must otherwise be restored by the Administrafigent or Lender, upon the insolvency, bankruptcyeorganization of Borrower or any
guarantor, indemnitor or surety or otherwise, asitfin such payment had not been made.

SECTION 2.6. Waiver, etc. The Support Party henshives:

A. All statutes of limitations as a defense to aation or proceeding brought against the SuppatyPg the Administrative Agent or Lend:t
to the fullest extent permitted by law;

B. Any right it may have to require the Administvat Agent or Lender to proceed against the Borrowerceed against or exhaust any
security held by Lender, or pursue any other reniedlye Administrative Agent's or Lender's poweptosue;

C. Any defense based on any claim that the Supjaoty's obligations exceed or are more burdensbarethose of the Borrower;

D. Any defense based on: (i) any legal disabilityack of authority of the Borrower, (ii) any reks discharge, modification, impairment or
limitation of the liability of the Borrower to the&dministrative Agent or Lender from any cause, wleetconsented to by the Administrative
Agent or Lender or arising by operation of law immh any insolvency proceeding and

(iii) any rejection or disaffirmance of the Loan @onents, or any part thereof, or any security reltbnnection with the Loan, in any
proceeding;



E. Any defense based on any action taken or omiityetithe Administrative Agent or Lender in any inggicy proceeding involving the
Borrower, including any election to have the Admeirative Agent's or Lender's claim allowed as baiagured, partially secured or
unsecured, any extension of credit by the LendénddBorrower in any insolvency proceeding, andt#tking and holding by the
Administrative Agent or any Lender of security fory such extension of credit;

F. All presentments, demands for performance, estaf nonperformance, protests, notices of protegices of dishonor, notices of
acceptance of this Support Party Agreement andeoékistence, creation, or incurrence of new oitadal indebtedness, and demands and
notices of every kind;

G. Any defense based on or arising out of (i) agfgdse that the Borrower may haste to the paynrgmrformance of the amounts
outstanding under the Loan Documents or any paretf, (i) any defense that the Borrower has ébite perform any action required by it
hereunder, or in the state in which any Mortgagexp€xty is located or (iii) the financial conditiof the Borrower; and

H. Any defense based on or arising out of any aatifcthe Administrative Agent or Lender described@ections 2.3 or 2.4 above.

SECTION 2.7. Borrower's Agreement. The Borrowerebhgragrees to

(a) conduct any action as may be necessary in tod#ne Support Party to comply with its obligatsounder this Support Party Agreement,
including, but not limited to, issuing Subordinatkbt and partnership interests to the SupporyRad selling the Mortgaged Properties to
the Support Party in accordance with Article Il g¢bylapply the proceeds of any amounts receivaud ttee Support Party to the payment or
prepayment of amounts as and when due under the Roauments to the Lender and the Administrativeg

ARTICLE 1l
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
The Support Party represents and warrants to timeirfistrative Agent for the benefit of the Lendeatth

SECTION 3.1. Organization; Powers. The SupportyPamtl each of its respective subsidiaries is dudyoized, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the jurisdiction ofdtganization, has all requisite power and authddtgarry on its business as now conducted
and as proposed to be conducted, is qualified tousiness in, and is in good standing in, evenggliction where such qualification is
required except where such failure would not haweaterial adverse effect upon such party or thigpSut Party Agreement. The Support
Party and each of its respective subsidiarieshmpdwer and authority to own or hold under leaseproperties it purports to own or hold
under lease, to transact the business it tranaadtgroposes to transact, to execute and deliieStipport Party Agreement and to perform
the transactions contemplated in this Support Plsgtgement (the "Transactions").
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SECTION 3.2. Authorization; Enforceability. The Tigactions are within the Support Party's powershave been duly authorized by all
necessary action. This Support Party Agreemenbéas duly executed and delivered by the Suppoty Bad constitutes a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Support Party, enforceaibl accordance with its terms, subject to appledlankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws affecting creditors' riggenerally and subject to general principles oitggregardless of whether considered in a
proceeding in equity or at law.

SECTION 3.3. Governmental Approvals; No Conflidihe Transactions: (a) do not require any conseapproval of, registration or filing
with, or any other action by, any Governmental Auity, except such as have been obtained or madiar@nin full force and effect; (b) will
not violate any applicable law, statute rule omtation or the charter, by-laws or other organaai documents of the Support Party (or any
of its subsidiaries) or any order, writ, rulingjunction or decree of any Governmental Authorit); Will not violate or result in a default
under any indenture, agreement or other instrutienling upon the Support Party (or any of its sdiagies) or its assets, or give rise to a
right thereunder to require any payment to be niydihe Support Party (or any of its subsidiaries)d, (d) will not result in the creation or
imposition of any lien on any asset of the Suppenty (or any of its subsidiaries).

SECTION 3.4. Properties.

A. The Support Party and each of its subsidiarésdood title to, or valid leasehold interestslhits real and personal property material to
its business, except for minor defects in title thahdbinterfere with its ability to conduct its bnsss as currently conducted or to utilize <
properties for their intended purposes.

B. The Support Party and each of its subsidianassp or is licensed to use, all trademarks, traohesa permits, service marks, licenses,
franchises, formulas, copyrights, patents and dttiellectual property or rights with respect te floregoing, and has obtained assignments of
all leases and other rights of whatever natureeseary for the present conduct of its busines$ionttany known conflict with the rights of
others which, or the failure to obtain which, as tase may be, would have in a material adversetafh the business, operations, property,
assets, nature of assets, condition (financiattogravise) or prospects of the Support Party ohefSupport Party and its subsidiaries taken as
awhole.

SECTION 3.5. Litigation and Environmental Matters.

A. Except as otherwise disclosed on Exhibit X dteathereto, there are no actions, suits or proogediy or before any arbitrator or
Governmental Authority pending against or, to thewledge of the Support Party, threatened agamaftfecting the Support Party or any of
its subsidiaries (i) as to which there is a reabtmpossibility of an adverse determination and, tfi@dversely determined, could reasonably
be expected, individually or in the aggregate,deeha material adverse effect on the Support Bditgncial condition or operations or (ii)
that involve this Support Party Agreement or thariBactions.

B. Except with respect to any matter that, indialligor in the aggregate, could not reasonablyxpeeted to have a material adverse effect
on the Support Party's



financial condition or operations or as otherwigelbsed on Exhibit X attached hereto, neitherShpport Party nor any of its subsidiaries (i)
has failed to comply with any Environmental Lawto@iobtain, maintain or comply with any permit, iise or other approval required under
any Environmental Law,

(i) has received notice of or become subject tdgrws of any basis for, any claim, judgment, los§ability with respect to any
Environmental Law.

SECTION 3.6. Compliance with Laws and Agreementse Support Party and each of its subsidiaries é@mpliance with all laws,
regulations and orders of any Governmental Auth@jitplicable to it or its property and all indermsiragreements and other instruments
binding upon it or its property, except as disctbea Exhibit X hereto or where the failure to do isdlividually or in the aggregate, could not
reasonably be expected to have a material advéess en the Support Party's financial conditioroperations.

SECTION 3.7. Investment and Holding Company Stalieither the Support Party nor any of its subsidsais (a) an "investment company"
as defined in, or subject to regulation under,ltivestment Company Act of 1940,

(b) a "holding company" as defined in, or subjectegulation under, the Public Utility Holding Coany Act of 1935 or (c) subject to any
Federal or state statute or regulation limitingpitslity to incur indebtedness for money borrowdither the Support Party nor any of its
subsidiaries is subject to the Interstate CommAnte

SECTION 3.8. Taxes. The Support Party and eacts glubsidiaries has timely filed or caused to leelfall tax returns and reports requirec
have been filed and have paid or caused to begliaixes required to have been paid by it, ex¢@ptaxes that are being contested in good
faith by appropriate proceedings and for whichS@port Party or such subsidiary, as applicable skaaside on its books adequate reserve:s
or (b) to the extent that the failure to do so daubt reasonably be expected to have a materigrae\effect on the Support Party's financial
condition or operations.

SECTION 3.9. ERISA. No ERISA Event has occurreisaeasonably expected to occur that, when takgether with all other such ERISA
Events for which liability is reasonably expectedtcur, could reasonably be expected to have errabadverse effect on the Support Pa
financial condition or operations. The present gadfiall accumulated benefit obligations under €lem (based on the assumptions used for
purposes of Statement of Financial Accounting SiatsiNo. 87) did not, as of the date of the mastmefinancial statements reflecting such
amounts, exceed by more than $10,000,000 the faikehvalue of the assets of such Plan, and treepteralue of all accumulated benefit
obligations of all underfunded Plans (based orat®imptions used for purposes of Statement of Eiglaiccounting Standards No. 87) did
not, as of the date of the most recent financatkestents reflecting such amounts, exceed by mare$h0,000,000 the fair market value of
the assets of all such underfunded Plans.

SECTION 3.10. Disclosure. The Support Party haslaked to the Administrative Agent and the Lendeagreements, instruments and
corporate or other restrictions to which it or arfiyts subsidiaries is subject, and all other matk@mown to it, that, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to haaexial adverse effect on the operations or firgrandition of the Support Party. None
the information furnished by or on behalf of
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the Support Party to the Administrative Agent oy &ender in connection with the negotiation of tBispport Party Agreement or delivered
hereunder (as modified or supplemented by othernmhtion so furnished) contains any material misst@nt of fact or omits to state any
material fact necessary to make the statementsithén the light of the circumstances under whiuty were made, not misleading.

SECTION 3.11. Federal Reserve Regulations. NettieeSupport Party nor any of its respective subsgil is engaged principally, or as one
of its important activities, in the business ofending credit for the purpose of purchasing orytag margin stock.

SECTION 3.12. Environmental and Safety Matters. Shpport Party and each of its subsidiaries hagptiechin all material respects with
federal, state, local and other statutes, ordirgrarelers, judgments, rulings and regulationsirgjab environmental pollution or to
environmental regulation or control or to employelth or safety. Neither the Support Party nor @frijs subsidiaries has received notice of
any material failure so to comply. The Support Pamrnd its subsidiaries' facilities do not managg Hazardous Materials, as defined in
Environmental Law or any other applicable law lielgto environmental pollution or employee healtld gafety. The Support Party is not
aware of any events, conditions or circumstancesiwing environmental pollution or contaminationemployee health or safety that could
reasonably be expected to result in material lighdn the part of the Support Party or any okitbsidiaries.

SECTION 3.13. Financial Statements. The SuppotlyRes heretofore furnished to the AdministrativgeAt and the Lender its consolidated
and consolidating balance sheets and statemeirisarhe and cash flows as of and for the fiscal yealed March 31, 2002, audited by and
accompanied by the opinion of Pricewaterhouse Cuppalependent public accountants. Such finastéements present fairly the finan
condition and results of operations of the Supparty and its consolidated subsidiaries as of siath and for such period. Such balance
sheets and the notes thereto disclose all matetidlities, direct or contingent, of the Suppogr® and its consolidated subsidiaries as of the
date thereof. Such financial statements were peeharaccordance with GAAP applied on a considtests.

SECTION 3.14. No Material Adverse Change. Therelegs) no material adverse change in the busingsstsanature of assets, operations,
prospects or condition, financial or otherwisettef Support Party and its subsidiaries, takenwalsae, since December 31, 2002.

SECTION 3.15. Agreements.

A. Except as disclosed on Exhibit X, neither th@gart Party nor any of its subsidiaries is a p&otgny agreement or instrument or subje«
any corporate restriction that has resulted ordcoeult in a material adverse effect on the opmrator financial condition of the Support
Party or its subsidiaries.

B. Neither the Support Party nor any of its sulasids is in default in any manner under any provisif any indenture or other agreement or
instrument evidencing any indebtedness, or anyratfagerial agreement or instrument to which it gagty or by which it or any of its
properties or assets are or may be bound, excejiseesed on Exhibit X or where
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such default could result in a material adversectfbn the operations or financial condition of $§wport Party or its subsidiaries.

SECTION 3.16. Borrower's Business. The SupportyRafamiliar with Borrower's financial conditiomd business operations and has done
all diligence to enter into this Support Party Agrent and has not relied on the Administrative Ageriender with respect to such
diligence. The Support Party has received a copieot. oan Documents and hereby acknowledges argkntsto the terms and conditions
thereunder.

ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS

The Support Party covenants and agrees that, gaal®any portion of the amounts outstanding urttet.ban Documents shall remain ung
or outstanding, it will observe the following cowarts:

SECTION 4.1. Notices of Material Events. The Sup@arty will furnish to the Administrative Agentéeach Lender prompt written notice
of the following:

A. the occurrence of any Support Party Default;

B. the filing or commencement of any action, suipmceeding by or before any arbitrator, or Goweental Authority against or affecting the
Support Party or any Affiliate thereof that, if asely determined, could reasonably be expectegstdt in a material adverse effect on the
operations or financial condition of the SupporttiPar its subsidiaries;

C. the occurrence of any ERISA Event that, alonegether with any other ERISA Events that haveuoerl, could reasonably be expected
to result in liability of the Support Party and $tisbsidiaries in an aggregate amount exceedin@@QMO00;

D. any action by the Support Party pursuant tochatll of this Support Party Agreement, or any agnent to do so;

E. any provision of this Support Agreement is helthe invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any gdiction resulting in a material adverse
effect on the ability of the Support Party to penfdts obligations hereunder;

F. any change by Moody's or S&P in the rating ef 8upport Party's senior, unsecured, non-credisged long-term indebtedness for
borrowed money after the date hereof; and

G. any other development that results in, or coedbonably be expected to result in, a materiadi@dveffect on the operations or financial
condition of the Support Party or its subsidiaries.
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Each notice delivered under this Section shalldm®mpanied by a statement of an executive offiE#he Support Party setting forth the
details of the event or development requiring sustice and any action taken or proposed to be takéimrespect thereto.

SECTION 4.2. Existence; Conduct of Business. ThepBtt Party will, and will cause each of its sulesigs to, do or cause to be done all
things necessary to preserve, renew and keeplifofake and effect its legal existence and thetsglicenses, permits, privileges and
franchises material to the conduct of its busirssbwill maintain and operate such business intankially the manner in which it is
presently conducted and operated. The Support Bhaaty, directly or through its wholly-owned subiaiies, own and control not less than
50% of the voting stock of the sole general partighe Borrower.

SECTION 4.3. Payment of Obligations. The SupportyPaill, and will cause each of its subsidiaries pay its indebtedness and other
obligations promptly and in accordance with themts and pay and discharge promptly when duexabktassessments and governmental
charges or levies imposed upon it or upon its ine@mprofits or in respect of its property, beftre same shall become delinquent or in
default, as well as all lawful claims for labor, texdals and supplies or otherwise which, if unpaiight give rise to a lien upon such
properties or any part thereof; provided, howetrat such payment and discharge shall not be redjwith respect to (i) any such tax,
assessment, charge, levy or claim so long as fidityar amount thereof shall be contested in géaith by appropriate proceedings and the
Support Party or such subsidiary of the SupportyPsdrall have set aside on its respective bookgquaate reserves with respect thereto and;
(i) the obligations set forth on Exhibit X.

SECTION 4.4. Maintenance of Properties; Insurafbe. Support Party will, and will cause each okibsidiaries to, (a) keep and maintain
all property material to the conduct of its buss@sgood working order and condition, ordinary waad tear excepted, and (b) maintain,
insurance in such amounts and against such riskseasustomarily maintained by companies engagéukisame or similar businesses
operating in the same or similar locations, inahgdpublic liability insurance against claims forganal injury or death or property damage
occurring upon, in, about or in connection with tise of any properties owned, occupied or contidieit, or as may be required by law.

SECTION 4.5. Books and Records; Inspection Righite Support Party will, and will cause each okitbsidiaries to, keep proper books of
record and account in which full, true and corextries are made of all dealings and transactionslation to its respective business and
activities. The Support Party will, and will caussch of its subsidiaries to, permit any represamsidesignated by the Administrative Agent
or any Lender through the Administrative Agent, mpeasonable prior notice, to visit and inspecpitsperties, to examine and make extracts
from its books and records, and to discuss itdraffinances and condition with its officers andeépendent accountants, all at such
reasonable times and as often as reasonably request

SECTION 4.6. Compliance with Laws. The Support yaiitl, and will cause each of its subsidiariescomply with all laws, rules,
regulations and orders of any Governmental Authpwhether now in effect or hereafter enacted,iapple to it or its property, except whe
the failure to do so, individually or in the aggaég, could not reasonably be expected to
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result in a material adverse effect on the opematar financial condition of the Support Partytsrsubsidiaries.
SECTION 4.7. Financial Statements, Reports, ete. Sipport Party will furnish to the Administratidgent and Lender:

A. as soon as practicable and in any event witBid#&ys after each fiscal quarter, (i) consoliddtal&ince sheets of the Support Party and its
subsidiaries and as of the end of such periodifamdelated statements of income, stockholderstyegnd cash flows for such fiscal period,
setting forth in each case in comparative formfidperes for the corresponding periods of the prasifiscal year (but together with the
consolidating intercompany eliminations and adjustta in the case of (i) and

(i), all in reasonable detail and certified bfirrancial officer of the Support Party that theyrlfapresent the financial condition of the
Support Party and its subsidiaries as at the daiedted and the results of their operations amghgés in their financial position for the
periods indicated, subject to changes resultingn fanidit and normal year-end adjustment;

B. as soon as practicable and in any event witBthdays after the end of each fiscal year of thep8tt Party, consolidated balance sheets of
the Support Party and its subsidiaries, as atrideoésuch year, and the related consolidatedmataits of income, stockholders' equity and
cash flows for such fiscal year, setting forth &tk case, in comparative form the consolidateddgfor the previous year, all in reasonable
detail and accompanied by a report thereon of iadéent certified public accountants of recognizatibmal standing selected by the Support
Party and reasonably satisfactory to the Lendeigiwteport shall be unqualified as to going conaard scope of audit and shall state that
such consolidated financial statements preseny fairall material respects, the financial positiof the Support Party and its subsidiaries, as
at the dates indicated, and the results of tharatpns and cash flows for the periods indicatecbinformity with GAAP (applied on a basis
consistent with prior years unless as otherwisedttiherein) and that the examination by such attemts in connection with such
consolidated financial statements has been madeciordance with generally accepted auditing stalsglar

C. together with each delivery of financial statemseof the Support Party and its subsidiaries mnsto Sections 4.7.A and B above, (i) a
certificate of a financial officer stating that thigner thereof has reviewed the terms of this Scigparty Agreement and has made, or caused
to be made, a review in reasonable detail of #iestictions and condition of the Support Party emsiubsidiaries during the accounting
period covered by such financial statements andstizh review has not disclosed the existence dumirat the end of such accounting per
and that the signer does not have knowledge ofxistence as at the date of such certificate, pfcamdition or event which constitutes a
Support Party Default, or, if any such conditioresent existed or exists, specifying the naturepgaribd of existence thereof and what action
the Support Party has taken, is taking and proptosteke with respect thereto;

D. together with each delivery of financial statetseof the Support Party and its subsidiaries'yamsto Section 4.7.B above, a written
statement by the independent public accountanisgythie report thereon (i) stating that their aedidamination has included a review of the
terms of this Support Party Agreement as theyedtatccounting matters,
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(i) stating whether, in connection with their augkamination, any condition or event which cong#is a Support Party Default has come to
their attention, and if such a condition or eveas home to their attention, specifying the natume @eriod of existence thereof; provided that
such accountants shall not be liable by reasomypfalure to obtain knowledge of any such Sup@atty Default that would not be disclos
in the course of their audit examination, and tgting that based on their audit examinationingthas come to their attention that causes
them to believe that either or both the informatiomtained in the certificates delivered therewitinsuant to Section 4.7 B. above is not
correct;

E. promptly upon request therefore, copies ofegbrts submitted to the Support Party by indepetnplglolic accountants in connection with
each annual, interim or special audit of the finalngtatements of the Support Party made by sucbutants, including any comment letter
submitted by such accountants to management inection with their annual audit;

F. promptly upon their becoming available, copitalb

(i) financial statements, reports, notices and pistatements sent or made available generally é¥tipport Party to its security holders ot
any of its subsidiaries to its security holderseotthan the Support Party or another of its subsih, (ii) regular and periodic reports and all
registration statements and prospectuses, if day, iy the Support Party or any of its subsidsséth any securities exchange or with the
Securities and Exchange Commission or any GovertahAnthority succeeding to any of its functioneda

(iii) press releases and other statements mad&ableagenerally by the Borrower or any of it sulisigks to the public concerning material
developments in the business of the Support Padyita subsidiaries;

G. promptly upon any officer of the Support Parbgaining knowledge (i) of any event which consttii Support Party Default, or
becoming aware that any Lender or the Administeafigent has given any notice or taken any othéometith respect to a claimed Support
Party Default under this Support Party Agreementih@at any Person has given any notice to thepSrParty or any of its subsidiaries of
Support Party or taken any other action with respea claimed default or event or condition of thige referred to in paragraph D. of Article
V or (iii) of any condition or event that might heva material adverse effect on the operationiantiial condition of the Support Party or its
subsidiaries, a certificate of a financial offisgecifying the nature and period of existence gfsarch condition or event, or specifying the
notice given or action taken by such holder or ®eend the nature of such claimed default, Sugparty Default, event or condition, and
what action the Support Party has taken, is ta&imdjproposes to take with respect thereto;

H. promptly upon any officer of the Support Parbtaining knowledge of (i) the institution of, oréat of any action, suit, proceeding,
governmental investigation or arbitration againsaffecting the Support Party or any of its sulesiiis or any property of the Support Part
any of its subsidiaries not previously disclosedHh®s Support Party to the Lender, or (ii) any matetevelopment in any action, suit,
proceeding, governmental investigation or arbibratiwhich, in either case, if adversely determiroedild reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on the financial condittoroperations of the Support Party or its subsigéaithe Support Party shall promptly give
notice thereof to the Lender and
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provide such other information as may be reasonaylable to it to enable the Lender and theimsalito evaluate such matters; and

I. with reasonable promptness, such other inforonadind data with respect to the Support Party piodits subsidiaries as from time to time
may be reasonably requested by Lender.

SECTION 4.8. Pari Passu Ranking. The Support Ryl take, or cause to be taken, all action thet be or become necessary or
appropriate to ensure that its obligations undisrSlupport Party Agreement will continue to rankeaist pari passu in right of payment with
all other present and future unsecured indebtedsfebe Support Party.

SECTION 4.9. Subordination to Secured Indebtedriemsder acknowledges and agrees that the indetgsamebligations of the Support
Party hereunder are and shall remain subordinai# ppesent and future indebtedness of the Sugany to its secured creditors.

ARTICLE V
SUPPORT PARTY DEFAULT

SECTION 5.1. Default. Each of the following eveshall constitute an event of default under thisgdupParty Agreement (a "Support Party
Default™):

A. the Borrower or the Support Party shall faibfuserve or perform any covenant, condition or agese contained in Article 2.1 of this
Support Party Agreement and such failure to perfoomtinues to exist for a period of three (3) BasmDays;

B. any representation or warranty made or deemetkrbg or on behalf of the Support Party or any slidng in or in connection with this
Support Party Agreement or any amendment or medifio hereof or waiver hereunder, or in any reprtiificate, financial statement or
other document furnished pursuant to or in conpaatiith this Support Party Agreement or any amenttroe modification hereof or waiver
hereunder, shall prove to have been incorrect winate or deemed made;

C. the Borrower or the Support Party shall faibbiserve or perform any covenant, condition or agexg as provided in this Support Party
Agreement (other than as referred to in clausef Bis Article) and such failure shall continue emredied for a period of thirty (30) days a
notice thereof from the Administrative Agent or lden to the Support Party;

D. any event or condition occurs that results default under any financial covenant relating tg araterial indebtedness of the Support F

or its subsidiaries or any event or condition osdhat results in any material indebtedness oSilygport Party or its subsidiaries becoming
due prior to its scheduled maturity or that enablegermits (with or without the giving of noticde lapse of time, or both) the holder or
holders of any such material indebtedness or arsyee or agent on its or their behalf to causesach material indebtedness to become due,
or to require the prepayment, repurchase, redemptiaefeasance thereof, prior
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to its scheduled maturity, including but not lintite the defaults under the indebtedness set éortExhibit X;

E. an involuntary proceeding shall be commencehdnvoluntary petition shall be filed seekingli@uidation, reorganization or other relief
in respect of the Support Party or any of its MateBubsidiaries or their respective debts, or sfibstantial part of their respective assets,
under any federal, state or foreign bankruptcyglirency, receivership or similar law now or hereafh effect or (ii) the appointment or a
receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, coag®rer similar official for the Support Party anyeof its Material Subsidiaries or for a
substantial part of their respective assets, andny such case, such proceeding or petition shatinue undismissed for 60 days or an order
or decree approving or ordering any of the foregahall be entered;

F. the Support Party or any of its Material Sulegidis shall (i) voluntarily commence any proceedindjle any petition seeking liquidation,
reorganization or other relief under any federatesor foreign bankruptcy, insolvency, receivgpsi similar law now or hereafter in effect,
(i) consent to the institution of, or fail to c@st in a timely and appropriate manner, any prdogeat petition described in clause E. of this
Article, (iii) apply for or consent to the appoirgmt of a receiver, trustee, custodian, sequestradoservator or similar official for the Supy
Party or any of its Material Subsidiaries or faubstantial part of their respective assets, {i®)ah answer admitting the material allegations
of a petition filed against it in any such proceegli(v) make a general assignment for the bengé6itemlitors or (vi) take any action for the
purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

G. the Support Party shall become unable, admitriting, or fail generally, to pay its debts asytheecome due;

H. one or more judgments for the payment of monegni aggregate amount in excess of $1,000,000shatindered against the Support
Party, any of its subsidiaries or any combinatiwer¢of and the same shall remain undischargedgeriad of 30 consecutive days during
which execution shall not be effectively stayedany action shall be legally taken by a judgmeatlitor to attach or levy upon any assets of
the Support Party or any of its subsidiaries t@ed any such judgment;

I. an ERISA Event shall have occurred that, indpmion of the Administrative Agent or Lender, whiaken together with all other ERISA
Events that have occurred, could reasonably bectegdo result in a material adverse effect orfitrencial condition or operations of the
Support Party or its subsidiaries; and

J. a Change of Control shall have occurred.

then, in addition to any rights the Administrati&gent or the Lender may have under the Loan Doctsnand irrespective of whether (i)
such Support Party Default is the result, direotiyndirectly, of the failure of the Support Padry the Borrower, or any other Person in
complying with its obligations under this Suppoarty Agreement or (i) any amounts outstanding unke Loan Documents have becom:
have been declared immediately due and payable the
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Administrative Agent may, and at the request oflteeder shall, proceed to protect and enforceitjfeés of the Lender by an action at law, a
suit in equity or other appropriate proceeding.

SECTION 5.2. Default Standstill. In the event th&dupport Party Default exists under Section 5.thidugh I. hereof, inclusive, Lender st
not exercise its rights and remedies hereundesrspds Lender continues to receive, from and #itedate of such Support Party Default
until the Support Party Reinstatement Conditiorssd@fined in the Loan Agreement) are satisfied%4@® Excess Cash Flow in accordance
with Section 4.1 of the Loan Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 6.1. Binding on Successors, Transfereesfasyns; Assignment of Support Party Agreements Bupport Party Agreement sh
be binding upon the Support Party and its succestansferees and assigns and shall inure toethefib of and be enforceable by the
Administrative Agent on behalf of the Lender andititespective permitted successors and assigogided, however, that the Support Party
may not assign any of its obligations hereundehavit the prior written consent of all of the Lender

SECTION 6.2. Amendments, etc. No amendment to avevaf any provision of this Support Party Agreemeor consent to any departure
by the Support Party herefrom, shall in any evenétiective unless the same shall be in writing sigded by the Administrative Agent, and
then such waiver or consent shall be effective amijre specific instance and for the specific psgfor which given.

SECTION 6.3. Addresses for Notices. Except in theecof notices and other communications expressiyigted to be given by telephone,
notices and other communications provided for mesbill be in writing and shall be delivered by dhan overnight courier service, mailed
certified or registered mail or sent by telecop/falows:

A. if to the Borrower or Lender, as provided in @t 11.9 of the Loan Agreement; and

B. if to the Support Party, to it at 1325 Autometiway, Suite 100, Reno, Nevada 89502-3239, AttergfdRocky Wardrip (Telecopy No.
(702) 688-6338) with a copy to Jennifer M. Settléd;laul, 2727 N. Central Ave., Phoenix, AZ 8500a:f(602) 277-5017.

Any party hereto may change its address or telecopyber for notices and other communications hateuhy notice to the other parties
hereto. All notices and other communications giteeany party hereto in accordance with the prowsiof this Support Party Agreement s
be deemed to have been given on the date of receipt

SECTION 6.4. No Waiver; Remedies. No failure onphet of the Administrative Agent to exercise, addelay in exercising, any right
hereunder (including, but not limited to, the igste of the Issuance Notice) shall operate as aav#iereof; nor shall any single or
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partial exercise of any right hereunder precludeather or further exercise thereof or the exeroisany other right. The remedies herein
provided are cumulative and not exclusive of amgedies provided by law.

SECTION 6.5. Section Captions. Section captionsl us¢his Support Party Agreement are for convergenf reference only, and shall not
affect the construction of this Support Party Agneat.

SECTION 6.6. Severability. Wherever possible eadvigion of this Support Party Agreement shall tteripreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but ifygrovision of this Support Party Agreement shallgoohibited by or invalid under such law,
such provision shall be ineffective to the exteiduch prohibition or invalidity, without invalidiaty the remainder of such provision or the
remaining provisions of this Support Party Agreemen

SECTION 6.7. Termination of Support Party Agreem@ihie Support Party's obligations under this Supparty Agreement shall terminate
on the date upon which all amounts outstanding utieLoan Documents have been paid in full, ahdther obligations under the Loan
Documents and this Support Party Agreement shaé baen fully and finally discharged provided ttiet agreements in Section 6.12 of this
Support Party Agreement shall survive.

SECTION 6.8. Governing Law. THIS SUPPORT PARTY AGREENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE STATE OF EW YORK.

SECTION 6.9. Waiver of Jury Trial. THE SUPPORT PARHEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION BASED ON, OR ARISING OUT
OF, UNDER, OR IN CONNECTION WITH, THIS SUPPORT PARAGREEMENT. THE SUPPORT PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND
AGREES THAT IT HAS RECEIVED FULL AND SUFFICIENT COSIDERATION FOR THIS PROVISION AND THAT THIS
PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR THE ADMINISRATIVE AGENT AND THE LENDER ENTERING INTO THE
LOAN DOCUMENTS.

SECTION 6.10. Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver ofiomities. The Support Party hereby acknowledgesagneles that:

A. It irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction ofyafederal court sitting in the Southern DistrictNéw York in any action or proceeding aris
out of or relating to this Support Party Agreemait;l the Support Party hereby irrevocably agrestsathclaims in respect of such action or
proceeding may be heard and determined in suchékedeurt. The Support Party hereby irrevocablywssj to the fullest extent it may
effectively do so, the defense of an inconvenientrh to the maintenance of such action or proceedihe Support Party agrees that a final,
unappealable judgment in any such action or prangeshall be
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conclusive and may be enforced in other jurisdigiby suit on the judgment or in any other manmeviged by law.

B. It hereby irrevocably designates, appoints and@vers CT Corporation, presently located at 1htti Avenue, New York, New York
10011 (together with any successor thereto, thevi@eof Process Agent"), as its designee, appeiatel agent to receive, accept and
acknowledge for and on its behalf, and in respeits @roperties, service of any and all legal gss; summons, notices and documents whick
may be served in any such action or proceedirfor iny reason the Service of Process Agent shaeto be available to act as such, the
Support Party agrees to designate a new ServiPeogkss Agent in New York City on the terms andlfierpurposes of this provision
satisfactory to the Administrative Agent. The Suparty further irrevocably consents to servicgmfcess in the manner provided for
notices in Section 6.3. Nothing in this Support @gment will affect the right of any party to thispport Agreement to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law.

C. Nothing in this Section shall affect the rigffitlte Administrative Agent or Lender to serve legaicess in any manner permitted by law or
affect the right of the Administrative Agent or L= to bring any action or proceeding against tingp®rt Party or its property in the courts
of any other jurisdictions.

SECTION 6.11. Right of Setoff. If a Support PartgfBult shall have occurred and be continuing, tenfistrative Agent, Lender and each
of its Affiliates is hereby authorized at any tiged from time to time, to the fullest extent petedtby law, to set off and apply any and all
deposits (general or special, time or demand, prawal or final) at any time held and other obligas at any time owing such Administrative
Agent, Lender or Affiliate to or for the credit tire account of the Support Party against any ofadirttie obligations of the Support Party r
or hereafter existing under this Support Party Agrent held by Lender, irrespective of whether drimmder shall have made any demand
under this Support Party Agreement and although sbitigations may be unmatured. The rights of Lena&er this

Section are in addition to other rights and reme(iecluding other rights of setoff) which Lendeayrhave.

SECTION 6.12. Expenses; Indemnity; Damage Waiver.

A. The Support Party shall pay (i) all reasonahleaf-pocket expenses incurred by the Lender, Adstriative Agent and its Affiliates,
including the reasonable fees, charges and distersis of counsel for the Administrative Agent, @nnection with the preparation and
administration of this Support Party Agreementmy amendments, modifications or waivers of the @ons hereof (whether or not the
transactions contemplated hereby or thereby skatbbsummated) and (ii) all out-pbcket expenses incurred by the Administrative Age
Lender, including the fees, charges and disbursenwrany counsel for the Administrative Agent @nider, in connection with the
enforcement or protection of its rights in connectivith this Support Party Agreement, includingritghts under this Section.

B. The Support Party shall indemnify and hold hasselthe Administrative Agent, Lender and each @if ttespective officers, directors,
employees, counsel, agents and attorneys-in-fach(en "Indemnified Person”) from and againstandthem for any and all liabilities,
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actiodgnjents, suits, costs, charges,
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expenses or disbursements (including attorney cobtmny kind or nature whatsoever with resped¢htoexecution, delivery and enforcement
of this Support Party Agreement, or the Transastiamd with respect to any actual or prospectigarcllitigation, investigation or proceedi
relating to any of the foregoing, whether basedamtract, tort or any other theory and regardlésshether any Indemnitee is a party thereto
related to this Support Party Agreement, whetherabrany Indemnified Person is a party theretotfelforegoing, collectively, the
"Indemnified Liabilities"); provided, that the Sumb Party shall have no obligation hereunder to lagmnified Person with respect to
Indemnified Liabilities directly arising from theags negligence or willful misconduct of such Inchéied Person as determined by a cour
competent jurisdiction. The agreements in thisiBadi.12 shall survive payment of the amounts aaging under the Loan Documents.

C. To the extent permitted by applicable law, thp@rt Party shall not assert, and hereby waivgsckim against any Indemnitee, on any
theory of liability, for special, indirect, consetial or punitive damages (as opposed to direattral damages) arising out of, in connec
with, or as a result of, this Support Party Agreatrag any agreement or instrument contemplateddyese the Transactions.

D. All amounts due under this Section shall be p&yaromptly after written demand therefore.
ARTICLE VII
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herebntained, the obligations of the Support Parngeu Article 1l hereof shall be limited
the then applicable Maximum Obligation. In no evemll any amounts paid, invested or escrowed &é\stipport Party under or pursuant to
Article 1l hereof be deemed to reduce the Maximubligation.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Support Party Agreemerg haen executed as of the day and date first, aboiten.
SUPPORT PARTY:
AMERCO, a Nevada corporation

By: /sl Gary B. Horton

Name: Gary B. Horton

Title: Treasurer

(SIGNATURE PAGE CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)
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BORROWER:

PM PREFERRED PROPERTIES, L.P., a Texas
limited partnership

By: SR Preferred Properties, Inc.,
a Texas corporation
Its: General Partner

By: /s/ Douglas Mil vaney

Name: Dougl as L. Mil vaney
Title: President



EXHIBIT A
SUBORDINATION TERMS

1. The Support Party hereby agrees that (a) aiefiens, security interests, terms, covenantscanditions of the Subordinated debt shall at
all times be wholly subordinate to the liens, ségunterests, terms, covenants and condition$eflioan Document and any and all advances
(whether or not obligatory) advanced or incurredéoordance therewith, and

(b) all amounts due to the Support Party undeSthigordinated debt (including interest and/or ppatpayments or prepayments,
assignments of leases and rents, rights with réspétsurance proceeds and condemnation awardanaes and expenses with interest), are
hereby and shall at all times continue to be exglyesibject and subordinate in right of paymenhtindebtedness of the Borrower
evidenced by the Loan Documents and any and alirashs (whether or not obligatory) advanced or ietlin accordance therewith. The
Support Party acknowledges that the disbursemesuros or future advances may increase the indeddediecured by the Loan Documents
above the original principal amount thereof.

2. The Support Party shall not acquire by subrogationtract or otherwise any lien upon any otls¢aite, right or interest in the Property
(including without limitation any which may arise iespect to real estate taxes, assessments ofgoernmental charges) which is or may
be prior in right to the Loan Documents.

3. Lender may, without affecting the subordinatiéithe Subordinated debt (1) release or comproangeobligation in the Loan Documents,
(2) release its liens in, or surrender, releaggeomit any substitution or exchange of all or aayt pf any properties securing repayment of
Loan Documents or (3) retain or obtain a lien ig property to further secure payment of the Loan.

4. The Support Party shall give Lender and Admiatste Agent copies of any notices to Borrowertie@to the Subordinated debt.

5. Neither Lender nor Administrative Agent shalldi#igated to give the Support Party notices ofgly increase, amendment, deferral,
extension, consolidation, or supplement (“Modifigat) to the Loan; or (2) any cancellation, ext@msimodification, renewal or amendment
of any lease or ground lease covering the Properany portion thereof.

6. The commencement of foreclosure proceedingsher eemedial action under the Subordinated delthéysupport Party, shall constitute a
default under the Loan at the time the SupportyRakes such enforcement or remedial action.

7. During the continuance of a default under tharl.BDocuments, or in the event of a foreclosure wadker either the Loan or the
Subordinated debt, or any liquidation or dissolutid Borrower, or of any execution sale, receivgrsimsolvency, bankruptcy, liquidation,
readjustment, reorganization, or other similar peating relative to the Borrower or its property Bupport Party shall not be entitled to
receive or retain any payment made under the Suiadedi debt and all amounts due under the Loan mDeats shall first be paid in full
before any payment is made under the Subordinaetd bh such event a payment



distribution of any kind, whether in cash, rentfits, property or securities, which is made agathe Subordinated debt shall be held in
by the Support Party for the benefit of Lender ahdll be paid over to Lender in kind for applicatio payment of the Loan. The Loan shall
not be deemed paid or satisfied in full until Lentas received a payment that is not subject wiggen, restoration or return.

8. In order to enable Lender to enforce any cldsnthe Support Party against the Borrower in agyitlation or dissolution of Borrower, or
any execution sale, receivership, insolvency, baptiy, liquidation, readjustment, reorganizationpther similar proceeding relative to the
Borrower or its property, Lender is hereby irreagaauthorized and empowered in its discretion akenand present, for and on behalf of
undersigned the Support Party, such proofs of daigainst the Borrower on account of the Subordihdebt as Lender may deem expedient
or proper, and to vote such proofs of claims in singh proceeding and to receive and collect anyalirtividends or other payments or
disbursements made thereon in whatever form the saay be paid or issued. The Support Party fudbeges to execute and deliver to
Lender such assignments or other instruments asmagquired by Lender in order to enable Lendenforce any and all such claims ani
collect any and all such payments or disbursements.

9. So long as the Loan Documents shall remainnauipon the Property or any part thereof, the Supparty shall execute, acknowledge and
deliver, upon Lender's reasonable demand, at emgydr from time to time, any and all further suboations, agreements or other instrum
in recordable form as Lender may reasonably redairearrying out the purpose and intent of thear@ants contained herein.
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SCHEDULE X

On October 15, 2002, AMERCO failed to make a $1@0an principal payment due to the Series 199 Bond Backed Asset Trust ("BAT'
On that date, AMERCO also failed to pay a $26.3iamlobligation to Citibank and Bank of Americagonnection with the BATSs.

As a result of the foregoing, AMERCO is in defawith respect to its other credit arrangements ¢batain crossiefault provisions, includir
its 3-Year Credit Agreement dated June 28, 2002 '({&evolver") in the amount of $205 million. In aiizh to the cross-default under the
Revolver, AMERCO is also in default under that agnent as a result of its failure to obtain incretaknet cash proceeds and/or availability
from additional financings in the aggregate amadrat least $150 million prior to October 15, 2002addition, Amerco Real Estate
Company has defaulted on a $100 million loan bynigito grant mortgages required by the loan agesgrm a timely manner. The
obligations of AMERCO in default (either directly as a result of a cross-default), as of DecembePB02, are approximately $1,175.4
million. As a result of the foregoing, AMERCO issalin default under the Chase/JP Morgan Supporeégent.

AMERCO has retained the financial restructuringificrossroads, LLC to assist with the negotiatiostahdstill agreements and waivers, as
appropriate. This would permit AMERCO to pursuefiging alternatives and asset sales that wouldeitab repay the Revolver and the
BATS, meet calendar year 2003 maturities, anduesire its balance sheet.

AMERCO, through Crossroads, is in communicatiorhwit of its lenders. On November 27, 2002 AMER@@ahed a standstill agreement
with respect to the Revolver. During the standptitiod, the Revolver lenders will receive inter@sthe default rate on the outstanding
balance.

Generally speaking, AMERCO's other lenders hava lseeperative to date and are acting in a mannesisient with customary standstill
arrangements even though written standstill agre&eve not been executed with any lenders dtiagrthe Revolver lenders. All lenders
are receiving detailed financial and other inforimrafrom AMERCO concerning the progress of thertegtiring. In addition, all of
AMERCO's lenders are continuing to receive all pagta due to them (other than the $100 million oteeithe BATs and default interest).
Lenders that execute a standstill agreement taggRevolver lenders) will receive default interest

Currently, AMERCO is in discussions with severaljondinancial institutions regarding loans that i@enable AMERCO to fully satisfy its
obligations under the BATSs, the Revolver, and deéturities in calendar year 2003. On December Q022AMERCO executed term sheets
with two major financial institutions for up to $&3nillion in connection with AMERCO's planned debstructuring. AMERCO plans to
close the financing by March 31, 2003. AMERCO'sttaration as a going concern is dependent, in paxn its ability to successfully
complete these necessary financing arrangen



In addition, the Support Party has been namedda$emdant in certain class action and sharehoklgvative suits. However, the Support
Party does not believe there is a reasonably pitissif adverse determination with respect to seelses



Exhibit 10.67
[ALVAREZ & MARSAL, INC. LETTERHEAD]
May 22, 2003

Edward J. Shoen
Chairman and President
AMERCO

2727 North Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Dear Mr. Shoen:

This letter confirms and sets forth the terms ammtltions of the engagement between Alvarez & Matsa. ("A&M") and AMERCO (the
"Company"), including the scope of the servicebdagerformed and the basis of compensation foetkesvices. Upon execution of this le
by each of the parties below and receipt of theimet described below, this letter will constitateagreement between the Company and
A&M.

1. Description of Services

(a) A&M shall provide consulting services to thengmany's President and Board of Directors, and tasssCompany in its reorganization
efforts including the restructuring of its capisalucture. It is anticipated that A&M's activitisBall include the following in connection with
the strategic advisory and potential corporatedstat restructuring of the Company (the "Strategiwidory and Restructuring Assignment”):

() Undertake, in consultation with members of ngaraent, a comprehensive study and analysis ofubiedss, operations, financial
condition and prospects of the Company;

(i) Review with members of management the Comafiyancial plans and analyze its strategic plarmskausiness alternatives;
(iii) Assist the Company in reviewing and assessisigash flow and income projections;
(iv) Analyze existing direct and contingent liabés of the Company (including debt obligations attier liabilities) and debt structural
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issues (including the value, quality and enforclgtof the collaterals, if any);

(v) Advise the Company's management with respeav&ilable capital and financing alternatives, udithg recommending specific course!
action;

(vi) Ascertain the debt servicing capability of tiempany under the current debt maturity strucame any additional funding requirements,
including working capital, trade financing, equipmhacquisition, export financing and other finamcireeds:

(vii) Determine overall enterprise value of the Gmmy and the Group to serve as the basis for mio#sting or recapitalization plan;
(viii) Develop, together with the Company's Presidend staff, a restructuring or recapitalizatidengfor the Company;

(ix) Assist the Company with negotiating and stawictg financing including new capital in the forrh@IP facility and exit financing;
(x) Assist the Company in its presentations todteglitors of its projections, valuations, and nestturing plan;

(xi) Assist with pre and post bankruptcy stratetgnping;

(xii) Assist the Company in negotiations with isykcreditors;

(xiii) Provide financial advice and assistancette Company in developing and seeking approvalRéstructuring (as defined below) plan
the same may be modified from time to time, a "Blamhich may be a plan of reorganization undemptéall of title 11 of the United States
Code, 11 U.S.C. section 101 et. Seq. (the "Bankyu@bde");

(xiv) Participate in hearing before the bankruptoyrt having jurisdiction over the case or casesrnenced under the Bankruptcy Code. The
Company acknowledges the important role of its selim adequately preparing A&M personnel for stegtimony; and

(xv) Other activities as are approved by you orBbard of Directors and agreed to by A&M.

You understand that the services to be rendere&y may include the preparation of projections anter forward-looking statements, and
numerous factors can affect the actual resulte@fdompany's operations, which may materially ahaesely differ from those projections.
In addition, A&M will be relying on information praded by the Company in the preparation of thoggegtions and other forward-looking
statements. A&M makes no representation or guagathi an appropriate restructuring proposal caiotmulated for the Company, that
restructuring is the best course of action forGleenpany or, if formulated, that any proposed restming plan will be accepted by the
Company's creditors, shareholders and other coasti. Further,



A&M assumes no responsibility for the implementatar selection of any restructuring proposal whiassists the Company in formulating.

In rendering its services to the Company, A&M wiport directly to the President, and through hhme,Board of Directors and will make
recommendations to and consult with the Board oé®ors, President and such other senior officeidirected.

(b) Richard M. Williamson, a Managing Director o&M, will be responsible for the overall engagemée. will be assisted by other A&M
personnel. A&M personnel providing services to @@mpany may also work with other A&M clients in gamction with unrelated matters.

2. Compensation
(&) In connection with the Strategic Advisory angsRucturing Assignment, A&M will receive:
(i) Advisory Fee

A&M's engagement will be effective as of May 22030A&M will bill the Company for professional séces rendered on an hourly rate
basis in accordance with the schedule of ratesabdlbe basic hourly rates used in computing therydgilling Rate are reviewed and
adjusted from time to time and may increase overcthurse of A&M's engagement, the "Hourly BillingtB".

Managing Directors $475 - 595
Directors $375 - 450
Associates $275 - 350
Analysts $175 - 250
Para-Professionals $50- 75

A&M will provide monthly billing statements to th@ompany setting forth the fees for each monthattburly billing rate (*Monthly Hourly
Rate Amount"), and the Company agrees to pay saténsents immediately upon receipt thereof. IfR@structuring is to be implemented
pursuant to a Chapter 11 proceeding, as requirddruapplicable law, A&M must be paid all outstargdfees with respect to the Hourly
Billing Rate and costs as of the day prior to amghsfilings. For each month
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during the term of this engagement, any amourh@Monthly Hourly Rate Amount that exceeds $175,0@€luding a pro-rated amount for
the month of May 2003, will be credited, up to IDM00, against any Restructuring Transaction Bgalge to A&M pursuant to the
Restructuring Transaction Fee paragraph below.

(il) Restructuring Transaction Fee

If at any time during the term of this engagementluring the time period that the Company may delator under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code if the Restructuring is to be impémted pursuant to such a Chapter 11 proceedinlydimg the term of this engagement,
the "Fee Period"), (A) any Restructuring is consuated, or (B)(l) an agreement in principle, defirgtagreement or Plan to effect a
Restructuring is entered into and (2) concurrethtgrewith or at any time thereafter (including aftee expiration of the Fee Period), such
Restructuring is consummated, A&M will be entitliedreceive a transaction fee (a "Restructuring 3aation Fee"), contingent upon the
consummation of such Restructuring and payableeatibsing thereof, equal to $4 million, providedtiier, that if either (A) or (B) above
occurs in connection with a plan of reorganizatidnch either (i) includes no convertible debt ag péthe treatment of creditors or (ii) wh
convertible debt is included but said convertibdbids redeemed within 12 months of the effectigeaf the plan, then A&M will be entitled
to receive the Restructuring Transaction Fee, afuadditional $1 million.

(iii) Timing Incentive Fee

In addition to the Restructuring Transaction Feaveh A&M will be entitled to a Timing Incentive Féased on the timing of the occurrence
of either of the events in (ii)(A) or (B) above'(Eiming Fee Event"). The Timing Incentive Fee vii# $2,400,000, less the Timing Period
Adjustment. The Timing Period Adjustment will beGB2000 (or a prorated portion thereof) for everyda@s (or prorated portion thereof)
from the date of filing of the Chapter 11 procegdio the date of a Timing Fee Event.

(b) In addition, A&M will be reimbursed for its reanable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in conmeetith this assignment, such as travel,
lodging, duplicating, computer research, messeagértelephone charges. In addition, A&M shall bebairsed for the reasonable fees and
expenses of its counsel incurred in connection thighenforcement of this Agreement. All fees anplegses

4



will be billed and payable on a monthly basis ¢/ A&M's discretion, more frequently.

(c) Upon execution of this Agreement, the Compaillypsovide us with a retainer in the amount of $3100 (the "Retainer"). To the extent
any invoices are unpaid in whole or in part, sutioants will be deemed to have been paid out oRitainer. Upon termination of this
Agreement, the Retainer, or any remaining porti@reof, will be credited against our final invoigeénd/or returned to the Company onc
obligations have been paid in full. To the extéwtttthe Company files for Chapter 11 protection @iins terms of a DIP financing facility,
subject to a final order by the judge, that corgarsufficient administrative expense carve oupfofessional fees, we will refund $300,000
back to the company.

For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Restringti shall mean any recapitalization Financingdatned below) or restructuring
(including without limitation, through any exchangenversion, cancellation, forgiveness, retirensgmt ore a material modification or
amendment to the terms, conditions or covenantgdifieof the Company's equity and/or debt secwritied /or other indebtedness, obligat
or liabilities (including without limitation, prefeed stock, partnership interests, lease obligatitlade credit facilities and other contract or
tort obligations), including pursuant to a repussaefinancing or and exchange transaction, adl&gorganization or a solicitation of
consents, waivers, acceptances or authorizatiamychange of control transactions, including & $a$ defined below).

For Purposes of this Agreement, the term "Finaricéhgll mean a public or private issuance, salg@@rement of the equity or debt securit
instruments or obligations of the Company with onenore lenders and/or investors, or any loan leefinancing, including any rights
offering.

For Purposes of this Agreement, the term "Salell afrgan the disposition to one ore more third garth one or more transactions and
whether in whole or part, a series of related tmatisns of (a) substantially all or a significantiion of the equity securities of the Company,
or substantially all or (b) a significant portiohtbe assets (including the assignment of and d@reggontracts) or operations of the Company
or its subsidiaries, in either case, including tiyio a sale or exchange of capital stock, optioressets, a lease of assets with or without a
purchase option, a merger, consolidation or othsirtess combination, an exchange or tender offegapitalization, the formation of a joint
venture, partnership ore similar entity, or anyikintransaction.



The Company acknowledges that A&M may, at its apaad expense and after announcement of the Restngcplace announcements and
advertisements or otherwise publicize the Restrirgitand A&M's role in it (which may include thepr@duction of AMERCO's corporate
logo). Furthermore, if requested by A&M, the Compahall include a mutually acceptable referencA&1 in any press release or other
public announcement made by the Company regartimgnatters described in this letter.

3. Term

The engagement will commence as of the date harabfmay be terminated by either party without cdnysgiving 30 days' written notice to
the other party. In the event of any such termamtany fees and expenses due to A&M shall be tedhiromptly (including fees and
expenses that accrued prior to but were invoicedeguent to such termination). If the Company teatas this engagement without Caus

if A&M terminates this engagement for Good ReagafiM shall also be entitled to receive the Restruicty Transaction Fee upon the
occurrence of the event specified in Section 2{Pf(such event occurs within 12 months of thenaration. The Company may immediately
terminate A&M's services hereunder at any timeJause by giving written notice to A&M. Upon any Buermination, the Company shall
relieved of all of its payment obligations undestAgreement, except for the payment of fees ampeieses through the effective date of
termination (including fees and expenses that &ctprior to but were invoiced subsequent to suchitetion) and its obligations under
paragraph 8. For purposes of this Agreement, "Calsdl mean if A&M breaches any of its materialigations hereunder and does not cure
such breach within 30 days of the Company havirgmivritten notice of such breach to A&M describingeasonable detail the nature of
the alleged breach. A&M shall be entitled to imnagelly terminate its services hereunder for GoodsBeaFor purposes of this Agreement,
termination for "Good Reason" shall mean eitheratdgnation caused by a breach by the Compangyobgits material obligations under
this Agreement that is not cured within 30 day#&M having given written notice of such breach betCompany describing in reasonable
detail the nature of the alleged breach or a fibhg petition under Chapter 11 of the United St&ankruptcy Code in respect of the
Company unless within 45 days thereafter (or, d@r&o, prior to the date on which a plan of reorgatidn is confirmed or the case is
converted to one under Chapter 7), the Companylb@ned judicial authorization to continue the agpgment on the terms herein pursua
an order which has become a final, nonappealableror

4. Relationship of the Parties



The parties intend that an independent contraetationship will be created by this engagemenéietiieither A&M nor any of its personnel
or subcontractors is to be considered an employagent of the Company and the personnel and striactors of A&M are not entitled to
any of the benefits that the Company providesHer€Gompany employees. The Company acknowledgea&idts engagement shall not
constitute an audit, review or compilation, or atlyer type of financial statement reporting engagrthat is subject to the rules of the
AICPA, SEC or other state or national professiaralegulatory body.

5. No Third Party Beneficiary

The Company acknowledges that all advice (writtearal) given by A&M to the Company in connectioitiwthis engagement is intended
solely for the benefit and use of the Company (lahito its Board of Directors and management) ims@wering the matters to which this
engagement relates. The Company agrees that naduitte shall be used for any other purpose oorkpred, disseminated, quoted or
referred to at any time in any manner or for angppge other than accomplishing the tasks refeodetein without A&M's prior approval
(which shall not be unreasonably withheld), ex@ptequired by law.

6. Conflicts

A&M is not currently aware of any relationship theduld create a conflict of interest with the Compar those parties-in-interest of which
you have made us aware, but we note the followdegain members of the engagement team are agsikérinsecured Committee 1
Presidents Casino, in which AIG is a member. Bee#&M is a consulting firm that serves clients onational basis in numerous cases,
both in and out of court, it is possible that A&Maynhave rendered services to or have businessiatisos with other entities or people
which had or have or may have relationships with@empany, including creditors of the Company hie évent you accept the terms of this
engagement, with the exception of AIG as menticadealve, A&M will not represent, and A&M has not repented, the interests of any such
entities or people in connection with this matter.

7. Confidentiality / Non-Solicitation
A&M shall keep as confidential all non-public infoation received from the Company in conjunctiorhwitis engagement, except: (i) as
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requested by the Company or its legal counselagijequired by legal proceedings or (iii) as reabty required in the performance of this
engagement. All obligations as to non-disclosugdl glease as to any part of such information toetktent that such information is or
becomes public other than as a result of a brebtfisoprovision. The Company agrees not to sglieitruit or hire any employees of A&M
effective from the date of this Agreement and curitig for a period of two years subsequent to ¢heination of this engagement. Should
the Company extend offers of employment to any A&Mployee and should such an offer be accepted, Adlhbe entitled to a fee based
upon such individual's hourly rates multiplied byassumed annual billing of 2,000 hours. This feeld be payable at the time of the
individual's acceptance of employment from the Camyp

8. Indemnification

The attached indemnification agreement is incorgaraerein by reference and shall be executed tigoacceptance of this Agreement.
Termination of this engagement shall not affecséhimdemnification provisions, which shall remairfull force and effect.

9. Miscellaneous

This engagement letter (together with the attachéemnity provisions): (a) shall be governed andstwed in accordance with the laws of
the State of New York, regardless of the laws thigiht otherwise govern under applicable princigésonflict of laws thereof; (b)
incorporates the entire understanding of the mawi¢h respect to the subject matter hereof; ahd@y not be amended or modified except in
writing executed by both parties hereto. The Comgard A&M agree to waive trial by jury in any actigoroceeding or counterclaim brou

by or on behalf of the parties hereto with respeetny matter relating to or arising out of the aypgment or the performance or non-
performance of A&M hereunder. In the event the Canypfiles under Chapter 11, the Company and A&Meaghat the bankruptcy court
having jurisdiction over any and all matters agsimder or in connection with this engagementiettel the indemnity provisions and in
connection with the services rendered by A&M hedain



If the foregoing is acceptable to you, kindly stge enclosed copy to acknowledge your agreemehtitgiterms.

Very truly yours,

Accepted and agreed:

AMERCO

Alvarez & Marsal, Inc.

By: /s/ Richard M WIIlianmson

Richard M WIIiamson
Title: Managing Director

By: /s/ Edward J. Shoen

Edward J. Shoen, President
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INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This indemnity is made part of an agreement, datee 4, 2003 (which together with any renewals, ifivadions or extensions thereof, is
herein referred to as the "Agreement") by and betw&lvarez & Marsal, Inc. ("A&M") and AMERCO (theCbmpany"), for services to be
rendered to the Company by A&M.

A. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harsndesh of A&M, its shareholders, employees, ageagsesentatives and subcontractors
(each, an "Indemnified Party" and collectively, thedemnified Parties") against any and all losstsms, damages, liabilities, penalties,
obligations and expenses, including the costsdansel or others (including employees of A&M, basedheir then current hourly billing
rates) in investigating, preparing or defending aatjon or claim, whether or not in connection witigation in which any Indemnified Party
is a party, or enforcing the Agreement (includihgge indemnity provisions), as and when incurradsed by, relating to, based upon or
arising out of (directly or indirectly) the Indenfied Parties' acceptance of or the performanceonpearformance of their obligations under
Agreement; provided, however, such indemnity shailapply to any such loss, claim, damage, liabdit expense to the extent it is found
final judgment by a court of competent jurisdictigmot subject to further appeal) to have result@éahgrily and directly from such Indemnifis
Party's gross negligence or willful misconduct. TBmmpany also agrees that no Indemnified Partyt Baak any liability (whether direct or
indirect, in contract or tort or otherwise) to #Bempany for or in connection with the engagememi&M, except to the extent for any such
liability for losses, claims, damages, liabilitie@sexpenses that are found in a final judgment byguat of competent jurisdiction (not subject
to further appeal) to have resulted primarily aivdatly from such Indemnified Party's gross negtige or willful misconduct. The Company
further agrees that it will not, without the primonsent of an Indemnified Party, settle or compsenair consent to the entry of any judgment
in any pending or threatened claim, action, suftroceeding in respect of which such IndemnifiedyPseeks indemnification hereunder
(whether or not such Indemnified Party is an agpaaty to such claim, action, suit or proceedingsgss such settlement, compromise or
consent includes an unconditional release of sndbrhnified Party from all liabilities arising out uch claim, action, suit or proceeding.

B. These indemnification provisions shall be iniidd to any liability which the Company may othése have to the Indemnified Parties.

C. If any action, proceeding or investigation isntnenced to which any Indemnified Party proposagetoand indemnification hereunder,
such Indemnified Party will notify the Company wittasonable promptness; provided, however, thafalwe by such Indemnified Party to
notify the Company will not relieve the Companyrfrits obligations hereunder, except to the extest such failure shall have actually
prejudiced the defense of such action. The Comphall promptly pay expenses reasonably incurredrlyyindemnified Party in defending,
participating in, or settling any action, proceegor investigation in which such Indemnified
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Party is a party or is threatened to be made & pamtherwise is participating in by reason of #émgagement under the Agreement, upon
submission of invoices therefor, whether in advaofdie final disposition of such action, proceegiar investigation or otherwise. Each
Indemnified Party hereby undertakes, and the Comnpareby accepts its undertaking, to repay anyadirslich amounts so advanced if it
shall ultimately be determined that such Indemdiffarty is not entitled to be indemnified therefbany such action, proceeding or
investigation in which an Indemnified Party is atpas also against the Company, the Company nmaljei of advancing the expenses of
separate counsel for such Indemnified Party, peosicth Indemnified Party with legal representabipnhe same counsel who represents the
Company, provided such counsel is reasonably aatmfy to such Indemnified Party, at no cost tdhdndemnified Party; provided, howev
that if such counsel or counsel to the Indemniftadity shall determine that due to the existenaectfal or potential conflicts of interest
between such Indemnified Party and the Company sochsel is unable to represent both the IndenthRiarty and the Company, then the
Indemnified Party shall be entitled to use separatmsel of its own choice, and the Company shalinptly advance its reasonable expenses
of such separate counsel upon submission of ingdlwrefor. Nothing herein shall prevent an InddiadiParty from using separate counsel
of its own choice at its own expense. The Compaitiyoe liable for any settlement of any claim agaian Indemnified Party made with the
Company's written consent, which consent shalbeatnreasonably withheld.

D. In order to provide for just and equitable cdmition if a claim for indemnification pursuanttttese indemnification provisions is made
it is found in a final judgment by a court of congrg jurisdiction (not subject to further appeattsuch indemnification may not be enfor
in such case, even though the express provisiae®hgrovide for indemnification, then the relatifeeilt of the Company, on the one hand,
and the Indemnified Parties, on the other handpimection with the statements, acts or omissidmnistwresulted in the losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and costs giving rise to tidemnification claim and other relevant equitaldasiderations shall be considered; and
further provided that in no event will the Indeniedf Parties' aggregate contribution for all loss&Ems, damages, liabilities and expenses
with respect to which contribution is available dwander exceed the amount of fees actually recdiyate Indemnified Parties pursuant to
Agreement. No person found liable for a fraudulaigrepresentation shall be entitled to contributieneunder from any person who is not
also found liable for such fraudulent misrepresima

E. In the event the Company and A&M seek judicfzdraval for the assumption of the Agreement or aitlation to enter into a new
engagement agreement pursuant to either of whicMAwuld continue to be engaged by the CompanyCiiapany shall promptly pay
expenses reasonably incurred by the IndemnifietidBaincluding attorneys' fees and expenses, im@ction with any motion, action or
claim made either in support of or in oppositioratty such retention or authorization, whether waade of or following any judicial
disposition of such motion, action or claim, prompipon submission of invoices therefor and regassllof whether such retention or
authorization is approved by any court. The Compaifiyalso promptly pay the Indemnified Parties oty expenses reasonable incurred by
them, including attorneys' fees and expenses gkisg payment of all amounts owed it under the &grent (or any new engagement
agreement) whether through submission of a feecgtjgn or in any other
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manner, without offset, recoupment or counterclaimether as a secured claim, an administrativeresgoelaim, an unsecured claim, a
prepetition claim or a postpetition claim.

F. Neither termination of the Agreement nor terrtimmaof A&M's engagement nor the filing of a peditiunder Chapter 7 or 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code (nor the conversion of dsting case to one under a different chapter) dffdct these indemnification provisions,
which shall hereafter remain operative and infinite and effect.

G. The rights provided herein shall not be deemetlsive of any other rights to which the IndemaifiParties may be entitled under the
certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the Defstoany other agreements, any vote of stockholotedssinterested directors of the Debtors,
any applicable law or otherwise.

AMERCO ALVAREZ & MARSAL, | NC.

By: /s/ Edward J. Shoen By: /s/ Richard M WIIlianmson
Edward J. Shoen Richard M WIIliamson
Chai rman and Presi dent Managi ng Di rector



Exhibit 10.68

Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc.
2450 Colorado Avenue
Suite 3000W
Santa Monica, California 90404

June 19, 2003
VIA TELEFAX AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Mr. E. J. Shoen

Chairman of the Board
U-Haul International, Inc.
2727 North Central Avenue
Phoenix, Arizona 85004

Re: $300,000,000 debtor-in-possession financingd&d®,000,000 emergence financing for AMERCO, addevcorporation ("AMERCO"),
Amerco Real Estate Company, and certain of theoliytowned subsidiaries to be determined thatffilebankruptcy protection under
Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Codbe@ively, the "Borrowers" and each, individually,'Borrower"), plus such additional
related entities as may be guarantors under snahdings

Dear Mr. Shoen:

In accordance with our recent discussions, Weltgd-&oothill, Inc. (formerly known as Foothill Cagli Corporation, "Foothill") is pleased to
issue this financing commitment (the "Commitmentt&®) to the Borrowers. Foothill commits to undeites a debtor-in-possession credit
facility of up to $300,000,000 (the "DIP Facilityfgr the purposes of financing the Borrowers' opjens during the contemplated Chapter 11
reorganization cases to be filed by the Borrowearsaertain of their direct and indirect subsidiariepon the entry of a final order (the "Final
Order") approving the DIP Facility. The commitment-oothill under the DIP Facility will be irrevobly reduced by the amount of the
commitments of any other prospective lenders thatate commitments relating to the DIP Facilitytie extent expressly stated in such
commitment of such other prospective lenders.

In addition, Foothill hereby commits, subject te terms and conditions set forth herein and inTiren Sheet (as defined below), to
underwrite a $650,000,000 credit facility to beypded concurrent with a confirmed reorganizatioanpacceptable to Foothill of the
respective Chapter 11 cases (the "Emergence Kdkillthe commitments of Foothill under the Emerge
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Facility will be irrevocably reduced by the amowhthe commitments of any other prospective lentiems execute commitments relating to
the Emergence Facility to the extent expresshedtat such commitment of such other prospectivddes

Foothill would act as lead arranger, collateralrigsyndication agent and administrative agenttferproposed DIP Facility and for the
proposed Emergence Facility. The terms of bottptioposed DIP Facility and the proposed Emergencéityaare set forth in the "Financing
Commitment" dated June 19, 2003 attached herefdmasx A (the "Term Sheet").

The DIP Facility and the Emergence Facility outtirie this Commitment Letter are fully underwritteith no underwriting contingency, but
are subject to the satisfaction of each of the itmmd contained in this Commitment Letter and Tieem Sheet, including syndication of the
Emergence Facility to the satisfaction of Footinillts sole discretion. Foothill reserves the rightevise or modify any provision containec
the Term Sheet if it reasonably determines indts discretion that such changes are necessamgdilmé course of preparing and negotiating
the loan documentation.

If the DIP Facility contemplated by this Commitmémtter is not consummated on or before July 3132@@en, without any requirement of
notice or other formality, Foothill's commitmentuoderwrite the DIP Facility shall terminate andpaoty hereto would have any obligation
to pursue the financing arrangement outlined ig kfiter; provided, however, that prior thereto Bogrowers and Foothill agree to use their
respective reasonable efforts to cause the DIRifyad be consummated on or before such date.dEte on which the first advance is made
under the DIP Facility provided for herein andhe fTerm Sheet would be deemed the "Closing Date."

If the Emergence Facility contemplated by this Cdtnmant Letter is not consummated on or before 3dlp004, then, without any
requirement of notice or other formality, Footkilklommitment to underwrite the Emergence Faciligligerminate and no party hereto wc
have any obligation to pursue the financing arramg@ outlined in this letter; provided, howeveatthrior thereto the Borrowers and Foot
agree to use their respective reasonable effotause the Emergence Facility to be consummatendt before such date.

As set forth herein, while Foothill has committedunderwrite the entire amount of the DIP Facitibd the Emergence Facility subject to the
terms and conditions of this Commitment Letter #re@iTerm Sheet, it is the intent of Foothill to digate the DIP Facility and Emergence
Facility and, as a material inducement to Footbillssue the commitments set forth herein, the ®wers have agreed to cooperate in such
syndication process. Foothill will manage all agp@d such syndication, including the timing of aifers to potential lenders, the allocatiol
commitments and the determination of compensationigled and titles (such as co-agent, managingtagtm), if any. The Borrowers also
agree that no lender will receive &
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compensation for its participation in the DIP F#gibr the Emergence Facility except as expressiyfarth in the Term Sheet or as otherwise
agreed to and offered by Foothill.

The Borrowers agree to use commercially reasoreffidets to assist Foothill in forming a syndicateeptable to Foothill. The Borrowers'
assistance shall include but not be limited tag¢ing commercially reasonable efforts to make sen@nagement and representatives of the
Borrowers available to participate in meetings emgrovide information to potential lenders andticgrants at such times and places as
Foothill may reasonably request; (ii) using comnadlg reasonable efforts to provide to Foothill miformation reasonably deemed necessary
by Foothill to complete the syndication, subjectomfidentiality agreements in form and substaeasonably satisfactory to the Borrowers
and Foothill; (iii) using best efforts to ensurattthe syndication efforts benefit from the Borrosvexisting lending relationships; and (iv)
assisting (including using best efforts to causitiates and advisors of the Borrowers to assisthe preparation of a confidential information
memorandum for the Emergence Facility and othekateng materials to be used in connection withsiedications.

To ensure an orderly and effective syndicatiorhefEmergence Facility, the Borrowers agree thatn fthe date hereof until the termination
of the syndication of the Emergence Facility (aedeined by Foothill in its sole discretion), therBowers will not, and will not permit any
of their affiliates to, syndicate or issue, attenigpsyndicate or issue, announce or authorizethewncement of the syndication or issuanc
any senior secured debt security or commercial loarmther debt facility (including any renewalsrief), without the prior written consent
Foothill, which consent shall not be unreasonalithheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, thatfibregoing shall not limit Foothill's abili

to syndicate the DIP Facility or the Borrowers'lipto negotiate with creditors, other than credstthat are likely participants in an
emergence facility such as the Emergence Faciityemmplated by this letter, as part of the Borravegstructuring. Notwithstanding
anything in this letter to the contrary, nothingitained herein shall prohibit or restrict the Bevess from entering into discussions or
negotiations with an alternative lending sourceairces with respect to an emergence facilityafBlorrowers determine, in their reasonable
discretion, that they can obtain substantially nfax®rable terms from an alternative lender or é¥sd

This Commitment Letter, the Term Sheet and thellegters (as defined below) embody the entire ageseinetween the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersdidasor proposals, negotiations, or agreemertistiver written or oral, relating to the
subject matter hereof including any letter of intérnis letter may not be modified, amended, suppleted, or otherwise changed, except
document in writing signed by the parties hereto.

This Commitment Letter shall be governed by andsttoed in accordance with the laws of the Stafdea York as applied to contracts
entered into and to be performed wholly within 8tate of New York. Each party hereto waives anfitrigmay have to a trial by jury, in tt
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event of any dispute pertaining to this Commitriegiter, the Term Sheet, the Fee Letters or theséretions contemplated hereby and
thereby.

In connection with the requested DIP Facility, Baarowers understand that it will be necessaryFmothill to make certain financial, legal,
and collateral investigations and determinationsdnnection with the Proposal Letter dated Magh2D03 (the "Proposal Letter"), the
Borrowers have paid to Foothill, from time to tina@ expense deposit (the "Prior Expense Depogjdinat the expenses that have been or
may be incurred by Foothill. From time to time uthie Closing Date, the Borrowers shall pay Fob#nil additional expense deposit as
requested by Foothill against the expenses tha hagn or may be incurred by Foothill, whether uilde Proposal Letter, this Commitment
Letter, or otherwise (the "Additional Expense Deafipand together with the Prior Expense Deposteinafter referred to as the "Expense
Deposit"). This Expense Deposit will be applied-tmothill's expenses as and when they are inculir€aothill concludes for any reason, that
it will not make the financing outlined herein dabie to the Borrowers, Foothill will return theused balance of the Expense Deposit. If, on
the other hand, Foothill continues to be prepamegktend the credit described herein to the Borrewaad the Borrowers decline for any
reason, to accept such financial accommodatiorsthitoshall be entitled to retain the full amowitthe Expense Deposit for the benefit of
Foothill, irrespective of the amount of expensesiined Foothill. Foothill's retention of the balanaf the Expense Deposit results from its
reasonable endeavor to estimate the added adrathistcosts incurred and the amount of damageisestéy Foothill as a result of
Borrowers' decision to decline to accept the fimag.clf the financing is funded, the Expense Depwadi be returned to the Borrowers after
deducting all of Foothill's expenses actually imedr Foothill shall not be obligated to segreghteExpense Deposit from its other funds and
the Borrowers are not entitled to receive inteogstiny portion of the Expense Deposit. The Borrewareby agree to pay the full amount of
Foothill's expenses incurred in connection withtth@saction contemplated herein and the preparatiegotiation, execution and delivery of
this Commitment Letter, the Term Sheet, the Fe&kstthe loan documents and any security arrangesnreconnection therewith, including
the reasonable fees and disbursements of couniethier incurred before or after the date herewBspective of the amount of the Expense
Deposit and whether the transaction is actuallysaommated. The Borrowers further agree to pay afiscand expenses of Foothill (including,
without limitation, reasonable fees and disbursamehcounsel) incurred in connection with the eoéonent of any of its rights and remedies
hereunder. From time to time, Foothill shall beitted to request, and the Borrowers shall be obdigdo provide, supplements to the Expense
Deposit to the extent that actual or anticipatgueeses exceed the Expense Deposit.

The Borrowers represent and warrant that (i) &irmation (other than financial projections) thastbeen or will hereafter be made available
to Foothill, any lender or any potential lenderdryon behalf of the Borrowers or any of their retpe representatives in connection with the
transactions contemplated hereby is and will bepteta and correct in all material respects and do¢sind will not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact or or
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to state a material fact necessary in order to nfaketatements contained therein not misleaditiglin of the circumstances under which
such statements were or are made and (i) all fishprojections, if any, that have been or willgrepared by or on behalf of the Borrowers
or any of their respective representatives and razdi#able to Foothill, any lender or any potentiadder have been or will be prepared in
good faith based upon assumptions that are reasoatthe time made and at the time the relateahfifal projections are made available to
Foothill. If, at any time from the date hereof Uitttie date of the initial borrowings under the Egesrce Facility, any of the representations
and warranties in the preceding sentence woulddmiect if the information or financial project®were being furnished, and such
representations and warranties were being madeichttime, then the Borrowers will promptly suppésrnthe information and the financial
projections so that such representations and wigsawill be correct under those circumstances. Btiowers acknowledge that informati
and documents relating to the transactions contaiegbhereby may be transmitted through Intralittkes internet or similar electronic
information transmission systems.

In issuing this Commitment Letter and in arranding Emergence Facility, including the syndicatioereof, Foothill will be entitled to use,
and to rely on the accuracy of, the informatiomfsined to them by or on behalf of the Borrowerary of their respective representatives
without responsibility for independent verificatitmereof.

Regardless of whether the commitment herein isitet@d or the proposed DIP Facility or Emergencsliacloses, the Borrowers shall
indemnify and hold harmless Foothill and its adfiéis, directors, officers, employees, attorneysraptesentatives (each, an "Indemnified
Person"), from and against all suits, actions, @edings, claims, damages, losses, liabilities apéreses (including, but not limited to,
attorneys' fees and disbursements and other cbisigastigation or defense, including those incdrapon any appeal), that may be instituted
or asserted against or incurred by any such Ind@drPerson in connection with, or arising outtbfs Commitment Letter or the proposed
DIP Facility or Emergence Facility under considienatthe documentation related thereto, any otimanting related thereto, any actions or
failure to act in connection therewith, and any atl@&nvironmental liabilities and legal costs angbenses arising out of or incurred in
connection with any disputes between or among antygs to any of the foregoing, and any investayatlitigation, or proceeding related to
any such matters, whether or not such suit, acfimgeeding, investigation or litigation is brougiyta Borrower, any of its equity holders or
creditors, an Indemnified Person or any other pemsaentity, and whether or not an Indemnified Beris otherwise a party thereto.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, indemngbadl not be liable for any indemnification to lademnified Person to the extent that
such suit, action proceeding, claim, damage, lags)ity or expense results solely from that Indefied Persons gross negligence or willful
misconduct, as finally determined by a court of petent jurisdiction. Under no circumstances shaditRill or any of its affiliates be liable to
you or any other person for any punitive, exemplaonsequential or indirect damages in connectiibim this Commitment Letter, tr
proposed DIP Facility, the proposed Emergence igdihe documentation related thereto or any o
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financing, regardless of whether the commitmengineis terminated or the transaction or the finagailoses.

You may not assign this Commitment Letter withdng prior written consent of Foothill, and any atpeetd assignment without such consent
shall be void.

This Commitment Letter supersedes all prior wrifeoposals or letters of interest with regard tg proposed financing that previously may
have been issued by Foothill.

You acknowledge that Foothill may provide debt ficiamg, equity capital or other services (includfim@ncial advisory services) to parties
whose interests may conflict with the Borrowerg2iasts. Foothill will not furnish confidential mfmation obtained from the Borrowers or
their respective affiliates to any of its customénsrthermore, Foothill has no obligation to, useannection with the transactions
contemplated hereby, or to furnish to the Borroweosfidential information obtained by Foothill froany other person.

We are very enthusiastic about the opportunityrtarfce the operations of AMERCO and its subsidsaaied affiliates, and believe we can
proceed very quickly to the signing of the desigdadocuments and subsequent closing of the DIRitifagis you know, we have already
completed a great deal of diligence with respegbtar real property, your corporate structure aadows third party relationships. If you wi
to proceed on the basis outlined above, pleasaiex#itis Commitment Letter in the space providddwend return it to the undersigned no
later than 5:00 p.m., Los Angeles, California time,or before June 20,2003, accompanied by payafehe DIP Facility Commitment Fee
more fully described and payable under the let¢ed the date hereof and referred to in the TereeSds one of the "Fee Letters". Such DIP
Facility Commitment Fee is fully earned upon the@axion of delivery of this Commitment Letter bydtoill and non-refundable when paid.
If you fail to make any required fee payment by dpplicable deadline, this Commitment Letter shapire automatically and Foothill's
commitments shall terminate and be of no furthecdand effect. This Commitment Letter is beingvided to the Borrowers on a
confidential basis and is not for the benefit @t should it be relied upon by, any third partyioPto the filing of the Chapter 11
reorganization case by AMERCO and filing of thisn@uitment Letter and Term Sheet with the Unitedea@ankruptcy Court, other than
the disclosure by the Borrowers of this Commitrrisgtter and Term Sheet to insurance regulatory Isodieither the existence of this
Commitment Letter and Term Sheet nor the termsadfiened thereof will be disclosed to any person othan the officers, directors,
employees, accountants, attorneys and other advi$adhe Borrowers, and then only on a confideratiad "need to know" basis in connection
with the transactions contemplated hereby. Notuatiding the foregoing, this Commitment Letter mayfiked, if required with any reports
the Borrowers are required to file with respecany regulatory agencies such as the Securitie€aoldange Commission or similar
regulatory entity or with the United States BankoypCourt.
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This Commitment Letter may be executed in any nurobeounterparts, each of which, when so execudiedl| be deemed to be an original
and all of which, taken together, shall constitate and the same Commitment Letter. Delivery ofxacuted counterpart of a signature page
to this Commitment Letter and the Fee Letters actapier shall be as effective as delivery of aginal executed counterpart thereof. The
Borrowers' obligations with respect to paymentasdts and expenses, indemnities and confidentistigl survive the expiration or

termination of this Commitment Letter whether ot tie loan documents shall be executed and detivere

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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This Commitment Letter may be executed in any nurobeounterparts, each of which when executeddstidered, shall be deemed to be
original, and all of which, when taken togethelshonstitute but one and the same agreementvéglof an executed counterpart of this
letter by telefacsimile shall be equally as effeetas delivery of the original executed counterpéthis letter.

Very truly yours,

WELLS FARGO FOOTHILL, INC.,
formerly known as Foothill Capital
Corporation

By: /s/ Scott d assberg

Title: Senior vice president

[SIGNATURES CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

COMMITMENT LETTER
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The foregoing terms and conditions are hereby dedegnd agreed to as of June ___, 2003.

AMERCO, a Nevada corporation, on behalf of itseld &s affiliates and subsidiaries that will be Bavers or Guarantors as contemplated by
the Term Sheet

By: /s/ Edward J. Shoen

Title: President

cc: Chris D. Molen, Esq.
Jesse H. Austin, Ill, Esg.

COMMITMENT LETTER



ANNEX A
AMERCO AND AMERCO REAL ESTATE COMPANY, ET AL.
FINANCING COMMITMENT

$300,000,000 DIP FACILITY
$650,000,000 EMERGENCE FACILITY

JUNE 19, 2003

The proposed terms and conditions summarized hezpiesent the terms and conditions pursuant tolwhells Fargo Foothill, Inc.,
formerly known as Foothill Capital Corporation (‘ttbill"), will underwrite (i) a $300,000,000 debtor-possession credit facility (the "DIP
Facility") for purposes of financing Borrowers' egtons during the contemplated Chapter 11 reorgdioin cases to be filed by Borrowers
and Guarantors, and (ii) a $650,000,000 creditifa¢the "Emergence Facility") to be provided canent with a confirmed reorganization
plan acceptable to Foothill of the respective Chapil cases.

The proposed terms and conditions summarized hesiginrespect to the DIP Facility and the Emergefaeility are provided to evidence
terms and conditions by which Foothill hereby comsirin accordance with the terms of the accompangiommitment Letter, to provide
financing to Borrowers and Guarantors under the EXEility and the Emergence Facility.

BORROWERS: DIP FACILITY: AMERCO, a Nevada corporation, Amerco
Real Estate Company and certain of their wholly-owned
subsidiaries as required by Foothill (collectively,
"Companies" or "Borrower s"), each as a
debtor-in-possession und er cases to be filed under
chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the
"Chapter 11 Cases").

EMERGENCE FACILITY: AMER CO, a Nevada corporation,
Amerco Real Estate Compa ny, U-Haul International,
Inc. and such other of t heir wholly-owned
subsidiaries and affilia tes as required by Foothill
(collectively, "Companie s" or "Borrowers").

GUARANTORS: DIP FACILITY: AllU.S. a ffiliates and subsidiaries of
the Companies (that are not direct Borrowers under
the DIP Facility) as req uired by Foothill, including,
without limitation, U-Ha ul International, Inc. and
its subsidiaries (togeth er with Borrowers, each a
"Loan Party" and collect ively, the "Loan Parties").
EMERGENCE FACILITY: All U.S. affiliates and
subsidiaries of the Comp anies (that are not direct
Borrowers under the Emer gence Facility) as required
by Foothill.
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LEAD ARRANGER AND
ADMINISTRATIVE

AGENT:

FINANCING FACILITIES:

as lead arranger, collat
and administrative agent

EMERGENCE FACILITY: Foot
administrative agent, co
syndication agent.

credit facilities with M
follows:

(1) A $300,000,000 debto
facility (the "DIP Facil
Credit Amount of $300,00
entry of a final Order (
such facility; and

(2) A $650,000,000 credi
concurrent with a confir
Borrowers' and Guarantor
acceptable to Agent (the
DIP Facility and the Eme
collectively be referred
Facilities."

APPROVAL OF DIP FACILITY
facility with a Maximum
consisting of a revolvin
$200,000,000 ("DIP Revol
subfacility for the issu
plus an interest only te
$100,000,000 ("DIP Term
letters of credit under

of the Final Order will

(a) $300,000,000, and (b
hereinafter defined).

NOTE: The DIP Facility i
basis that Borrowers wil
interim basis but will s
Facility at a final hear

EMERGENCE FACILITY: A se
with a Maximum Credit Am
consisting of (i) a revo

to $200,000,000 ("Revolv
subfacility for the issu

plus (ii) a $350,000,000
facility ("Term Loan A")

be determined, plus (iii
facility with no schedul
("Term Loan B"). Aggrega
credit under the Revolve
Emergence Facility will

(a) $550,000,000, and (b
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DIP FACILITY: Wells Farg
Foothill Capital Corpora

TRANCHED FACILITIES: Two

o Foothill, Inc., f/k/a
tion ("Agent" or "Foothill"),
eral agent, syndication agent

hill, as lead arranger,
llateral agent and

separate senior secured
aximum Credit Amounts as

r-in-possession credit

ity"), with the Maximum
0,000 available upon the
the "Final Order") approving

t facility to be provided
med reorganization plan of
s' Chapter 11 cases
"Emergence Facility"). The
rgence Facility shall

to as the "Financing

: A senior secured credit

Credit Amount of $300,000,000
g credit facility of up to

ver"), with a $25,000,000

ance of letters of credit,

rm loan facility of

Loan"). Aggregate loans and
the DIP Facility upon entry

be limited to the lesser of

) the Borrowing Base (as

s being presented on the
| not seek approval on an
eek approval for the DIP
ing.

nior secured credit facility
ount of $650,000,000

Iving credit facility of up
er"), with a $25,000,000
ance of letters of credit,
amortizing term loan

with amortization thereon to
) a $100,000,000 term loan
ed amortization payments
te loans and letters of

r and Term Loan A of the
be limited to the lesser of

) the Borrowing Base.



LETTERS OF CREDIT:

MATURITY DATE:

The Borrowing Base for t
of the fair market value
Collateral with respect
DIP Term Loan thereof. T
Emergence Facility shall
value of owned Real Prop
apply to the Revolver an
such amounts would also
anticipated environmenta
certain properties, a re
affecting the Real Prope
below) deemed unacceptab
customary and normal res
limitation, reserves for
may be established by Ag

Each letter of credit wi
of a Borrower by Wells F
selected by Agent, which
satisfactory to Borrower
date that is not later t

the Maturity Date (as he
or prior to the Maturity
shall be cash collateral
105% of the face amount
Borrowers and Guarantors
and customary terms cont
issuance documentation o
Foothill.

FINANCING UNDER THE DIP
the date which is twelve
date of entry of the Fin
following the date of en
Borrowers' plan of reorg
Chapter 11 Cases accepta
the conversion of the Ch
Chapter 7 of the Bankrup
the "Maturity Date"). No
respect to a Plan entere
will discharge or otherw
the joint and several ob

to Foothill under the DI

the payment in full and
obligations under the DI
effective date of the PI

EMERGENCE FACILITY: Five
of the Emergence Facilit
Maturity Date").
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he DIP Facility shall be 40%
of the Real Property

to the DIP Revolver and the
he Borrowing Base for the
be 55% of the fair market
erty Collateral and shall

d Term Loan A thereof. All
be net of a reserve for

| remediation costs for
serve for any title defects
rty Collateral (as defined

le to Agent, and other

erves (including, without
Carve-Out Expenses) which
ent.

Il be issued for the account
argo Bank or another bank
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s, and shall have an expiry
han thirty (30) days prior to
reinafter defined) unless on
Date such letter of credit
ized in an amount equal to
of such letter of credit.

will be bound by the usual
ained in the letter of credit
f the issuing bank and

FACILITY: The earlier of (i)
(12) months following the

al Order, (ii) ten (10) days
try of an Order confirming
anization (a "Plan") in the
ble to Foothill, and (iii)

apter 11 Cases to cases under
tcy Code (such earliest date,
confirmation order with

d in the Chapter 11 Cases
ise affect in any way any of
ligations of the Loan Parties
P Facility, other than after

in cash to Foothill of all

P Facility on or before the
an.

(5) years from closing date
y (the "Emergence Facility



EARLY TERMINATION:

Termination of the Emerg

Emergence Facility Matur
a prepayment premium pay
percentage set forth in
then applicable Maximum
and partial month remain

Maturity Date:

YEAR 1

YEAR 2 YEAR 3 YEAR

2.00%

1.50%

1.00% 0.00%

Other customary prepayme
definitive loan document

assets,

casualty events,

be negotiated.

CLOSING DATE:
(i) July

With respect to the DIP
31, 2003, or (i

following execution of t
Letter and satisfying th
including payment of any
to the Bankruptcy Court
Order in form and substa
to Foothill. Borrowings
subject to entry of the
substance reasonably sat

COLLATERAL:

DIP Facility: All obliga

Foothill shall be: (a) e
administrative expense ¢
Section 364(c)(l) of the
Chapter 11 Case, subject
allowed professional fee
by the Loan Parties and
appointed in the Chapter
amount not in excess of
professional fees and di
or invoiced prior to the
Default, to the extent a
Court) (ii) the payment
Section 1930 (collective
and (b) secured pursuant
(c)(3) and (d) of the Ba
interest in and lien on
acquired property and as
both tangible and intang
"Real Property Collatera
(including, without limi
other equity interests o
the proceeds thereof, ex
estate subject to any cu
lease arrangements and t
notes issued to Amerco R
Holdings and its subsidi
action arising under Sec
548, 549, 550 or
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ence Facility prior to the

ity Date shall be subject to
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etc.), subject to levels to

Facility on the earlier of
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he accompanying Commitment
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ntitled to super-priority
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s and disbursements incurred
any official committees

11 Cases, in an aggregate
$5,000,000 (plus all unpaid
sbursements incurred, accrued
occurrence of an Event of
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of fees pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
ly, the "Carve-Out Expenses")
to Sections 364(c)(2),
nkruptcy Code by a security
all now owned or hereafter
sets of the Loan Parties,

ible, and real property (the

I") and personal property
tation, capital stock or

f their subsidiaries), and
cluding (i) Borrowers' real
rrently existing synthetic

o the existing promissory

eal Estate Company by SAC
aries, and (ii) causes of

tions 502(d), 544, 545, 547,



551 of the Bankruptcy Co
and liens on the aforeme
Parties shall be first p
not subject to subordina
Carve-Out Expenses.

Emergence Facility: Subj
acceptable to Foothill,
Parties to Foothill shal
priority perfected secur

all the assets of Borrow
excluding (i) the existi
Amerco Real Estate Compa
subsidiaries and (ii) Bo

to any currently existin
arrangements. The Emerge
provisions authorizing t

in substantially all of

favor of those parties r
connection with the conf
intercreditor agreement,
which shall be satisfact
intercreditor agreement

for both lien subordinat

and shall, in all respec
subordinated" instrument

All borrowings by Borrow
obligations with respect
costs, fees and expenses
obligations owed to Foot
described above and char
established under the Fa

INTEREST RATES:

Advances outstanding und

bear interest, at Borrow
LIBOR Rate plus 3.50%, o

1.00%.

Advances outstanding und
Revolver would bear inte
at (a) the LIBOR Rate pl
Rate plus 1.00%, and (ii
the Emergence Facility T
interest at the LIBOR Ra
the interest rate could
subject to Borrowers ach
performance and leverage
Grid") to be determined.

Advances outstanding und
Term Loan B would bear i
the Base Rate plus 4.75%
provided that 1.75% of s
payment-in-kind (PIK).
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ers, all reimbursement

to letters of credit, all

of Foothill, and all other
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er (i) the Emergence Facility
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) advances outstanding under
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te plus 4.00%. In addition,

be periodically reduced

ieving certain financial
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er the Emergence Facility
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FEES:

As used herein (x) "Base
interest publicly announ
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. a
Francisco, California, a
rate or prime rate. The
annum, determined by Foo
customary procedures, at
offered to major banks i
market, adjusted by the
by governmental authorit
Foothill. With respect t
only, at no time shall t

to application of the ap
2.00%. All interest and
Facilities shall be comp
of 360 days for the actu
of Default shall occur,

the Facilities at a rate
excess of the rate of in

Unused Line Fee (for
the Financing
Facilities):

Letter of Credit Fees
(for the Financing
Facilities):

Field Examination Fee
(for the Financing
Facilities):

Rate" means the rate of

ced from time to time by

t its principal office in San

s its reference rate, base
LIBOR Rate means the rate per
thill in accordance with its
which dollar deposits are

n the London interbank
reserve percentage prescribed
ies as determined by

o the Emergence Facility

he LIBOR Rate utilized prior
propriate margin be less than
fees for the Financing

uted on the basis of a year

al days elapsed. If any Event
interest shall accrue under

per annum equal to 2.00% in
terest otherwise in effect.

One half of one percent
(0.50%) on the unused
portion of the respective
Revolver Facility, payable
monthly in arrears.
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out-of-pocket expenses,
for each financial audit

of Borrowers performed by
personnel employed by
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actual charges paid or
incurred by Foothill if it
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third parties to perform
financial audits of
Borrowers, to appraise
Borrowers' collateral, or

to assess Borrowers'
business valuation.



CONDITIONS PRECEDENT:

Borrowers shall also pay
forth in one or more of
herewith (collectively,
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proceeds to fund or capi
affiliated with Borrower

Emergence Facility: Tor
fund Borrowers' confirme
corporate purposes inclu
capital and capital expe

The obligation of Foothi
connection with the DIP
customary conditions pre
limitation, the followin

(@) Execution and d
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Financing under DIP Faci
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ding the financing of working
nditures.

lity:

Il to make any loans in
Facility will be subject to
cedent including, without
g:

elivery of appropriate legal
n form and substance
Foothill and the

the conditions precedent
in.

ate Company shall have become
session under the Chapter 11

erse change in the business
ets, financial condition or
rrowers and Guarantors

rse Change") other than the
hapter 11 Cases and the
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(e) Foothill shall have been granted a deemed gedefirst priority senior lien on all Collaterals defined earlier. Foothill shall have
received real estate UCC, tax and judgment lierchkea and other appropriate evidence, confirmiegatisence of any liens on the Collateral,
except existing liens acceptable to Foothill. Fdb#itknowledges that it has already reviewed esahte title reports on over 95% of
Borrowers' properties, have negotiated a formtlef insurance commitment and have reviewed issitledrtsurance commitments on over
350 of Borrowers' properties.

(f) Opinions from the Loan Parties' counsel asuichamatters as Foothill and its counsel may redsdgmaquest.

(9) Insurance satisfactory to Foothill, such insweato include liability insurance for which Fodkthivill be named as an additional insured
and property insurance with respect to the Coldatier which Foothill will be named as loss payee.

(h) Foothill's completion of and satisfaction ihralspects with the results of its ongoing duegditice investigation of the business, assets,
operations, properties (including compliance witRIREA), condition (financial or otherwise), contag liabilities, prospects and material
agreements of Borrowers and their respective Sigrsd.

(i) Borrowers shall have paid to Foothill all fessd expenses, including all appraisal fees andresgse then owing to Foothill.
()) Receipt of the Budget as provided to the Bapkay Court.

(k) Borrowers shall, at loan closing, have a minimof $40,000,000 in the aggregate of unrestricesh@nd available but unused credit
availability (defined as the difference betweerth{g lesser of the (X) the Borrowing Base or (YP$®00,000 and
(i) the sum of the loans and LC's outstanding)eurttie DIP Facility.

() Satisfying any conditions precedent in the Cdtrmant Letter.
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Emergence Facility:

The obligation of Foothill to make any loans orisisim the issuance of any letters of credit inreaction with the $650,000,000 Emergence
Facility will be subject to customary conditiongpedent including, without limitation, the follovgn

(a) Foothill shall have closed the DIP Facility ivBorrowers as provided herein.

(b) Receipt of evidence of the entry of a final @rdonfirming Borrowers' Plan and accompanyingldsae statement, and satisfaction of all
other conditions to the confirmation of such Phhjch Plan, disclosure statement, and confirma@oder shall be in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to Foothill and which Pldhimdglude, among things, a level of assets bothumber and value, acceptable to Foothill.

(c) Receipt of management's projections and busipkes for the succeeding twelve (12) month peoiné month-by-month basis and the
succeeding four year period on an annual basierm &ind substance acceptable to Foothill.

(d) Payment of all reasonable fees and expensegdwiFoothill in connection with the Emergenceiligc

(e) Execution and delivery of appropriate legalwduentation in form and substance satisfactory i and the satisfaction of the
conditions precedent contained therein and delieéall appropriate opinions of counsel relatingréto, reasonably satisfactory in all
respects to Foothill.

(f) Payment in full of obligations owing and amosisutstanding under the DIP Facility.
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(9) Foothill shall have been granted a perfectiest, priority lien on all Collateral including witut limitation mortgages on all owned real
property in form and substance satisfactory to RitloEoothill shall have received real estate, U@ and judgment lien searches and other
appropriate evidence, confirming the absence ofliang on the Collateral, except existing liensegutable to Foothill.

(h) No default or event of default shall exist unttee loan documents for the DIP Facility or thedfgence Facility, and no pending claim,
investigation or litigation by any governmentalignshall exist with respect to the Loan Partieshar transactions contemplated hereby.

() The absence of (i) a Material Adverse Changgh@business operations, assets, condition (finhacotherwise) or prospects of

Borrowers and Guarantors since March 31, 2002etsmined by Foothill in its sole discretion, otligan (x) the filing of the Chapter 11
Cases and the events resulting from the filindhef€hapter 11 Cases, (y) the withdrawal by PriceMtauseCoopers of its audit letter with
respect to the Borrowers' financial statementdterfiscal year ended as of March 31, 2002, andueh other matters as have been disclosed
in writing by Borrowers to Foothill on or beforenri20, 2003 or (ii) an adverse change or disruptigdghe loan syndication, financial,

banking or capital markets generally that, in

Foothill's judgment, could materially impair thensljcation of the Emergence Facility.

(j) Foothill's commencement and completion of, aatisfaction in all respects with, the resultstefingoing due diligence investigation of
business, assets, operations, properties, condftiancial or otherwise), contingent liabilitigmospects and material agreements of
Borrowers and their respective Subsidiaries.

A-10
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EVENTS OF DEFAULT:

GOVERNING LAW:
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Exhibit 10.69

STATE OF ARIZONA

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

In the Matter of DOCKET NO. 03A-098-INS

REPUBLIC WESTERN NOTICE OF DETERMINATION,

INSURANCE COMPANY ORDER FOR SUPERVISION

(NAIC NO. 31089) AND CO NSENT THERETO
Respondent.

The State of Arizona, Department of Insurance (Bepartment”), has received evidence that RepWikstern Insurance Company
("Respondent”) is out of compliance with the prawis of Arizona Revised Statutes ("A.R.S."), Title

20. Respondent wishes to resolve this matter witttmicommencement of contested proceedings, anitsathe following Findings of Fact
are true and consents to the entry of the follov@ogclusions of Law and Order.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent Republic Western Insurance Compashynisciled in Arizona and presently holds a cegéife of authority issued by the
Department to transact property, casualty with vwsskcompensation, disability, marine and trangpiort, surety and vehicle insurance.

2. Respondent is a whollywned subsidiary of AMERCO, a publicly owned aratizd holding company. AMERCO defaulted on the pant
of approximately $130 million in senior debt obligas in October 2002, and according to its pufiliiegs is, in the aggregate, directly or
indirectly as a result of technical cross-defauitsjefault on approximately $1.2 billion of obligans.

3. The Director performed a limited scope examoratf Respondent as of December 31, 2002, pursoditle 20, to ascertain the nature
and extent of affiliate exposures, confirm thatliatied assets and liabilities are reported in agance with Statutory Accountir



Practices, and evaluate the impact on Respondmatigcial condition should AMERCO's debt defaultrdaye its ability to fulfill obligations
to Respondent.

4. Based upon the Director's Report of Examinatiated May 1, 2003, filed in accordance with A.RS8ction 20-158 and A.A.C. R20-6-
1704, the Respondent has consented to the entiysafonsent Order.

5. The Director is exercising his authority undeR4AS. Section 20-158 to withhold the Report of Exetion from public inspection. This
does not preclude Respondent from making the Rep@xamination available to any person. The Doectay release the Report of
Examination for public inspection at any time.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. The Director has jurisdiction over this matter.
2. Grounds exist for the Director to place the Rasient under supervision of the Department in atanore with A.R.S. Section 20-169.
ORDER
IT IS ORDERED:

1. Respondent is hereby notified of the determamatif the Director to place Respondent under tipesiision of the Department in
accordance with A.R.S. Section 20-169.

2. Respondent is hereby under the supervisioneobihector and the Director is applying and effatiing the provisions of Article 2, Chapter
1, Title 20, Arizona Revised Statutes.

3. The requirements to abate the Director's detegtion are that:

a. Respondent shall establish that it has elimihtite specific credit risk associated with the expes to AMERCO and its affiliates
identified in the Report of Examination.
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b. Respondent shall establish that it possessphisigufficient to comply with A.R.S. Section 208481(F) and as the Director may require
based on the type, volume or nature of its busipassuant to A.R.S. Section 20-211.

4. Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 20-170, the Diretaeby appoints Examination Supervisor Rodney Bn&r CPA, as Supervisor of
Respondent.

5. Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 20-170, the Directders that Respondent, during the period of Sugierny may not do any of the following
things without the prior approval of the Directarhis Supervisor:

a. dispose of, convey or encumber any of its aggdts business in force;

b. withdraw any of its bank accounts;

c. lend any of its funds;

d. invest any of its funds;

e. transfer any of its property;

f. incur any debt, obligation or liability includjnthe insurance of all new and renewal business;
g. merge or consolidate with another company;

h. enter into any new reinsurance contract or\resat

i. enter into any affiliate transactions.

6. If Respondent fails to satisfy the requireméatabate the Director's determination within si¢@Q) days from the date hereof, the Director
may take appropriate action including but not ledito commencing a conservatorship pursuant toSA.Bection 20-171.

7. Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 20-171(C), the dosident to the services of the Director, or hip&wisor, or both, shall be charged against
the assets and funds of Respondent and shall Beybain fixed and determined by the Director.
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EFFECTIVE this 20th day of May, 2003.

/sl Charles R Cohen

CHARLES R. COHEN
Director of Insurance

CONSENT TO ORDER
1. Respondent has reviewed the foregoing Findifig®ot, Conclusions of Law and Order.

2. Respondent admits the jurisdiction of the Dimectf Insurance, State of Arizona, and admits tredoing Findings of Fact and consents to
the entry of the foregoing Conclusions of Law andé.

3. Respondent is aware of its right to notice ahéaing at which it may be represented by coupsetent evidence and cross-examine
witnesses. Respondent irrevocably waives its tiglstuich notice and hearing and to any court appekdsng to this Consent Order.

4. Respondent states that no promise of any kimdhture whatsoever, except as expressly contamgdsi Consent Order, was made to it to
induce it to enter into this Consent Order and ithaas entered into this Consent Order voluntarily

5. Respondent acknowledges that the purpose o€thisent Order is solely to enter the Order heanthdoes not preclude any agency,
officer or subdivision of this State from institodgi such administrative, civil or criminal proceegiras may be appropriate at any time.

6. Respondent acknowledges that nothing hereidyates the Department from taking any appropriagelleory action at any time, includil
but not limited to initiation of delinquency proakegs.

7. Respondent attests that Richard M. Amorosodditesident of Respondent and is authorized tauaeiis Consent Order on behalf of
Respondent.
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REPUBLIC WESTERN
INSURANCE COMPANY

/s/ Richard M Anoroso

By: Richard M Anoroso
Its: President

May 20, 2003

COPY of the foregoing mailed/hand-delivered thigh2@ay of May, 2003, to:

Richard M. Amoroso

President

Republic Western Insurance Company
2721 N. Central Avenue

Phoenix, Arizona 85004

J. Michael Low

Low & Childers

2999 N. 44th Street, Suite 250
Phoenix, Arizona 85018

Michael E. Surguine
Executive Director
Arizona Property and Casualty Insurance GuaranbdFArizona Life and Disability Insurance Guarantynel 1110 W. Washington, Suite Z

Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Rodney B. Frantz, Examination Supervisor Sara Bed@eputy Director

Steve Ferguson, Assistant Director

Deloris Williamson, Assistant Director

Paul Hogan, Market Conduct Chief Examiner Kurt Reghief Financial Analyst
Leslie Hess, Financial Affairs Legal Analyst ArizoDepartment of Insurance
2910 N. 44th Street, Second Floor

Phoenix, Arizona 85018



Jennifer Boucek

Assistant Attorney General
Arizona Attorney General's Office
1275 West Washington

Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Donahem\PHX\1378745.1

/sl Curvey Walters Burton

Curvey Walters Burton



Exhibit 21

AMERCO (NEVADA)

CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Republic Western Insurance Company

Republic Claims Service Company
Republic Western Syndicate, Inc.
North American Fire and Casualty Insurance
RWIC Investments, Inc.
Republic Western Specialty Underw
Ponderosa Insurance Agency, Inc.

Oxford Life Insurance Company

Oxford Life Insurance Agency, Inc.
Christian Fidelity Life Insurance Company
Encore Financial, Inc.
North American Insurance Company
Encore Agency, Inc.
Community Health, Inc.
Community Health Partner

Amerco Real Estate Company

Amerco Real Estate Company of Alabama, Inc

Amerco Real Estate Company of Texas, Inc.

Amerco Real Estate Services, Inc.

One PAC Company

Two PAC Company

Three PAC Company

Four PAC Company

Five PAC Company

Six PAC Company

Seven PAC Company

Eight PAC Company

Nine PAC Company

Ten PAC Company

Eleven PAC Company

Twelve PAC Company

Sixteen PAC Company

Seventeen PAC Company

Nationwide Commercial Company
Yonkers Property Corporation

PF&F Holdings Corporation
Fourteen PAC Company
Fifteen PAC Company

Company

riters, Inc.

s, Inc.

LA



U-Haul International, Inc.

United States:

INW Company
A & M Associates, Inc

EMove, Inc.

U-Haul Business Consultants, Inc
U-Haul Leasing & Sales Co.
U-Haul Self-Storage Corporation

U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
. of Georgia

U-Haul Co

of Alaska

of Alabama, Inc.

of Arkansas

of Arizona

of California

of Colorado

of Connecticut

of District of Columbia, Inc.
of Florida

U-Haul of Hawaii, Inc.

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

. of lowa, Inc.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.

of Idaho, Inc.
of lllinais, Inc.

. of Indiana, Inc.
U-Haul Co.

of Kansas, Inc.

. of Kentucky
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.

of Louisiana

of Massachusetts and Ohio, Inc.
. of Maryland, Inc.
U-Haul Co.

of Maine, Inc.

. of Michigan
U-Haul Co.

of Minnesota

U-Haul Company of Missouri

U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

of Mississippi

of Montana, Inc.

of North Carolina

of North Dakota

of Nebraska

of New Hampshire, Inc.
of New Jersey, Inc.

. of New Mexico, Inc.
U-Haul Co.

of Nevada, Inc.

. of New York, Inc.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
. of South Carolina, Inc.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Co.

of Oklahoma, Inc.
of Oregon

of Pennsylvania
of Rhode Island

of South Dakota, Inc.
of Tennessee

of Texas

of Utah, Inc.



U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

U-Haul Co

. of Virginia
U-Haul Co.

of Washington

. of Wisconsin, Inc.
U-Haul Co.

of West Virginia

. of Wyoming, Inc.

Storage Realty LLC

Canada:

U-Haul Co.
U-Haul Inspections, Ltd.

(Canada) Ltd.

Ontario
B.C.



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

AMERCO
Reno, NV

We hereby consent to the incorporation byresfee in the Registration Statements on Form Se3 883-10119, 333-73357, 333-48396
and 33-56571) of AMERCO and its subsidiaries of mynort dated August 18, 2003, which contains grla@atory paragraph regarding the
Company’s ability to continue as a going conceelgtmg to the consolidated financial statementsfarancial statement schedules, which

appears in the Form 10-K.
/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP

Los Angeles, CA
August 18, 2003



EXHIBIT 23.2
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of AMERCO

The audits referred to in our report dated Aug@st2D03 relating to the consolidated financialestagnts of AMERCO, and subsidiaries and
SAC Holdings Corporation and its subsidiaries aA€ $oldings Corporation Il and its subsidiaries @ris incorporated in Item 8 of the
Form 10-K by reference to the annual report toldtotders for the year ended March 31, 2003 inclutiecaudit of the financial statement
schedules listed in the accompanying index. Thiesad¢ial statement schedules are the responsibilithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statement schedules based upon our audits.

In our opinion such financial statement schedutesgnt fairly, in all material respects, the infatian set forth therein.
/s/ BDO Seidman, LLP
Los Angeles, California

August 18, 200:



EXHIBIT 99.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of AMER@®Be “Registrant”) on Form 1B-for the period ending March 31, 2003, as filedhahe
Securities and Exchange Commission on the dateh@he “Report”), |, Edward J. Shoen, Chairmante Board and President of the
Registrant certify, to the best of my knowledg@&tth

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiab@n and results of operations of
the Registrant

AMERCO,
a Nevada corporatic

By: /s/ Edward J. Shoen

Title: Chairman of the Board and President

Date August 22, 200:



EXHIBIT 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of AMER@®Be “Registrant”) on Form 1B-for the period ending March 31, 2003, as filedhahe

Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”), | Gary B. Horton, Treasurer bEtRegistrant certify, to the best of my
knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiab@n and results of operations of
the Registrant

AMERCO,
a Nevada corporatic

By: /s/ Gary B. Horton

Title: Treasurer

Date August 22, 200:



EXHIBIT 99.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U-Haétlernational, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form KCOer the period ending March 31, 2003,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), | Edward Jo&h Chairman of the Board and
President of the Registrant certify, to the beshgfknowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiab@n and results of operations of
the Registrant

U-Haul International, Inc.,
a Nevada corporatic

By: /s/ Edward J. Shoen

Title: Chairman of Board and President

Date August 22, 200:



EXHIBIT 99.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U-Haétlernational, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form KCOer the period ending March 31, 2003,
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commiseinthe date hereof (the “Report”), | Gary B. lortAssistant Treasurer of the

Registrant certify, to the best of my knowledg@&tth

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financiab@n and results of operations of
the Registrant

U-Haul International, Inc.,
a Nevada corporatic

By: /sl Gary B. Horto

Title: Assistant Treasurer

Date August 22, 200.
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